TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
AGENDA FOR A REGULAR MEETING
November 10, 2016 — 1:30 o’clock p.m.
Classroom 6 - Eugene L. Geil Pavilion

Open Session - Assembly Rooms 1, 2, 3
4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056

The Board may take action on any of the items listed
below, unless the item is specifically labeled
“Informational Only”

Time
Agenda Item Allotted Requestor
Call to Order 3 min. | Standard
2 | Approval of agenda
3 | Public Comments — Announcement 3 min. | Standard
Members of the public may address the Board regarding any item listed on
the Closed Session portion of the Agenda. Per Board Policy 14-018,
members of the public may have three minutes, individually, to address the
Board of Directors.
4 | Oral Announcement of Items to be Discussed During Closed Session
(Authority: Government Code Section 54957.7)
5 | Motion to go into Closed Session
6 | Closed Session 2 Hours

a. Conference with Labor Negotiators:
(Authority: Government Code Section 54957.6)
Agency Negotiator: Steve Dietlin
Employee organization: CNA

b. Hearings on Reports of the Hospital Medical Audit or
Quality Assurance Committees
(Authority: Health & Safety Code, Section 32155)

¢. Reports Involving Trade Secrets: New Facilities;
Conference with Real Property Negotiators
(Authority: Health and Safety Code, Section 32106, Gov. Code Section
54956.8)
Property: 4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056
Agency Negotiator: Steve Dietlin
Negotiating Parties: Tri-City Healthcare District and United States
Under Negotiation: Development program
Date of disclosure: December 31, 2016

d. Conference with Legal Counsel — Potential Litigation .
(Authority Government Code Section 54956.9(d) (1 Matter)

e. Approval of prior Closed Session Minutes

f. Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing Litigation
(Authority Government Code Section 54956.9(d)1, (d)4

Note: Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the members of Tri-City Healthcare District regarding any item on this
Agenda will be made available for public inspection in the Administration Department located at 4002 Vista Way,
Oceanside, CA 92056 during normal business hours.

Note: If you have a disability, please notify us at 760-940-3347 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting
so that we may provide reasonable accommodations.



Agenda ltem

Time
Allotted

Requestor

(1) Santana vs. TCHD
San Diego Superior Court No. 37-2016-00017929-CU-MM-NC

(2) Medical Acquisitions Company vs. TCHD
Case No: 2014-00009108

(3) TCHD vs. Medical Acquisitions Company
Case No: 2014-00022523

(4) Larry Anderson Employment Claims

g. Public Employee Evaluation: Chief Executive Officer
(Authority: Government Code, Section 54957)

Motion to go into Open Session

Open Session

Open Session — Assembly Room 3 — Eugene L. Geil Pavilion (Lower
Level) and Facilities Conference Room — 3:30 p.m.

Report from Chairperson on any action taken in Closed Session
(Authority: Government Code, Section 54957.1)

10

Roll Call / Pledge of Allegiance

3 min.

Standard

11

Public Comments — Announcement

Members of the public may address the Board regarding any item listed on
the Board Agenda at the time the item is being considered by the Board of
Directors. Per Board Policy 14-018, members of the public may have three
minutes, individually, to address the Board of Directors.

NOTE: Members of the public may speak on any item not listed on the
Board Agenda, which falls within the jurisdiction of the Board of Directors,
immediately prior to Board Communications.

2 min.

Standard

12

Community Update

1) Supportive Care/Quality Update — Sharon Schultz
2) Diamond Ball Update — Glen Newhart

15 min.
5 min.

S. Schultz
G. Newhart

13

Report from TCHD Auxiliary — Pat Morocco, President

5 min.

Standard

14

Report from Chief Executive Officer

10 min.

Standard

15

Report from Acting Chief Financial Officer

10 min.

Standard

16

New Business

a. Approval of a Physician Recruitment Agreement with Dr. Anton M.
Kushnaryov, and North County Ear, Nose, Throat, Head and Neck
Surgery

5 min.

J. Raimo, SVP

b. Consideration to appoint Ms. Katheryn Fitzwilliam to an additional two-
year term on the Audit, Compliance & Ethics Committee

5 min.

Standard

c. Consideration of CEO Employment Contract

5 min.

Chair

17

Old Business
a. Report from Ad Hoc Committee on electronic Board Portal

5 min.

Ad Hoc.

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -2-

November 10, 2016



Agenda ltem

Time
Allotted

Requestor

Comm.

18

Chief of Staff
a. Consideration of October 2016 Credentialing Actions and
Reappointments Involving the Medical Staff and Allied Health
Professionals

b. Crisis Stabilization Unit Delegation of Services Between Physician
Assistant and Supervising Physicians - Scope of Practice and
Protocols

5 min.

Standard

19

Consideration of Consent Calendar

(1) Board Committees
(1) All Committee Chairs will make an oral report to the Board
regarding items being recommended if listed as New
Business or pulled from Consent Calendar.
(2) All items listed were recommended by the Committee.
(3) Requested items to be pulled require a second.

A. Human Resources Committee
Director Kellett, Committee Chair
Open Community Seats — 0
No meeting held in October, 2016

B. Employee Fiduciary Retirement Subcommittee
Director Kellett, Subcommittee Chair
Open Community Sears — 0
No meeting held in October, 2016

C. Community Healthcare Alliance Committee
Director Nygaard, Committee Chair
Open Community Seats - 0
(Committee minutes included in Board Agenda packets for
informational purposes)

D. Finance, Operations & Planning Committee
Director Dagostino, Committee Chair
Open Community Seats — 0
(Committee minutes included in Board Agenda packets for
informational purposes)

1) Approval of the extension of the Clinical Coverage and
Medical Director Agreement between TCHD and North
County Oncology Medical Clinic, Inc. for a term of 36
months, beginning October 1, 2016 through September 30,
2019 as follows: Coverage Agreement, full time at
$43,333.33 per month; Co-Medical Director Agreement at
$6,666.67 per month (not to exceed 34 hours per month)
for a total cost for the 36-month term of $1,800,000.00.

2) Approval of an agreement with Rady Children’s Specialists
of San Diego for Retinopathy of Prematurity Testing for a term
of 12 months, beginning November 1, 2016 through October
31, 2017, for an annual cost of $32,820 and a total cost for the
term of $32,820.

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -3-

5 min.

Standard

HR Comm.

Emp. Fid.

Subcomm,

CHAC Comm.

FO&P Comm.

November 10, 2016



Agenda Item

Time
Aliotted

Requestor

3) Approval of an agreement with Cerner for Workstations on
Wheels Carts and Barcode for Medication Scanners and
with SHI for HP ProBook Laptops for a total combined cost
of $330,571.

4) Approval of the addition of Dr. Tara Quesnell to the currently
existing ED On-Call Coverage Panel for Neurology for a
term of 20 months, beginning November 1, 2016 through
June 30, 2018.

5) Approval of the addition of Dr. Grant Seiden to the currently
existing ED On-Call Coverage Panel for Orthopedic Surgery
for a term of 20 months, beginning November 1, 2016
through June 30, 2018.

6) Recommendation to refer the Finance, Operations &
Planning Committee Charter to the Governance Committee.

E. Professional Affairs Committee
Director Mitchell, Committee Chair
(Committee minutes included in Board Agenda packets for
informational purposes.)

1) Patient Care Services Policies & Procedures
a. Cardiac Cath Lab Standardized Procedure
b. Catheter Clearance with Alteplase (Cathflo Activase)
Procedure
c. CERNER Downtime Policy
d. Chest Tube Management Procedure
e. Differentiating Intrauterine Fetal Demises from
Miscarriages Procedure
f. Discharge from Outpatient Post-Anesthesia Nursing
Service Standardized Procedure
g. Haloperidol IV Administration Procedure
h. Hazardous Drugs Procedure
i. Local Anesthetic Prior to Intravenous Insertion
Standardized Procedure
j- Medical Equipment Brought into the Facility Policy
k. Ordering 12 Lead ECG for Administration of Droperidol
and /or Discontinuing Drug Standardized Procedure
|. Pneumoccocal and Influenza Vaccine Screening and
Administration and Procedure
m. Sponge, Sharps and Instrument Counts prevention of
Retained Surgical Objects
n. Utilization of Staff, Staffing Patterns Policy

2) Unit Specific

Infection Control
a. Influx of Infectious Patients Epidemic Influenza OR Other
Respiratory Transmitted Disease IC 15.0

Medical Staff
a. Disaster Privileges

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -4-

PAC

November 10, 2016



Agenda ltem

Time
Allotted

Requestor

NICU

a. Guideline for Care of the Extremely Low Birth Weight
Infant (ELBW) and Very Low Birth weight Infant (VLBW)
(DELETE)

b. Non-Emergent Neonatal Endotracheal Intubation
(DELETE)

c. Palliative Care of the Neonates at the End of Life

d. Peripheral Arterial Line Insertion, Maintenance and
Removal of

e. Staffing Ratios for Social services in the NICU

f. Standards of Care- NICU 2016

g. Standards of Care NICU (DELETE)

h. Visitation in the NICU

Women’s and Newborn Services
a. Newborn Sepsis Care Guidelines

3) Formulary Requests
a. Corticosteroid- Epidural Administration by IR

b. Gadavist
c. Formulary Line ltem Additions/Deletions
1. Capsaicin Topical Cream
2. Ticagrelor 60 mg tablets
3. Albuterol oral solution
4. Potassium chloride 40meq/30 ml cup
5. Vitamin K 5mg

F. Governance & Legislative Committee
Director Dagostino, Committee Chair
Open Community Seats - 2
No meeting held in October

G. Audit, Compliance & Ethics Committee
Director Finnila, Committee Chair
Open Community Seats — 1
(Committee minutes included in Board Agenda packets for
informational purposes.)

1) _Administrative Policies & Procedures:

a. 8750-560 — Non-Retaliation for Reporting Compliance
Issues or Suspected Misconduct Policy

b. 8750-563 — Development and Revision of Code of
Conduct and Policies; Introduction

c. 8750-564 — Development and Revision of Code of
Conduct and Compliance Policies

d. 8750-565 — Revision of Code of Conduct and
Compliance Policies (DELETE)

e. 8750-568 — Development and Revision of Code of
Conduct and Policies — Dissemination of New or
Revised Code of Conduct and Policies (DELETE)

(2) Minutes — Approval of:
a) Regular Board of Directors Meeting — September 29, 2016

(3) Meetings and Conferences - None

Gov. & Leg.
Comm.

Audit, Comp.
& Ethics
Comm.

Standard

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -5-

November 10, 2016



Time

Agenda Item Allotted | Requestor
(4) Dues and Memberships — None Standard
20 | Discussion of Items Pulled from Consent Agenda 10 min. | Standard
21 | Reports (Discussion by exception only) 0-5 min. | Standard
(a) Construction Report — None
(b) Lease Report — (September 2016)
(c) Reimbursement Disclosure Report — (September, 2016)
(d) Seminar/Conference Reports - None
22 | Legislative Update 5 min. Standard
23 | Comments by Members of the Public 5-10 Standard
NOTE: Per Board Policy 14-018, members of the public may have three (3) minutes
minutes, individually, to address the Board
24 | Additional Comments by Chief Executive Officer 5 min. Standard
25 | Board Communications (three minutes per Board member) 18 min. | Standard
26 | Report from Chairperson 3 min. Standard
Total Time Budgeted for Open Session 25
hours
27 | Oral Announcement of Items to be Discussed During Closed Session
28 | Motion to Return to Closed Session (if needed)
29 | Open Session
30 | Report from Chairperson on any action taken in Closed Session
(Authority: Government Code, Section 54957.1) — (If Needed)
31 | Adjournment

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -6-

November 10, 2016



FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: September 20, 2016
Physician Recruitment Proposal

Type of Agreement Medical Directors Panel X Other: Recruitment
Agreement
Status of Agreement X | New Agreement Renewal = New Renewal - Same
Rates Rates
Physician Name: Anton M. Kushnaryov, MD
Areas of Service: Otolaryngology
Key Terms of Agreement:
Effective Date: February 1, 2017 or the date Dr. Kushnaryov becomes a credentialed member in good standing
of the Tri-City Healthcare District Medical Staff
Community Need: TCHD Physician Needs Assessment shows significant community need for an Otolaryngologist
Service Area: Area defined by the lowest number of contiguous zip codes from which the hospital draws at
least 75% of its inpatients
Income Guarantee: None
Sign-on Bonus: $25,000
Relocation: $10,000
Total Not to Exceed: $35,000 Loan Amount

Unique Features:
® Dr. Kushnaryov will join the group practice of North County Ear, Nose, Throat, Head & Neck Surgery, in Vista, CA headed by
Dr. Mark Lebovits, a long time Tri-City Otolaryngologist, and Dr. Julie Berry.
® This agreement does not include an income guarantee; however, the amount provided (sign-on bonus and relocation) will
be in the form of a loan. The total amount loaned will be forgiven over a two-year period provided Dr. Kushnaryov
continues his practice in the service area, observes good business practices and complies with the terms of the agreement.

Document Submitted to Legal: X | VYes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X | Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Jeremy Raimo, Sr. Director, Business Development / Wayne
Knight, Chief Strategy Officer

Motion:

I move that the Finance, Operations and Planning Committee recommend the Board of Directors find it in the best interest of
the public health of the communities served by the District to approve the expenditure not to exceed $35,000, in order to
facilitate this Otolaryngology physician practicing medicine in the communities served by the District. This will be
accomplished through a Physician Recruitment Agreement with North County Ear, Nose, Throat and Head & Neck Surgery
and Anton Kushnaryov, MD.




Kathryn E. Fitzwilliam
Kef5121 @hotmail.com (760) 941 3288

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
Life Technologies Inc, Carlsbad, California 2007 - 2014

Director, Accounting & Finance

Reporting to the Chief Accounting Officer of a $3.5 billion biotech company, with a staff of
4 responsible, in a leadership role, for integration of specific accounting functions of acquired
companies, design and implementation of a European Finance shared services,
implementation, upgrades and enhancements of major ERP systems and the management of
the Global SOX 404 program for both Finance and IT controls including internal control
design and rationalization.

Gateway Inc, Irvine, California 2003 — 2006

VP, Internal Audit

Reporting to the Audit Committee and CFO with a staff of 10, responsible for financial,
operational and IT audit activity for $4.0 billion technology company. Achievements
include: the re-establishment of the audit department; development of a staffing model using
internal and co-sourced resources; budget development; design and implementation of an
audit methodology; project scoping, design implementation and execution of the Sarbanes
Oxley 404 program. Specific responsibilities include: strategic, financial and fraud annual
risk assessment; development of annual risk-based audit plan; audit execution, reporting and
follow up; disclosure committee reporting; and strategic and tactical management of the
successful Sarbanes Oxley program including process narratives, control matrices, process
testing and remediation plan development.

The Walt Disney Company, Burbank, California 2000 — 2003

Director, Management Audit

Reporting to VP of Internal Audit, one of three Directors, responsible for: global risk
assessment for all divisions of The Walt Disney Company; preparing an annual risk based
audit plan; directing audit execution; communicating findings and required action plans to
senior management; and monitoring company control self assessment results. Scope
included all financial and operational areas and specific responsibilities for all IT processes.
Direct reports of three managers and 10 professional staff. Achievements included
implementing a co-sourced audit arrangement and new audit methodology resulting in 100%
productivity improvement over 2 years.

Kelly Services, Inc., Troy, Michigan 1995 - 2000

Director, Business Systems 1998- 2000
Directed staff of 10 who maintained, developed and implemented systems for a subsidiary of
Kelly Services. Responsible for: business process re-engineering; implementation of Oracle
Financials, HRMS and Payroll; Y2K remediation of in-house UNIX systems; system security



and disaster recovery planning; selection and implementation of package software. Also
conducted post implementation reviews of Oracle systems worldwide and provided project
plans and project management to resolve issues.

Director Internal Audit 1997 -1998
Reporting to VP, Internal Audit managed Financial, IT, Operational and International
subsidiary audits for $4.0 billion organization. Responsible for: identifying audit risk;
preparing annual risk-based audit plan; planning audit engagements; developing and
reviewing audit programs; performing fieldwork; due diligence reviews for acquisitions;
communicating findings and recommendations to audit committee and senior management
both verbally and in written audit reports.

IT Audit Manager 1996 -1997
Supervised IT Auditors and conducted technical audits including: application reviews;
consulting on new applications; general control reviews; security and control audits.
Conducted financial and IT audits for international subsidiaries and participated extensively
with outside auditors during annual audits.

Senior Information Systems Auditor 1995 -1996
Conducted IT audits, prepared and delivered verbal and written audit reports.

Deloitte & Touche LLP, Detroit, Michigan 1992 - 1995

Senior Business Systems Consultant

Consulting Assignments

Consulted with clients in various businesses on projects including: strategic information system
planning; system design and selection; system integration and implementation.

Accounting Assignments

Acted as interim Director of Finance for two separate companies undergoing major re-organizations.
Benefits to clients included more efficient processes, dramatically improved cash flows, improved
staff morale, and smooth transition to new incumbents. I

Auditing Assignments 1
Supervised and managed annual financial audits for a wide variety of middle market clients including 3
manufacturing, real estate, service and wholesale distribution clients.

Amerisure, Southfield, Michigan 1990 - 1991

Business Systems Analyst
As an internal consultant for a major insurance company, identified, designed, documented and
implemented custom system enhancements for a comprehensive mainframe insurance package.

Fanuc Robotics, Auburn Hills, Michigan 1989 -1990

Interim Controller and MIS Director — UK subsidiary
Responsible for design and implementation of all accounting and information systems for newly
acquired UK subsidiary. Managed accounting and administrative staff.

ParaData Computer Networks, Inc., Farmington Hills, Michigan 1983 - 1989

Senior Sales Account Manager
Product Development Manager
Customer Training and Support Manager



EDUCATION, PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS AND HONORS

Walsh College of Accountancy and Business Administration, Troy, Michigan

Bachelor of Accountancy, GPA 3.96/4.0, Presidential Scholarship, President’s Honor Roll
Oakland Community College, Farmington Hills, Michigan

Associate Degree in Computer Science, Summa Cum Laude, GPA 4.00/4.00, and Dean’s Honor Roll

Certified Public Accountant, licensed in State of Michigan, status registered
Certified Information Systems Auditor (non current on CPE’s)

AICPA Eiijah Watts Sells Award with High Distinction for CPA examination achievement (top
100 in country, out of 70,000)
Financial Executive Institute Award - Walsh College recipient for academic achievement

10



— = e —
—_— —

—
S ——— S

D) ITi-City
g‘) Medicyal Center

" TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

MEDICAL STAFF INITIAL CREDENTIALS REPORT
- L October 12, Zﬂli

e ——— e —

Attachment A

INITIAL APPOINTMENTS (Effective Dates: 11/11/2016- 10/31,/2018)

Any items of concern will be “red” flagged in this report. Verification of licensure, specific training, patient
care experience, interpersonal and communication skills, professionalism, current competence relating to
medical knowledge, has been verified and evaluated on all applicants recommended for initial appointment to
the medical staff. Based upon this information, the following physicians have met the basic requirements of
staff and are therefore recommended for appointment effective 11/11/2016 through 10/31/2018:

° hri D. i M
e Jones, Pamela M.D./Neurosurgery (UCSD)
s P D, iol Di I

 Sliwa, Jan M.D./Anesthesiology (ASMG)
Schoenfeld, William M.D./Anesthesiology (ASMG)

] i D. il icin -
e W in M.D./Or icSu i 1] icin
TEMPO PRIV ES: Medical staff/Allied Health Professionals:

o P Jacl M.D./Radiol (San Di I ing)
o West Justin M.D./Orthopedic Surgery (San Diego Sports Medicine)

- e



Oy
‘9 Medic{ll Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS REPORT - 1 of 3

l
|
|

L 0ctobe£ 12, 2016ﬁ

s — —
= = i == TENS ==

Attachment B

BIENNIAL REAPPOINTMENTS: (Effective Dates 11/11/2016 -10/31/2018)

Any items of concern will be “red” flagged in this report. The following application was recommended for
reappointment to the medical staff office effective 11/11/2016 through 10/31/18, based upon
practitioner specific and comparative data profiles and reports demonstrating ongoing monitoring and
evaluation, activities reflecting level of professionalism, delivery of compassionate patient care, medical
knowledge based upon outcomes, interpersonal and communications skills, use of system resources,
participation in activities to improve care, blood utilization, medical records review, department specific
monitoring activities, health status and relevant results of clinical performance:

o Barb i M.. MD/A i Provisional
e B ristian D., MD h i I ctiv
o jali A. MD iv

e Capella, Marina N.,, MD/Pediatrics/Provisional
o C K th W.. MD/ Cardiol /Acti

° i i MD/1 ici
o Chiang, Pengta A., MD/Emergency Medicine/Active
° h P.MD I 1 Activ

e Davi m . MD 1 1t

o Evans, David G, MD/ Nuclear Medicine/Active

° imov, Stoi S..MD 1 icine/Activ.
° i vil D 1 Activ
° rner, Darin S, MD/ Emergency Medicine/Active
° Emer i Vi
o Famil i
Page1lof3

12




( Trl -City
Medlcal Center
TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS REPORT - 1 of 3

n L ) October 12,2016 L -
- N ) - _- B Attachment B

° ewi illi . i visi

e Lopez, Sandra, MD/ Obstetri G Active

° - MD/ Pediatri rovisional

° iller . MD/ Di ic Radiol iv

° rk istoph . Teleradiolo

o Par Sherine B., MD iatrics/Activ

e Pendleton, Robert B.,, MD/ Ophthalmology/Active

o Penvose-Yi - MD i Provision

e mad D Affili

e Shapiro, Mark., MD/ Nephrology/Consulting

e h.H . E icin iv

e Sl i Di Pr

° 1 0 I

e  Wolff, James D., MD/ Teleradiology/Associate

° ler, K i MD/T
° i I MD/ Int ici li
RESIGNAT!QNS: (Effective date 11/11/2016 unless otherwise noted)
Voluntary:
e Caml ALf MD/ Plastic S /Acti
o F lanie A., M hr P 1
e Grauer, Nancy M.. MD/ Obstetrics & Gynecology/Active
° D/E i
Page 2 of 3

13




(}?Trl-CIt B
Medical Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS REPORT - 1 of 3
October 12,2016

ikP.M 0 1 r

Ngo. Donald, MD/Anesthesiology/Active

Nov « MD il ici iv

Page 3 of 3

Attchmen B -

14




s v S

(\ Tri- Clt

Medlcal Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS REPORT - Part 2 of 3
October 12,2016

e e
=S === ——

Attachment B

N-REAPPOINTMENT RELATED US MODIFICATI
IV E TED CH

The following practitioners were given 6 months from the last reappointment date to complete
their outstanding proctoring. These practitioners failed to meet the proposed deadline and
therefore the listed privileges will automatically expire as of 10/31/16.

° CLANCY John D.Q. In 1

STAFF STATUS CHANGES

e None at this time

15




(’\)J)Trl -City
1 Medlcal Center
TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS REPORT - Part 3 of 3
October 12, 2016

Attachment C
ecifie

o LEE, Dandy M.D. Anesthesiology
° HR, Andr .D Anesthesiology
o  SEIF, David M.D. Anesthesiology

16




= —tr

I

——

() Tri City

Medlcal Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
INTERDISCIPLINARY PRACTICE INITIAL CREDENTIALS REPORT
October }1, 2016

Attachment A

INITIAL APPOINTMENT TO THE ALLIED HEALTH PROFESSIONAL STAFF

Verification of licensure, specific training, patient care experience, interpersonal and communication skills,
professionalism, current competence relating to medical knowledge, has been verified and evaluated on all
applicants recommended for initial appointment to the medical staff. Based upon this information, the following
AHPs have met the basic requirements of staff and are therefore recommended for appointment effective
11/11/2016 through 10/31/2018:

o FAZZINO, Dolores, NP, RFNA (Surgery/General/Vascular)

INITIAL APPLICATION WITHDRAWAL: (Voluntary unless otherwise specified)
Alli 1 fessi :

None
MPO PRIVILEGES: Allied Health Professionals:
None

17




(, Tri-City

Medlcal Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
h INTERDISCIPLINARY PRACTICE REAPPOINTMENT CREDENTIALS REPORT - 1 of 3
i . October _1__'2_, 2016 .

Attachment B

IENN LS: (Effective Dates 11/11,/2016 - 10/31/2018)

Any items of concern will be “red” flagged in this report. The following application was recommended for
reappointment to the medical staff office effective 11/11/2016 through 10/31/2018, based upon
practitioner specific and comparative data profiles and reports demonstrating ongoing monitoring and
evaluation, activities reflecting level of professionalism, delivery of compassionate patient care, medical
knowledge based upon outcomes, interpersonal and communications skills, use of system resources,
participation in activities to improve care, blood utilization, medical records review, department specific
monitoring activities, health status and relevant results of clinical performance:

° r NP /Alli lth Pr ional
e For B RNFA /Allied Health Professional
° i PAC/Alli i 1

o Willett, Bri jed H Prof

BESIQNATIONS: (Effective date 11/11/2016 unless otherwise noted)

Pagelof1l

18



——

|

) Tri-City
(‘) Medlcal Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
INTERDISCIPLINARY PRACTICE COMMITTEE CREDENTIALS REPORT - Part 2 of 3
October 17,2016

Attachment B

NON-REAPPOINTMENT RELATED STATUS MODIFICATIONS (Effective

Date: 11/11/2016, unless specified otherwise)

IVI TE NGES

e None at this time

STAFF STATUS CHANGES

e None at this time

19




| ’W)Trl -City
Med|cal Center
MEDICAL STAFF

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
INTERDISCIPLINARY PRACTICE COMMITTEE CREDENTIALS REPORT - Part 3 of 3
October 17, 2016

Attachmnt C

e CARNELIAN, Alissa, AuD Allied Health Professional
° P NM i 1th P

20




DELEGATION OF SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
PHYSICIAN ASSISTANT AND SUPERVISING PHYSICIANS
SCOPE OF PRACTICE

AND PROTOCOLS

Tri-City Behavioral Health
Outpatient Crisis Stabilization Unit
4002 Vista Way

Oceanside, CA 92056

October 2016

Updated October, 2016

21



DELEGATION OF SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
SUPERVISING PHYSICIAN AND PHYSICIAN ASSISTANT

This Delegation of Services Agreement ("Agreement”) is entered into between (see Supervising
Physician List on Pages 25-28) the physicians whose signatures appear on pages 25-28, each

of which shall be referred to herein as "Supervising Physician" or “SP”) and _Carol Ann Jeffries

("PA"), in order to fulfill the purposes set forth below.

Physician Assistant Carol Ann Jeffries
(Name)

Physician Assistant, Graduated from _Pacific University, Forest Grove, OR
(Name)

Physician Assistant training program on _May 2003 thru January 2006
(Date)

Carol Ann Jeffries was first granted licensure by the Physician Assistant Committee on:

See HR file which expires on See HR file unless renewed.

. PURPOSE: The purpose of this Agreement is to comply with the requirements of Title 16,
Article 4, of the California code of Regulations, and Business and Professions code
Section 1399.540 and Business and Professions Code Section 3500-3546 hereinafter
referred to as the "Physician Assistant Regulations" or “PA Regulations.” Per “PA
Regulations”, "A physician assistant may provide those medical services which are
consistent with the
physician assistant's education, training and experience, and which are delegated by a
supervising physician who is responsible for the patients cared for by that physician
assistant." In this Agreement, Supervising Physician hereby delegates the performance of
certain medical services to PA. “PA Regulations” sets forth requirements for supervision
by a supervising physician when a PA is caring for patients. This Agreement shall set forth

such requirements to be followed by PA and Supervising Physicians.

Il.  QUALIFICATIONS: PA is licensed by the California Physician Assistant Committee.
Supervising Physician is a licensed California physician who has a locum tenens contract
agreement, with Locum Tenens and Tri-City Medical Center. PA and Supervising
Physicians are familiar with the requirements governing the performance of medical
services by PA's, and the supervision of PA's by supervising physicians, as set forth in the

Physician Assistant Regulations.

22



Ill. SETTING AND SCOPE OF PA PRACTICE (FUNCTIONS)

A. Setting

1. The PA may function within only those locations operated through Tri-City Medical
Center (TCMC) in which the supervising physician is privileged for. The PA is not
permitted to order medications or place orders on a medical record unless they are

physically present in TCMC locations.

B. Scope of PA Practice (Functions)
1. The Psychiatric PA will:

a) Assume responsibility for the psychiatric care of patients, under written
delegation of services agreement and under the supervision of the TCMC medical
staff member (physician).
b) Patients may be seen for the initial medication assessment by the PA with the
agreement and under the supervision of the physician. The PA must consult the
supervising physician if assessing a medication outside of the PA defined scope of
practice as defined in delegation of services agreement. The supervising physician
may choose to perform the initial medication assessment and then assign the PA to
the responsibility for the psychiatric services required by the patient, subject to the
supervision requirements of the TCMC medical staff.
¢) Admit and discharge patients only with physician consultation. Patients are
admitted to, and discharged from, inpatient and outpatient services, including the
crisis stahilization unit, under the order of a physician. Telephone/verbal orders for
admission and discharge can be obtained from the physician and entered by the
PA. Telephone orders are systems directed for physician countersignature which is
required within 48 hours.
d) Order medications as included in the Psychiatric Division Cerner Power Plans.
e) The PA will provide an explanation of the nature of the illness and of the
proposed treatment; a description of any reasonable foreseeable risks, side effects,
interactions with other medications, or discomforts; a description of anticipated
benefits; a disclosure of appropriate alternative procedures or courses of treatment,
if any; and special instructions regarding food, drink, or lifestyles to the patient.
f) The PA orders the medication and documents the information into the chart and
in the clinical notes.
g) If a medication needed is not listed on a Power Plan the PA must consult the

supervising physician, document the consultation in the medical record, and place



outcomes.

the order via telephone order communication type for supervising physician co-
signature.

h) Administer medications (including an injectable) as necessary for patient needs.
Medication administration by a PA does not require a standardized procedure.
Supervising Physician shall review, countersign, and date the record of any patient
for whom PA issues or carries out a drug order within seven days.

i) Obtain psychiatric and medical histories and perform overall health assessment
for any presenting problem.

j) Order and interpret specific laboratory studies for the patient as included in the
Psychiatric Division Power Plans.

k) Provide or ensure case management and coordination of treatment.

1) Make referrals to outpatient primary care practitioners, and/or Mental Health
Psychiatrists/Physicians for consultation or to specialized health resources for
treatment, retaining responsibility for mental health care of the patient, as well as
any subsequent modifications to the patient’s care as needed and appropriate.
Inpatient consultations must be physician to physician.

m) Document in the patient’s medical record, goals, interventions clinical outcomes
and the effectiveness of psychiatric medication in sufficient detail so that any
Psychiatrist/Physician can review and evaluate the effectiveness of the care being
given.

n) ldentify aspects of PA care important for quality monitoring, such as symptom
management and control, health behaviors and practices, safety, patient
satisfaction and quality of life.

o) Utilize existing quality indicators or develop new indicators to monitor the
effectiveness of care provided by the physician assistant.

p) Formulate recommendations to improve mental health care and patient

q) Provide patient health education related to medications, psychiatric conditions

and health issues.

IV. MANAGEMENT OF CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES

A. PA participates in the process of furnishing and ordering controlled substances under the

scope of practice and protocols.

1. Definition: controlled substances are defined as those scheduled drugs that have a

high potential for dependency and abuse.

24



2. Schedule 1l through V drugs requires successful completion of an Advanced
Pharmacology continuing education course that includes Schedule I controlled
substances based on standards developed by the Physician Assistant Regulations.
a. This course must be successfully completed prior to the application to the
United States Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) for a Schedule Il registration
number.
3. When Schedule |l through V drugs are furnished or ordered by a PA, the controlled
substances shall be furnished or ordered in accordance with a patient-specific Power

Plans approved by the treating or supervising physician and the division of psychiatry.

V. SUPERVISION BY A PHYSICIAN PURSUANT TO CA BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE

A. As required, supervising physician shall:

1. Review, countersign and date within seven (7) days the medical record of any
patient for whom PA issues or carries out a drug order. For other patients,
Supervising Physician shall utilize one or more of the following mechanisms to
supervise PA, as required by Section 1399.545 of the Physician Assistant

Regulation
a. Examination of the patient by Supervising Physician
the same day as care is given by PA.
b. Supervising Physician shall review, audit and

countersign
every medical record written by PA within 30 days of the encounter.

c. X Supervising Physician shall audit the medical records of
at least ten percent (10%) of the patients managed by PA under
protocols which shall be adopted by Supervising Physician and PA,
pursuant to Section 1 399.545(e)(3) of the Physician Assistant
Regulations. Supervising Physician shall select for review those
cases which by diagnosis, problem, treatment or procedure
represent, in his judgment, the most significant risk to the patient.

B. Supervision for purposes of this agreement is defined as supervision by a physician for the
performance of standardized protocols and for furnishing or ordering drugs by PA pursuant to
California (CA) business and professions code.
1. Each PA will at all times have a supervisory relationship with a specifically identified
physician.
a. In the event the primary Supervising Physician is not available when needed, PA
may call and/or refer patients to other authorized physicians (secondary

Supervising Physicians) as designated by the Supervising Physician.

25



b. The Supervisor is not required to be present at the time of the patient
assessment/examination, but must be available for collaboration/consultation by
telephone.
c. Ongoing case specific Supervision occurs as needed, with frequency determined
by the PA and/or the Supervisor. The consultation, including recommendations, is
documented as considered necessary by the Supervisor in the clinical record.
d. Additional Supervision occurs as described below under “Quality Improvement.”
2. Supervisor notification and consultation is obtained under the following circumstances:
a) Emergent conditions requiring prompt medical intervention after stabilizing care has
been started.
b) Acute exacerbation of a patient’s situation;
¢) History, physical or lab findings that is inconsistent with the clinical formulation or
diagnostic or treatment uncertainty.
d) Patient refusal to undergo a medical examination or psychiatric evaluation and/or
appropriate medical monitoring.
e) Upon request of the patient, another clinician or Supervisor.
f) Upon request of the PA.
g) The supervising physician will examine the patient on the same day as care is provided

by the PA for non-scheduled patient admissions.

Vi. QUALITY IMPROVEMENT

A. PAs participate in the identification of problems that may pose harm for patients to
facilitate change and improvement in patient care.
1. The PA will complete clinical quality review reports when necessary and inform
appropriate personnel.
2. The PA will note errors or inconsistencies in patient records and intervene to
correct and resolve these.
3. PA cases referred for peer review shall be evaluated by the Supervisor in
conjunction with the medical staff peer review processes.
4. The Supervisor conducts an annual review of the PA’s performance, and gives
input into the Annual Performance Evaluation.
5. The PA will be subject to existing methods of monitoring and quality
improvement will be utilized where appropriate. These methods include, but are not
limited to supervision, medication monitoring and the medical staff peer review
process.
6. The PA will maintain and upgrade clinical skills as required to meet professional

standards.



a) Documentation of participation in relevant continuing education activities.

Protocols FOR PHYSICIAN ASSISTANTS

Protocols for Physician Assistant Practice

Tri-City Medical Center has adopted the following books and Media resources as the protocols

and clinical practice guidelines for the physician assistant practice of medicine:

MEDICAL MANAGEMENT
Current Medical Diagnosis and Treatment, Appleton & Lange
Merck Manual, Merck
The Washington Manual of Medical Therapeutics, Little Brown
Harrison's Principles of Internal Medicine, McGraw-Hill
The Sanford Guide to Antimicrobial Therapy, Antimicrobial Therapy, Inc.
Family Practice
Nurse Practitioner Certified Nurse Midwife Physician Assistant Protocols, Kaiser
Permanente Southern California Permanente Medical Group
Emergency Medicine: A Comprehensive Study Guide Tintinalli
Atlas of Emergency Medicine Procedures
Diagnostic & Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders (DSM-5)/Edition 5, Ametrican
Psychiatric Publishing, Incorporated.
Other

PHARMACOLOGY
Physician's Desk Reference
Physician's Desk Reference for Non-prescription Drugs
Drug Interactions Handbook by Lexicomp
Handbook of Clinical Pharmacology, Wallach
Other

LABORATORY MEDICINE
Interpretation of Diagnostic Tests, Littie Brown
Widmann's Clinical Interpretation of Laboratorv Tests, F.A. Davis
Other

The PA will utilize only those portions of these references that are consistent with the scope of
his practice, including his training, experience, and skilis. It is understood that referral to these
sources Wwill occur as often as the PA deems necessary, but will not supplant as much direct

consultation as possible, when indicated, with the primary or secondary Supervising Physicians.

27



These textbooks and media resources will serve as PA practice references. They are
supplements and references, not substitutes, for practicing the standard of care as determined

by the Supervising Physician.

The current edition of these medical books shall provide the standards for the objective data
references. The texts which are integrated into the PA's protocols shall include only those parts
of the referenced text(s) that cover medications that are appropriate for use in the type of

practice engaged in by the supervising physician.

It is understood that the supervising physician is the ultimate authority as to the correct

treatment modalities.

As an agent of the supervising physician, the physician assistant is authorized to provide,
administer, or initiate an order for a service, drug, device, or procedure specified in these
protocols without a patient-specific order. Except as provided below, the physician assistant
may initiate orders for the patient care services indicated in the medical books or computerized

media without prior consultation with the supervising physician.

Physician consultation or referral is indicated for the management of patients that have
diseases which are not included in these medical books and regarding any patient, task,
procedure, or diagnostic problem that the physician assistant determines exceeds his level of
competence. Also, prior approval by the supervising physician is required before issuing or

carrying out any drug order for a controlled substance.

The protocols herein outline requirements for PA functions in the management, evaluation,

diagnosis and treatment of the following:

|. Assessment and management of behavioral health CSU patients.

ll. Any disease-specific or treatment-specific protocol or clinical guideline for the PA is to be
used to supplement patient care, not to define it absolutely. Alterations and adjustments may
be necessary to individualize patient care as described below:
A. Patient Management
1. Triage CSU admissions and management of patients on the CSU.
Perform or assist in initial and follow-up history and physical examination
and discharge. Review, discuss and confirm, as necessary, by a

supervising physician.

28



2. Make assessments from the examinations and routine laboratory
tests and record such information in the patient's record.
3. There will be regular communication between the physician assistant
and the patient's physician regarding medication and toxicity.
4.The PA is authorized to assist in the performance of and to perform all
further laboratory and screening procedures and all additional therapeutic
procedures as directed by an SP and as determined by that SP to lie within
the scope of the PAs training, skills, and experience. In certain situations,
the SP may actually provide that training to the PA and monitor his
performance during the training phase.

5. Responsible for ordering laboratory tests, diagnostic imaging,

consultations and medicine orders.

6. Maintain thorough patient clinical records with appropriate

documentation of pertinent data.

7. Responsible for obtaining informed consent.

8. Responsible for fielding telephone calls from patients, family and
referring physicians.

9. Provide assessment, consultation and recommendations to other
medical specialties as requested by those services needing immediate
assistance or as requested.

10. Use universal precautions to reduce the risk of transmission of

Infectious agents, in all appropriate settings.
11. Life-threatening situations:
a. Recognize and evaluate situations which call for immediate
attention of the supervising physician.
b. Institute CPR (PA must be certified) as necessary to support
life of the patient until relieved by a physician.
¢. Have knowledge of patient-related outside health agencies
and their roles.
B. Liaison Duties:
1. Coordinate physician referral of patients or families to appropriate
health facilities, resources of the community or other physicians.
Assist with placement to home or CSU Resource Centers by providing
a review of treatment, therapy plans and medications with patient's
family and other medical personnel.
2. Inform, explain and counsel patients and families regarding
disease processes, mental health, and interim and long range

treatment program.

29



3. Provide liaison information between consulting physicians, nurses,

administrative staff, and other medical personnel.

30



PROTOCOL FOR MANAGEMENT OF PSYCHIATRIC ILLNESS AS IT PERTAINS TO CSU PATIENTS

I. Deflnltlon: This protocol covers the management of acute psychiatric illness seen in
patients who are followed by the PA in the CSU at Tri-City Medical Center.
ll. Data Base:
A. Subjective data
1. Obtain patient's description of current symptoms relevant to the
presenting (chief) complaint
2. Obtain history of present iliness, review of systems relevant to
complaint, current medications and allergies.
B. Objective data
1.  Physical examination appropriate to complaint.
2. Laboratory, x-ray and other diagnostic evaluations as appropriate.
3. Mental Status examination.
C. Assessments/Diagnosis:
1. Interim or final diagnosis consistent with subjective and objective data and

DSM-5.

2. Assessment of level of acuity of the illness/event.
D. Plan/Treatment:
1. Diagnostic

a) Order appropriate laboratory, x-rays and other diagnostic
procedures.

b) Initiate referral to other specialty when indicated.

2. Treatment

a. Initiation and manipulation of medications (as covered in Medication Protocol

below

b. Physical, occupational and other therapies when appropriate.

c. Diet and exercise prescription as indicated by level of illness/event and

patient condition.

3.  Education: Patient education will include, when appropriate, the following:

a) Disease course, expected outcome, and prevention.

b) Medications: Teach purpose, dosage, side effects, toxic effects, the
importance of compliance with regimen, directions for taking drug, and,
what to do and whom to contact if side effects occur.

¢) Activity and lifestyle counseling.

d) Specify follow-up plan with patient.

10

31



4.

Consultation: Supervising physician consultation will be obtained as delineated

in the Scope of Practice, Declaration of Service, and PA Protocols.

32



MEDICATION PROTOCOL

. Definitlon: This protocol covers the initiation, alteration, discontinuance, and renewal of
medications for patients in the CSU at Tri-City Medical Center.
ll. Approval to issue drug orders:

A. All Physician Assistants shall follow the law, “PA Regulations,” when prescribing
medications.

lll. Physiclan's Prescriptions:

A. The PA may issue both to a pharmacist and to a nurse, SP's order(s) for medication(s)
or medical device(s) requiring a physician's prescription in accordance with the
pertinent sections of the PA statutes and regulations, particularly Business and
Professions Code, Section 3502.1. Drug orders to a pharmacist shall be in accordance
with the policies and practices of the Tri-City Emergency Medical Group, or in

accordance with patient-specific orders from an SP, as shall orders to a nurse.

B. The PA may also enter written orders on the medical records of patients being followed
at any site where heaith care is being provided within the purview of the supervising
physicians of Tri-City Medical Center and in accordance with the PA regulations and
other applicable statutes and regulations. These orders on a patient's medical record
may include a record of orders to Pharmacists, as well as to nurses, concerning the
administration of medications, the use of medical devices, or the performance of other
nursing duties, again, in accordance with the pertinent sections of the PA statutes and

regulations and the policies and practices of Tri-City Medical Center.

C. Any medication handed to a patient by the PA shall be authorized by the prescription
order either via a transmittal order based on protocols and elements of this document
or via a patient-specific order of an SP and shall be packaged and labeled in
accordance with Sections 4047.5, 4048, and 4228 of the Business and Professions
Code.

12

33



APPROVED SUPERVISING PHYSICIAN'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR SUPERVISION OF A PHYSICIAN
ASSISTANT IN CONJUNCTION WITH PROTOCOLS

Tri-City Medical Center
3156 W. Vista Way, Suite 410

Oceanside, CA 92056-3622

October 2016

13

34



APPROVED SUPERVISING PHYSICIANS' RESPONSIBILITY
FOR SUPERVISION OF A PHYSICIAN ASSISTANT IN CONJUNCTION WITH
PROTOCOLS

SUPERVISORS (see Supervising Physician List “SP Llst”) are physicians licensed to practice in
California as physicians and surgeons who are members of the medical staff at Tri-City Medical

Center (medical license numbers listed on SP List).

Hereinafter, the above-named approved physicians, shall be referred to as primary supervising
physician (SP) along with others on SP List who shall be referred to as secondary SP, and

together they shall jointly be referred to as “the SPs.”

SUPERVISION REQUIRED: The Physician Assistant named in the Delegation of Service
Agreement will be supervised by an approved primary or secondary SP in accordance with
these guidelines set forth as required by PA Regulations, which have been read by the SP’s
whose signatures appear below.

1. Supervising Physician shall remain available at alf times while PA is performing medical
services, unless another approved supervising physician is so available.

2. The Primary SP will review the performance of the PA on a regularly planned and
continuing manner. The review includes the need to examine an appropriate number of
charts. To countersign and date those documents that require a countersignature, and
to confer personally with the PA about the performance of his/her tasks and

responsibilities.

Protocols: In the CSU at Tri-City Medical Center, written protocols exist as Guidelines for
evaluation and management of patients. A protocol also addresses the aspects of clinical
practice regarding medications. These protocols are found in the “Protocols for Physician
Assistants at Tri-City Medical Center in the CSU.

14

35



A. Both the SPs and the PA recognize that validity and the applicability of the following

principles that constitute responsible supervision:

1. For PAs and their SPs, responsible supervision is a vital, ongoing process, and not
merely a legal refinement in the medico-legal arena.

2. No SP will be responsible for more than two PAs at any point during the SP's working
hours

3. An SP will be continuously available during the PA's working hours either in person or by
some form of electronic communication. It is understood that this stipulation does not
require constant direct supetrvision when planned options for other forms of supervision and
communications exist.

4. The PA will preserve his professional integrity by taking the following minimum
steps where appropriate:

a. Timely consultation with an SP, who generally recognizes that not every individual
case requires specific or immediate attention from an SP; this consultation may be
prior to the implementation of the treatment plan, though this will not invariably be
s0;

b. Utilization of tacit, well-understood, and agreed-upon modes of assessment and
therapy, as well as flexible, written protocols;

¢. Regular discussion of-and consistent accountability for-all patient care services
that the PA performs;

d. Recognition and affirmation of the ultimate dependency of the PA's role upon that
of the SP's practice; and

e. Further the development of a collegial supervisory relationship consistent with all of

these principles defined herein.

15

36



Declaration: Our signatures below signify that we fully understand the foregoing agreement
(Delegation of Service, Scope of Practice, PA Protocols, and SP Supervisory Responsibility for
PA) - having received a copy of this agreement for our possession and guidance - and agree to

comply with its’ terms without reservation.

The PA is authorized to function as my agent per protocols of Tri-City Medical Center.

Dated:
PHYSICIAN ASSISTANT
Supervising Physicians:
Name: License Number: Date:
Name: License Number: Date:

Delegation of Services Agreement

16

37



Unique

Plan Description: CSU Admit Orders by Psychiatry

Plan Selection Display: CSU Admit Orders by Psychiatry
PlanType: Medical

Version: 1

Begin Effective Date: 9/13/2016 16:04

End Effective Date: Current

Available at all facilities
CSU Admit Orders by Psychiatry
Status
Patient Admission Status
T,N, Routine, Outpatient- Crisis Stabilization Unit, No, Psychiatric evaluation
Requested Patient Location
T:N, Crisis Stabilization Unit
Code Status
T;N, Full Code (DEF)*
T;N, No Resuscitation
Legal Status
T;N, Routine, Voluntary (DEF)*
T;N, Routine, 72-Hour Hold
T:N, Routine, Conservator
Isolation
T;N, Standard Precautions
Vital Signs
Vital Signs
T:N, Routine, DAILY (DEF)*
T:N, Q4HR-WA, for Detox
T:N, Timed, BID, While Awake, for Detox
Activity
Activity as Tolerated
T;N, Routine
Nursing Orders
O siter
T;N, Routine
Diet
Regular Diet
T;N, Routine, Nutrit Supplemnt/Protocol Yes
O cardiac Diet
T;N, Routine, Nutrit Supplemnt/Protocol Yes
O Carbohydrate Control Diet
T:N, 1800 cal, Nutrit Supplemnt/Protocol Yes (DEF)*
T;N, 2000 cal, Nutrit Supplemnt/Protocol Yes
T;N, 2200 cal, Nutrit Supplemnt/Protocol Yes
Medications
“***Benzodiazepine Equivalents*****ALPRAZolam(Xanax) 0.5mgchlordiazePOXIDE(Librium) 10mg
clonazePAM(Klonopin) 0.25mgclorazepate(Tranzene) 7.5mgdiazepam(Valium) 5mgestrazolam(Prosom)
1mgflurazepam(Dalmane) 15mgiorazepam(Ativan) 1mgoxaxepam(Serax) 15mgtemazepam(Restoril)
15mgtriazolam(Halcion) 0.25mg(NOTE)*
& Tylenol
650 mg, ORAL, Q6HR, PRN, Pain, tab, Pain
Mylanta ||
16 mL, ORAL, Q4HR, PRN, Indigestion, Indication Indigestion, ORAL Soin
1 Protonix
40 mg, ORAL, DAILY, ER tablet, Control of stomach acid
C KionoPIN

38



0.6 mg, ORAL, BID, PRN, Agitation, Duration: 2 days, tab, Agitation

O  vistarl
50 mg, ORAL, Q4HR, PRN, Other (see comment), cap, Anxiety (DEF)*
Comments: prn MODERATE anxiety; Not to Exceed 4 doses in 24hrs
50 mg, ORAL, QB6HR, PRN, Anxiety, T:N
O vistaril
100 mg, ORAL, Q4HR, PRN, Other (see comment), Duration: 1 hr, cap, Anxiety
Comments: prn SEVERE anxiety; Not to Exceed 4 doses in 24hrs
O serogquel

50 mg, ORAL, Q4HR, PRN, Agitation, tab
00 BHU standard Admission Medications(SUB)*
Choose one of the following for sleep(NOTE)*

Fl  Restoril
15 mg, ORAL, QHS, PRN, Insomnia, cap, Insomnia
Comments: May Repeat X 1 dose before 0200.
O Ambien
5 mg, ORAL, QHS, PRN, Insomnia, tab, Insomnia
O  Desyrel

50 mg, ORAL, QHS, PRN, Insomnia, tab, Insomnia (DEF)*
100 mg, ORAL, QHS, PRN, Insomnia, tab, Insomnia
1 Remeron
16 mg, ORAL, QHS, PRN, Insomnia, tab, Insomnia (DEF)*
30 mg, ORAL, QHS, PRN, Insomnia, tab, Insomnia
Bowel Management
O colace
100 mg, ORAL, BID, Duration: 1 hr, cap, Bowel Movement
Comments: Hold for GREATER or equal to 4 stools per 24hr
MOM
30 mL, ORAL, DAILY, PRN, No Bowel Movement in 24hr, T:N, Indication Constipation, susp
Commenis: no bowel movement in 24hr
O Dulcolax Laxative
10 mg, RECTAL, DAILY, PRN, Constipation, supp, Constipation
Comments: If MOM is not effective
0 senokot
2 tab, ORAL, BID, PRN, No Bowel Movement in 48hr, TN, Indication Constipation, tab
Comments: IF no BM in 48hr
Consults
O Psych Eval
T;N, Routine, BHU staff Psychologist
O  consult to BHS Social Service
T;N, Routine
Rehab Services

O TR BHS Evaluation & Treatment

*Report Legend:

DEF - This order sentence is the default for the selected order
GOAL - This component is a goal

IND - This component is an indicator

INT - This component is an intervention

IV8 - This component is an |V Set

NOTE - This component is a note

Rx - This component is a prescription

SUB - This component is a sub phase



Unique Plan Description: Discharge CSU
Plan Selection Display: Discharge CSU
PlanType: Medical

Version: 1

Begin Effective Date: 9/13/2016 15:09
End Effective Date: Current

Available at all facilities

Discharge CSU
Status

Discharge Patient
T;N, Routine (DEF)*
T;N, Routine, For Admission to Inpatient psychiatric care
Discharge Location
T;N, Routine, Home Independently (DEF)*
T;N, Routine, Psychiatric Unit
T;N, Routine, Other
Discharge
Discharge Activity
T.N, Routine, Activity as tolerated
Discharge Diet
T.N, Routine, Regufar (DEF)*
T:N, Routine, Low Fat Diet
T.N, Routine, Cardiac
O Discharge Instructions
T;N, Routine (DEF)*
T;N, Routine, Follow up with psychiatry. Call 911 or use ED if needed.
[0 Return to Work/School
T;N, Routine

*Report Legend:

DEF - This order sentence is the default for the selected order
GOAL - This component is a goal

IND - This component is an indicator

INT - This component is an intervention

IVS - This component is an IV Set

NOTE - This component is a note

Rx - This component is a prescription

SUB - This component is a sub phase

40



Unique Plan Description: BHU Biploar-Mania
Plan Selection Display: BHU Biploar-Mania
PlanType: Medical

Version: 1

Begin Effective Date: 01/11/2012 12:25

End Effective Date: Current

Available at all facilities

BHU Biploar-Mania
Medications

O Trileptal
150 mg, ORAL, BID, tab (DEF)*
300 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
600 mg, ORAL, BID, tab

O Depakote
125 mg, ORAL, TID, EC tablet (DEF)*
250 mg, ORAL, TID, EC tablet

O Depakote ER 250 mg oral tablet, extended release
250 mg, ORAL, DAILY, ER tablet (DEF)*
250 mg, ORAL, QHS, ER tablet
750 mg, ORAL, DAILY, ER tablet
750 mg, ORAL, QHS, ER tablet

O Depakote ER 500 mg oral tablet, extended release
500 mg, ORAL, DAILY, ER tablet (DEF)*
1000 mg, ORAL, DAILY, ER tablet
1,500 mg, ORAL, DAILY, ER tablet
2,000 mg, ORAL, DAILY, ER tablet
500 mg, ORAL, QHS, ER tablet
1000 mg, ORAL, QHS, ER tablet

O Lithobid 300 mg oral tablet, extended release
300 mg, ORAL, BID, ER tablet (DEF)*
600 mg, ORAL, BID, ER tablet

T} Eskafith-CR 450 mg oral tablet, extended release
450 mg, ORAL, QHS, ER tablet {DEF)*
900 mg, ORAL, QHS, ER tablet
1,350 mg, ORAL, QHS, ER tablet
450 mg, ORAL, BID, ER tablet
900 mg, ORAL, BID, ER tablet
450 mg, ORAL, TID, ER tablet

*Report Legend:

DEF - This order sentence is the default for the selected order
GOAL - This component is a goal

IND - This component is an indicator

INT - This component is an intervention

IVS - This component is an |V Set

NOTE - This component is a note

Rx - This component is a prescription

SUB - This component is a sub phase



Unique Plan Description: BHU Emergency Medications
Plan Selection Display: BHU Emergency Medications
PlanType: Medical

Version: 1

Begin Effective Date: 01/12/2012 08:13

End Effective Date: Current

Available at all facilities

BHU Emergency Medications

Medications
Plan 1(NOTE)*
0 Thorazine
100 mg, IM, ONCE, amp
Ol Benadryl INJ
50 mg, IM, ONCE, injection
O Ativan INJ
2 mg, IM, ONCE, injection
Plan 2(NOTE)*
O Haidol INJ
5 mg, IM, ONCE, injection
O Cogentin
1 mg, IM, ONCE, amp
O Ativan INJ
2 mg, IM, ONCE, injection
Plan 3(NOTE)*
O Ability
8.75 mg, IM, ONCE, injection
O  Abilify
9.75 mg, IM, Q2HR, PRN, Agitation, Routine, injection
Comments: MAX 30mg/24hr
O Ativan INJ
2 mg, IM, ONCE, injection
0O Hatdol INJ
3 mg, IM, ONCE, injection
O  cogentin
2mg, IM, ONCE, amp
Plan 4(NOTE)*
0 Thorazine
100 mg, IM, ONCE, amp
O Benadryl INJ
50 mg, IM, ONCE, injection
Plan 5(NOTE)*
O Haldol INJ
5 mg, IM, ONCE, injection (DEF)*
10 mg, IM, ONCE, injection
O cogentin
1 mg, IM, ONCE, amp
Plan 6(NOTE)*
[0 Geodon
10 mg, IM, ONCE, injection
[0 +2 Hours Geodon
10 mg, IM, ON CALL, PRN, Agitation, 6 hr, injection
Comments: If a repeat dose is needed 2 hrs after initial dose.
O Ativan INJ

Not to Exceed 40mg/24hr

42



1 mg, IM, ONCE, injection (DEF)*
2 mg, IM, ONCE, injection
Plan 7(NOTE)*
O zyPREXA
10 mg, IM, ONCE, injection recon
Comments: Not to Exceed 30mg/24hr

O Ativan INJ
1 mg, IM, ONCE, injection (DEF)*
2 mg, IM, ONCE, injection

*Report Legend:

DEF - This order sentence is the default for the selected order
GOAL - This component is a goal

IND - This component is an indicator

INT - This component is an intervention

VS - This component is an IV Set

NOTE - This component is a note

Rx - This component is a prescription

SUB - This component is a sub phase

43



Unique Plan Description: BHU Alcohol and Benzodiazepine Detoxification
Plan Selection Display: BHU Alcohol and Benzodiazepine Detoxification
PlanType: Medical

Version: 1

Begin Effective Date: 01/05/2012 08:29

End Effective Date: Current

Available at all facilities

BHU Alcohol and Benzodiazepine Detoxification
Vital Signs
Vital Signs
TN, Routine, Q1-2HOURS, QTHRWA x 6, Q4HRWA x 1 day, BID x 1 day, until detoxification is
complete.
Medications
[0 Neurontin
800 mg, ORAL, TID, Routine, cap
O Theragran-M
1 tab, ORAL, DAILY, Routine, tab
O  vitamin B-1
200 mg, ORAL, BID, Routine, 5 days, tab (DEF)*
Comments: while in detox
100 mg, IM, BID, Routine, 5 days, injection
Comments: while in detox and unable to tolerate ORAL thiamine

O folic acid
1 mg, ORAL, DAILY, Routine, tab
1 Bentyl
20 mg, ORAL, QBHR, PRN, Cramps, Routine, tab
Comments: abdominal cramping
O imodium
2mg, ORAL, PRN, PRN, Loose stools, Routine, cap
Comments: Give 1 cap after each loose stool. Not to exceed 8 doses/24hr
O  Lomotil
2 tab, ORAL, Q6HR, PRN, Diarrhea, Routine, tab
O Motrin

600 mg, ORAL, Q6HR, PRN, Pain, Routine, tab
0 Robaxin
1,000 mg, ORAL, Q4HR, Cramps, Routine, tab
Comments: as needed for Muscle Cramps
Alpha2-Adrenergic Agonist
Clonidine Detox(NOTE)*
Clonidine Test dose(NOTE)*
O Catapres
0.1 mg, ORAL, ONCE, tab
If Patient's Systolic Blood Pressure is greater than 90mmHg 1Hr after Test dose(NOTE)*
For Patients weighing LESS than 150 pounds(NOTE)*
O Catapres
0.4 mg, TRANSDERMAL, QWEEK, Routine, 2 weeks, patch
Comments: If Systolic Blood Pressure is > 90mmHg 1 Hr after oral dose and patient weighs
LESS than 150 Ibs
O Catapres
0.2 mg, TRANSDERMAL, QWEEK, Routine, T+14;N, patch
Comments: For patient weighing LESS than 150 Ibs
For Patients weighing Greater than 150 pounds(NOTE)*
O Catapres
0.6 mg, TRANSDERMAL, QWEEK, Routine, 2 weeks, paich

44



Comments: If Systolic Blood Pressure is > 90mmHg 1 Hr after oral dose and patient weighs
GREATER than 150 Ibs

O Catapres
0.4 mg, TRANSDERMAL, QWEEK, Routine, T+14;N, patch
Comments: For patient weighing GREATER than 150 lbs
PRN Clonidine Select the Next Two Options(NOTE)*
O Catapres
0.2 mg, ORAL, Q6HR, PRN, Other (see commeni), 1 days, fab
Comments: Signs and Symptoms of Withdraw!
O Catapres
0.1 mg, ORAL, Q6HR, PRN, Other (see comment), T+1;N, 1 days, tab
Comments: Signs and Symptoms of Withdraw!
Benzodiazepine
Librium Detox{NOTE)*
1 Librium
25 mg, ORAL, QTHR, PRN, Other (see comment), Routine, Stop date T+1,0800, cap
Comments: Complaints of Tremors or Withdraw!l. Not to exceed 300mg/24hr. Day 1
O Librium
25 mg, ORAL, QID, Routine, T+1,0900, 2 days, cap
Comments: Days 2 and 3
O Librium
25 mg, ORAL, Q2HR, PRN, Other (see comment), Routine, T+1;0900, 2 days, cap
Comments: Complaints of Tremors or Withdrawl. Days 2 and 3
O Librium
10 mg, ORAL, QID, Routine, T+3;0900, 1 days, cap
Comments: Day 4
O Librium
10 mg, ORAL, Q4HR, PRN, Other (see comment), Routine, T+3,0900, 2 days, cap
Comments: Complaints of Tremors or Withdrawl. Days 4 and 5
Serax Detox(NOTE)"
O  serax
15 mg, ORAL, Q2HR, PRN, Agitation, Routine, cap (DEF)*
Comments: Hold if patient is Sedated or Ataxic
15 mg, ORAL, Q2HR, PRN, Agitation, Routine, cap
O serax
30 mg, ORAL, QID, Routine, Stop date T+0;2359, cap
O  serax
30 mg, ORAL, TID, T+1,0900, 1 days, cap
O serax
15 mg, ORAL, TID, T+2;0900, 1 days, cap
O  serax
15 mg, ORAL, BID, T+3;0900, 1 days, cap
Ativan Detox(NOTE)*
O  Ativan INJ
1 mg, IM, Q2HR, PRN, Agitation, Routine, injection
Comments: If unable to tolerate Serax. Hold if patient is Sedated or Ataxic
O  Ativan
2 mg, ORAL, TID, T;N, 1 days, tab
Comments: Day 1 give 2mg TiD.
Ll Ativan
2 mg, ORAL, BID, T+1; 0900, 2 doses/times, Day 2 give 2mg in AM, 1mg at noon and 2mg PM., tab
O Ativan

1 mg, ORAL, QNOON, T+1,;1200, 1 dosesftimes, Day 2 give 2mg in AM, 1mg at 1200 and 2mg in
PM., tab

45



0 Ativan
1 mg, ORAL, TID, T+2;0900, 3 doses/imes, Day 3, tab

O  Atvan
1 mg, ORAL, BID, T+3,0900, 2 dosesftimes, Day 4, tab, A total of 10mg has been given
O  Ativan
1 mg, ORAL, DAILY, T+4,0900, 1 doses/times, tab
Barbiturates

Phencbarbital Detox(NOTE)*
O  phenobarbital
32.4 mg, ORAL, QID, Stop date T+0;2359, tab
O phenobarbital
32.4 mg, ORAL, TID, T+1,;0800, Duration: 1 days, tab
O phenobarbital
16.2 mg, ORAL, TID, T+2;0900, Duration: 1 days, tab
0 phenabarbital
16.2 mg, ORAL, BID, T+3;0900, Duration: 1 days, tab
Laboratory
O B12Lv
Blood, T;N, Routine collect
O Folic Acid Lul
Blood, T;N, Routine collect

*Report Legend:

DEF - This order sentence is the default for the selected order
GOAL - This component is a goal

IND - This component is an indicator

INT - This component is an intervention

IVS - This component is an IV Set

NOTE - This component is a note

Rx - This component is a prescription

SUB - This component is a sub phase

46



Unique Plan Description: BHU Clozapine Titration
Plan Selection Display: BHU Clozapine Titration
PlanType: Medical

Version: 1

Begin Effective Date: 01/04/2012 12:41

End Effective Date: Current

Available at all facilities

BHU Clozapine Titration
Medications

RX Clozaril
Clozaril Registration, 1 app, N/A, DAILY, misc
Comments: Pharmacy will not dispense clozapine until CBC Results Reviewed and verified
WBC >3.5, ANC > 2, and pharmacy has registered patient with appropriate clozapine registry.
Pharmacy will not dispense clozapine until CBC Results Reviewed and verified WBC >3.5 and ANC >
2(NOTE)*
Give only when WBC are GREATER than 3.5 and Absolute Neutrophil Count is GREATER than 2(NOTE)*
Clozaril Titration(NOTE)*
Day 1(NOTE)*
Clozaril
12.5 mg, ORAL, ONCE, Routine, 1 doses/times, tab
Comments: Day 1

Day 2(NOTE)*
Clozaril

12.5 mg, ORAL, DAILY, T+1;0900, Duration: 1 doses/times, tab
Clozaril

12.5 mg, ORAL, QHS, T+1;2100, Duration: 1 doses/times, tab
Day 3(NOTE)*
Clozaril

12.5 mg, ORAL, DAILY, T+2;N, Duration: 1 doses/times, tab
Clozaril

25 mg, ORAL, QHS, T+2;N, 1 doses/times, tab
Day 4(NOTE)*
Clozaril

25 mg, ORAL, QAM & QHS, T+3;N, 2 dosesftimes, tab
Day 5(NOTE)*
Clozaril

25mg, ORAL, DAILY, T+4;N, Duration: 1 doses/times, tab
Clozaril

37.6 mg, ORAL, QHS, T+4;N, 1 doses/times, tab
Day 6(NOTE)*
Clozaril

37.5 mg, ORAL, QAM & QHS, T+5;N, 2 dosesttimes, tab
Day 7(NOTE)*
Clozaril

50 mg, ORAL, QAM & QHS, T+6;N, 2 dosesttimes, tab
Day 8(NOTE)*
Clozaril

50 mg, ORAL, DAILY, T+7,N, Duration: 1 doses/imes, tab
Clozaril

75 mg, ORAL, QHS, T+7;N, 1 dosesftimes, tab
Day 9(NOTE})*
Clozaril

75 mg, ORAL, QAM & QHS, T+8;N, 2 doses/times, tab
Day 10(NOTE)*

47



Clozaril
100 mg, ORAL, QAM & QHS, T+9;N, 2 doses/times, tab
Day 11(NOTE)*
Clozaril
100 mg, ORAL, DAILY, T+10;N, Duration: 30 days, tab
Comments: This AM dose continues until renewed.
Clozaril
125 mg, ORAL, QHS, T+10;N, 1 doses/times, tab
Day 12(NOTE)*
Clozari
150 mg, ORAL, QHS, T+11;N, 1 dosesiimes, tab
Day 13(NOTE)*
Clozaril
175 mg, ORAL, QHS, T+12;N, 1 dosesftimes, tab
Day 14(NOTE)*
Clozaril
200 mg, ORAL, QHS, T+13;N, tab
Comments: This order continues until renewed.
FazClo Titration(NOTE)*

Give only when WBC are GREATER than 3.5 and Absoclute Neutrophil Count is GREATER than 2(NOTE)*

Day 1(NOTE)*
FazaClo
12.5 mg, ORAL, ONCE, DIS tablet
Day 2(NOTE)*
FazaClo
12.5 mg, ORAL, QAM & QHS, T+1;0800, DIS tablet
Day 3(NOTE)*
FazaClo

12.5 mg, ORAL, DAILY, T+2;N, Duration: 1 doses/times, DIS tablet

FazaClo

25 mg, ORAL, QHS, T+2;N, 1 doses/times, DIS tablet
Day 4(NOTE)*
FazaClo

25 mg, ORAL, QAM & QHS, T+3;N, 2 dosesftimes, DIS tablet
Day 5(NOTE)*
FazaClo

25 mg, ORAL, DAILY, T+4;N, Duration: 1 doses/times, DIS tablet
FazaClo

37.5 mg, ORAL, QHS, T+4;N, 1 dosesftimes, DIS tablet
Day 6(NOTE)*
FazaClo

37.6 mg, ORAL, QAM & QHS, T+5;N, 2 doses/times, DIS tablet
Day 7(NOTE)*
FazaClo

50 mg, ORAL, QAM & QHS, T+6;N, 2 doses/times, DIS tablet
Day 8(NOTE)*
FazaClo

50 mg, ORAL, DAILY, T+7;N, Duration: 1 doses/times, DIS tablet
FazaClo

75 mg, ORAL, QHS, T+7;N, 1 doses/times, DIS tablet
Day 9(NOTE)*
FazaClo

76 mg, ORAL, QAM & QHS, T+8;N, 2 doses/times, DIS tablet
Day 10(NOTE)*

48



O FazaClo
100 mg, ORAL, QAM & QHS, T+9;N, 2 doses/times, DIS tablet
Day 11(NOTE)*
O  Fazaclo
100 mg, ORAL, DAILY, T+10;N, Duration: 30 days, DIS tablet
Comments: This AM dose continues until renewed.

O  FazaCio
125 mg, ORAL, QHS, T+10;N, 1 dosesftimes, DIS tablet
Day 12(NOTE)*
O FazaClo
150 mg, ORAL, QHS, T+11,;N, 1 doses/times, DIS tablst
Day 13(NOTE)*
O  FazaClo
175 mg, ORAL, QHS, T+12;N, 1 doses/times, DIS tablet
Day 14(NOTE)*
' FazaClo

200 mg, ORAL, QHS, T+13;N, DIS tablet
Comments: This dose continues until renewed.

Laboratory
Pharmacy will not dispense clozapine until CBC results reviewed and verified that WBC >3.5 & ANC
>2.0.(NOTE)*
O caec

Blood, T;N, ASAP collect
Pharmacy will register patient with appropriate clozapine registry prior to dispensing first dose.(NOTE)*
O cBc
Blood, TN, Timed Study collect, QWEDNESDAY

*Report Legend:

DEF - This order sentence is the default for the selected order
GOAL - This component is a goal

IND - This component is an indicator

INT - This component is an intervention

IVS - This component is an IV Set

NOTE - This component is a note

RX - This component is a prescription

SUB - This component is a sub phase

49



Unique Plan Description: BHU Invega Sustenna
Plan Selection Display: BHU Invega Sustenna
PlanType: Medical

Version: 1

Begin Effective Date: 05/19/2012 12:22

End Effective Date: Current

Available at all facilities

BHU Invega Sustenna
Nursing Orders

Sub Phase
T;N, ONCE, 1, dosesttimes, This order will initiate the medications selected below.
Medications

Invega Sustenna
234 mg, IM, ONCE, ER suspension

+4 Days Invega Sustenna
156 mg, IM, QMONTH, ER suspension

*Report Legend:

DEF - This order sentence is the default for the selected order
GOAL - This component is a goal

IND - This component is an indicator

INT - This component is an intervention

IVS - This component is an IV Set

NOTE - This component is a note

Rx - This component is a prescription

SUB - This component is a sub phase

50



Unique Plan Description: BHU Anxiety
Plan Selection Display: BHU Anxiety
PlanType: Medical

Version: 1

Begin Effective Date: 01/12/2012 11:08
End Effective Date: Current

Available at all facilities

BHU Anxiety
Medications
O Ativan
0.5 mg, ORAL, Q4HR, PRN, Anxiety, tab (DEF)*
1 mg, ORAL, Q4HR, PRN, Anxiety, tab
2 mg, ORAL, Q4HR, PRN, Anxiety, tab
O  KionoPIN
0.5 mg, ORAL, QBHR, PRN, Anxiety, tab (DEF)*
1 mg, ORAL, Q6HR, PRN, Anxiety, tab
2mg, ORAL, Q6HR, PRN, Anxiely, tab
O inderal
10 mg, ORAL, BID, tab (DEF)*
20 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
30 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
40 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
50 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
60 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
70 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
80 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
10 mg, ORAL, TID, tab
20 mg, ORAL, TID, tab
1 BuSpar
5 mg, ORAL, BID, tab (DEF)*
Comments: Max Dose of 60mg/24hr
10 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
Comments: Max Dose of 60mg/24hr
15 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
Comments: Max Dose of 60mg/24hr
30 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
Comments: Max Dose of 60mg/24hr
5mg, ORAL, TID, tab
Comments: Max Dose of 60mg/24hr
10 mg, ORAL, TID, tab
Comments: Max Dose of 60mg/24hr
15 mg, ORAL, TID, tab
Comments: Max Dose of 60mg/24hr
30 mg, ORAL, TID, tab
Comments: Max Dose of 60mg/24hr
Comfort Medications(NOTE)*

O  Remeron
15 mg, ORAL, QHS, PRN, Insomnia, tab (DEF)*
30 mg, ORAL, QHS, PRN, Insomnia, tab
45 mg, ORAL, QHS, PRN, Insomnia, tab
O  Desyrel
50 mg, ORAL, QHS, PRN, Insomnia, tab (DEF)*
100 mg, ORAL, QHS, PRN, Insomnia, tab
150 mg, ORAL, QHS, PRN, Insomnia, tab
300 mg, ORAL, QHS, PRN, Insomnia, fab



*Report Legend:

DEF - This order sentence is the default for the selected order
GOAL - This component is a goal

IND - This component is an indicator

INT - This component is an intervention

IVS - This component is an IV Set

NOTE - This component is a note

Rx - This component is a prescription

SUB - This component is a sub phase

52



Unique Plan Description: BHU Depression
Plan Selection Display: BHU Depression
PlanType: Medical

Version: 1

Begin Effective Date: 01/12/2012 10:10
End Effective Date: Current

Available at all facilities

BHU Depression
Medications

O

O

MAQI - Order Low Tyramine Diet(NOTE)*
Eldepryl
5 mg, ORAL, BID, cap
SSRI/SSNRI(NOTE)*
CeleXA
10 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab (DEF)*
20 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab
40 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab
10 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab
20 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab
40 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab
Pristig
50 mg, ORAL, DAILY, ER tablet (DEF)*
100 mg, ORAL, DAILY, ER tablet
50 mg, ORAL, QHS, ER tablet
100 mg, ORAL, QHS, ER tablet
Cymbalta
20 mg, ORAL, DAILY, cap (DEF)*
30 mg, ORAL, DAILY, cap
60 mg, ORAL, DAILY, cap
20 mg, ORAL, QHS, cap
30 mg, ORAL, QHS, cap
60 mg, ORAL, QHS, cap
Lexapro
5 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab (DEF)*
10 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab
20 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab
5mg, ORAL, QHS, tab
10 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab
20 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab
PROzac
10 mg, ORAL, DAILY, cap (DEF)*
20 mg, ORAL, DAILY, cap
40 mg, ORAL, DAILY, cap
Paxil
10 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab (DEF)*
20 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab
30 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab
40 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab
Zoloft
25 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab (DEF)*
50 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab
100 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab
Effexor
25 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab (DEF)*
37.5 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab

53



50 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab
75 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab
100 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab
25 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
37.5 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
50 mg, ORAL, BID, tab

75 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
100 mg, ORAL, BID, tab

Effexor XR 37.5 mg oral capsule, extended release
37.5 mg, ORAL, DAILY, CR capsule

Effexor XR 75 mg oral capsule, extended release
75 mg, ORAL, DAILY, CR capsule (DEF)*
150 mg, ORAL, DAILY, CR capsule
225 mg, ORAL, DAILY, CR capsule
Tricyclic(NOTE)"
Elavil
10 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab (DEF)*
25 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab
50 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab
75 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab
100 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab
125 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab
150 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab
Anafranil
25 mg, ORAL, DAILY, cap (DEF)*
50 mg, ORAL, DAILY, cap
76 mg, ORAL, DAILY, cap
Tofranil
10 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab (DEF)*
25 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab
50 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab
Pamelor
10 mg, ORAL, QHS, cap (DEF)*
25 mg, ORAL, QHS, cap
50 mg, ORAL, QHS, cap
75 mg, ORAL, QHS, cap
Vivactil
5mg, ORAL, TID, tab (DEF)*
10 mg, ORAL, TID, tab
Miscellaneous Antidepressants(NOTE)*
Wellbutrin
75 mg, ORAL, BID, tab (DEF)*
100 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
Wellbutrin SR 100 mg oral tablet, extended release
100 mg, ORAL, DAILY, SR tablet (DEF)*
200 mg, ORAL, DAILY, SR tablet

Wellbutrin SR 150 mg oral tablet, extended release
150 mg, ORAL, DAILY, SR tablet

Welibutrin XL 150 mg/24 hours oral tablet, extended release

150 mg, ORAL, DAILY, CR Tablet (DEF)*
300 mg, ORAL, DAILY, CR Tablet

Serzone
50 mg, ORAL, BID, tab (DEF)*
100 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
150 mg, ORAL, BID, tab

54



200 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
250 mg, ORAL, BID, tab

O Desyrel
50 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab (DEF)*
100 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab
150 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab
300 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab
*Report Legend:

DEF - This order sentence is the default for the selected order
GOAL - This component is a goal

IND - This component is an indicator

INT - This component is an intervention

IVS - This component is an [V Set

NOTE - This component is a note

Rx - This component is a prescription

SUB - This component is a sub phase

95



Unique Plan Description: BHU Opiate Detox
Plan Selection Display: BHU Opiate Detox
PlanType: Medical

Version: 1

Begin Effective Date: 01/04/2012 14:20

End Effective Date: Current

Available at all facilities

BHU Opiate Detox

Medications
O Librium
50 mg, ORAL, TID, Routine, cap
Comments: Hold For Sedation
O Librium
100 mg, ORAL, QHS, Routine, cap
Comments: Hold For Sedation
O Zanaflex
2mg, ORAL, QID, tab
Comments: Hold For Sedation or DBP LESS than 50mmHg. Not to excees 36mg in 24hrs
(routine and prn combined)
O Zanaflex
2 mg, ORAL, Q4HR, PRN, Muscle spasm, Routine, tab
Comments: Hold For Sedation or DBP LESS than 50mmHg. Not to excees 36mg in 24hrs
(routine and prn combined)
[l Robaxin
750 mg, ORAL, Q4HR, PRN, Muscle pain, Routine, tab
[0 suboxone 2 mg-0.5 mg sublingual tablet, disintegrating
1 tab, SUBLINGUAL, QID, DIS tablet
O Catapres
0.1 mg, ORAL, Q4HR, PRN, Systolic BP- see parameters in order com, tab
Comments; SBP GREATER than 170 and/or DBP GREATER than 90
O Catapres
0.2 mg, ORAL, Q4HR, PRN, Systolic BP- see parameters in order com, tab
Comments: SBP GREATER than 170 and/or DBP GREATER than 80
O  catapres
0.1 mg, ORAL, Q4HR, PRN, Other (see comment), tab
Comments: prn opiate withdrawal. Hold for SBP < 90 and/or DBP < 60. Hold for sedation
0 Motrin
600 mg, ORAL, Q6HR, PRN, Pain, Routine, tab
O  imodium
2 mg, ORAL, PRN, PRN, Diarrhea, Routine, cap
Comments: 1 cap after each loose stool. Not to exceed 8 doses/24hr
*Report Legend:

DEF - This order sentence is the default for the selected order
GOAL - This component is a goal

IND - This component is an indicator

INT - This component is an intervention

IVS - This component is an IV Set

NOTE - This component is a note

Rx - This component is a prescription

SUB - This component is a sub phase

56



Unique Plan Description: BHU Psychosis
Plan Selection Display: BHU Psychosis
PlanType: Medical

Version: 1
Begin Effective Date: 01/11/2012 12:44
End Effective Date: Current

Available at all facilities

BHU Psychosis

Medications
Atypical(NOTE)*

Saphris

5 mg, SUBLINGUAL, BID, tab (DEF)*
10 mg, SUBLINGUAL, BID, tab

O zyPRExA

mim

2.5 mg, ORAL, BID, tab (DEF)*
5 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
7.5 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
10 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
15 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
20 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
2.5mg, ORAL, QHS, tab
5 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab
7.5 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab
10 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab
16 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab
20 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab

Zyprexa Zydis 5 mg oral tablet, disintegrating

invega

5 mg, ORAL, BID, DIS tablet (DEF)*
10 mg, ORAL, BID, DIS tablet

15 mg, ORAL, BID, DIS tablet

20 mg, ORAL, BID, DIS tablet

5 mg, ORAL, QHS, DIS tablet

10 mg, ORAL, QHS, DIS tablet

15 mg, ORAL, QHS, DIS tablet

20 mg, ORAL, QHS, DIS tablet

1.5 mg, ORAL, QHS, ER tablet (DEF)*
3 mg, ORAL, QHS, ER tablet
6 mg, ORAL, QHS, ER tablet
9 mg, ORAL, QHS, ER fablet

BHU Invega Sustenna(SUB)*
Invega Sustenna

156 mg, IM, ONCE, T+7;0900, ER suspension (DEF)*
234 mg, IM, ONCE, ER suspension
166 mg, IM, ONCE, ER suspension
117 mg, IM, ONCE, ER suspension

Invega Sustenna

Abilify

117 mg, IM, QMONTH, ER suspension (DEF)*
156 mg, IM, QUONTH, ER suspension
156 mg, IM, QMONTH, T+7;0900, ER suspension

2 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab (DEF)*
5 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab

10 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab

15 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab

57



20 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab
30 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab
2 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab

5 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab
10 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab
15 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab
20 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab
30 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab

O seroquel

25 mg, ORAL, Q12HR, tab (DEF)*
50 mg, ORAL, Q12HR, tab

100 mg, ORAL, Q12HR, tab

200 mg, ORAL, Q12HR, tab

400 mg, ORAL, Q12HR, tab

25 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab

50 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab

100 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab

200 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab

400 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab

O Seroquel XR 50 mg oral tablet, extended release

50 mg, ORAL, QHS, ER tablet (DEF)*
100 mg, ORAL, QHS, ER tablet

150 mg, ORAL, QHS, ER tablet

300 mg, ORAL, QHS, ER tablet

50 mg, ORAL, Q12HR, ER tablet

100 mg, ORAL, Q12HR, ER tablet
150 mg, ORAL, Q12HR, ER tablet
300 mg, ORAL, Q12HR, ER tablet

O Seroquel XR 200 mg oral tablet, extended release

200 mg, ORAL, QHS, ER tablet (DEF)*
300 mg, ORAL, QHS, ER tablet
400 mg, ORAL, QHS, ER tablet

O RisperDAL

0.25 mg, ORAL, Q12HR, tab (DEF)*
0.5 mg, ORAL, Q12HR, tab
1 mg, ORAL, Q12HR, tab
2 mg, ORAL, Q12HR, tab
3 mg, ORAL, Q12HR, tab
4 mg, ORAL, Q12HR, tab
0.25 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab
0.5 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab

1 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab

2 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab

3 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab

4 mg, ORAL, QHS, tab

O RisperDAL M-Tab

O Geodon

0.5 mg, SUBLINGUAL, Q12HR, DIS tablet (DEF)*

1 mg, SUBLINGUAL, Q12HR, DIS tablet
2 mg, SUBLINGUAL, Q12HR, DIS tablet
3 mg, SUBLINGUAL, Q12HR, DIS tablet
4 mg, SUBLINGUAL, Q12HR, DIS tablet
0.5 mg, SUBLINGUAL, QHS, DIS tablet
1 mg, SUBLINGUAL, QHS, DIS tablet
2 mg, SUBLINGUAL, QHS, DIS tablet
3 mg, SUBLINGUAL, QHS, DIS tablet
4 mg, SUBLINGUAL, QHS, DIS tablet

58



O

O

O

20 mg, ORAL, BIDWM, cap (DEF)*
40 mg, ORAL, BIDWM, cap
80 mg, ORAL, BIDWM, cap

Latuda 40 mg oral tablet
40 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab (DEF)*
Comments: Daily with Meals
80 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab
Comments: Daily with Meals
For Latuda 40mg daily x 3, then 80mg daily Check the Next Two Options(NOTE)*

Latuda 40 mg oral tablet
40 mg, ORAL, DAILY, Duration: 3 days, tab
Comments: Daily with Meal

Latuda 40 mg oral tablet
80 mg, ORAL, DAILY, T+3;N, tab
Comments: Daily with Meal
Conventional(NOTE)*

Thorazine
10 mg, ORAL, TID, tab (DEF)*
25 mg, ORAL, TID, tab
50 mg, ORAL, TID, tab
100 mg, ORAL, TID, tab
200 mg, ORAL, TID, tab

Prolixin
1 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab (DEF)*
2.5mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab
5 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab
10 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab

Haldol

0.6 mg, ORAL, BID, tab (DEF)*
1mg, ORAL, BID, tab
2 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
5 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
10 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
20 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
0.5 mg, ORAL, TID, tab
1 mg, ORAL, TID, tab
2mg, ORAL, TID, tab
5 mg, ORAL, TID, tab
10 mg, ORAL, TID, tab
20 mg, ORAL, TID, tab

Haldol
0.5 mg, ORAL, Q4HR, PRN, Agitation, tab (DEF)*
1 mg, ORAL, Q4HR, PRN, Agitation, tab
5 mg, ORAL, ONCE, tab
10 mg, ORAL, ONCE, fab

Haldol Decanoate 50 mg/mL intramuscular solution
25 mg, IM, ONCE, amp (DEF)*
50 mg, IM, ONCE, amp
100 mg, IM, ONCE, amp
Loxitane
5 mg, ORAL, BID, cap (DEF)*
10 mg, ORAL, BID, cap
25 mg, ORAL, BID, cap
50 mg, ORAL, BID, cap
5 mg, ORAL, ONCE, cap
10 mg, ORAL, ONCE, cap

59



25 mg, ORAL, ONCE, cap
50 mg, ORAL, ONCE, cap
O Tritafon
2mg, ORAL, TID, tab (DEF)*
4 mg, ORAL, TiD, tab
8 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab
16 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab
O Meltari
10 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab (DEF)*
15 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab
25 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab
50 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab
150 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab
200 mg, ORAL, DAILY, tab
10 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
15 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
25 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
50 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
150 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
200 mg, ORAL, BiD, tab
0 Navane
1 mg, ORAL, DAILY, cap (DEF)*
2mg, ORAL, DAILY, cap
5mg, ORAL, DAILY, cap
10 mg, ORAL, DAILY, cap
20 mg, ORAL, DAILY, cap
1 mg, ORAL, BID, cap
2mg, ORAL, BID, cap
5mg, ORAL, BID, cap
10 mg, ORAL, BID, cap
20 mg, ORAL, BID, cap
O  stelazine
1mg, ORAL, BID, tab (DEF)*
2mg, ORAL, BID, tab
5 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
10 mg, ORAL, BID, tab
1 mg, ORAL, ONCE, fab
2mg, ORAL, ONCE, tab
5mg, ORAL, ONCE, tab
10 mg, ORAL, ONCE, tab

*Report Legend:

DEF - This order sentence is the default for the selected order
GOAL - This component is a goal

IND - This component is an indicator

INT - This component is an intervention

IVS - This component is an |V Set

NQOTE - This component is a note

Rx - This component is a prescription

SUB - This component is a sub phase



Unique Plan Description: BHU Suboxone Taper Off
Plan Selection Display: BHU Suboxone Taper Off
PlanType: Medical

Version: 1

Begin Effective Date: 01/30/2014 14:25

End Effective Date: Current

Available at: TCMC

BHU Suboxone Taper Off
Medications

O B & [

Suboxone 2 mg-0.5 mg sublingual tablet, disintegrating
1 tab, SUBLINGUAL, Q4HR, 4 doses/times
Suboxone 2 mg-0.5 mg sublingual tablet, disintegrating
1 tab, SUBLINGUAL, QID, T+1;0900, 24 hr
Suboxone 2 mg-0.5 mg sublingual tablet, disintegrating
1 tab, SUBLINGUAL, TID, T+2;0900, 48 hr
Suboxone 2 mg-0.5 mg sublingual tablet, disintegrating
1 tab, SUBLINGUAL, BID, T+4;0900, 48 hr
Suboxone 2 mg-0.5 mg sublingual tablet, disintegrating
1 tab, SUBLINGUAL, DAILY, T+6;0900, 72 hr
Comments: Then DC on day 11

*Report Legend:

DEF - This order sentence is the default for the selected order
GOAL - This component is a goal

IND - This component is an indicator

INT - This component is an intervention

IVS - This component is an |V Set

NOTE - This component is a note

Rx - This component is a prescription

SUB - This component is a sub phase

61



Human Resources Committee
(No meeting held in
October, 2016)

62



Employee Fiduciary Subcommittee
(No meeting held in
October, 2016)

63



3©>-9 VD v (JIDNVAQY
Ja1ua) [eapay AL m@

| T
‘panoidde Ajsnowiueun
pue esRLRH jole) Aq papuodss sem uonow sy | “epusbe bupssw
9T0¢ ‘0 4290300 343 aAoidde 03 psuonow ydequazueyds 1919 Joquwsiy | YANIOVY ONLLIIW
40 TVAOUddY
‘pleebAN aing dieyd DVHD pue Jopaad Aq wd z€:zT e Jop.lo 0} pajjed sem
Buiedw damiwWwo) dduel||y aledyjjesH Ajunwwo) ‘910z ‘0z 42qo0 du L
AIQAO OL T1IVD
3T19ISNOdSIY dn 1dOL
(S)NOS¥ad MOT104 NOLLOY ROISSERSIa
103euUIpIo0) DVHD ‘|lPMoadiy uesns 1ojeulpioo) DVHD ‘elnles) el)g) ‘pjlemusdls
ueng ‘siapues uamo INSg ‘N ‘d-LW3 ‘Uosiead 3jjRiued ‘MSDT ‘MSI ‘[PA_WzZaneYD "I usydals :1IN3S3Yd SU3IHLO0

VN

opnues opueuiad 0D ‘Meys

-pleusag sjAusy) ‘00D ‘Asjuo) endey| LisoO Bule JaIy) ‘Pauusg piaeqg ‘03D ‘ullaia aAlS

USMQ pal ‘YD no1 Alep ‘ueacuoq

Aepy ‘AgnuH esoy ej ap nojuel ‘uoa) abuely ‘uosieN oer ‘0bN ‘| Bung ‘Apeay uoq ‘zalad eieqleg

oAouty esewoly ‘4odon) Apues ‘uewpysy Alewasoy ‘sl ewoy ‘Aydingy
Alepy ‘ewsspaT epur ‘Asuoy Ang ‘uosesis 1615 ‘elauidH |01e) ‘syoolg |04eD) ‘ASY ‘Yoequezueyds J2ig
‘A eznos JoPIA "I “pojleyds Auet sopenq ‘ounsobeq wig lieyd dog ‘pieebAN sin( JieyD DYHD

(OVHO) sspiwwo) asuel||y asesyjjesy Ajunwwo)

I wooy Ajquiassy
9102 ‘02 4240320
S3LNNIW ONILITN

1oL3sIq a1edyyjeay Ano-1i1

:LN3SEV SUIgGINIIN DNLLOA-NON

:LN3STid SHIEWIW ONILLOA-NON

:LNISEV Sy3aNaIN

:LNISTUd SYIFWIN

64



3@>5. V3 IR GIINVAQY

193U [edpa AyD-uL mdv

(%7

| 2

SS300B 0] JNJYIP 10 djgeliun s; uopepodsuel Jgnd usym e

Jed e 0] SS920B DABY 4O UMO JOU Op OUM e

MIOM SJoquiaw Ajwe) asoym e

siaquiow Ajiwey pajgesip Ujim 1o buoje anl jey] e

:sjuaied 104 Jueniodwi st jusuneas] Joye uonepodsuel |
'syuaized Buiem 0] spaq uado Jo AjijigejieAe pue 32IAISS JO
y3buaj uo snaoj e yum sjusied pabieydsip 0} uonepodsuesy apiaold

0} yafosd tjuow QT mau e Jojid 03 DWDL MOjje |iIMJueibay] e

Spuny aA192a. 0] |eadsoy Ajuo ayy seM WD ¢
:eluloji|e) Ul papleme aiam sjuelb gT 3yl Jo Z AjuO |oaAeWzaAey)
"W uaydans
:Buimoyjoy ay3 buou JuelH HYANYS PRI Ajuadal ueld) HyaNvs
2y buipteBal dnodb sy passalppe ‘MSDT ‘MSI ‘[PZAewzaney) "W uaydais ‘NOILLVINISTId
‘pauiejsqe ounsobeq wir dey) qOg  ‘pancidde Ajsnowiueun SILNNIW
pue uew|ays3 Alewasoy Aq pSpuodas Sem UOROW 3yl ‘sajnuiwl | 40 NOLLYDI4LLYY

Bunssw JYHD 9102 ‘ST 1eqwaldas auyy aaoldde 0] pauoilow BWIS3PaT BpUl
SLNIWIDNNONNY
"Speul 2JoM SHUSWIDUNOUUR IO SJUSWWOD Jignd oN B SINIWWOD
o119nd
J19ISNOdSTY dn
(s)NOs¥ad MOTI04 NOLLDV NOISSNOSIa J1doL

| wooy Ajquiassy
9102 ‘0Z 1990300
S3LNNIN ONILIIN

(OVHD) aapiwiwog asuel||y asesyjjesy Aunwiwod

JoMySIq aJeayyjeay ANo-uL

65




59 INUIN BUILIBOIN DTHZ ‘D7 4nGOLIn
5 BOURII Y BIEIYIIRBH Ajrunuiuie)

aalilmwuier

sded|¢

3©> €03 3V VIH AFINVAGY

i) eapaN Ay @J

"DWDL Jo syuaned sy Wauaq Apealb |im welbold siyy
Jo uonejuswadwi auy 1eyy padoy si 1 Ing ‘uaddey 01 Al a1e susunsnipe
pue sabueyp ‘Aouejur sy ul st welboud siyy aouls Jeyy pabpajmoupe usydals

si/equiaw Afiwey Jusied J0j SwWI] HIOM PISSIW SSBT e
Moddns paywij yum syuaied 1oj swajsAs poddns panoidwy e
pajnas 196 jusied ayy
buidjay ajiym swajqoud 1o spasu diseq 10j Yyojem 03 awoy s,juaned
9y} Ssa00e 0] AJijige S,J9ALIP 3y} O] SNP SUOISSIWPEa) Ul UOHONPaY
sswif jlem 3 ul uoipnpay e
S1500 paoNpal Se ||om
se ‘Ajojes pue uolpejsiies juaned asealnul [|Im sabieydsip Apwit) e
:opnpui welboad jojid siyy Jo sawodno pajedpiue sy

"uoijeodsuel) Jo j9AS) papasu ay)
abue.le pue Ajuspi 03 yeis buisinu syl YIm oM [|im 361a1DU0d B aisym
J99ua) AjljeydsoH ob1eydsiq sy 03 Juss 29 [jim abieydsip Bunieme syusied

"90IAIDS J0) Bupiem sjusned Jayio
0]} spaq buiuado pue jusijed pabieyosip ay3 jo Aels Jo yybua| ayy budnpal
AQ moy Juaned [eydsoy spedw uopepodsuely Juaied pabieyosip paaosdiu]

spaq juanedul
0} ssa0de Ja)se) uado pue jeudsoy ay3 Je swiy JIem 32Npal 0} e
sinoy bujuiow Apes ayjy ul pabieyosip ale oym e

(3,u02)
[ozZaeWzaARYD)
"W usydaas
ueID SYANVYS
‘NOLLViIN3SIUd

I19ISNOdSTY
(s)NOSu3d

dn MOT104 NOLLOY

NOISSNOSIA

J1dOoL

| wooy Ajquiassy
9102 ‘0Z 4990320
S3LNNIN ONILI3N

(OVHO) sspiwwo) asuel|jy aiesyjjesy Ajunwwio)

1o13S1Q asesyyesy Ao-1iL

66



NOA s sworimmgasnvay
193ud) [edpa AL m;w

| ¥
%SG MO|2q J0 Je 8q 0} papadxe Jsatsul wd) buo] e
pooueuy
junowe 3y3 O3ul Pa)|04 D] [|IM IJUD) SSOU|PM Y] JO SO Byl e
Bunumispun ul Agua.LInd si pue papIwgns uaaq sey uopedidde ayy e
piemuo) Buinow panosdde Ajsnowiueun qog DWDL 9yl e
:bunou sueyd Bupueuy wis) buo] gnH aY3 uo dnolb sy} pajepdn osje aAs)S
(Auno) oba1q ues 10) DWDL 12 AUD) 10T ©
uoneliyv ason e
(sswn 31em paonpal) Buiuado Jun uoneziigels sisu) e
Jouueds |D e
a3 Y} ui sjuswsAoldw] e
:buipnppul ‘syusuysijdwodoe Jusal SIIWIL JO MIIASI Jallg e papirold BASS
:bumooy UIIRIQ 9A]S
ayy bunou ‘smau DWDL 1593€| Y3 yum dnoub ayy pajepdn uipsiqg @A31S 03D Jilvaddn 03D
mosmd dN MOT104 NOLLOV NOISSNOSIa JIdOL

| wooy Ajquassy
9102 ‘02 4990320

S3ALNNIN ONILITN
(OVH9) @epiwwo) ssueljly asesyyjesy Ayunwwod
1013S1Q 24edyYjRaH AND-1)L

67




e

NOA w0 s immazonvaay
191U fedipaN Aud-LL )

sjuaned pue yels ay3 0} JYdUSq JO S| URIYM

umop aJe sawi} 31em 3 Jeys Joey ayj Jo ajou jeads bupjew ‘spew buaqg Asjuo) endey
ssaiboud au) Buipiebal sjuswiwod s,9A3]S pajesalial Asjuo) endey 00D Jlvadn oo

"9W0D 0] sieaA Auew 10§ PLISIP 943 JO Hed diweuAp pue ajgeuleisns
e 9q 03 pauopisod |em sl DWDL ‘dnH Ybnouus sjqejiee uondo
Bupueuy pajedpnue ayl pue ‘syuawiysijdwodde Jusdal N0 YIM
uawdoAsp

sndwed pue suonelado 1oy jeyided ases|a. 0} JopIo Ul Igep

Jua.Ind IdueUYal 0} DIWDL Moj|e pinom uondo Bupueul) [NJssaons
"aoue.lnsul abebpiow 1oy uonedidde ue Jiwgns 03 paYIAUL SEM

DWDL a18um (gnH) Juswdoasq ueqln pue buisnoH Jo Juswedaq
SN 9yl Yyam *D°q ‘uojbuiysepn ur buissw |nyssadons ‘usdal

0} 9A3)S pajuedwodde wes) 29x3 pue gog aY3 JO Siaquisiy
‘Bupueuly wis} buo| Buinsind peajsul

s1 3ng Buipuny J1gnd 10 ainsesty puog e Joj bunise Jou SI HWDL

(3,uod)

:pajou 9AB)S *AjljIgeIsul jeuRULY DWDL JO SJownd uI3vIQ SA31S
BUf} SSa.ppe 0] 9AS)S pajsanbal uewiaysy Alewasoy JBqUSW 99]]ILIWLOD) Jlvadn 03d

I19ISNOJSTY
(s)NOS¥ad

dfN MOTI04 NOLLOY

NOISSNJSIA

JIdOoL

| wooy Ajquiassy
9102 ‘02 1990390
S3LNNIN ONILIIN

(OVH9) @sp1wwo) soueljly asesyyjeay Apunwwos

1013SIQ a1eayyjeay AND-1]

68



SINRUIA ButleoW 9107 ‘0¢ i9QOLig

EERRERVETIN By}
o%ed|g

aoueljiy Asedyrirayd A,

3©> A 3O RIVIH QY INVAQY
J93UD) [RIIP3IN AMD-1L mu
<

“AOD B2"20d] SOIIo[P0| MMM Je Buiuiel] suljuo o) papiroid

sem uopewlojul ‘Bunsaw .z Aleniga4 sy3 puayje 0} ajqeun siaquuaw

104 "wdgo:z 18 £10T ‘z Aeniged uo pjay aq [m ‘oidodoid Aq paisoy aq
03 ‘uoissas Bujuie} e jeyy Hunou siaquisu 331)ILIWOD BY) 0] papiaoid sem
uonewloju] ‘sieaA omy Alaae Buiuiel] SJIYIT JO SINOY OM] 3SBD| 1B SAISDA.
ISNW 99WWOD) 3Y) JO SIsquiawl jje ‘bz Tay Yyim Aldwod o) Japio ug

ONINIVYL
SJIHL3

"uoPepUBILLIOIAI BY) pajdadde aaIwwo)

a3 pue ‘Ayyalq ayods g|eIueg 3P0 DYHD 3Y3 UO aARejuasaldal
juswipedaq 3414 S,eISIA JO A1) BY) aWwod3q 03 UoIIRIaPISUCD pajsanbal
oym ‘Nsg ‘N ‘d-.LIN3 ‘uosiead ajjeiueq paonpo.ul pieebAN aing Jieyd

ANIWINIOddVY

"PLIsiq jooyos
pauiun peqgsiieD auy3 Jo Jleysq uo spoys poddns diysiosuods sHpD] 104
Hauuag piAeg payueyl ueways3y AlRWwaS0y oquuBw 9RILIWOD ‘Dwi Siuy3 1Y

‘Jluow ssaualemy Jooued)
isealg Jo Jouoy ui juid suiny bulpjing ay3 se 1aqoinQ 4o Yiuow

3y buLinp sep Jsye JWDL INO0 HIBYD 0} pabeinoduD S19M SIaquisly
*suonowo.d

Buiwoodn 1oy syse|q Ajunwiwod pue spy Uo Bupom S| Bupaxep e
*SjuspIsal

PUISIp Jo spaipuny 03 sjoys Ny sa.y buipiaoud ale soup Joys N4 e

“1oqUISAON pue JaqoloQ Jo syjuow ay) 10j pauueid sjuaas aidpinpy e

'SMOJ[04 Se papiodal JBuuRg pIARQ o0 Bunaen e

12uuag piaeq
ilvadn 3321440
ONLLIDNEVYIN
43IHD

I19ISNOdSTY
(s)NOSuad

dN MOT104 NOLLDV

NOISSNOSIA

‘J1dOol

1 wooy Ajquessy
9102 ‘02 4990300
S3LNNIN ONILIIN

(DVHD) aaniwwios asuely aiesyjjesH Aunwwon

Jo1)SIq aledyyjea ANo-1iL

69



3@\%8“ IO MW QIDNVAQY
193ud) [e2IPaN AND-1L @

| £
"8 4OQUISAON UO UOIPI[ad 10j dn SjUSqUINDUL DWDL BY3 40} S3RILILIOD BY)
J0 s1equisw a3 woly poddns pajsenbai osie 1619 ", TZ 9Y3 U0 pRY 34 [|IIm
JUSAR Jasieipuny gny SHI9 B sAog apisuead sy} 1ey) pajou uoses|n) 1619
*Ajlunwiwiod 3y} 03 suoNQIIU0D SY 10 DWIL 03 SHueyy Jay passaldxa osje
Siapues Usmo) ‘ejes) ploo g an|g Juadal ay jo Hoddns pue diysiosuods 10}
123ud) [eDIP3 AJID-111 0} pieme ue Jo uoneiuasald Jiey 4oy (buiesw auyy
e Jussald sem oYM SI9pues Usme) pue) dIHVVN 94l payuey) auuag piaeq
MG buiwoadn s,SHON Jo dnodb oy} papulwal )44 ewoy
‘paaIsap
J1 Sedpiped o) S1SUI0 PajIAUL pUR I3DUB)D 1SER.g J0) Y|BM UBWIOY O UBSNS | SNOLLYDINNWWOD
9 4qWISAON Y3 Ui bupedpiyed aq (1M BYs Jey} pejou 0Ao.ly elewoly JILLTWWOD
"SjuswWWod Jignd oN
SLNIWWO0D 2179nd
SNOISIAIY
‘panosdde siom Japeyd JYHD aY3 03 SUOISIARI 3y VILAVHD DVHD
JHL 40 TVAQOUddV
m.MMw”MMm_wwx dN MOTT04 NOLLDY NOISSNJSIa 21dOL

| wooy Ajquiassy
9102 ‘0¢ 4990320
S3LNNIN ONILIIW

(OVHO) @apiwwo) asuey|y aieayjjesy Ajunwwo)

JosIq aJesyyeay Ano-uy

70



3©> 05 3wV :.:5: QIINVAQY

131ua) fedPaN AND-HL &)
<

“oul
pu
Jaquianop uo adejd Bunjey odxg ssauisng BISIA 943 pajou Loequazueyds 1219

‘sainpasold

9A103.1400D 10§ suondo Jayjo ou aaey oym ajdoad bunoA 1oy buibueypd a4

aJe souabuns au3 Jey) pajou opueLIR{ ‘dIN1RU U| D[IDWS0D pasapisuod buieq
pasu |e21bins 119y} 0] 9np doueinsul AQ PaJsA0D 34 JouU SSIMIBYI0 pjnom
1ey3 1¢ Jo abe ayy Jspun uaup|iyd 10y Arabins apinoid s,qiy 193)UnjoA aJoym
welboud pejs ysal4 a4} passndsip os|e opueuls{ *Inoj dwoH AeploH

pue ejes) DDA Burwoadn ayj jo dnoub suyy papulwal opnues opueula

"SPUSX83M 3L} UO pue |o0Lds Ja)e d|ge|ieAe poo) SABY J0U Aew 1Y) SpI
Spaaj welboud siy) “Buipuny paseauou) pue poddns Jo paau ul si welboud
3y} 1ey; bunou ‘exsip ul wesboid yoeg 4oL J09 sy} passnasIp BISLISH jole)

"SS820NS SSaUISNQ J0) sjuspn3s sulel} Jey) weiboid mau e si siyy jeyy bugou
Awspedy diysiapes Juspnis peqgsied) ay) passnasip uew(aysy AIewasoy

(3,u0l)

SNOLLVDINNWWOD
JILLTIWWNOD

J19ISNOdSTY
(s)Nosuad

dN MOT104 NOLLDY

NOISSNJSIA

JIdOL

| wooy Ajquiassy
9102 ‘02 19903120
S3LNNIN ONILIIN

(OVHD) sap1wwo) asuel|ly asesyyeay Ajunwwo)

JoMySIq aJeayyjea Ao-1L

71



SATNUIN FULIRa N QTNZ ‘0F JoGgoiaf

3@> ¥4 WO WM QIINVAGY

193ua) [edIpaln AuD-L &)

&

GOTIIWWOD BIUBIIIY HILIYIEIH Ajlunuwey
2dedl|e
‘widpE: T 38 pauinolpe sem Bunssw Se1IWIWIC) DYHD 9T0Z 9GO0 dUL juswwinofpy
‘9T0¢C ~NH JoqUISAON ~\»m—..w.w\:\:\_n_l ._O..— UQ_JBSUW Sl @C_UWWE IXou oUl m—h_Hﬂoz IXON
u.mmwmumnwwx dN MOT104 NOLLOV NOISSNISIA 3IdOL

I wooy Ajquiassy
9102 ‘0¢ 1290320
S3LNNIN ONILIIN

(OVHO) @spiwwo) asueljy aJesyyjesH Ajunwiwiod

1013sIq asedyyjeay ANo-1y



pajsanbai Aue Jnoyjim panoidde

aqg o) ale ‘910 ‘0¢ Jaquaydag

JO sajnuiw ay) Jey) ‘papuodas aueadyy
I\ ‘opJaejuo) "1qg Aq paaow sem }|
NOILON

‘pauiel aiam sainuln

‘paynes aiam sajnuip

9102 ‘02 Jequwaldag

Jo seInuIW Jo uoneoey

ounsobeq JoyaiQg

*0llgnd 8y} JO sJaquuaw wody
sjuawwoo Buipsebal ydeibesed
ay} peal ouysobeq J0y03lIQ

"W 8y} JO UOIRISPISUOD
S,89)IWWO09 ai04aq 2iiqnd ay)
0} )Jsaus)ul Jo way Aue uo oignd

ay} Jo siaqwisw AQ sjuswwo) ‘¢

‘9102 ‘81 1990320 jo epuabe

ayj jdasoe 0} paaoudde Ajsnowiueun
SeM )] pue ‘papuodas aueay "I
‘paeebAN 10)0811q Aq paArow sem )|
NOILOW

‘pajind aq pjnom ‘epuabe sy} uo
Buneadde way uoissag paso|D) ayy
Jey) paosunouue oupsobeq J0)oaliq

epuaby Jo jeaosddy ‘'z

‘wd zg¢:Z1 e Japio 0] bunssw
ay} paj|ed ounsobeq Jo)oalig

19p10 0} |leD L

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiag

suoisnjauon
/suoepuaWWOI9Y
uopoy

SUOJEPUSWIWIOIDY
SUOISNOUOY ‘suoissnasiq

oidoj

BUOIOD Muelq "Ig ‘Jauaoly] uyor uq ‘uajiey WA Jojoaaq

aueay| wij ‘1a)ejuabul] sukepp ‘uojbulieH ans)s
'1ZznoJe|y ole) ‘zapusyy uss|yjey| ‘opsejuoy snalepy “iq ‘pieebAN ainf J0)os.iq ‘ounsobeq sawer J0joalIq

yuomsuleH eiteqieq ‘(oidosoid) 100y
Apor ‘apaojy Aua | ‘Bismoydaiiy suy) o)y Ausys ‘owrey Awaiap “puoweld Aleyy ‘BIoNIS auelq ‘Jsuyjine
Anueg ‘ddo] Ayjey| ‘Aue) suspieyd ‘Jekswung suer ‘Jauuag pineq ‘@100 WO ‘||SYs)N BINET Joalq

19010 ABsjens jaiyd ‘Jybiuy suhepn
00D ‘Meys-pleussg sjl1ay) ‘009 ‘Aejuod endey ‘040 Bunoy ‘seary Aey ‘03D ‘UpsIq dA8)S

JUasqy S1aquIapy

juasald sisyio

;Juasald
siaquialy Bunop-uonN

juasaid w._mn_EOE_

9102 ‘8l 1290300
sa)nuiy @9jwwo) bBuluueld pue suonesradQ ‘aoueul
Jajua) jeatpe” No-u1

73



910Z ‘8l 48qoj0

Z sBunesiy sapiwwo) Buluueld pue suonessd ‘eoueul

10} J29U199) YHm Juswaalbe

a3y} azuoyjne siojdali( Jo pieogqg
AHI1 94} Jey) puswiwiodas adjuwon)
Buiuueld pue suonesadQ ‘aosueul

ayj yey} paaoidde Ajsnowjueun

SEM }I pue ‘papuodas zapualj

"SI ‘opJaejuo) "1 Aq paAow sem )

"pansua uoissnosip jueoiiubis
‘slduueds apod Jeq pue siendwod
doyde| mau yum (s, M\OM)

SHED |93YM UO SUOI}BISHIOM
Juswiaoe|dal o} aseyoind 1ob6pnq
|[endes panoidde ‘swi}-euo e

ddo] Ayiey NOILOW | sem sy} yey} pahanuoo ddo] Ayiey | 109loid Juswaoejdoy MOM ‘9
yromsuieH elreqieg Aq papuswe agq o) dn-a)lap
-0z8°zE$ Jo uugy | 19SUN0O |ebaj apisino Aq pamainal
8y} 10} }S09 |e)O) B pue .QN@.NMH Jo JOu sem Q3|O~_5>> SIY} eyl 109|jed
}S02 [enuue ue 10} ‘/1L0Z ‘LE 1990390 0} papuauwie aq dn-ajum auj jey}
Buipus pue ‘L0z ‘L J8GUISAON pajsenbai meys-pieulag sjfuay)
Buluuibaq ‘syjuow g} Jo wia} e 1oy
Bunsa] Aunjewsald jo Ayjedournay ‘pensus
10} obai(q uesg jo sisijeldads UuoISSNJsSIp jallg "BILIOHIED
s, ualpiyo Apey yum juswaaibe | JO 8)els ay) Ag pejepuew si bunss)
ay3 anouadde si0j09.1q jo pieog dO¥ ey} paule|dxa Jjeyuny ays
AHI1 243 Jey) puawwiodsal adlwwo) | -Bunssl Ajunjewsaud Jo Ayjedounsi
Buiuuejd pue suonjeradQ ‘soueulq pue ‘NOIN 8y} 10} S92IAIBS
ay) jey3 panroudde Ajsnowijueun uoie}nsuod diwjeyyydo apiaoid
SBeM }| pue ‘papuodas aued)| "Il | o) sisijeloadg s ualpiiyD Apey yum Bunsa |
‘paeeBAN 1030041q Aq parow sem )| Juswsaibe [emaual e s| jesodoud dOd NDIN 10} Juswaaiby
puoweiq Aep NOILOIN siy) pauje|dxs puowelq Aeyy |  sisieloads s,uaip|iyd Apey ‘e
ssauisng maN ‘9
J8jeyd buiuue|d | )
pue suonesadQ ‘@oueul{ pasiaal
ay) anoadde si0j0a.1Qq Jo pieog
AHOL 24} ey} pusawiwiodas IJPIWWo ‘Aoeinooe 10} josunoo
Buluue|d pue suoneiradQ ‘@sueulq |ebaj apisino Aq pamainal usaq
a3y} yey) paroudde Ajsnowiueun pey ) jeu) pue ‘Japeyn Buiuueld
seMm )1 pue ‘papuodas Is)ayuabul] | @ suoneladQ ‘eoueul4 sy) o) spew
"IN ‘oplejuo) “iq Aq paAow sem )| usaq pey sHpa Jo Joquinu e ey} Japeyn Buiuuelg
Jeyn NOILOW | PpaAaAuod meyg-pleussg sjfisyn B suoljeladQ ‘@oueuld ‘e

ssauisng pl0 'S

‘paulejsqe 1zznoJep ‘A
pue pieeBAN Jojoaliq "suoiesyipow

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosii

sSuoIsSn|ouo)
/suonePUBWIWIOIDY
uonoy

SuoIepUAWWOI3Y
SI Nnjouo) ‘suolssnasiqg

oidoj

~r
M~



9102 ‘81 4840100

¢ sbunss|y sapiwwo) Buiuueld pue suoleladQ ‘eoueui

ovz'L $ 3043
¥60's $ vaduig3
2z29'es ¢ asuadx3 bunesadp
€09'c8 $ anuanay bunessadp

9jeq O} JeoA [edsiq

Krewiwing jeroueuid — gHIO 1
(spuesnoy} ul
sJejjop) 9102 ‘0¢ Jeqwaldas Buipud

SeAly Aey s[eioueuly ay) pajuasald seary Aey s|jeoueul{ '8
"8102 ‘0¢ aunr Buipua
pue 910z ‘I 12qwanopN Buluuibaq
‘syjuow gz Jo wua) e 1o} Ai1abing
oipadoyuQ 10} [sued abeiano) ||e)
-uQ @3 Bunsixa Apuaiind ay3 o} "q'\
‘uaplas jueln) ppe si0jdaliq Jo pieog
AHI1 Y} ey} pusiuwiosal aap o) ‘asuadxa ul asealoul
Bujuueld pue suopesadQ ‘adsueulq ou yum ‘Aisbing oaipadoyup
ay} jey; panoidde Ajsnowiueun | oy abeisnco |jeD-uQ 3 4o} [sued ‘A’ ‘USpIaS JuelS) e
SeM }] pue ‘papuodas J13}jjajuabur Bunsixs sy 0] ueidisAyd mau se A1sbing aipadoyup
"JN ‘Zapus|\ “s|il Aq parow sem )] | uapieg Juels) “Ig ppPe 0} S| dn-ajum -obelano) |[eD-u0
J9lIN Aays NOILOW sIy} Jeyy pakaauod oIy Aays | g3 10} Jusweaiby uempisAud “p
"810Z ‘0¢
aunp Buipua pue 910¢ ‘| J9WIAON
Buluuibaq ‘syjuow @z jJo wia} e
10} ABojoina) .0} jsueyd abel1ano jjen
-uQ @3 bunsixs Apuaiind ay} 03 ‘0'd
‘lIsusanp eue] ppe s10393li( JO pleog
aHIOL1 24} Jey} pusSwWWodds IJPWWIOD) "‘osuadxa Ul asea.oul
Buluuejd pue suonesadQ ‘esueui ou ypm ‘Abojoinap Joy abelonos
3y} jey paroidde Ajsnowijueun lIeD-UQO Q3 Jo} |aued Bunsixa
SBM }] pue ‘papuo2as opiejuo) 8y} 0} uedisAyd mau se jjsusanyd) ‘O’'a ‘llpusenp eie] e
q ‘suea)y] "IN Ag parows sem 3| ele] "1q ppe o} s dn-ayum | ABojoinaN-abeiano) ||[eD-uQ
J9|ln Aseys NOILOW SIy} 1eyy pakaauoo oIy Ausys | @3 Joj Juswoalby ueidisAyd o

"LLG'0EES 10 150D paulquIod [ejo) B

104 sdoyde] yoogoid dH 10} |HS Yum
pue slauueag uonesipaj 1oy spoaieg
pue spe) S|9aYAA UO SUOIB)SHIOM

ajqisuodsay
(s)uosi

suoisn|puo’)
/suoiepuUBWIWOddY
uondy

SUONEPUIWILIONDY
S NjPU0) ‘suoissnasiq

aidoj

Yol
M~



9102 ‘8l 48q0J00

¥ sbunaspy asniwwo) Buluueld pue suonesadQ ‘soueuly

uewlieyn

‘suoljsanb

)SE 0]} SWOI[OM SI9M slaquus
asnIWWo Ing ‘Ajluo malnail

10} a1am swia)l epuabe asay)
Jey} pauodai ounsobeq 1010011

uoljewoju| — ue|d SMOM '}

Ajuo

SOUBAIBQ - DNDL ©
Aejs jo yibuay

abelany anoyY-ONDL e
sfeq

juaned psjsnipy-ONDL
9|qeAIS09Y SJUNO0JDY

Jusned ul skeq 1oN-OWOL *

:sydein

Z°0S /v 18N ul sheqg
L'ey $ (suoyjiw uy)
H/V uaned 18N

dea) [edsid Ag ¥/V I2N

ui sAeq @ ¥/V juaiied }aN - OWOL

GiLe's SisIA a3
v.2 SETIETN[ETg
S/Y sase) Aabing
0956 sAe( juaned pajsnipy
18l snsua) Ajieq ‘bay

Jjuopy
juaiin) — siojedipuj Aay — HJWOL
oL $ 3043
GLo'c $ vauiig3s

€g8¢'22 ¢ asuadx3 Bunelsad(
v0L'22 $ anuaAay Buneladp)

UIUoOy Jusiing

— Adewwng [eidueui4-QHO 1
08%'91 SUSIA g3
9e) salaAlla(
175 sase) Aiabing
11062 sAe( aned psisnipy
yal snsuan Ajeq By

d1lAd — siojedipuj Aey] — JINDL]

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosii

suoisn|ouo)
/suoiepuUaWWI0ddY
uonay

suonepuaWWOoIdYy
sl njouo) ‘suoissnasi|q

aido]

w0
M~



9102 ‘gl 49qo1o0 G sBuijesiy eeniwwo) Buluueld pue suonesedp ‘eoueul] -

wd 0¢:1 pauwnofpe Bunasi uswuinolpy "ol

(suou)
sbuiuadO Alunwwo) -6

1eyd 910Z ‘Gl JOqUISAON Bunssw 1xau Jo ajle@ ‘g

SsIaquuayy 9anIWIWo)
neyn SUON AQ sjuswwo) "/

‘pensua uoIsSsSnosIp Jalg

*10)08.1Q [edIpa Auabing ay) Joj
uodal soueWwIOUad BWO02N0 By}
Bunoayjyas ‘uonejuasaid Julo4lemod

puowelq Aepy Jouq e aneb puoweiq Aepy A1sbung ‘i010a11Q [EOIPBIN e
seAly Aey uoISSNosIp ON pieoqyseq e
"pPaLINouU0d

Slaquiaw 9aYILILLIOY) "JeullO)
Apapenb snoinaiad ay) ‘sA ajepdn
[enuue ue se ‘uejd YOA\ dY)

uo urewal syepdn Js)ua) uoisnjuj
9y} Jeyy uonsabbns ay) pasiel
Asjuon endeyy ounsobe( Jojoaliq "UoISSNISIpP ON J9JUa) uoisnju| e

SMoYoaI SUYD uoISSNosIp ON Hoday uoionIsuo) e

"pPanNsus uoISSNISIp Jaug

"Joyoed epuabe ay) ul papnjoul
Juswnoop sjepdn 18U SSBU|IAA
Jauuag pined 3y} pamalaal pauuag pineq J8jue) SSOU|lPM\ @

suoIsnjouo0)
/SuonEpUBWIWIOddY
uonoy

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosi

SUOIJepUAWIIOIDY

S snjpuo ‘suolssnasiq oidoj




FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE OF MEETING: September 20, 2016
CLINICAL COVERAGE AND CO-MEDICAL DIRECTOR AGREEMENT with

NORTH COUNTY ONCOLOGY MEDICAL CLINIC, INC.

Type of Agreement X | Medical Directors Panel Other: Coverage
Same Rates that
New . .
Status of Agreement X | New Agreement X hospital paid
Agreement .
previously

Practice Name:
Area of Service:

Term of Agreement: 36 months

Maximum Totals:

North County Oncology Medical Clinic, Inc.
Oncology Medical Clinic & Chemotherapy Infusion Center

Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES

Services Monthly Cost 36-month (Term) Cost
Infusion Center Coverage $43,333.33 $1,560,000.00
Co-Medical Director S 6,666.67 S 240,000.00
TOTAL $50,000.00 $1,800,000.00

Description:

e Clinic Coverage — The on-site presence of a physician is required by CDPH for TCMC to own and
operate a chemotherapy infusion service.

e This was vetted in 2016 with HealthCare Appraisers, Inc., and was verified to be at fair market value.
e The Medical Directorship Services will be provided by multiple physicians.

e Initial approval from BOD on March 29, 2012. This is a new three-year agreement with no rate

increase from 2012 rates.

Board Approved Physician Contract Template: | X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Wayne Knight, Chief Strategy Officer

Motion: | move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of

Directors extend the Clinical Coverage and Medical Director Agreement between TCHD and North County
Oncology Medical Clinic, Inc. for a term of 36 months, beginning October 1, 2016 and ending September

30, 2019 as follows: Coverage Agreement, full time at $43,333.33 per month; Co-Medical Director

Agreement at $6,666.67 a month (not to exceed 34 hours per month), for a total cost for the 36-month

term of $1,800,000.00.

78




FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: October 18, 2016
Rady Children’s Specialists Agreement for NICU ROP Testing

Type of Agreement Medical Directors | X | Panel Other:
Renewal - Renewal ~ Same

Status of Agreement New Agreement X New Rates Rates
Vendor’s Name: Rady Children’s Specialists of San Diego
Area of Service: NICU - Retinopathy of Prematurity Testing
Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, November 1, 2016 - Ending, October 31, 2017
Maximum Totals:

Monthly Cost Annual Cost Total Term Cost
$2,735 $32,820 $32,820

Description of Services/Supplies:
° Ophthalmic Consultation Services for NICU-Retinopathy of Prematurity Testing
© Requested increase of $150 (5.8%) per month, $1,800 per year/term

Document Submitted to Legal: Yes X No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Mary Diamond, Sr. Director-Nursing, Surgical Services /
Sharon Schultz, Chief Nurse Executive

Motion:
I move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors
authorize the agreement with Rady Children’s Specialists of San Diego for Retinopathy of Prematurity
Testing for a term of 12 months, beginning November 1, 2016, and ending October 31, 2017, for an
annual cost of $32,820, and a total cost for the term of $32,820.

79




FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: October 18, 2016
WOW Replacement Project

Type of Agreement Medical Directors Panel X | Other: Equipment
Renewal — Renewal — Same
Status of Agreement X | New Agreement New Rates Rates

Vendor’s Names: 1. Cerner for Workstations on Wheels (WOW) Carts and Barcode for Medication Scanners
2. SHI for HP ProBook Laptops

Area of Service: Clinical Areas (Business Critical Patient Care)
Term of Agreement: One time purchase fee beginning, November 1, 2016
Maximum Totals:
ltems Total Cost
110 Hand Scanners & 120 Ergotron Carts $206,615
110 HP ProBook Laptops $123,956

Total: $330,571

Description of Services/Supplies:

o Replacement for Nursing Workstation on Wheels (WOW’s) with new laptops, bar code scanners for
medication administration and night lights

¢ Current WOWs and Panasonic tablets are inconsistently connecting due to age and interoperability
connectivity. Bar code scanning statistics and ability to accurately document in a timely manner challenging
due to problems with current technology.

o Clinicians conducted a device fair with 5 different carts and scanner vendors, than piloted the top two of
each on all of the nursing units. The Ergotron cart and the 2600 Scanner were chosen by the nurses as the
replacements that would work best for them.

e The Ergotron cart is easy to move and adjusts to sitting or standing, the light makes keyboard
documentation easy during the night shift and the laptop screen is bigger which helps staff.

Document Submitted to Legal: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Kathy Topp, Director, Education & Clinical Information /
Kapua Conley, Chief Operating Officer

Motion:

I move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors authorize
the agreement with Cerner for Workstations on Wheels Carts and Barcode for Medication Scanners and with
sHI for HP ProBook Laptops for a total combined cost of $330,571.

80




FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: October 18, 2016
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT for ED ON-CALL COVERAGE - Neurology

Type of Agreement Medical Directors X | Panel Other:

Status of Agreement X | New Agreement Ezr\:ve\év::; l;::eeswal ~same
Physician’s Name: Tara Quesnell, D.O.
Area of Service: Emergency Department On-Call: Neurology
Term of Agreement: 20 months, Beginning, November 1, 2016 - Ending, June 30, 2018
Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES

For entire Current ED On-Call Area of Service Coverage: Neurology
New physician to existing panel, no increase in expense

Rate/Day Current Panel Days Current Panel
per Year Annual Cost
FY17: 365 FY17:$270,100
$740
FY18: 365 FY18: $270,100
Total: $540,200

Position Responsibilities:

o Provide 24/7 patient coverage for all Neurology specialty services in accordance with Medical Staff
Policy #8710-520 (Emergency Room Call: Duties of the On-Call Physician)

e Complete related medical records in accordance with all Medical Staff, accreditation, and
regulatory requirements.

Board Approved Physician Contract Template: | X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Sherry Miller, Manager, Medical Staff / Kapua Conley,
Chief Operating Officer

Motion:

I move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors add
Tara Quesnell, D.O. to the currently existing ED On-Call Coverage Panel for Neurology for a term of 20
months, beginning November 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2018.

81




FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: October 18, 2016
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT for ED ON-CALL COVERAGE - Orthopedic Surgery

Type of Agreement Medical Directors X | Panel Other:
Renewal — Renewal — Same
Status of Agreement X | New Agreement New Rates Rates

Physician’s Name:
Area of Service:
Term of Agreement:

Maximum Totals:

Grant Seiden, M.D.

Emergency Department On-Call: Orthopedic Surgery

20 months, Beginning, November 1, 2016 — Ending, June 30, 2018

Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES
For entire Current ED On-Call Area of Service Coverage: YES
New physicians to existing panel, no increase in expense

Rate/Day - Orthopedic Surgery | Current Panel Days Per Year | Current Panel Annual Cost
Weekday $1,500 FY17: 253 $379,500
Weekend/holiday $1,650 FY17: 112 $184,800
Weekday $1,500 FY18: 253 $379,500
Weekend/holiday $1,650 FY18: 112 $184,800

Total Term Cost: $1,128,600

Position Responsibilities:

o Provide 24/7 patient coverage for all Orthopedic specialty services in accordance with Medical
Staff Policy #8710-520 (Emergency Room Call: Duties of the On-Call Physician)

e Complete related medical records in accordance with all Medical Staff, accreditation, and
regulatory requirements.

Board Approved Physician Contract Template: | X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement'a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Sherry Miller, Manager, Medical Staff Services / Kapua
Conley, Chief Operating Officer

Motion:

| move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors add
Grant Seiden, M.D. to the currently existing ED On-Call Coverage Panel for Orthopedic Surgery for a term
of 20 months, beginning November 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2018.

82




TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FINANCE, OPERATIONS AND PLANNING
COMMITTEE CHARTER

The Finance, Operations and Planning Committee (the “Committee”) of the Tri-City Healthcare
District (“District”) has multiple purposes and is delegated certain key responsibilities as
enumerated herein.

I Purpose

The Committee is to provide governance oversight and to make recommendations to the
District’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) by overseeing the functions of the District directly
related to Finance, Operations, and Planning. The Committee focuses on matters that are
material to the District’s operations. “Material” generally means financial impacts exceeding the
Chief Executive Officer’s approval limit as well as matters that, due to their nature, could expose
the District to significant risks.

1. Finance Oversight: The Committee will oversee the Finance function of the
District, including the following:

a. Review monthly financial statements prepared by the Finance Department and
presented by the Chief Financial Officer;

b. Monitor the monthly financial statements for unusual trends and have the
Chief Financial Officer provide a detailed explanation of the variances;

c. Report to the Board regarding any issue involving the integrity or
trustworthiness of the District’s financial statements;

d. Review any proposed changes to Finance-related policies and procedures,
including Board Policy No. 1614-017 (investments) and 4615-013
(procurement).

2. Operations Oversight: The Committee shall:

a. Review monthly report of operations metrics for departments noted on the
Committee Work Plan;

b. Review significant new services to be provided by the District and add to
Committee Work Plan;

DOCS 1931389.1

83



New contracts (not within the scope of another Board committee) as well as
amendments and renewals of existing contracts that exceed the approval
authority of the Chief Executive Officer as outlined in Administrative Policy
and Procedure #232, Board Policy No. $815-013 and state law.

3. Planning Oversight: The Committee shall perform initial screening and analysis
for potential recommendation for advancement to the Board for consideration of the
following:

a. Proposed real estate transactions;

b. Proposed mergess;-acquisitions, and contractual joint ventures;
e C ox . . (ons:

Physician recruitments and other contracts with physicians;

Procurements requiring approval by the Board under Administrative Policy
and Procedure #232, Board Policy No. $815-013, or state law;

Material matters related to the integration between the District and
independent physicians and physician groups.

II. Membership

The Committee shall consist of three Directors, five community members, and three physicians.

Each community committee member shall have a basic understanding of finance and accounting,
and should have experience and familiarity with the specialized issues relating to healthcare
finance. At least one community member of the Committee shall have accounting or related
financial management expertise, as evidenced by the certified public accountant designation or
other education and/or work-related credentials.

I11. Meetings

The Committee may establish its own meeting schedule annually.
IV. Minutes

The Committee will maintain written minutes of its meetings. Draft minutes will be presented to
the Board for consideration at its meetings. The Senior Executive Assistant or designee will
provide assistance to the Committee in scheduling meetings, preparing agendas and keeping
minutes.

V. Reports

The Committee will report regularly to the Board regarding (i) all recommendations made or
actions taken pursuant to its duties and responsibilities, as set forth above, and (ii) any
recommendations of the Committee submitted to the full Board for action.

2

DOCS 1931389.1

84



VI. Conduct

Each Committee member is expected to read the District’s Code of Conduct which can be found
at http://www.tricitymed.org/about-us/code-of-conduct/ and shall comply with all provisions
thereof while a member of this Committee.

Approved: 9/20/2011 by Board of Directors
Approved: 3/28/2013 by Board of Directors
Approved: 5/29/2014 by Board of Directors

DOCS 1931389.1

85



lI9UdUW J0}081IQ

*oliqnd
3y} JO slaquiswi Woly sjusawwod buipiebal
ydeibered ay) peal [jayoyp Jooali(

al10jeq 2lqnd ayj 0}
1salajul jo way Aue uo oignd
ay} Jo siequisw AQ sjuswiwon ¢

"DV d 10} sbunesw Jequiadsag
pue 13qUUBAON 3y} j2oued

0} uois|oap e apew dnoub ay |
"opJejuc) "iqg Aq papuooss

pue g|iuul4 1030a1q Ag apew sem

"syjuow

OM] 1xau ay} Joy sbunesyy pieog Jeinbal

3y} jo sajep Jo abueyod osje pue sAepijoy ay)
0} anp Jaquwiaoa( pue JoquIBAON 10} sajep
Bun@aw ay} Uo UOISSNOSIP Jalq & Sem 81ay |
"SUOI}EOIPOW 10 SUOIIPPE OU 81am 818y}

[leYoNN 1030811 epuabe ay) anoidde o} uonopy pue epuale sy} pomainal 81U aY | epuaby Jo |enoiddy ‘gz
"L wooy Ajquisssy ut Wd 90:2L e
IoY2U Jojoauiq 19pJ0 0} Bunssw ay) paj|ed [|aYdyI J0j0aI] 19pIOQ 0L [1eD |

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

SUOIJEpPUdWWOIDY
juonoy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiqg

oidoj

1o} JopauIg ‘uosiesld lwer ‘soueldwog pue Aojeinbey Joy Jopsiiq IS ‘YBneueae) eidlepy ‘[sSUNog [eisuLs ‘Jooy Apor :juasaid siayo

"dA\ IS /AND ‘Z)NYdg UOIBYS pUB UOSUYOr “IJ ‘'OpJeu0) "IJ ‘UBWIOAA BOOS "I :JudSqy SIOqIDIN

'Z}I9H ualley) pue eueng) elled ‘|9zjeN-zeney) usydsls ‘yoeoy 1o ‘opieqwoT udy ‘souaime eysQ ‘ousobe(
wir ‘puowelq Aep ‘ddo Y Ayjey ‘einwniQ eusmoy ‘eely esi ‘ddo] Ayjey ‘joljuod uoiosul pue Alenp Iio ‘soueydwo) Alojeinbay

1900 soueldwo) Jaly ‘Meyg-preusag ajk1syd pue da ‘ex3 /00D ‘Asjuo) endey ‘03D ‘Ulielq 9AS)S Juasald S19quap Bunop-uop

B 8UB9 "JJ PUE Bjluul{ BUOWEY J0joa.IJ o0(leyog AueT Jojoalig ‘(I1eyD) [IsUdHA eineT J0j0aliq  [Juasald SI1aquiapy

9102 ‘¢l 41990300
s9)nuip uoissag uadp

Bunesy sapIWWo) siiejly |eUOISS3jold

i83ue) [edipay ANo-11

L4dvdd

86



[4

9L€10L seINUIN DVd

elianc epued

‘lencidde pleog

Jo} piemuoy Buinow saidljod ayy
anoidde 0} uonow a8y} papuoosas
[IBYSHIN 1030311 pue paAow
e|luui{ Joyoalnq ‘panocidde aiam
salnpasoid pue saloljod sa2IAeS

ale) jusljied ayl :NOILOV

[IIm paouaiajal sI s, Aqsojy alaym ueldisAyd
ay} bunsisse jo ued jeinpasoid ay|

‘Aonjod s1y} UO UOISSNOSIP OU Sem 318y |

"Ao1j0d siYy) UO UOISSNOSIP OU SBeM alay |

‘juaned Aue

uo ainpaososd Aue Buipiels a10jaq ajge|ieAe
9Q O} paau sjnsal e’ yed auy} jeyy

Aoijod siy} uo apew uoiedlylIeD B Sem alay |

Juswabeuepy
agqnpisayd v

Aoljod
swiumod ¥INY3ID '€

alnpaoold (aseAnoy

oljyieD) asejda)y ypm
aoueles|) JajLByle) ‘Z

ainpasold
pazipJepue)s
qe yieg oelpied ||
-SalNpod0id

pue saldjjod aled juaned
$3INpad0ld pue saloijod
JO [enouddy ajqIssod
pue uonelapisuon) ‘e

ssauisng MaN °G

‘Bujesw s,yjuow snoiaaid

8y} ui Juasaid jJou sem ays
aouis Bunoa woly ueisge ejuui
Joyalg ‘910z Jequsldes
woly sajnuiwl ay) anoidde

0} uonOW 3y} PaPUOISS [|BYINN
10}0811(g pPUE paAOW YOO0||eYydS

‘Bunesw 9102
‘g Jaquwisydeg woly saynulw ay} anoidde

'910¢ Jequisydeg

ZUaH uale)| loyoaliq “pauiel sanulp 0] UoioW E 1o} pa|e [|eYdHN 1030811 JO sajnuiw jo uoneolyney ‘v
"way sy}
JO UOI}BIDPISUOD S,83ILULLIOD
a|qisuodsay SUOIJepUdWIWOIDY
(s)uosiad juonoy dn-mojjo4 uoissnasiq oido}

M~
o0



€

9L€10l seIuIN Dvd

"ssa20.d ay} ul aaejuasaldal gHOL

1O 9|01 8y} 109|ja1 0} paziplepue)s Buiaqg
40 ssao0ud ay} ui si (JaAlepA Juawdinbg
paljddng juaned) Aoljod siy) uo wioj ay |

"Ao110d S1Y} UO UOISSNOSIP OU Sem alay |

"alnny

ay) ut Aoijod siy) 0} pappe aq |jim Alobayed
0 B JBY) pauojuaw os|e sem}| "Uojesiued
Jayuny Jo} pajelawinua ag pjnoys jesodsip
1o} ps|npayos ale jey) ajsem Adelsayjowayo
JO Spupy 8y} }ey} papuswiLLodal SEM |

"Aoijod siy} uo UOISSNOSIP OU Sem a1y |

‘uonjejndod jey} ypm [esp jou op |epdsoy ey}
90Uls JNO payuls aq pjnoys jusljed oujelpad
e jo ajel Auojessidal ayy uo asiwald ay |

‘Maniiap yuiqiis

e uo podsau jsibojoyjed ay} 1o} Buniem

aflym Ageq ayy daay o} sjeb Jusned ay) jey;
Jey) psjou osje sem }| ‘sbeuiedsiw pue yuiq
|I3s jo uonenussayip ay} sauljino Aajjod siy

‘Palipow aq |jim

Aoljod
Aoe ay) ojul Jybnoug

juswdinb3 [edips\ 0}

ainpsao0.1d
pazipiepue)s

UOILasU| SNOUBARIIU| O}
lold onayiseuy [e207]

ainpasold
sbniq snopiezeyH

8inpadoid
pazipJepuels
uonessIuILpy
Al lopuadojeH

ainpasold
pazipiepuelg a2IAI9S
BuisinN eisayisauy
-}sod usnedinQ
wouy abieyoasiq

ainpasold abeuleosipy
W0l sasiwa(

[eje auusinelu)
Bunenusiayiq

21npadoid

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

SUONBPUIWWOIDY
Juondy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiqg

aido)




1% 9LELOL SOINUIN OVd B

‘lencidde pireog

Jo} premuoy Buiaow safoijod ay}
anoidde 0} uorjow ay) papuodas
300||eyoS 10303l pue paaow
eliuul4 10108li(] ‘paroidde
alam sainpasoid pue saloijod
jojuUoD uondalu| 8yYyj NOILOV

‘sosodind aoueljdwod 10} papasul aq 0'Gl
S92USI8Ja) SY) SABY 0) UIAY Yum Jayaboy 0| sasess|(] papiwisuel |
196 |Im esI "aouaiajal e pasu Aoljod ayy ul Aojelndsay 1810
swi9)l swog ‘a3 8y} ul pabeuy ale sjuaned 10 ezuanyu| oiwepid]
XNJjul JO [SA3] JUBIBYIP 1eY) PaloUu SEM }| | Slusiied Snoljoaju] Jo Xnju| |
joJ3uoo uonoaaju|
ayoads yun

elianc) eoled

‘pajepdn
aq [lIim ABojouluis) MSDT/L4IN UL

‘Jsed ay} ui SJuUsSpIoul SWos

0} anp Aoljod siy} 1o} ssauateme pauayblay
pey Jejs ay} jey} pauoijusw os|e Sem )|
"Aeix ul )1 @8s uaAa ued Apogou jey; Aun

os sI saka ay} 1o} pasn awdinba ay) ey}
paule|dxs sem ) ‘saka sy} yum ainpaosoud
ajeledas s| a1oy} J1 uonysanb e sem alay |

‘Ka110d s1y} uo uoIssNIsIp ON

‘Ko1jod siy} uo uoissnosip oN

Aoljod sulened buiyels
'JJels jo uonezinn y|

s109[qO |eoibing
pauiel}ay JO uonuanaid
SJUNOY JusWNISU|

pue sdieyg ‘obuodg-¢|

ainpasold
pazipiepuelg
uonensiuiwpy
pue Bulussiog
aUIDDBA BZUSN|U|
pue [eooao0Wwnaud Z|

ainpaosold

paziplepuelg

Bniq Buinuuoasiq

Jo/pue jopuadoiq

JO uofelsIUIWPY 10}
903 pea gl bupepio Ll

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

SUOEPUBWIWIOIDY
juonay dn-mojjo

uoissnasiq

aido}




G

ellans eujed

eliang eled

Bliano) epujed

‘lenoidde

pieog 10} pJemio} aAow 0}
panoidde atam saijod NDIN aY)
pue papuooss 20||eydS 10303ali(
‘PaAoW e|luul 10303110 :NOILOV

‘lenosdde pieog

1o} pJemuoy Buinow saoijod ayy
anoidde 0} uoiow sy} papuooas
ejiuui4 10}08liQ pue paAow

00| |eyos Jojoalqg ‘panocidde
alam ainpaosoid pue Aoljod

HELS [BSIPSIN SYL NOILDV

Jey} SNSUasU0D B pey aaj)iuwod ay |

‘Ao1j0d siy} uo uoISSNOSIP OU sem a8y |

‘Aoijod sy} uo UOISSNOSIP OU Sem alay |

"Ao1j0d SIY} UO UOISSNOSIP OU SEM dJay |

"A2110d SIY} UO UOISSNOSIP OU Sem alay |

"Aa1jod s1y} Uo uoISSNOSIp OU Sem alay |

"Aoijod siy} uo uoISSNOSIp OU Sem alay |

"NDIN 8y} Joj jeuspe |eisyduad
8} UO UOISSNISIpP JolIq B Sem aiay |

"Ino pa||ads aq pinoys
dHYV jJO uoniuyap ayj jey} psuonusw osje
sem ]| ‘Ja)sesip jJo sawl) ul s|euoissajoid

yieay pajjje pue sisuonioeld Jasjunjon
o} Buljenuapaio apinoid o} swie | “Aoljod
siy} Jo Aewwns Jauq e aneb o Aiays

91€101 seInuIN Ovd
NOIN 8y} ul uoneysip g

NOIN -8JeJ jo spiepuelg °/

9102
NDIN -8JeD 4O spiepuels ‘9

NOIN 8y} ul S32IAIS
|eroog o) sonjey buels g

10 |eroway
pue soueUSUIBY ‘UOILIBSU|
sul |eusyy [essyduad ¢

947 4o pu3 8y} Je sejeuosN
8y} Jo a1e anjelied ¢

uonegnju| |eayoesjopug
[eyeuosp jusbilswg-uoN ‘Z

(MG ueg)
Wyb1apA yuig mo] Asen
pue (Mg13) ueyu] ybiapp
yuig mo Ajpwanx3
3y} Jo ale) Joy auleping "}
NIOIN

sabajinud Jojsesiq |
HE}S |edIpaN

a|gisuodsay
(s)uosiag

SUOIEPUBWILIODDY
juonoy dn-mojjo4

uoissnosi

oidoj

(=]
[=2]



91€10} SIINUIN OVd &

lISYONI 1030911(]

‘usyej uoljoe oN :NOILOV

"yluow Siyj Joj POMSIASI DIOM SIOBIJUOD ON

sjoejuog [eaiuld ‘9

Bliano) eoued

Bliano) eloled

‘lencsdde pieogq 1o} piemioy
Buinow saloijod sy} snoidde

0} UO[joW 8y} papuoIas opiejuo)
"1 pue paAow Xo0|[eyos
Jojoalg ‘panoidde aiom
s)sanbal Auejnwol 8y :NOILOY

‘lencidde pieog

Jo} pJemuoy Buinow Aojjod siyy
anoidde 0} uojjow ay) papuodas
320||eYoS 10}031I(] pue parow
ejiuul{ Joyanq -pasnoidde sem
ainpsgoid SOM 8yl :NOILOV

"Salle|nuwLIoy
9S9U]) JO UOISSNOISIP OU SEM 319y |

‘a|qeledwo9 1s02 AIoA SI Y
pue ABojoipey uj Ajwiuew pasn s| sinepes)

‘gousIme
e)sQ Aq papodai se sauljepinb yqg4 sjesw
ley} Bnup panoidde ue si pl01o)sooIL0D ay |

‘Aotjod siy} Uo UOISSNISIP OU SBM 318y |

‘NDIN 3y} ul sjuejul syj jo
Ayejes ay) 1oy snoibejuos pue yois ale Asyy

J1 PaX23Y 89 0} PISU NDIN dY} Ul SIOYSIA

Bw y ulweyp e
dno Jw og/baw gf
apuojyD wnissejod e

uoinjos
[elo [loiBInqly e
sla|qe)
Bw g JojoibeDI] e
wealn
jeoido] uiesden e
suons|aQq /suonippy

way| aui] Auejnwo ‘¢

Isinepeg) ¢

dl JO uojensiulwpy
lednpid3 -plosejsooio) |
s}sonbay Aiejnwio4

sauljepIng

a1eo sisdag ulogmaN |
S99IAIDG
UJOMaN pue S USWOpAA

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiag

SUONBPUBIWWOIIY
Juonay dn-mojjo

uoissnasi(

aido|




OLELOIL SeINUIN DVd

lI9Y2UIN JojoauQ 'INd Sz ¥e pauinolpe Buneapy Juawuinolpy *| |
23)IWWOo) ay)
[IeYoU Jooalq "SJUSWIWOD ON |  JO SISQWIBIN WO SJUBWLWOYD) "0
uoissag
Paso|D Ul uaye| uonoy Auy
[IPYONA Jo108lIQg ‘udye} suoljoe ou a1em asey] | jo uosiaditey) sy} Jo spoday ‘6

lISYOUN J03081IQ

‘Nd 0L°¢
Je uoissag uadQ 0} UInjal eaRIWIWOD 8y |

uoissag uadQ o} uin}jdy ‘g

lloYaUI Jojoaug

‘Nd 0G:21 }e UoISSas pasojo

oju| o6 o0} panoidde Aisnowiueun
SEM ) puB papuo2as Y}00||eyos
Jojoallg ‘panow e|luul4 J0joaaQg

"UoISSag Paso|) ojul
ob 0] uonow e 10§ payse |[aY2MA 10308iI(Q

uoISsag pasol) '/

ajqisuodsay
(s)uosiad

SUOI}epUdWIWIOIBY
juonay dn-mojjo4

uoissnasi(

oido)

N
[=2]



—

PROFESSIONAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
October 13", 2016

CONTACT: Sharon Schuitz, CNE

Policies and Procedures

Reason

Recommendations

Patient Care Services Policies & Procedures

1. Cardiac Cath Lab Standardized
Procedure

2 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval

2. Catheter Clearance with Alteplase
(Cathflo Activase) Procedure

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval

3. Cerner Downtime Policy

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval

4. Chest Tube Management Procedure

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval
with revisions

5. Differentiating Intrauterine Fetal Demises
from Miscarriages Procedure Tracked
Differentiating Intrauterine Fetal Demises
from Miscarriages Procedure Clean

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval
with revisions

6. Discharge from Qutpatient Post-
Anesthesia Nursing Service Standardized
Procedure

2 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval
with revisions

7. Haloperidol IV Administration
Standardized Procedure

2 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval

8. Hazardous Drugs Procedure

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval
with revisions

9. Local Anesthetic Prior to Intravenous
Insertion Standardized Procedure

NEW

Forward to BOD for approval
with revisions

10. Medical Equipment Brought into the
Facility Policy Tracked
Medical Equipment Brought into the
Facility Policy Clean

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval
with revisions

11.Ordering 12 Lead ECG for Administration
of Droperidol and-or Discontinuing Drug
Standardized Procedure

2 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval

12.Pneumoccocal and Influenza Vaccine
Screening and Adminstration
Standardized Procedure

2 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval

13.Sponge, Sharps and Instrument Counts
Prevention of Retained Surgical Objects
Tracked
Sponge, Sharps and Instrument Counts
Prevention of Retained Surgical Objects

practice change

Forward to BOD for approval

Clean
14. Utilization of Staff, Staffing Patterns 3 year review, Forward to BOD for approval
Policy practice change with revisions
Unit Specific

Infection Control

1. Influx of Infectious Patients Epidemic
Influenza or Other Respiratory
Transmitted Disease IC 15.0

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval
with revisions

Page 1

93



PROFESSIONAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

October 13", 2016
CONTACT: Sharon Schultz, CNE

practice change

Policies and Procedures | Reason | Recommendations
Medical Staff
1. Disaster Privileges 3 year review, Forward to BOD for approval

with revisions

NICU

1.

Guideline for Care of the Extremely Low

Birth Weight Infant (ELBW) and Very Low DELETE Forward to BOD for approval
Birth Weight Infant (VLBW)
s Ir:?th;E’urg irgent Neonatal Endotracheal DELETE Forward to BOD for approval
3. Palliative Care Of the Neonates at the
End of Life Tracked 2 year review, £ d'to BOD f . |
Palliative Care Of the Neonates at the practice change orwaraio or approva
End of Life Clean
4. Peripheral Arterial Line Insertion, 2 year review,
Maintenance and Removal of practice change Forward to BOD for approval
5. Staffing Ratios for Social Services in the 2 year review, Forward to BOD for approval
NICU practice change
6. Standards of Care - NICU 2016 pfa)::etia;erf:‘lfllaeggii Forward to BOD for approval
7. Standards of Care NICU DELETE Forward to BOD for approval
8. Visitation in the NICU Tracked 2 year review, E rd to BOD for |
9. Visitation in the NICU Clean practice change orwe orapprova

Women and Newborn Services

1.

Newborn Sepsis Care Guidelines

NEW

Forward to BOD for approval

Formula[x Requests

Corticosteroid — Epidural Administration
by IR

practice change

Forward to BOD for approval

Gadavist

practice change

Forward to BOD for approval

NN

Formulary Line Item Additions/Deletions
e Capsaicin topical cream

Ticagrelor 60 mg tablets

Albuterol oral solution

Potassium chloride 40meq/30mL cup
Vitamin K 5 mg

practice change

Forward to BOD for approval

Page 2

94



Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICESSTANDARDIZED PROCEDURES-MANUAL
STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: CARDIAC CATH LAB PROCEDURES

I POLICY:
A. Function: Provide care for patients who will be receiving services through the Cardiac Cath Lab.
B. Circumstances:
1. Setting: Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC) Cath Lab
2. Supervision: None required.
3. Patient contraindications: None.
C. Expected Outcomes:
1. To outline personnel and duties involved in procedures in the Cath Lab.
2. To delineate steps in elective or emergent procedure in the Cath Lab.
3. To assure that any patient undergoing a cardiac procedure at TCMC will be assessed for
pre procedure risk and will be directed to the appropriate level of care.
Il PROCEDURE:
A. CARDIAC CATHERIZATION
1. The RN shall order the following if previous results from greater than 90 days or no
results available :
a. Obtain previous lab and history and physical if available.

b. Cardiology:
| i Perform EKG. Retrieve and print any previous EKG, if available.

C. Labs:
i. CBC
ii. Complete Metabolic Panel Z(Chem 12)

| i.  PTIPTTINR

iv. Cardiac Troponin (Troponin 1)
V. CKMB
Vi. Labs may be drawn prior to procedure

d. Nurses Order
i. Start 22, 20 or 18 gauge IV
ii. Intravenous (IV) Normal Saline (NS) at 20 mL/hr
ii. Point of care (POC) blood glucose if patient diabetic

e. Diet:

i. Ensure NPO prior to procedure except for small amounts of water to take
oral medications.
B. PERCUTANEOUS TRANSLUMINAL CORONARY ANGIOPLASTY:

a. The RN shall order the following if previous results from greater than 90 days or
no results available:
i. Obtain previous lab and history and physical if available.

b. Cardiology:

| i Perform EKG, retrieve and print previous EKG if available

C. Labs:
i. CBC
. Complete Metabolic Panel Z(Chem 12)
ii. PT/PTT/INR
iv. Cardiac Troponin (Troponin |)
Clinical Nursing ST S Medical Professional
P Review | Polites & | Bxscutive | 3 | e | Gouney | Executve | Affairs | Soordof
Procedures Council vy P Committee | Committee
NEW 3/13; . . 10/13,
I a4 3/13; 4114 3/13; 05/14 02/16 5/13, 03/16 09/13, 07/16 09/16 10/16 10/13

95



Standardized Procedure Manual

Standardized Procedure: Cardiac Cath Lab

Page 2 of 3

V. CKMB

vi. Labs may be drawn prior to procedure

Nurses Order

i. Start 22, 20 or 18 gauge IV

i. IV NS at 20 mL/hr

iii. POC blood glucose if patient diabetic

Diet:

i. Ensure NPO prior to procedure except for small amounts of water to take
oral medications.

C. ELECTIVE CARDIOVERSION:
1. The RN shall order the following if previous results from greater than 90 days or no
results available:

a.
b.

C.

Obtain previous lab & history and physical if available.

Cardiology:

i. Perform EKG. Retrieve and print any previous EKG, if available

Labs:

i. INR, complete metabolic panel (Chem 12¢7), CBC

i. Labs may be drawn prior to procedure

Nurses Order

i. Start 22, 20 or 18 gauge IV

i IV NS at 20 mL/hr

ii. POC blood glucose if patient diabetic

Diet:

i. Ensure NPO prior to procedure except for small amounts of water to take
oral medications.

D. PERICARDIOCENTESIS:
1. The RN shall order the following if previous results from greater than 90 days or no
results available :

a.
b.

C.

Obtain previous lab and history and physical if available.
Cardiology:
i. Perform EKG. Retrieve and print any previous EKG, if available

Labs:

i. CBC

ii. Complete Metabolic Panel Z(Chem 12)
i, PT/PTT/INR

iv. Labs may be drawn prior to procedure

Nurses Order

i. Start 22, 20 or 18 gauge IV

i IV NS at 20 mL/hr

ii. POC blood glucose if patient diabetic

Diet: :

i. Ensure NPO prior to procedure except for small amounts of water to take
oral medications.

E. IMPLANTABLE CARDIOVERTER DEFIBRILLATOR IMPLANT/CHANGE:;
1. The RN shall order the following if needed:

a.
b.

C.

Obtain previous lab and history and physical if available.
Cardiology:
i Perform EKG. Retrieve and print any previous EKG, if available.

Labs:

i. CBC

ii. Complete Mmetabolic Ppanel (Chem 12)
iii. INR/ PT/ PTT

iv. BNP

V. Labs may be drawn prior to procedure

96



Standardized Procedure Manual
Standardized Procedure: Cardiac Cath Lab

Page 3 of 3
d. Nurses Order
i. Start 22, 20 or 18 gauge IV
iii. NS at 20 mi/hr
e. Diet:
i. NPO after midnight except for small amounts of water to take oral
medications.
E-F. PERMANENT PACEMAKER INSERTION/CHANGE:
1. The RN shall order the following if previous results from greater than 90 days or no
results available :
a. Obtain previous lab and history and physical if available.

b. Cardiology:
i Perform EKG. Retrieve and print any previous EKG, if available.

C. Labs:
i. CBC
ii. Complete Mmetabolic Ppanel Z(eChem 12)
ii. PT/PTT/INR
iv. Labs may be drawn prior to procedure
d. Nurses Order
i. Start 22, 20 or 18 gauge IV
. IV NS at 20 mL/hr
iii. POC blood glucose if patient diabetic
e. Diet:

i. Ensure NPO prior to procedure except for small amounts of water to take
oral medications.
£G. IMPLANTABLE LOOP DEVICE IMPLANT/EXPLANT:
1. The RN shall order the following if previous results from greater than 90 days or no

results available :

a. Obtain previous lab and history and physical if available.

b. Cardiology:
i Perform EKG. Retrieve and print any previous EKG, if available.

C. Labs:
i. cBC
ii. Complete Mmetabolic Ppanel-Z(sChem 12)
iii. INR
iv. Labs may be drawn prior to procedure
d. Nurses Order
i. Start 22, 20 or 18 gauge IV
i. IV NS at 20 mL/hr
iii. POC blood glucose if patient diabetic
e. Diet:

i. Ensure NPO prior to procedure except for small amounts of water to take
oral medications.

. DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
. Method: This Standardized Procedure was developed through collaboration with Nursing,
Medicine, and Administration.
. Review: Every two (2) years.

A
B
V. CLINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM THIS STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
A. All Registered Nurses who have successfully completed orientation are authorized to direct and
perform the Cath Lab Standardized Procedure.



@‘? Tri-City Medical Center

Distribution: Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE: CATHETER CLEARANCE WITH ALTEPLASE (CATHFLO® ACTIVASE®)
I Purpose: Provide assistance to Registered Nurses with a-standard-foridentifying central

venous catheter occlusions and instructions forsafely restorlng patency of occluded

central venous catheters W|th alteplase (Cathflo® Activase® ), -in-the-adult population-and

the adult populatlon -

Supportive Data:

Skill Level: Registered Nurse (RN)— reqwres physician order

Equipment:

2 mg vial of alteplase (Cathflo® Activase® ) from pharmacy
(alteplase) (Cathflo® Activase®) Catheter specific flush
6 alcohol pads x 2

Non-vented port protector or sterile needleless cap
Sterile gloves

(2) 10 mL sterile water

10 mL syringe filled with normal saline

(2) 10 mL syringes

Anti-reflux valves (Microclave) for each clotted lumen
Port Protectors Swabecap-for each clotted lumen

(2) packages of 4x4 gauze

1.

2,

3.

4.

AB.
1.

2.

A. DEFINTIONS:

Patency — a catheter that flushes easily, without resistance, aspirates easily with brisk,

free-flowing blood return

Partial Occlusion - flushing or instilling into a catheter can be done but flow is sluggish

or difficult to infuse

Persistent Withdrawal Occlusion - flushing or instilling is done without resistance;

however there is no blood return

a. Often caused by a fibrin tail hanging off of the end of the catheter.

b. When flushing the catheter, the tail moves away from the distal tip of the catheter,
but when withdrawing blood from the catheter, the fibrin tail acts as a flap which
occludes the distal tip.

Complete Occlusion - inability to flush or withdraw blood from the catheter

PROCEDURE:

Obtain physician/Allied Health Professional (AHP) order for alteplase (Cathflo® Activase® ) to

restore patency to each occluded central venous Iumen

Obtain reconstituted alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) from pharmacy

a. If not reconstituted by pharmacy perform hand hygiene and perform steps outlined
below:

i. Reconstitute alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) to final concentration of 1 mg/mL.

ii. Aseptically withdraw 2.2 mL of sterile water using 10 mL syringe. (Do not use
Bacteriostatic Water)

ii. Inject the 2.2 mL of sterile water into the alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) vial. Slight
foaming is not unusual; let the vial stand undisturbed to allow large bubbles to
dissipate

iv. Mix by swirling until the contents are completely dissolved. Complete dissolution
should occur within 3 minutes. DO NOT SHAKE. The reconstituted alteplase
(Cathflo® Activase®) is a colorless to pale yellow solution.

Perform hand hygiene -and withdraw 2 mg (2 mL) of alteplase (Cathflo® Activase® )usinga 10
mL syringe.

Department
Review

Clinical Policies
& Procedures

Nursing
Executive
Council

Medical Staff
Department or
Division

Pharmaceutical
& Therapeutics
Committee

Medical
Executive
Committee

Professional
Affairs
Committee

Board of
Directors

05/03, 5/08, 2/11,
7114

03/11, 7/14, 08/16

03/11, 7/14,

09/16

n/a

9/14, 09/16

04/11, 10/14,
09/16

05/11, 11/14,
10/16

7/03, 3/04,
3/06, 8/08,
05/11,12/14

98



Patient Care Services Procedure Manual
| Catheter Clearance with alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®)

Page 2 of 3
4.

' 5.
6.

7.

© o

15.

16.

10.

1.

12.
13.

14,

Clamp clotted lumen

Disconnect intravenous (V) tubing (if applicable); place sterile luer cap on end of tubing.
Open one package of 4x4 gauze, keep gauze on top of opened package, and place both the
opened package and gauze under the clotted lumen.

Open three (3) alcohol preps using aseptic technique and place on opened 4x4 package-

a. Remove anti-reflux valve and use alcohol pad to vigorously cleanse the threads of the
clotted lumen.
b. Repeat two times using a new alcohol pad each time.

Attach 10 mL syringe containing alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) to clotted port:
Unclamp catheter and instill alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) slowly

a. Do not force
b. If resistance met, gently pump syringe to facilitate instillation of alteplase (Cathflo®
Activase®)

Clamp lumen, remove syringe, and apply anti-reflux (Microclave) valve and port protector

Documeﬁt the date and time alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) was instilled on a alteplase
(Cathflo® Activase®) “Do Not Flush” label. Place the label directly over the microclave.

Allow catheter lumen to dwell undisturbed for 30 minutes
Instruct patient to alert nurse performing alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) procedure if any
requests to draw from line by other staff during dwell time occur.

After 30 minutes, perform hand hygiene, don clean gloves, remove the alteplase (Cathflo®
Activase®) label and microclave using aseptic technique, attach a 10 mL syringe, unclamp
lumen, and aspirate for blood return

a. If resistance is met, gently pump syringe to facilitate movement of lysed clot, being
careful not to flush lumen contents into the patient.

b. Maintain negative pressure with the syringe for at least 30 seconds, then attempt to
aspirate for blood return.

C. If blood easily aspirates, complete the following steps:

i. Aspirate 5 mL bloedblood to remove alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) and
residual clot,, clamp lumen, and discard blood.

ii. Unclamp lumen and flush with 5-10 mL of normal saline (Alteplase}-catheter
specific-flush, then reclamp lumen

ii. Remove syringe and clean lumen treads with alcohol pads

iv. Attach a new microclave and port protector Swabeap or return to 1V infusion

V. Document administration of alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) and flush volume on
electronic medication administration record (eMAR)-

vi. Document {alteplase) (Cathflo® Activase®) catheter clearance in medical record

vii. Discard any unused solution

If unable to aspirate blood return after 30 minutes, allow the alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) to
dwell undisturbed an additional 90 minutes (total dwell time is 120 minutes).

a. Clamp lumen, remove syringe, and apply anti-reflux (Microclave) valve and port
protector

b. Reapply alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) stickerlabel directly over microclave,
document the time (the time represent the last the an attempt was to access the
port)

15-c. Replace-microclave-with-Swabecap-andlabel-and-repe

After 120 minutes, perform hand hygiene, don clean gloves, remove labet alteplase (Cathflo®
Activase®) sticker and microclave using aseptic technique, attach a 10 mL syringe, unclamp
lumen, and aspirate for blood.
a. If blood easily aspirates, complete the following steps:
i. Aspirate 5 mL of blood to remove alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) and residual
clot,; clamp lumen, and discard blood.

99



Patient Care Services Procedure Manual
| Catheter Clearance with alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®)

Page 30of 3

17.

1.

19.

ii. Unclamp lumen and flush with 5-10 mL of normal saline (alieplase)-catheter
specific-flush, then reclamp lumen.

ii. Remove syringe and clean lumen treads with alcohol pads

iv. Attach a new microclave and port protector Swabeap or return to IV infusion
V. Document administration of alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) and flush volume on
eMAR ’
vi. Document (alteplase) catheter clearance in medical record
vii. Discard any unused solution
If unable to aspirate for blood return after 120 minutes:
a. Discard unused alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®).
b. Obtain equipment as outlined in the equipment section of procedure.
C. Notify pharmacy and request a second dose of 2 mg of alteplase (Cathfio® Activase®)
d. Repeat procedure beginning with step 1
If blood easily aspirates after using a total of 4 mg of alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®):
a. Aspirate 5 mL blood, clamp lumen and discard blood
b. Unclamp lumen and flush with (alteplase) (Cathflo® Activase®) catheter specific flush,

then reclamp lumen
Remove syringe and clean lumen treads with alcohol pads
Attach a new microclave and Swabeap-port protector or return to IV infusion
Document administration of alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) and flush volume on eMAR
Document catheter clearance in medical record
. Discard any unused solution
unable to aspirate for blood return after using a total of 4 mg of alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®):
Clamp clotted lumen, remove syringe, and discard unused alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®)
Clean lumen treads with a total of three alcohol wipes using aseptic technique
Place microclave and Swabeap-port protector on clamped clotted lumen
Apply fabel to microclave marked “Do Not Touch and date, time, and your initials.”
Document administration of alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) on eMAR
Notify physician and document unable to obtain patency of lumen in the medical record
Communicate events during hand-off

@ *Pa0TPIQ@OA0

C. RELATED DOCUMENTS:

Patient Care Services Procedure: Central Venous Access Devices

D. REFEERNCES:
g-1.

Genentech USA, Inc. (2016). Cathflo activase (alteplase) reconstitution, dosing, and
administration. Retrieved from http://www.cathflo.com/dosing/index.jsp

100



@‘? Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES ROLICY-MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 8/03 SUBJECT: Cerner Downtime

REVISION DATE: 2/04; 2/05; 5/05; 6/06; 9/08; 2/12 POLICY NUMBER: IX.H

Department Approval: 07/16
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 02/1208/16
Nurse Executive Committee Approval: 02/1209/16
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: 09/16
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 031209/16
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 05/1210/16
Board of Directors Approval: 05/12

A. PURPOSE:
1. To outline steps that must be completed to initiate physician orders and allow for uninterrupted
patient care when computer downtime occurs.

B. DEFINITIONS:
1. Affinity: Electronic financial record application.
2. Bedside Medical Device Integration (BMDI): An application that pulls data from clinical
devices such as vital sign monitoring equipment into the electronic health record (EHR).
3. Computer Downtime Admissions, Discharges, Transfers ; Births-and-Deaths (ADT) Log:
Used to communicate patient transfers and discharges to Registration, Laboratory, Nutrition
Services, and Pharmacy.

4, Downtime (DT): those periods that Cerner will be out of service and unavailable for use. There
are two types of downtime:
a. Scheduled downtime — to be used for backups, upgrades, and maintenance. All or part

of the system is not available for use during this period of time.
b. Unscheduled downtlme an unforeseen system fallureldowntlme When—aﬂ—er—paptef

5. Lab Downtlme Log Used to track alI future Iab orders not required during the downtlme These
orders will be entered when the system is restored.
6. Medication Administration Record (MAR): Blank MAR to be used for new patient admissions

that occur during the downtime.

PACS: Picture Archiving and Communication System.
Universal Requisition: Used to communicate physician orders for ancillary orders such as
Laboratory, Radlology, PuImonary, Nutntlon Services, EEG Cardlology, and Rehab

C. POLICY:
1. Scheduled Downtime:
a. Planned downtime will be communicated to all patient care and associated support

service areas in advance, by Cerner announcement screen, and email with a flyer for

101



| Patient Care Services Policy-Manual

Cerner Downtime (IX-H)

Page 2 of 33
posting. Immediately prior to beginning maintenance, an attempt will be made to notify
all areas that the system will be going down and the expected duration of the downtime.

b. For Scheduled Maintenance, every attempt is made to perform the maintenance during
off-peak processing times. In general, maintenance will be scheduled starting at 0001 on
Thursday mornings and will be less than 4 hours in duration.

C. All nursing and ancillary areas will follow the policy and procedures listed below for order
communication and completion, results notification, and clinical data documentation.

d. Once maintenance is complete, the system is brought back on-line and verified by
Information Technology (IT).

e. All users will be notified when the system is back on-line and that they may resume
normal operations by overhead paging and calling key departments.

2. Unscheduled Downtime:

a. During normal business hours staff members will contact the IT Help Desk at 760-940-
7370 to check system status. After hours, staff members will check system status or
report problems to the Administrative Supervisor (AS)-/Patient Flow-Ceordinator.

b. Management team will be notified by IT via email that the system is down.
Management/AS will facilitate the communication of the need for above downtime
procedures to be put into place, and end-users will be notified by overhead page.

C. Management/AS will stay in communication with IT for updates on progress of downtime
repairs and communicate this to all affected departments.

d. All nursing and ancillary areas will follow the policy and procedures listed below for order
communication and completion, results notification, and clinical data documentation.

e. Once the problem is fixed and the system is functional again, the system will be brought
back on-line and verified.

f. Interfaces are brought back up (if applicable) by the IT Operations group and verified to be
connected and passing data.

g. Users are notified when the system is back on-line by an overhead page and calls to the
key departments to resume normal operations.

h. Each department will notify their offsite locations as appropriate. IT to notify offsite
locations and clinics as appropriate.

D. PROCEDURE:
1. Powerchart/Orders/Tasks Lists/Documentation: Clinical Areas including Nursing and Ancillary

Departments:

a. Scheduled Downtime Preparation:

i. Ensure the task list is updated to current time

i. Print current census one hour before downtime

ii. Print additional patient labels for each inpatient

iv. Stop entering orders 6030 minutes prior to Downtime

V. IT will “force” Operations Jobs as needed

vi. Universal downtime requisitions with unique tracking numbers and barcodes will
be used for all orders

vii. Run Active Order Reports as-reeded-for patient care sixty (60) minutes prior to
expected downtime (e.g. task-lists,resulisany; active orders)

viii. Obtain blank MARs for new patients

iX. IT to run MAR Report to print to the nursing units thirty-sixty (360) minutes prior to
Downtime.

b.

Scheduled Downtime:

i. Computer generated patient labels will be used, new patients will have handwritten
labels for lab draws that are nurse collectables. The label will have patient name,
medical record number (MRN), date of birth, and the logon Identification (ID) of
the Registered Nurse (RN) collecting the specimen.

. Downtime Admit, Discharge, Transfer Log will be activated and all ADT
transactions will be logged.

102



| Patient Care Services Policy-Manual

Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 3 of 33

ii. Universal Downtime Requisition forms will be completed for all orders to be
completed during Downtime and sent to the appropriate department. Phone
notification will be used when appropriate. Routine orders not expected to be
completed during the downtime should be entered when the system is back up by
the ordering department/unit.

iv. All STAT orders will require a phone call to the servicing department

V. Lab: Any new routine orders to be done during the anticipated downtime should be
forwarded to lab via the Universal Downtime requisition. Fax these requisitions to
4048.
1) All remaining future Lab orders, to be done post downtime, should have the

order written on the manual tracking sheet on the nursing units for re-entry
into Cerner. Any STAT labs will be called to the unit.

vi. Pharmacy: RNs will use the printed MAR for all inpatients. The RN will handwrite
any new orders on this form as well as document all medications administered
during downtime. All new patients will have medications handwritten on a blank
MAR. Nurses must override for all new medication orders during downtime. New
medication orders will not update on the Pyxis Medstation and new patients
admitted during the downtime will have to be manually entered at the Pyxis
MedStation. Caremobile and Careadmin devices will be unavailable during any
system downtime.

vii. Radiology: Any order that needs to be performed during the downtime will be
written on a separate the-Universal Downtime requisition. Each order needs a
unique ID. No Universal Downtime Requisition copies will be allowed. The
original will be forwarded to the ancillary department, and the copy will be
maintained in the requesting patient care area. Nursing staff will write the tracking
number next to the order on the order sheet. Routine orders not expected to be
done during the downtime should be entered when the system is back up by the
ordering department/unit.

viii. Respiratory: All orders will be written on a manual downtime requisition and the
Respiratory Care Practitioner (RCP) paged. The RCP will phone the unit and
determine the priority of the order, then take appropriate action, (i.e. new start
mini-neb- RCP will respond to the unit as soon as possible (ASAP), verify the
order, pick up the requisition and start the therapy.) All charting will be completed
on handwritten Pulmonary charting forms. Retain copies of charting for billing
purposes, and place in chart.

| iX. Manual requisitions should be stopped 60306 minutes before the scheduled Cerner
recovery time.
X. Clinical documentation: If the downtime is more than 4 hours, clinical data will be

tracked on manual forms for the duration of the current shift. If the downtime is
less than 4 hours electronic documentation will be completed upon recovery of the
system.

Xi. Nutrition Services: All diet orders need to be communicated to the central diet
office at 4890.

C. Scheduled Recovery:

i. When back on-line, ensure adequate staffing to enter clinical data back into the
system.

ii. If manual downtime requisitions have been forwarded to the appropriate
department, do not enter into Cerner.

ii. All receiving Departments except Nutrition Services (i.e. Lab, Respiratory Therapy,
Radiology, Social Services, Rehabilitation Services, Respiratory) will enter orders
from requisitions received during downtime referencing the tracking number in the
comment field, (the owner of the original copy of the requisition will enter the
orders).

103



| Patient Care Services Poli
Cemer Downtime (IX-H)
Page 4 of 33

vi.

vii.

viii.

iX.

¥-Xi.

Nursing refers to the manual Lab Tracking list and places orders not sent via the
downtime requisitions during downtime.

Departments who use task lists shall update tasks as soon as possible to keep
lists current

Respiratory charting is to be entered and processed in Cerner once the system is
up. Retain master copies and keep records of all order changes and updates
when system is back up.

Nursing must update all discharges and transfers for information from their ADT
logs and verify admissions.

If the downtime is 4 hours or less, Nursing must enter all clinical documentation
back into the system. Priority is given to allergies, height, weight, Input &
Outputs (1&0s), vitals and meds given before clinical assessment data.

If the downtime is more than 4 hours, nursing must reenter allergies, height,
weight, 1&Os, vitals and meds back into the system. All other documentation will
remain on paper for the remainder of the shift.

If change of shift occurs, documentation must be completed by staff on
paper or in the electronic health record (EHR) prior to leaving the shift.
During the Recovery Phase, Nursing will do a “chart check” to audit the orders and
task list, the same as the midnight chart check. Data can be entered by proxy if
needed.

Unscheduled Downtime:

i=iv.

jiv.,
i,

vovii.
wv=viii.

vi-ix.

When all or part of the computer system is noted to be down, but no
announcement has been made, staff will call the Help desk at 940-7370. Staff
will provide detailed description of the event.

IT will investigate issue and determine if unscheduled system wide
downtime has occurred and will notify departments if unscheduled
downtime is confirmed.

Notify-IT Analyst on-call-towill be notified immediately to start operation jobs
for MAR printing.

Printed labels will be used for inpatients, handwritten for any new admissions for
lab draws that are nurse collectables. Handwritten labels will have patient name,
Medical Record Number, date of birth, and the logon ID of the RN collecting the
specimen.

Activate ADT Log to track all Admits, Transfers, Births, and Deaths.

Complete manual Universal Downtime Requisitions for all new orders and use
phone notification when appropriate.

All STAT orders require a phone call to the servicing department.

Lab: Any new routine orders, to be done through the anticipated DT, should be
forwarded to the lab via Universal Downtime requisitions. Fax these requisitions to
4048. All remaining future Lab orders, to be done post DT, write order on manual
tracking log for re-entry into Cerner. Any STAT labs will be called to the unit.
Pharmacy: Hardcopy MAR sheets will be printed from the MAR backup file
RXMOPCOS5 and sent to the nursing floors. Nursing-shallreview-Any new
medication orders will be and updated on their copy of the printed MARs from the
time the MAR backup file was created to the current time. All meds given during
downtime shall be documented on the printed MAR. All new meds will be
handwritten on the printed MAR. For new patients, a blank MAR will be used.
Nurses must override for all new medication orders during downtime. New
medication orders will not update on the Pyxis Medstation and new patients
admitted during the downtime will have to be manually entered at the Pyxis
MedStation.

Radiology: A manual downtime requisition will be required for all new orders and a
call will be made to the department. Each order needs a unique ID. No
Universal Downtime Requisition copies will be allowed .The unit will keep the

104



| Patient Care Services Pelicy-Marual
Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 5 of 33

viH=Xi.

| bxii.
| =xiil.

| XXV,

carbon copy of all orders sent. Nursing staff will write the tracking number next to
the order on the order sheet.

Respiratory: All orders will be written on a manual downtime requisition and the
RCP paged. The RCP will phone the unit and determine the priority of the order,
then take appropriate action, (i.e. new start mini-neb, RCP will respond to the unit
ASAP, verify the order, pick up the requisition and start the therapy.) All charting
will be completed on handwritten Pulmonary charting forms. Retain copies of
charting for billing purposes and place in chart. For arterial blood gases (ABGs),
use the manual ABG requisition for recording results.

Nutrition Services: All diet orders need to be communicated to the central diet
office at 4890.

Manual requisitions should be stopped 36-60 minutes before the Cerner recovery
time, if information provided.

If the downtime exceeds 4hrs, Nursing and Rehabilitation Services will begin to
document all clinical data on existing manual forms and will continue for the
duration of the current shift.

e. Unscheduled Downtime Recovery:

vi.
Vii.

viii.

Xi.

If manual requisitions have already been forwarded to the appropriate department,
do not enter into Cerner. The department that has received the requisition will
enter the order into the system when it comes back up.

Except for Nutrition Services, all receiving Departments (i.e. Lab, Respiratory
Therapy (RT), Social Services, Rehab Services, Radiology, and Respiratory)
enter orders received from requisitions received during downtime. This includes
the manual ABG requisitions. The tracking number should be referenced in the
order comment field.

Nursing refers to the manual Lab Downtime Log and enters any lab orders not
sent down via a requisition during the downtime.

Nursing enters all other orders not sent to a department via a downtime requisition.
Respiratory charting is to be entered and processed in Cerner once the system is
up. Retain master copies and keep records of all order changes and updates
when system is back up.

Departments who use task lists shall update tasks as soon as possible to keep
lists current

During the Recovery Phase, Nursing should do a “Chart Check” to audit the orders
and task list, the same as the midnight chart check.

All paper documentation will be labeled “Downtime Documentation” and kept in the
medical record.

If the downtime is 4 hours or less, Nursing must enter all clinical documentation
back into the system. Priority is given to allergies, height, weight, 1&0Os, vitals and
meds given before clinical assessment data.

If the downtime is more than 4 hours, nursing must reenter the following:

1) Allergies

2) Height and weight,

3) 1&0s,

4) Vitals

5) Medications given

6) Admission Medication Reconciliation

7) Admission Patient Histories

All other documentation will remain on paper for the remainder of the shift.

2. Enterprise Registration Management (ERM): Registration Department
a. Scheduled Downtime Preparation:

Print census 15 minutes prior to the system scheduled down time for the current
snapshot of room and bed assignments.

105



| Patient Care Services Rolicy-Manual

Cerner Downtime (I1X-H)
Page 6 of 33

Vi.

vii.

viii.

Before downtime occurs, each Registration area will assemble their downtime
tools (including Downtime Binder) in a central location to begin assigning account
numbers as needed.

A pool of financial numbers (FIN) are to be used for downtime, these numbers
begin with a “9000" which differentiates them as a downtime encounter. Additional
numbers if needed should be requested from the IT Department at least 24 Hours
prior to the scheduled downtime.

An Enterprise Master Patient Index (EMPI) search will be made on the alternative
Medical Records database (Affinity) to check for possible medical record numbers
for patients. A new MRN will not be issued until the system has been restored and
the patient does not already have an MRN.

If a medical record number exists in the EMPI Search, it should be noted on the
downtime registration facesheet in the medical record number field.

All patient demographic, encounter specific and insurance information should be
entered on the facesheet.

Make multiple copies of the facesheet. One copy is for the nursing unit and/or
servicing department, and the other is to keep in the Registration Department for
entry when the system is active and for record keeping.

Preprint labels with downtime numbers preprinted on them.

Scheduled Downtime:

i
ii.
ifi.
iv.
V.
vi.

vii.

If an armband is needed for a new admission during downtime, affix one manually

written label to armband and apply to patient.

Manual ADT using downtime numbers. (9000 numbers) All patient demographic,

encounter specific and insurance information should be entered on the facesheet.

Make copies of orders, insurance cards, and any other data that would be useful

when the system is up.

Enter all information into the downtime ADT Log.

Have patient sign all necessary consent forms.

Keep all paperwork in one central location for re-entry when system is restored (if

over 4 hours).

Power Chart Maternity (PCM) — All Obstetrics (OB) Admissions paperwork will

be routed through Main Registration during normal business hours and

Emergency Department (ED) Registration during off hours regardless if

downtime is scheduled or unscheduled downtime.

1) A communication notice will be sent to the Registration area with the
patient information and admission details.

2) Registration will search the EMPI in the alternative system (Affinity) and
assign the downtime financial number and communicate to OB.

Scheduled Recovery:

iii.
iv.
V.
Vi.

viil.
viii.

Complete all admit, discharge, transfer data from downtime ADT logs.

ADT data to be re-entered in the following order: 1-Discharges, 2- Transfers, 3-

Admits.

All Admissions for OB must be entered through the Inpatient Downtime

Conversation.

Verify the WH TRACKING GROUP is entered during the admission to ensure

these patients will show up on the PCM Tracking Shell.

All Mothers admissions should be done prior to any Newborn Admissions.

1) The newborn admit should be completed through the Admit Newborn
Procedure which creates the link between mother and baby.

The dirty Bed Queue will be updated AFTER the ADT reconciliation.

The census will be balanced from downtime to current time and validated.

IT and the departments are to be notified when all downtime ADT is complete.

Unscheduled Downtime:

106



| Patient Care Services Policy-Manual

Cerner Downtime (IX-H)

Page 7 of 33

i. If an armband is needed for a new admission during downtime, affix one manual
label to armband and apply to patient.

ii. Manual ADT using downtime numbers. (9000 numbers)

ii. Make copies of orders, insurance cards, and any other data that would be useful
when the system is up.

iv. Enter all information into the downtime ADT Log.
2 Have patient sign all necessary consent forms.
vi. Keep all paperwork in one central location for re-entry when system is restored (if
over 4 hours).
e. Unscheduled Downtime Recovery:

i. Complete all admit, discharge, transfer data from downtime ADT logs.

ii. All Admissions for OB must be entered through the Downtime Conversation and
linked to the WH TRACKING GROUP so these patients will show up on the PCM
Tracking Shell.

iii. All Mother admissions should be done prior to any newborn admission.

1) The newborn admit should be completed through the Admit Newborn
Procedure which creates the link between mother and baby

iv. ADT data to be re-entered in the following order: 1-Discharges, 2- Transfers, 3-
Admits.
V. The dirty Bed Queue will be updated AFTER the ADT reconciliation.
vi. The census will be balanced from downtime to current time and validated.
vil. IT and the departments are to be notified when all downtime ADT is complete.
Enterprise Scheduling Management (ESM): Scheduling - Ancillary Departments
a. Scheduled Downtime Preparation:

i. Schedules will be printed out in advance of scheduled downtime, dependent on
the needs of each department, (e.g.: Rehab Services: 1 week, Radiology 48
hours)

b. Scheduled Downtime:

i. Schedulers will not schedule appointments, or view/print schedules during
downtime. When a patient calls to schedule an appointment, their information will
be taken, including the patient’s full name, birth date, phone number, name of
test/procedure needed, reason for exam and ordering physician. It will be
explained that they will be contacted as soon as possible when the system comes
back up.

C. Scheduled Recovery:

i. Enter patient’s information into system and either call with appointment times or
schedule the appointment as soon as possible, dependent upon the department’s
needs.

d. Unscheduled Downtime:

i. Schedulers will not schedule appointments, or view/print schedules during
downtime. When a patient calls to schedule an appointment, their information will
be taken, including the patient’s full name, birth date, phone number, name of
test/procedure needed, reason for exam and ordering physician. It will be
explained that they will be contacted as soon as possible when the system comes
back up.

e. Unscheduled Downtime Recovery:

i. Enter patient information into system and either call them with appointment times
or schedule the appointment as soon as possible, dependent upon the
department’s needs.

FirstNet: Emergency Department (ED)
a. Scheduled Downtime Preparation:

i. Organize pre-made downtime packets containing paper form and labels: Triage,
Nursing Assessment (which contains documentation of medications and
intravenous [IVs] fluids), Progress Notes, Cardiac Monitor Strip, after

107



| Patient Care Services Relicy-Manual

Cerner Downtime (1X-H)
Page 8 of 33

YAV
VAV TR
w-viii.
vikix.
vili-x.

care/Discharge instructions, for example; Universal Downtime Requisition, ADT
Log and Policy.

Unit Secretary/Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) to prepare Universal
Downtime Requisition forms which use unique tracking numbers.

Secure prescription pads for the ED Physicians.

Print a copy of the FirstNet Tracking Screen for an accurate patient list prior to
downtime.

Unit Secretary to retrieve the manual tracking board to be used by
ANM/Charge RN for use during downtime.

Unit Secretary will transfer the FirstNet data to the manual tracking board.
ED Registration to run in-house census and prepare Downtime Log Book.

Unit Secretary/EMT will maintain and update the ADT log.

Print additional patient labels for patients already fully registered in FirstNet.

ED shift supervisor, ANM or designee to communicate with Administrative
Supervisor (AS) to facilitate timely disposition of pending admissions.

Scheduled Downtime:

vi.

ED staff will revert to paper documentation on the forms listed above and others as

needed, e.g. Sedation, Transfusion on all patients in the department.

ED Physicians, Residents, and Physician Assistants will write orders for

medications and IVs on their paper chart and notify nursing of those orders.

Downtime events in the ED will follow the established procedures as outlined in

this document, i.e. utilization of the Universal Downtime Requisition. Additionally,

all Stat orders should be called to the departments.

ED physicians, Residents and Physician Assistants (PA’s) will dictate their notes

into Dragon or use transcription service. Scribes will document assessments and

notes in a word document on their tablets and will copy these documents into a

PowerNote when the system is back online.

ED Quick Reg will have stopped and backup forms will be used by Registration.

All registration will be done manually using Registration’s Cerner predetermined

bank of account numbers.

1) ED Registration will prepare a manual sheet of labels and armband for the
patient and place on the patient chart.

Nursing may have to manually add every patient with their Name and Financial

Number (FIN) into the Med Pyxis during downtime to remove medications.

Scheduled Recovery:

When FirstNet is back on line, ED Registration will ensure adequate staffing to

enter data back into the system.

New patients who arrived during the downtime period that are currently in the ED

will be entered by ED Registration - these patients will then appear on the FirstNet

Tracking board in their correct locations. Nursing is not to register any patients

into the system at this time, all registration to be done by ED Registration using

the following conversations:

1) ED Downtime Conversation — If the patient has an existing MRN, use this
conversation to quickly enter the patient into FirstNet. Enter the FIN (9000)
downtime number that was assigned.

2) Downtime Outpatient — If the patient does NOT have an existing MRN, use
this conversation and the system will automatically assign a MRN to the
patient. Enter the FIN — (9000) downtime number that was assigned.

3) Confirm patient displays on tracking shell in the correct location
a) If the patient does not display on tracking after the registration, use

the ED QUICK REG (Ambulance Icon) from the Registration Tab in
FirstNet and search and select the current downtime encounter
from the visit search window and verify the information and bed

108



| Patient Care Services Policy-Manual
Cerner Downtime (iX-H)
Page 9 of 33

Vi.

Vii.

assignment and select OK. This should force the patient to the
tracking shell.

4) Once all patients who are currently in the ED are registered, enter the
remaining patients who have been discharged and place them in the ED
Wait Room so that the ED Clinicians can complete their documentation and
discharge patient accordingly.

5) ED Registration will notify the ED shift supervisor, ANM or designee when
all patients have been entered back into FirstNet.

ED shift supervisor, ANM or designee confirms that patient names and locations

are correct on the FirstNet Tracking Screen and updates screen as indicated with

transfers and discharges.

All receiving Departments (i.e. Lab, RT, Radiology, Social Services, Rehab

Services) will enter orders from requisitions received during downtime referencing

the tracking number, (the owner of the original copy of the requisition will enter the

orders).

Nursing documentation will be entered back into FirstNet dependent upon the

length of the downtime for all patients still in the ED.

If downtime lasts less than one hour:

1) All clinical documentation shall be reentered in Cerner after the patient has
been entered into FirstNet.

If downtime lasts more than one hour:

1) Nursing will document on paper forms for the duration of the downtime and
no data will be back entered into the system when the system comes back
online.

2) During the Recovery Phase, each RN will do a chart check on his/her
designated patients to audit the orders and tasks assigned during
downtime for completion.

3) All patients that were discharged during the downtime period will need to
be discharged in the system by the Unit Secretary/EMT/RNs under the shift
supervisor or designee’s supervision.

4) Validate all downtime patients are in ADT (Affinity), appropriate
documentation is transcribed into Cerner and all Ancillary orders placed
during downtime are viewable in Cerner.

d. Unscheduled Downtime:

ki,

i,

jiiiv.

| V=V

| vi=vii.

ED Registration pulls Downtime Log Book and begins manual registrations using
established downtime numbers.

Unit Secretary to retrieve the manual tracking board to be used by
ANM/Charge RN for use during downtime. The Unit Secretary will gather all
patient information from Stations A, B, C and D and transfer it to the manual
tracking board to be used by the ANM/Charge RN.

ANM Charge will update the board for admissions and discharges during the
downtime processes.

ED staff will revert to paper documentation on the forms listed above and others as
needed, i.e. Sedation, Transfusion on all patients in the department.

ED Physicians, Residents, and Physician Assistants will write orders for
medications and IVs on their paper chart and notify nursing of those orders.
Downtime events in the ED will follow the established procedures as outlined in
this document, i.e. utilization of the Universal Downtime Requisition. Additionally,
all STAT orders should be called to the departments.

ED physicians, Residents and Physician Assistants will dictate their notes into
Dragon or use transcription service. Scribes will document assessments and notes
in a word document on their tablets and will copy these documents into a
PowerNote when the system is back online.

109



| Patient Care Services Pelicy-Manuat

Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 10 of 33

vikviii. ED Quick Reg will have stopped and backup forms will be used by Registration.

wviikix,

All registration will be done manually using Registration’s Cerner predetermined

bank of account numbers.

1) ED Registration will prepare a manual sheet of labels and armband for the
patient and place on the patient chart.

Nursing may have to manually add every patient with their name and Financial

Number into the Med Pyxis during downtime to remove medications.

Unscheduled Downtime Recovery:

vi.

Vii.

viii.

When FirstNet is back on line, EDR Registration will ensure adequate staffing to

enter data back into the system.

ED shift supervisor or designee or designee confirms that patient names and

locations are correct on the FirstNet Tracking Screen.

New patients who arrived during the downtime period that are currently in the ED

will be entered by ED Registration - these patients will then appear on the FirstNet

Tracking board in their correct locations. Nursing is not to register any patients into

the system at this time, all registration is to be done by ED Registration using the

following conversations:

1) ED Downtime Conversation — If the patient has an existing MRN, use this
conversation to quickly enter the patient into FirstNet. Enter the FIN (9000)
downtime number that was assigned.

2) Downtime Outpatient — If the patient does NOT have an existing MRN, use
this conversation and the system will automatically assign a MRN to the
patient. Enter the FIN — (9000) downtime number that was assigned.

3) Confirm patient displays on tracking shell in the correct location
a) If the patient does not display on tracking after the registration, use

the ED QUICK REG (Ambulance Icon) from the Registration Tab in
FirstNet and search and select the current downtime encounter
from the visit search window and verify the information and bed
assignment and select OK. This should force the patient to the
tracking shell.

4) Once all patients who are currently in the ED are registered, enter the
remaining patients who have been discharged and place them in the ED
Wait Room so that the ED Clinicians can complete their documentation and
discharge patient accordingly.

ED shift supervisor, ANM or designee confirms that patient names and locations

are correct on the FirstNet Tracking Screen and updates screen as indicated with

transfers and discharges.

All receiving Departments (i.e. Lab, RT, Radiology, Social Services, Rehab

Services) will enter orders from requisitions received during downtime referencing

the tracking number, (the owner of the original copy of the requisition will enter the

orders).

Nursing documentation will be entered back into FirstNet dependent upon the

length of the downtime.

If downtime lasts less than one hour:

1) Once the patient has been entered into FirstNet, all clinical documentation
will be reentered in Cerner.

If downtime lasts more than one hour:

1) Nursing will document on paper forms for the duration of the downtime and
no data will be back entered into the system when the system comes back
online.

2) During the Recovery Phase, each RN will do a chart check on his/her
designated patients to audit the orders and tasks assigned during
downtime for completion.

110



| Patient Care Services Rolicy Manual

Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 11 of 33

3) All patients that were discharged during the downtime period will need to
be discharged in the system by the unit secretary/EMT/RNs under the shift
supervisor or designee’s supervision.

4) Validate all downtime patients are in ADT (Affinity), appropriate
documentation is transcribed into Cerner and all ancillary orders placed
during downtime are viewable in Cerner.

5. Laboratory - Microbiology, General Lab Blood Bank and Blood Gases
a. Scheduled Downtime Preparation:
i. Have an adequate number of Cerner downtime barcode labels printed.
ii. Have an adequate number of reporting forms if manual forms are necessary.
if. Have phlebotomy review an “Unreceived List” for 8 hours in the past and future
and mark any pending orders.

iv. Lab to print the collection lists for the scheduled downtime after 2345 and include
the 0600 Collection List for the AM run.
b. Scheduled Downtime:
i. Nursing units will fax manual Downtime Requisitions to the fax in the Triage area
(4048).

i Specimens will come with a manual Universal Downtime Requisition on new
orders only. Specimens from orders prior to DT will be ordered from the
“Unreceived Specimen Log.” All specimen-labeling needs to be checked against
the written order information.

iif. One set of Cerner DT barcode labels should be used for each Universal Downtime
requisition. Place the label(s) on the appropriate manual requisition, specimen(s),
or worksheet for the procedure and all setup media, slides, aliquots, attached to
that procedure. Record specimen received date and time as well as set up date
and time on the requisition.

iv. For ongoing or manual procedures, use worksheets, work cards, Downtime Patient
Results form, and other forms located in the downtime files to record bench
workup. For online results use instrument printouts.

V. For dispensing blood products, Nurse/Clinician will present the Transfusion
Request Form handwritten with the Transfusion Service ID band number, patient’s
name, billing number and medical record number. Dispense information will be
documented on the Downtime Patient Results form.

vi. For reporting procedures, STAT results will be called to the units. Instrument
printouts and manual Reporting forms will be used to distribute results to the ED.
If there is an extended DT, this method of reporting will also be used for the
nursing units. See specific Laboratory Downtime procedures for further details.

vii. RCPs will continue to use the ABG Requisition Form to record results. A copy will
be made for later recovery.
C. Scheduled Recovery:

i. When Cerner is back on line, Lab orders will be entered using the Universal DT
requisition and the appropriate Cerner DT barcode accession numbers-#.

ii. Results will be entered into Cerner using the appropriate instrument printouts,
manual report forms, or worksheets.

iii. Blood product dispense information will be entered into Cerner.

iv. ABG results will be entered from the ABG Requisition form.

d. Unscheduled Downtime

i. Print the most current “Downtime Collection List” from LABPCO064+ located at the
Chemistry Technical Specialist’sRoint-of- Care-Coordinators desk across from
the blood gas analyzer adjasent-to-Friage-and give to the Phlebotomy team for
draws already entered in Cerner.

ii. Obtain the preprinted DT accession barcode labels.

ii. Have an adequate number of reporting forms if manual forms are necessary.

iv. Have phlebotomy review the last “Unreceived List” and mark any pending orders.

111



| Patient Care Services Poliey-Manual

Cerner Downtime (IX-H)

Page 12 of 33

V.

Vi.

vil.

viii.

Xi.

Nursing units will fax all Universal Downtime Requisitions for new orders to the
Triage fax (4048).

Specimens will come with a manual Universal Downtime Requisition on new
orders only. Specimens from orders prior to DT will be ordered from the
“Unreceived Specimen Log.” All specimen-labeling needs to be checked against
the written order information.

One set of Cerner DT barcode labels should be used for each Universal Downtime
Requisition. Place the label(s) on the appropriate manual requisition, specimen(s),
or worksheet for the procedure and all setup media, slides, aliquots, attached to
that procedure. Record specimen received date and time as well as set up date
and time on the requisition.

For ongoing or manual procedures, use worksheets, work cards, Downtime Patient
Results form to record bench workup. For on line procedures use instrument
printouts.

For dispensing blood products, Nurse/Clinician will present the Transfusion
Request Form handwritten with the Transfusion Service ID band number, patient’s
name, billing number and medical record number. Dispense information will be
documented on the Downtime Patient Results form.

For reporting procedures, STAT results will be called to the units. Manual
Reporting forms and instrument printouts will be used to distribute results to the
ED to the units. If there is an extended DT, this method will also be used for
reporting results to the nursing units. See specific Laboratory Department
procedures for further details.

RCPs will use the ABG Requisition form to record results. A copy will be made for
later recovery.

Unscheduled Downtime Recovery:

iii.
iv.

When Cerner is back on line, Lab orders will be entered using the Universal DT
requisition and the appropriate DT barcode accession number.

Results will be entered into Cerner using the appropriate instrument printouts,
manual report forms, worksheets,

Blood product dispense information will be entered into Cerner.

ABG results will be entered from the ABG Requisition form.

PharmNet: Pharmacy
Scheduled Downtime Preparation:

a.

iv.
V.

Call for one extra technician, one extra pharmacist depending on downtime
duration.

IT will force operation jobs to run extra MARs for all patients and pharmacists will
attempt to enter all orders prior to run.

Run IV batch early if due soon.

Pre-printed IV labels will be available for most commonly dispensed products.
Confirm the most recent MAR backup file has been received by RXMOPC05

Scheduled Downtime:

iv.

Turn on “Critical Override” at Pyxis “Profile” MedStations just before the system
goes down. Notify each profile nursing station, the Pharmacy Supervisor and/or
the Director of Pharmacy that the system is on “Critical Override.” Any new
medication orders not in the Pyxis MedStation will be scanned down to the
pharmacist by nursing.

Down time pharmacy labels will be completed manually by Pharmacy.

The responsible pharmacist will call down all new IVPB orders to the IV room.
This information will then be recorded on the MAR along with date/time and the
number of doses sent.

The IV room will generate 1V production off scanned orders

Scheduled Recovery:

When back on-line, ensure adequate pharmacist staff to enter orders.

112



| Patient Care Services Relicy-Manual

Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 13 of 33

ii. After new patients are admitted through the ADT system, pharmacists will begin to
input orders into PharmNet.

iii. Nursing staff to enter allergies, height, and weight on all new admits so the
pharmacist can complete medication order entry.

iv. Turn off “Critical Override” on all Pyxis “Profile” MedStations.

Unscheduled Downtime:

i. Turn on “Critical Override” at Pyxis “Profile” MedStations when the system goes
down. Notify each profile nursing station, the Pharmacy Supervisor and/or the
Director of Pharmacy that the system is on “Critical Override.” Any new
medication orders not in the Pyxis MedStation will be scanned down to the
pharmacist by nursing.

ii. Call for one extra technician, one extra pharmacist and adjust staffing accordingly
to workload and downtime duration.

iii. Orders for new admits will be recorded on a blank MAR located in the Pharmacy
Computer Downtime Manual.

iv. Downtime Rx labels will be completed manually by Pharmacy. Pre-printed IV
labels will be available for most commonly dispensed products.
V. The responsible pharmacist will call down all new IVPB orders to the IV room.

This information will then be recorded on the MAR along with date/time and the
number of doses sent.

vi. The IV room will generate |V production from the scanned orders

vii. Pharmacy will print a hard copy of the MAR from the MAR backup file on PC
RXMOPCO05 and send to the nursing unit. For extended downtime (over 24
hours), pharmacy will print a second hardcopy of the MAR from the MAR backup
file for the pharmacy to use and manually update each patient’s medication orders.

Unscheduled Downtime Recovery:

i. When back on-line, ensure adequate pharmacist staff to enter orders.

ii. After new patients are admitted through the ADT system, pharmacists will begin to
input orders into Pharmnet.

il Nursing staff to enter allergies, height, and weight on all new admits so the
pharmacist can complete medication order entry.

iv. Turn off “Critical Override” on all Pyxis “Profile” MedStations.

7. ProfileHIM: Medical Records/Health Information

a.

b.

Scheduled Downtime Preparation:

i. Medical Records will alert transcription team members of impending downtime.
Medical Records will post the Downtime dictation instructions on each unit.

Scheduled Downtlme

i. Physicians will continue dictating reports into the dictation system.

ii. Transcriptionists will continue transcribing reports into the transcription system,
(ADT information will be based upon information sent to the system prior to
downtime)

ii. Coding staff-will-utilize-the-3M-encoderin-stand-alone-meodewill be suspended as
documentation is not viewable.

Scheduled Recovery:

i. Cerner work queues will be tested and updated once all registration and discharge
transactions have been entered.

ii. Reports transcribed without patient demographic information will be reviewed; and

edited for viewing in PowerChart-and-routed-forcharting-on-the-recerd.

113



| Patient Care Services Policy-Manual
Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 14 of 33

iil. Each Prefile-functienapplication will be tested to ensure system integrity.
1) . k ) ion.
d. Unscheduled Downtime:
i. Charts will be logged out of Medical Records on a manual log to identify location to
which the chart has been taken.
ii. Physicians will continue to dictate reports into the dictation system.
1) If the dictation system is down, dictation is completed via back up dictation
| line-a+-1-866-444-7522. Handheld dictation units are available if phone
lines are down.
iii. Transcriptionists will continue transcribing reports (ADT information will be based
| upon information sent prior to downtime).
1) Transcribed reports will queue up in the transcription to Cerner interface
until the system is on-line.
| iv. Coding staff will be on standby.

V. Preparation of the record for scanning will continue.
vi. Analysis /Assignment of deficiencies to the physicians will be suspended until the
system is available.
e. Unscheduled Downtime Recovery:

i. ADT interface to Transcription system will be tested.

i Interface to Cerner will be updated to pass transcribed reports to Powerchart.

iii. Each Prefilefunctionapplication will be tested to ensure system integrity.
1) harts-man outo i i

iv. Master Patient Index (MPI) specfalist to review MRN’s assigned during
downtime to confirm any combined MRN'’s needed.
8. RadNet: Radiology/imaging Department

a. Scheduled Downtime Preparation:
i. Print schedules for downtime plus 48 hours.

b. Scheduled Downtime:

i. When Cerner is down, Registration will look up patients in Affinity to find a medical
record number for admitted patients. If no medical record number exists, the
patient will be assigned a “downtime medical record number.” A handwritten
facesheet will be completed by registration for each patient.

i The ED Unit Secretaries and ED staff will call STAT radiology exam orders to the
department and will send the separate Universal Downtime Requisition for each
order with a unique tracking number. Outpatients will come from admitting with
their hand written face sheet.

iii. The technologist will substitute the full unique tracking number located on the
universal downtime requisition as the PACS ID. The technologist will enter the
downtime PACS ID into all digital modalities. Only one down time PACS ID may
be used per exam.

iv. The technologist will perform the exam and enter the “begin” and “end” times on
the downtime requisition, indicate if IV contrast was used, the amount of contrast,
and enter his/her full name where indicated.

kv. Completed exam downtime requisitions will be delivered to the film library
for radiologist dictation. The radiologist will dictate the Universal Downtime
number into the report.

wvi.  For existing Radiology requisitions dDictation will be completed as usual by
entering the medical record into the dictation system.

vkvil.  Transcription will use Word to transcribe dictated reports using the medical record
received from the dictation system.

C. Scheduled Recovery:
i. Wait for ADT feed.
i Delete any duplicate orders.

114



| Patient Care Services Pelisy-Manual
Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 15 of 33

iii. Enter and complete orders in Cerner using the unique Universal Downtime
Requisition tracking number and reference the FIN/Account Number (will be a
9000 number for downtime).

iv. Transcription will paste transcribed results from Word into Cerner and validate
accuracy.

V. The PACS supervisor will reconcile all downtime PACS ID numbers with the
Cerner PACS ID in the PACS system.

Vi. Reference Radiology Department specific policies for detailed downtime workflow.

d. Unscheduled Downtime:

i. When Cerner is down, Registration will look up patients in Affinity to find a medical
record number for admitted patients. If no medical record number exists, the
patient will be assigned a “downtime medical record number.” A handwritten
facesheet will be completed for each patient.

ii. The Unit Secretaries and ED will call STAT diagnostic imaging exam orders to the
department and will send the separate Universal Downtime Requisition for each
order with a unique tracking number.

iii. Outpatients will come from admitting with their hand written face sheet.

iv. The technologist will substitute the full unique tracking number located on the
universal downtime requisition as the PACS ID. The technologist will enter the
downtime PACS ID into all digital modalities. Only one down time PACS ID may
be used per exam.

| V. The technologist will perform the exam and enter the “begin” and “end” times on
the downtime requisition, indicate if IV contrast was use, the amount of contrast,
and enter his/her full name where indicated.

Hvi. Completed exam downtime requisitions will be delivered to the film library
for radiologist dictation. The radiologist will dictate the Universal Downtime
number into the report.

| wvVii. Dictation will be completed as usual by entering the medical record into the Lanier
dictation system.

vviii. Transcription will use Word to transcribe dictated reports using the medical record
received from the dictation system.

e. Unscheduled Downtime Recovery:

i. Wait for ADT feed.

i. Delete any duplicate orders.

iii. Enter and complete orders in Cerner using the unique Universal Downtime
Requisition tracking number and reference the FIN/Account Number (will be a
9000 number for downtime).

iv. Transcription will paste transcribed results from Word into Cerner and validate
accuracy.
V. The PACS supervisor will reconcile all downtime PACS ID number with the Cerner
PACS ID in the PACS system.
vi. Reference Radiology Department specific policies for detailed downtime workfiow.
9. Surginet: Surgery Scheduling, Pre-Op and Intraoperative Documentation
a. Scheduled Downtime Preparation:

i. Have an adequate number of preoperative assessment, intra-operative
worksheets, implant records, downtime schedule book and labels for each case /
procedure made up for a minimum of one hundred-fifty (150) cases.

i Routine scheduling is not done during Surginet downtime. Surgery schedulers will
call the surgeon’s offices when the system is back up and running.

iii. Daily back-up of the next 3 months schedule is saved electronically to a USB

drive.
\ iv. Sterile Processing Department (SPD) maintains a hard copy file of preference
cards accessible to the OR staff.
b. Scheduled Downtime:

115



| Patient Care Services Relicy-Manual
Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 16 of 33

i. The circulating nurse will document the intra-operative phase of the cases or
procedures on a hardcopy of intraoperative forms.

ii. Implants will be documented on a hardcopy of the implant record.

iii. Copies of the intra-operative forms and implant records will be placed on the
patient record until the system is back up and running.

iv. TCMC will not be able to schedule appointments, view or print any Surginet
Surgery schedules during the downtime.

V. Manual scheduling will go into effect.

vi. Add-on/urgent cases shall be manually scheduled during downtime. Schedule the

cases in Surginet when the system is back up. Routine scheduling of elective
cases is not done during Surginet downtime.

vii. Save copies of all downtime operative records for later entry (using late entry
protocol) and charging.
viii.  All peri-operative assessments and clinical case data (including implant

information), will be manually documented during the Surginet downtime on a hard
copy of the forms.

iX. Charges will be manually entered into Affinity during downtime on a daily basis.

C. Scheduled Recovery:

i. Enter future scheduled patients and data from the manual hard copy into the
Surginet system.

i, Print a new schedule if needed and validate the following: all manual schedules
(Date of Procedure; OR Room Assigned, Start Time, Estimated OR Time,
Patient's Name, Birth date, Social Security Number, Patient’s home phone
number, Pre-Operative Diagnosis, Procedure Scheduled, Surgeon, Name of
Assistants, Special Equipment Needs, Name of Office Staff/Surgeon Scheduling,
Insurance Information and the Initials of the Scheduling Secretary that documents
the information etc) to the Surginet Schedule. Ensure there are no scheduling
conflicts with rooms, equipment or supplies.

ii. Circulating nurses for the cases will back enter all clinical data for cases that
occurred during the downtime following “Late Entry Protocol” into the Surginet

System.
iv. Notify the physicians’ office staffs that system is back online and verify that all
patient information; procedures, dates and times are accurate.
d. Unscheduled Downtime:

i. The circulating nurse will document the intra-operative phase of the cases or
procedures on a hardcopy of the intra-operative forms.

ii. Implants will be documented on a hardcopy of the implant record.

iii. Copies of the intra-operative forms and implant records will be placed on the
patient record until the system is back up and running.

iv. TCMC will not be able to schedule appointments, view or print any Surginet
Surgery schedules during the downtime.

V. Manual scheduling will go into effect.

vi. Add-on/urgent cases shall be manually scheduled during downtime. Schedule the

cases in Surginet when the system is back up. Routine scheduling of elective
cases is not done during Surginet downtime.

vii. Save copies of all downtime operative records for later entry (using late entry
protocol) and charging.
viii. ~ All peri-operative assessments and clinical case data (including implant

information), will be manually documented during the Surginet downtime on a hard
copy of the forms.
iX. Charges will be manually entered into Affinity during downtime on a daily basis.
e. Unscheduled Downtime Recovery:
i. Enter future scheduled patients and data from the manual hard copy into the
Surginet system.

116



| Patient Care Services Pslicy-Manual

Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 17 of 33

ii. Print a new schedule if needed and validate the following: all manual schedules
(Date of Procedure; OR Room Assigned, Start Time, Estimated OR Time,
Patient’s Name, Birth Date, Social Security Number, Patient's home phone
number, Pre-Operative Diagnosis, Procedure Scheduled, Surgeon, Name of
Assistants, Special Equipment Needs, Name of Office Staff/Surgeon Scheduling,
Insurance Information and the Initials of the Scheduling Secretary that documents
the information etc) to the Surginet Schedule. Ensure there are no scheduling
conflicts with rooms, equipment, or supplies.

ii. Circulating nurses for the cases will back enter all clinical data for cases that
occurred during the downtime following “Late Entry Protocol” into the Surginet
System.

iv. Notify the physicians’ office staffs that system is back online and verify all patient
information; procedures, dates, and times are accurate.

| 10. Electrocardiogram (ECGEKG) Powerchart: ECGEKGs

a. Scheduled Downtime Preparation
| i. 30 minutes prior to downtime, download the modality worklist on all the ECGEKG
carts.

b. Scheduled Downtime
i. Continue acquiring and transmitting ECGs during Millennium downtime.
I ii. If the order staffyyeu need to acquire is already on the cart's worklist, acquire the
ECG with the appropriate order and transmit.
| ii. If staffyou cannot download orders to the ECG cart, enter the patient data
manually on the cart and transmit.
1) Print 3 copies of every ECG acquired during downtime
a) 1% copy goes to ordering physician for preliminary
interpretation/viewing. Critical result notification process remains
unchanged (ECG technicianRT will still add a comment on the
ECG documenting the clinician they communicated critical results
to).
b) 2nd copy goes to reading cardiologist bin
c) 3" copy is kept by the ECG technicianRespiratory-Therapist.
Retain these printed ECGs until downtime is over. They will be used
to ensure all ECGs acquired during downtime have orders placed
and match the order.
d) Be sure to attach an ADT (patient packet) sticker to each printed
copy of the ECG.
C. Scheduled Recovery - when Millennium comes back up:

i. All ECGs that were transmitted during the downtime will be announced to Cerner
and will either auto-match (if acquired with an order) or be available on the manual
match list for matching to the order.

ii. When yeustaff are notified that downtime is over, log into PowerChart.

ii. Review each printed ECG copy yeustaff acquired during downtime.

1) If an order existed prior to downtime, verify that theyeur transmitted ECG
auto-matched and completed the order.
| 2) If no order exists for one of theyour printed ECGs, place an order for it
using the ADT patient information that is on the patient’s sticker. Then,
verify that the ECG yeustaff transmitted during downtime is available on
the ECG match list, and match it to the order and finish theyour ECG
process (right-click and stamp staffyour name on it as normal).
iv. ECG technicianRespiratery-Admin will go to Cardiologist reading bin and collect
all paper ECGs that were submitted to the Cardiologist during downtime.
1) ECG technicianRespiraterr-Admin will reconcile all signed paper ECGs
with their corresponding order and matched ECG images to be sure that all

117



| Patient Care Services Rolicy-Manuat

Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 18 of 33

signed paper ECGs have orders placed and have been matched to their
digital ECG images.

2) ECG technicianRespiratery-Admin will then return the signed paper ECGs
to the reading Cardiologist(s) and direct them to re-sign the digital copy for
each printed ECG from their PowerChart ECG worklist.

3) Any unsigned paper ECGs will be discarded by the ECG
technicianRespiratery-Admin and the reading Cardiologist will read them
from their PowerChart ECG worklist as normal.

d. Unscheduled Downtime
i. Continue acquiring and transmitting ECGs during Millennium downtime.
[ i, If the order youstaff need to acquire is already on the cart's worklist, acquire the

ECG with the appropriate order and transmit.

| iii. If youstaff cannot download orders to the ECG cart, enter the patient data
manually on the cart and transmit.
1) Print 3 copies of every ECG acquired during downtime
a) 1% copy goes to ordering physician for preliminary
interpretation/viewing. Critical result notification process remains
| unchanged (ECG technicianRT will still add a comment on the

ECG documenting the clinician they communicated critical results
to).

b) 2nd copy goes to reading cardiologist bin

c) 3" copy is kept by the ECG technicianRespiratory-Therapist.
Retain to these printed ECGs until downtime is over. They will be
used to ensure all ECGs acquired during downtime have orders
placed and match the order.

d) Be sure to attach an ADT (patient packet) sticker to each printed
copy of the ECG.
e. Unscheduled Downtime Recovery - when Millennium comes back up:

i. All ECGs that were transmitted during the downtime will be announced to Cerner
and will either auto-match (if acquired with an order) or be available on the manual
match list for matching to the order.

ii. When yeustaff are notified that downtime is over, log into PowerChart.

ii. Review each printed ECG copy yeustaff acquired during downtime.

1) If an order existed prior to downtime, verify that theyeur transmitted ECG
auto-matched and completed the order.
| 2) If no order exists for one of theyeur printed ECGs, place an order for it
using the ADT patient information that is on the patient’s sticker. Then,
verify that the ECG yeustaff transmitted during downtime is available on
the ECG match list, and match it to the order and finish theyeur ECG
process (right-click and stamp staffyour name on it as normal).

iv. ECG technicianRespiratory-Admin will go to Cardiologist reading bin and collect
all paper ECGs that were submitted to the Cardiologist during downtime.

| 1) ECG technicianRespiratery-Admin will reconcile all signed paper ECGs
with their corresponding order and matched ECG images to be sure that all
signed paper ECGs have orders placed and have been matched to their
digital ECG images.

| 2) ECG technicianRespiratory-Admin will then return the signed paper ECGs
to the reading Cardiologist(s) and direct them to re-sign the digital copy for
each printed ECG from their PowerChart ECG worklist.

| 3) Any unsigned paper ECGs will be discarded by the ECG
technicianRespiratery-Admin and the reading Cardiologist will read them
from their PowerChart ECG worklist as normal.

| f. ECGEKG Downtime Scenarios

i. All of Millennium is down

118



| Patient Care Services Pelisy-Manual
Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 19 of 33

| a) GantCannot place ECG orders
b) CantCannot download orders to cart
c) Car'tCannot match ECGs

. d) Gan'tCannot unmatch ECGs
e) CartCannot view or sign ECGs

2) Downtime procedure:
a) Enter patient information manually at the cart.
b) Continue acquiring and transmitting ECGs as normal.
c) Print any stat/critical ECGs and deliver to attending physician, since

these will not be viewable in the chart until Millennium comes back
up and they can be matched to their orders.

I d) Critical result notification process remains unchanged (ECG
technicianRT will still add a comment on the ECG documenting the
clinician they communicated critical resuits to).

e) When Millennium comes back up, all ECGs that were transmitted
during the downtime will be announced to Cerner and will either
auto-match (if acquired with an order) or be available on the manual
match list for matching to the order. At this point, they will be
viewable in PowerChart/FirstNet.

f) Print extra copies of all ECGs acquired during downtime, and place
the ADT sticker/label on the ECG. These ECGs will be used to
verify that all ECGs were transmitted and matched after we come
out of downtime.

g) Upon downtime completion (or cessation), ECG
technicianRespiratery-Department-will place orders for all ECGs
acquired during downtime, so that the transmitted ECGs can be
matched to the orders.

h) Any paper ECGs that are interpreted by Cardiologists during
downtime will be collected by ECG technicianRespiratory
Administrator at end of downtime. ECG technicianRespiratory
Admin will reconcile all signed paper ECGs with their corresponding
order and matched ECG images. ECG technicianRespiratory
Admin will then return the paper ECGs to the reading
Cardiologist(s) and direct them to sign the digital copy that is now
available in their PowerChart ECG worklist.

3) Not impacted:

a) Acquiring and transmitting ECGs.

| i MGate server is down\

1) Impact:
a) CantCannot download new orders to cart.
b) CantCannot transmit ECGs to Cerner.
2) Downtime procedure:
a) Continue to ask physicians to place orders for ECGs, even though

| yoeustaff can‘tcannot download the orders to the cart or transmit
the ECGs to Cerner for matching. This way orders will be present
and ready to match to ECGs when they can be transmitted.

b) Enter patient information manually at the cart.

c) Print any stat/critical ECGs and deliver to attending physician, since
these will not be viewable in the chart until the MGate comes back
up and the ECGs can be transmitted and matched to their orders.

d) Older ECGs that are already stored and matched can still be
viewed and signed as normal.

119



| Patient Care Services Rslicy-Manual
Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 20 of 33

e) When MGate comes back up, transmit all ECGs that were acquired
during the downtime from the cart directory. Manually match the
ECGs to their orders.
3) Not impacted:
a) Placing ECG orders.
b) Viewing and Signing ECGs already transmitted to Cerner.
c) Matching ECGs.
d) Unmatching ECGs.
11. Fetalink: Fetal Monitoring System
a. Scheduled Downtime Preparation
i. Planned Downtime will be communicated to Labor & Delivery in Advance.
i. Labor & Delivery to finalize and disassociate all Fetalink episodes 15 minutes prior
to scheduled downtime.
iii. For scheduled maintenance every attempt is made to perform the maintenance
during off-peak times.

iv. Labor & Delivery will staff the unit for 1:1 monitoring during Fetalink Downtime.
V. Labor & Delivery Staff will ensure all fetal monitors in use have paper strips
printing.
b. Scheduled Downtime

i. For Cerner scheduled downtime, finalize and disassociate all Fetalink episodes for
patients not currently being monitored.

ii. Notification of downtime mode for users already signed into Fetalink is given by
displaying the words “Downtime Mode” in the status bar of Fetalink.

iii. A warning message is given upon launching the application that “Fetalink is
currently in downtime mode. Contact theysur system administrator for more
information.” Some features are unavailable at this time.

iv. During downtime user will have the ability to:
1) Central/Bedside Monitor Patients.
2) Make Annotations (including reason for monitoring).
a) Annotations made during downtime post when Cerner goes back up
as long as the patient is associated to the fetal monitoring episode.
b) If Cerner goes back up and the patient was not already associated

to the monitoring episode, the system will send the data to Cerner
once the patient is associated to the fetal monitoring episode.

V. The following features are unavailable during Cerner downtime:
1) Finalize Episode, Patient Archive, and printing Options are disabled.
2) Extended view displays up to 24 hours of patient history data.
3) Archive perspective is unavailable.
4) An unassociated patient can be monitored, but not associated to a device.
5) Strip annotation is available, but the annotations do not post to Cerner until

the system is back up.
C. Scheduled Downtime Recovery

i. Once maintenance is complete the system is brought back online and verified by

IT.

ii. Labor and Delivery staff will be notified once Fetalink is back up.
iii. Utilize P2DA to retroactively associate and finalize and/or disassociate patients to

and from fetal monltors aeeedeg—te—ﬁae—hmes—deeumented—en-the

iv. Accurate documentation on the paper log during downtime is critical when
retroactively associating patients.

v. Users should associate and disassociate patients from fetal monitors in order of
earliest time to latest time.

vi. When multiple patients are associated to one monitor during Cerner downtime

user may be asked a “question” to confirm that the user wants to override an

120



| Patient Care Services Pelicy-Manual
Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 21 of 33

episode that is associated to a different patient. Ensure the time yeustaff are
entering is correct and say “Yes” to continue.

vii. Launch a new episode of Fetalink.

viii. Ensure patients are associated to correct fetal monitor.

iX. Utilize P2DA/Scanner to associate new patients to fetal monitor.
d. Unscheduled Downtime

i. Notify Manager, Assistant Nurse Manager or designee or in off hours the
Administrative Supervisor erPatientFloew-Goerdinaterto communicate event to IT.

ii. Labor & Delivery Assistant Nurse Manager designee will make every attempt to
staff unit to 1:1 ratio and will cancel all elective procedures until Fetalink is back
up.

ii. Labor & Delivery Assistant Nurse Manager or designee will stay in contact with IT
for updates on progress of downtime repairs.

iv. Notification of downtime mode for users already signed into Fetalink is given by
displaying the words “Downtime Mode” in the status bar of Fetalink.
V. A warning message is given upon launching the application that “Fetalink is

currently in downtime mode. Contact theyour system administrator for more
information.” Some features are unavailable at this time.

vi. During downtime user will have the ability to:
1) Central/Bedside Monitor Patients.
2) Make annotations (including reason for monitoring).
a) Annotations made during downtime post when Cerner goes back up
as long as the patient is associated to the fetal monitoring episode.
3) If Cerner goes back up and the patient was not already associated to the

monitoring episode, the system will send the data to Cerner once the
patient is associated to the fetal monitoring episode.

vii. The following features are unavailable during Cerner downtime:
1) Finalize Episode, Patient Archive, and printing Options are disabled.
2) Extended view displays up to 24 hours of patient history data.
3) Archive perspective is unavailable.
4) An unassociated patient can be monitored, but not associated to a device.
5) Strip annotation is available, but the annotations do not post to Cerner until
the system is back up.
e. Unscheduled Downtime Recovery

i. System is brought back online and verified by IT.
ii. Labor and Delivery staff will be notified once Fetalink is back up.
iii. Utilize P2DA to retro actively associate and finalize and/or disassociate patients to

and from fetal monitors.-according-to-the-times-decumented-on-the

BowepClhertl=atalinlc Dovsrtimaleg,

iv. Accurate documentation on the paper log during downtime is critical when
retroactively associating patients.

V. Users should associate and disassociate patients from fetal monitors in order of
earliest time to latest time.

vi. When multiple patients are associated to one monitor during Cerner downtime

user may be asked a “Question” to confirm that they user does want to override an
episode that is associated to a different patient. Ensure the time yeustaff are
entering is correct and say “Yes” to continue.

vii. Launch a new episode of Fetalink.
viii. Ensure patients are associated to correct fetal monitor.
ix. Utilize P2DA/Scanner to associate new patients to fetal monitor.
12. Interventional Radiology (IR)
a. Scheduled Downtime Preparation:

i. Organize pre-made downtime packets containing paper form and labels:

121



| Patient Care Services Pelicy-Manual
Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 22 of 33

1) Nursing Assessment (which contains documentation of Meds and
IVs), Progress Notes, Cardiac Monitor Strip, after care/discharge
instructions, for example; Universal Downtime Requisition.

ii. Charge nurse will print current IR census one hour before downtime.

b. Scheduled Downtime:

i. IR staff will revert to paper documentation on the forms listed above and
others as needed, e.g. Sedation, Transfusion on all patients in the
department.

ii. IR physicians; and Allied Health ProfessionalsPhysician-Assistants
(AHP) will write orders for medications and IVs on their paper chart and
notify nursing of those orders. Downtime events in IR will follow the
established procedures in this document, i.e. utilization of the
Universal Downtime Requisition.

1) Additionally, all Stat orders should be called to the departments.

iii. IR physicians and AHPs Rhysician-Assistants will dictate their notes into
Dragon or use the transcription service.

iv. Registration will prepare a manual sheet of labels and armband for the
patient and place on the patient chart.

V. Nursing may have to manually add every patient with their Name and
Financial Number (FIN) into the Med Pyxis during downtime to remove
medications.

Vi. For patients that are transferred to designated locations e.g., SPRA,

PACU or ICU, the IR RN will give the receiving department RN a hands-
off report, and the downtime patient chart.
c. Scheduled Recovery:

i. New patients who arrived during the downtime period that are currently in
IR will remain on downtown forms.

iii. All patients that were discharged during the downtime period will need
to be discharged in the system by the RN or Technologist. The paper
chart will go down to Medical Records.

iii. Radiology techs will enter orders from requisitions received during
downtime referencing the tracking number, (the owner of the original
copy of the requisition will enter the orders).

iv. Nursing will document on paper forms for the duration of the downtime and
no data will be back entered into the system when the system comes back
online.

d. Unscheduled Downtime:

i. Registration pulls Downtime Log Book and begins manual registrations
using established downtime numbers.

iii. IR staff will revert to paper documentation on the forms listed above and
others as needed, i.e. Sedation, Transfusion on all patients in the department.

iii. IR physicians; and AHPsPhysician-Assistants will write orders for
medications and IVs on their paper chart and notify nursing of those
orders.

iv. Downtime events in the IR will follow the established procedures as
outlined in this document, i.e. utilization of the Universal Downtime
Requisition. Additionally, all STAT orders should be called to the
departments.

V. IR physicians; and AHPs Physician-Assistants will dictate their notes into
Dragon or use transcription service.

vi. Registration will prepare a manual sheet of labels and armband for the
patient and place on the patient chart. All registration will be done manually
using Registration's Cerner predetermined bank of account numbers.

122



| Patient Care Services Policy-Manual

Cerner Downtime (1X-H)

Page 23 of 33
vii. Nursing may have to manually add every patient with their name and
Financial Number into the Med Pyxis during downtime to remove
medications.
e. Unscheduled Downtime Recovery:

i. New patients who arrived during the downtime period that are currently in IR
will remain downtown forms. All patients that were discharged during the
downtime period will need to be discharged in the system by the RN or
Technologist. The paper chart will go down to Medical Records.

ii. Radiology Techs will enter orders from requisitions received during
downtime referencing the tracking number, (the owner of the original copy
of the requisition will enter the orders).

iii. Nursing will document on paper forms for the duration of the downtime and no
data will be back entered into the system when the system comes back online.

13. Cardiology Department

a. Scheduled Downtime Preparation:
i. Print schedules for downtime.

b. Scheduled Downtime:

i. When Cerner is down, Registration will look up patients in Affinity to find a
medical record number for admitted patients. if no medical record number
exists, the patient will be assigned a "downtime medical record number.” A
handwritten facesheet will be completed by registration for each patient.

ii. The ED Unit Secretaries and ED staff will call STAT cardiology exam orders
to the department and will send the separate Universal Downtime
Requisition for each order with a unique tracking number. Outpatients will
come from Admitting with their hand written face sheet.

iii. The technologist will substitute the full unique tracking number located on
the Universal Downtime Requisition as the downtime medical record
number. The technologist will enter the downtime medical record number
into all digital modalities. Only one downtime medical record may be used
per exam.

iv. The technologist will perform the exam and enter the "begin" and "end"
times on the downtime requisition, indicate if IV contrast was used, the
amount of contrast, and enter his/her full name where indicated.

V. Dictation will be completed as usual by entering the medical record
into the dictation system.
vi. Transcription will use Word to transcribe dictated reports using the
medical record received from the dictation system.
c. Scheduled Recovery:

i. Delete any duplicate orders.

ii. Enter and complete orders in Cerner using the unique Universal Downtime.

iii. Requisition tracking number and reference the FIN/Account Number (will be
a 9000 number for downtime).

iv. Transcription will paste transcribed results from Word into Cerner and
validate accuracy.

V. Reference Cardiology Department specific policies for detailed
downtime workflow.

d. Unscheduled Downtime:

i. When Cerner is down, Registration will look up patients in Affinity to
find a medical record number for admitted patients. If no medical record
number exists, the patient will be assigned a "downtime medical record
number.” A handwritten facesheet will be completed for each patient.

ii. Outpatients will come from admitting with their hand written face sheet.

iii. The technologist will substitute the full unique tracking number located on
the Universal Downtime Requisition as the downtime medical record

123



| Patient Care Services Roli
Cerner Downtime (IX-H)

Page 24 of 33

14.

iv.

V.

vi.

number. The technologist will enter the downtime medical record number
into all digital modalities. Only one downtime medical record number may

be used per exam.

The technologist will perform the exam and enter the "begin" and "end"
times on the downtime requisition, indicate if IV contrast was use, the
amount of contrast, and enter his/her full name where indicated.

Dictation will be completed as usual by entering the medical record into the

Lanier dictation system.

Transcription will use Word to transcribe dictated reports using the medical

record received from the dictation system.

Unscheduled Downtime Recovery:

v,

Delete any duplicate orders.

Enter and complete orders in Cerner using the unique Universal Downtime
Requisition tracking number and reference the FIN/Account Number (will be

a 9000 number for downtime).

Transcription will paste transcribed results from Word into Cerner and
validate accuracy.

Reference Cardiology Department specific policies for detailed downtime
workflow.

Cardiac Cath Lab (CCL)
Scheduled Downtime Preparation:

a.

Organize pre-made downtime packets containing paper form and labels:

Nursing Assessment (which contains documentation of Meds and IVs),

Progress Notes, Cardiac Monitor Strip, after care/Discharge instructions, for

example; and Universal Downtime Requisition.
Charge nurse will print current CCL census one hour before downtime.

Scheduled Downtime:

iv.

vi.

vii.

viii.

CCL staff will revert to paper documentation on the forms listed above
and others as needed, e.g. Sedation, Transfusion on all patients in the
department. CCL will continue Hemodynamics charting in McKesson,
will print a copy for the nursing units.

CCL Physicians will write orders for medications and IVs on their paper
chart and notify nursing of those orders.

Downtime events in CCL will follow the established procedures as
outlined in this document, i.e. utilization of the Universal Downtime
Requisition.

1) Additionally, all Stat orders should be called to the departments.
CCL physicians will dictate their notes into Dragon or use
transcription service.

Registration will prepare a manual sheet of labels and armband for the
patient and place on the patient chart.

Nursing may have to manually add every patient with their Name and
Financial Number (FIN) into the Med Pyxis during downtime to remove
medications

Patients that are transferred to designated locations e.g., SPRA, PACU
or Unit the CCL RN will give the receiving department RN a hands-off
report, and the downtime patient chart.

The technologist will substitute the full unique tracking number located
on the universal downtime requisition as the downtime medical record
number. The technologist will enter the downtime medical record
number into all digital modalities, only one downtime medical record
number may be used per exam.

124



| Patient Care Services Pelicy-Manrual
Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 25 of 33

ix. The technologist will perform the exam and enter the "begin" and
"end" times on the downtime requisition, indicate if IV contrast was
used, the amount of contrast, and enter his/her full name.

X. Dictation will be completed as usual by entering the medical record
into the dictation system.
Xi. Transcription will use Word to transcribe dictated reports using the
medical record received from the dictation system.
c. Scheduled Recovery:

i. New patients who arrived during the downtime period that are currently in
CCL will remain on downtown forms and in McKesson hemodynamic
system.

iii. All patients that were discharged during the downtime period will need to be
discharged in the system by the RN or Technologist. The paper chart will go
down to Medical Records.

iii. Radiology techs will enter orders from requisitions received during
downtime referencing the tracking number, (the owner of the original copy
of the requisition will enter the orders).

iv. Enter and complete orders in Cerner using the unique Universal Downtime
Requisition tracking number and reference the FIN/Account Number
(will be a 9000 number for downtime).

V. Transcription will paste transcribed results from Word into Cerner and
validate accuracy.
Vi. Nursing will document on downtime forms and in McKesson for the duration of

the downtime and no data will be back entered into the system when the system
comes back online.
d. Unscheduled Downtime:

i. Registration pulls Downtime Log Book and begins manual registrations
using established downtime numbers.

ii. CCL staff will revert to paper documentation on the forms listed above and
others as needed, i.e. Sedation, Transfusion on all patients in the department.
Will continue to document hemodynamics in McKesson.

iii. CCL Physicians, will write orders for medications and IVs on their paper chart
and notify nursing of those orders.

iv. Downtime events in the CCL will follow the established procedures as
outlined in this document, i.e. utilization of the Universal Downtime
Requisition. Additionally, all STAT orders should be called to the

departments.

V. CCL physicians, will dictate their notes into Dragon or use the transcription
service.

vi. Registration will prepare a manual sheet of labels and armband for the

patient and place on the patient chart. All registrations will be done
manually using Registration's Cerner predetermined bank of account

numbers.

vii. Nursing may have to manually add every patient with their name and
Financial Number into the Med Pyxis during downtime to remove
medications.

e. Unscheduled Downtime Recovery:

i. New patients who arrived during the downtime period that are currently in
CCL will remain downtown forms.

ii. All patients that were discharged during the downtime period will need
to be discharged in the system by the RN or Technologist. The paper
chart will go down to Medical Records.

125



| Patient Care Services Policy-Manual

Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 26 of 33

4215. BMDI:
b-a.

&b.

d-c.

ed.

iiii. Radiology techs will enter orders from requisitions received during
downtime referencing the tracking number, (the owner of the original copy
of the requisition will enter the orders).

iv. Enter and complete orders in Cerner using the unique Universal Downtime
V. Requisition tracking number and reference the FIN/Account Number

(will be a 9000 number for downtime).
vi. Transcription will paste transcribed results from Word into Cerner and

validate accuracy.

%vii. Nursing will document on paper forms for the duration of the downtime and
no data will be back entered into the system when the system comes back
online.

Bedside Medical Device Integration

Scheduled Downtime Preparation

i. Nursing Manager will ensure each patient has the appropriate unit specific
barcoded flow sheet.

i Nursing will retrieve all current BMDI clinical data 15 minute prior to the system
down time. Nursing is not required to disassociate the Devices during the
downtime.

Scheduled Downtime

i. If downtime is more than 4 hours; clinical data will be tracked on the unit specific
flow sheet for the duration for the current shift. If the downtime is less than 4 hours,
electronic documentation will be completed upon recovery of the system.

Scheduled Downtime Recovery

i. When back on-line, nursing will associate the newly admitted patients to the
appropriate devices in order to start data collection.

i When back on-fine nursing will ensure patients are associated with the appropriate
devices. In the event the patient is not associated, nursing will reassociate to the
appropriate devices.

iii. H-the-downtime-is-4-hours-orless,-ANursing must use Viewed Acquired Data to pull
in values and clinical data from the devices for their shift. Nursing must enter all
clinical documentation back into the system. Vital signs and all bedside monitoring
device data should be pulled into the EMR at the ordered interval (everyg15min,
1hour, etc).

iv. In the event the View Acquired Data is unavailable, nursing is to use unit specific
monitor history to gather clinical data to complete clinical documentation.

v:v.  During the Recovery Phase, nursing wi

Il'instruct physicians and all ancillary
departments where to locate the unit specific clinical documentation.

Unscheduled Downtime

i. Nursing will utilize the unit specific flow sheets until the system is back on-line or,
the duration of their shift.

Unscheduled Downtime Recovery

i. When back on-line, nursing will associate the newly admitted patients to the
appropriate devices in order to start data collection.

ii. When back on-line; nursing will ensure patients are associated with the
appropriate devices. In the event the patient is not associated, nursing will
reassociate to the appropriate devices.

iii. H-the-downtimeis-4-hours-ordess-nNursing must use Viewed Acquired Data to pull
in values and clinical data from the devices for the shift. Nursing must enter all
clinical documentation back into the system. Vital signs and all bedside monitoring
device data should be pulled into the EMR at the ordered interval (q15min, 1hr,
etc).

126



| Patient Care Services Rolicy-Manua!

Cerner Downtime (IX-H)

Page 27 of 33

1.

3-2.
4:3.
&-4.
6-5.

ef.

iv.

V.

Vi.

In the event the View Acquired Data is unavailable, nursing is to use unit specific
monitor history to gather clinical data to complete clinical documentation.

If downtime is greater than 4 hours, documentation will remain on paper for the
remainder of the shift and will be part of the permanent record.

During the Recovery Phase, nursing will instruct physicians and all ancillary
departments where to locate the unit specific clinical documentation.

BMDI Application Downtime

In the event the-BMDI (ibus servers) -application-is-are down and the ability to

chart in Cerner occurs %ng—%—te—uhhze—the—depaﬁmem—specmc-ﬂewsheemg

appmpnate—dewees users w1l| manually enter data from monltormg devices.
Once associated, nursing will reenter vital signs into IView based on the ordered
intervals.

If the downtime is greater than 4 hours nursing will continue documenting on the
unit specific flow sheet for the remainder of the shift. The paper flow sheet is
scanned down to HIM and placed in the patients chart as part of the permanent
EMR.

Once the BMDI application comes back up, nursing will associate all newly
admitted patients and existing patients to the appropriate devices. Nursing will
resume documentation of all BMDI clinical data into Cerner.

E. Electronic FORMS-available-on-the-lntranet:

Downtime — Admission/Discharge/Transfer Log Sample

Downtime — Laboratory Cerner Log Sample

Downtime — Medication Administration Record Sample

Downtime — Surgery Add-On Profile Sheet Sample

Downtime — Universal Requisition Form (Sample Only, must use NCR)

127



Cerner Downtime (IX-H)

Page 28 of 33

| Patient Care Services Policy-Manual

Downtime - Admission/ Discharge/Transfers Log Sample

— — ;
. _
1] I R
i T _
. el i, | e
! {
“ S T
: _
| w
~—3=5 e ey
A ni - |
HIIAYIS L&/TA0D OL .  dWIL | NOLLLLSOdSHU | dWLL | 3L AWVYN
NOLLYGOWWODDY | HAASNVHL _HHEASNVYL | GOWVHISIC | D/ nay INUELVd a1vd
SAAJSURL | - SISIBYISI(] — SHOISSIWPY
sory dumumo Jinduro)
N \

128



| Patient Care Services Rolicy-Manrual

Cerner Downtime (IX-H)

Page 29 of 33

Downtime - Laboratory Cerner Log Sample

TCMC LABORATORY CERNER DOWNTIME LOG
During Cerner downtime, use this form to log any future Lab specimens. If Cerner
is back on line before the scheduled test, use this log to enter the orders into
Cerner, If Cerner is still down during any of these scheduled tests, make a manual
Universal Downtime Requisition and send to Lab 0O NOT SEND THISLOG TO

LAB

PATIENT TESTS ORDER | ORDER | ORDEREDIN | REQ SENT
NAME DATE TIME COMPASS | TOLAB

USERID

129



—

| Patient Care Services Pelicy-Manual
Cerner Downtime (IX-H)

Page 30 of 33
Downtime - Medication Administration Record Sample
Patient Name: MRN Allergies:
Urt: Room/Bed: Adrnission Date: Page of
Age: Sex: Haight {ca) ‘Weight (Kg): Physician:
Reason for Visit: Administration Peroad: / ! from D006 - 2359
Stari Time Stop Time Day Shift Night Shift
Medication 0701 - 1901 -
Dose Route Frequency 1800 0700
Initials | Signature Site Codes-site, route & initial must be on injectables
Art. Thigh Left =2 Ant. Thigh Right = 1
Glutea!l Region Left = 4 Gluteal Region Right = 3
Deitoid Muscle Lefi= 6 Deitoid Muscie Right= 5
Abdominal Lefi = 8 Abdominal Right=7
Omitted Dose Cades = Circle lvours and reason
A-NPO B-NFO C-Patient D-Nausea E-Hald Dose F-Pt off Floor (G-Other (see
Diagnostic Surgery Refusal nates)
‘Must chart doses in Powerchart when system returns

Afix Patient Label

)
(C‘J) TricCity Medical Center

4302 Vis'a Way « Oceanside - CA » 2053

W SRS,

Fay B2y

130



| Patient Care Services Policy-Manual
Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 31 of 33

Date/Time Scheduled:

ADD-ON PROFILE SHEET
[ _

f{ DatelTime of Surgery:

Add On #:

Patient:

Downtime — Surgery Add On Profile Sample

DOB:

Age:

Location:

_ MR #:

Procedure:

NPO Status:

% Patient and Procedure Information Read Back-by:

If procedure is craniofomy/mass or brain biopsy Use Neurosurgery Screening Too!

Diagnosis: _

Surgeon!

Assgistant:

p—
’l

( Loaner Inst/Trays:

Expected Arrival, o

Rep. Notified:

SPD Notified:

Equipment/instruments Needed: .

|
i Positioning:

Cardiac/Medical Hx:

|
j Eme e S e CE= e e

| Surgeon Availability:

Estimated OR Time:

]

Pre-Op Notified:

RN

PACU Notified:

ER/Floor/Pt Nurse notified:

|E-PRIV [0

Scheduled by: =

In Camputer; | Yes

Phone#__

I Insutrance:

C-An_n_

No:

X-Ray Tech Notified:

Fluoro:

Out/ln Patient lnfozma-iié}l

S84

131



| Patient Care Services Poliey-Manual
Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 32 of 33

ADD-ON PROFILE SHEET
Time Surgeon called OR to schedule case

Requested time for case

Time OR room is available

Pt already seen by Surgeon: Yes No
Time Patient seen by Surgeon:
Time Anesthesiologist is contacted farrival time

Time Pt's nurse contacted for handoff

Comments,

Time handoff report taken:
Time OR aide sent for Pt:
Time Pt arrived in OR suite:
Time Pt on OR table:

Time Surgeon contacted_ /Surgeon in OR room

Revised 9-02-15 Ig

132



l Patient Care Services Policy-Manual
Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 33 of 33

Downtime — Universal Re

Requested by:
Date:
Ordering Physician:

s

quisition Form Sample

G 35079

Phone:
Time:

Diagnosis / Reasan for exam

Special Instructions e Akergy / tsolaton ¢ bmpimon ! Waork Gomp.).;

PRIORITY TRANSPORTATION MODE
1 STAT LI NOwW U TIMED _ [JWHEELCHAIR ] GURNEY
QI ROUTINE L) PRE-QP ) PORTABLE £} BED
O SURGERY: DATE & TIWE:
) LABORATORY: MULTIPLE LAB TESTS CAN BE QRDERED |ADDITIONAL PROCEDURE / TEST
PER REQUISITION EXCEPT FOR MICROBIOLOGY () CARDIOLOGY ) EEG ) ECG
) CHEM 12 C)CHEM 7 7] DIGOXIN 01 PHYSICAL THERAPY
L) TROPONIN L) CPR/CKMB Cjane 8 gggg;??ﬁ?g:p.f{HERAW J PULMONARY
2] MAGNESIUM ) POTASSIUM i) GLUCOSE D) DIETARY
Ty AMY Ty LIP ) TOX SCREEN (] OTHER
[J ACETA J1S8AL JALG 1 OTHER
 ABG ) COMMENT
g g? - 3 gnBCD g ?g;:ggm 2 RADIQLOGYE Only 1 Radiclogy procedure per requisition
i) CXR Single View (J CT Head & Contrast
0 U-DMER {J VA WMICRO QJ ucE {1 Ultrasound Atdomen [ CT
D UMCS 1 CXR Two Views L3 MRt
1) Uttrasound Pelvic | Nuclear Medicing

i3 NEOPANEL [ APA L1 ABD Single [ Interventionat Radinlogy
] HBSAG I BLOOD CULTURE | CT Head / no contrast [ CT ABD / Pevis-Contrast
0 BILIRUBIN O RUBELLA U ABD Acute BUN
L} OTHER LABORATORY Ll GBS ] OTHER RADIOLOGY CR
3 OTHER LABORATORY __ o EXAM;
) TRANSFUSION - FFP-PLATELETS- O TYPE + SCREEN

CRYO-PRBC ) BLOOD GROUPRH - -
_J TYPE + CROSS UNITS D304 5 _ SOURGE
7} GRAM STAIN SOURCE
Performed by Date ¢ Tine: _
Ancillary Use Only
Procedure; BegnTwna_  End Time. Exarm Done:
Toch Endtiads: _ Comwasy: Aot Beaulla 1o Floor: Cealied Hardeogy:

Becoyvery Documentation: Entered by:

Date / Time:

)
(G‘.) Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Vista Way « Oceanside - CA » 92056

_ - UNIVERSAL DOWNTIME
g

REQUISITION FORM
Q01

(R 12XE]

(To ba used for immediate orders during Downtime anly)

Original - ta Nepanment (White}

Affix Patiunt tabed

Cogry = to Ordasing Uni: (Vellow)

133



Distribution: Patient Care Services

(g‘? Tri-City Medical Center

PROCEDURE: CHEST TUBE MANAGEMENT

Purpose: To define the nursing interventions for assisting with the insertion of chest tubes for the
adult and adolescent patients. To define nursing management of adult and adolescent
patients with chest tubes.

Supportive Data: Closed chest drainage systems are used to facilitate the evacuation of fluid, blood, and
| air from the pleural space, -er-the mediastinum or both; to restore negative pressure to
the pleural space; and promote reexpansion of a collapsed lung.

Mosby’s Chest Tube Insertion Procedure

Mosby’s Chest Tube: Closed Drainage System Procedure

Equipment: 1. One 250mLm-E! bottle of Normal Saline
2. Chest Tube Dressing Change Equipment
a. Silvasorb Gel or Povidone-lodine Ointment
| b. 2-inch silk tape or micropore
d. Normal Saline
e. 4x4 gauze sponges
f. 4x4 gauze drainage sponges
3. Chest Tube Removal Kit
a. Suture removal kit
. ChloraPrep (triple swabsticks)
. Silvasorb Gel, Bacitracin Zinc, and Povidone-lodine ointment
. 2 Kelly clamps

. Chux
. 2 zip holders

b
c
d
e. 4x4 gauze sponges (package of 10)
f
g
e

. 1largered bag

A, PROCEDURE:
1. Assisting with the Insertion of a Chest Tube
a. Place Chest Tube Insertion Cart in patient’s room.

i. Set up chest drainage device (Refer to Mesby’sOnline Clinical Skills Chest-
Tube: Closed Drainage System Procedure-Extended-Text). Seeresource
bl I Toloflox Plour-Evac.| :

ii. Assisting physician (Refer to Mesby'sOnline Clinical Skills Chest Tube Insertion
Eezseduro)
iii. Ensure chest x-ray is completed per physician’s order.
Chest Tube Monitoring, Nursing Assessment and Care
a. Refer to Mesby'sOnline Clinical Skills Chest-Tube Insertion-Extended-Fext.
b. Ensure a Have-Chest Tube Removal Kit readily available in patient’'s room-.
i. Attach Chest Tube Removal Kit to Intravenous (IV) pole on Telemetry, Acute
Care Services (ACS), and Progressive Care UnitForensics.
C. Secure chest drainage system to the IV pole using two zip holders. Silk tape may

be used to secure the drainage system. Ensure-chesttube drainage-systemis

3-2.

d. Monitor the amount and type/color of drainage per the physicians’_orders
e. Mark the collection chamber at the end of every shift and PRN with the dateand
timedate, time, and initials. Document the drainage amount in the medical record.

Medical Staff Medical Professional

Department
| Review

Clinical Policies &
Procedures

Nursing Executive
Committee

Department or
Division

Executive
Committee

Affairs
Committee

Board of
Directors

| | 4/09; 5/12; 11/15

06/12, 12115

06/12, 01/16

n/a

10/12, 09/16

11/12, 10/16

1212

134



Patient Care Services Procedure Manual

Chest Tube Management

Page 2 of 4

4:3.

eg.

£i.

éi.  The amount of drainage within the first two hours after insertion may be
approximately 100 to 300 mL, tThe amount of drainage should begin to
decrease over the next few hours and days.

Assess the patient as ordered after chest tube insertion. If no order for

assessment, assess as outlined in Mosby’sOnline Clinical Skills Chest Tube:

Closed Drainage Systems-procedure.

Discuss with the physician and obtain an order to perform range of motion exercises

for shoulder on the side of the chest tube site to prevent frozen shoulder secondary to

immobility.-

i. Discuss the need for physical therapist assistance with the physician.

Ambulate patient per physician’s order.

i. If there is no order to ambulate ensure patients sits on the side of bed to
enhance ventilation, maximize lung inflation and improve gas exchange.

ii. Discuss the need for activity orders with physician.

Patient positioning:

i. Elevate head of the bed (HOB) 30 to 45 degrees or per physician’s order.

ii. Lobectomy and all other lung surgeries: position patient on the non-operative
side or per physician’s order.

iii. Pneumonectomy: position supine or on the operative side.

liiv. Reposition patient at least every two hours

Incentive Spirometry (IS)

i. Ensure patient uses the IS as ordered by physician/Allied Health
Professional.

Dressing Change: Chest Tube Insertion Site

a.

T @moeooom

Change chest tube insertion site dressing every other day and PRN, unless ordered
otherwise by physician.
Remove dressing and discard in appropriate receptacle.
Clean chest tube insertion site with normal saline applied to sterile 4x4 gauze sponge.
Pat insertion site dry with 4x4 gauze sponge.
Apply Silvasorb gel or follow physician's order.
Anchor chest tube to patient's skin.
Apply one to two 4x4 drain sponges underneath the chest tube and 1-2 on top of the
chest tube. Ensure chest tube is not kinked.
Apply two to three 4x4 gauze sponges on top drain sponges.
i i i Apply silk tape or micropore over 4 x 4 dressing. (Do
not use paper, form or elastoplast tape to secure chest tube dressing.)
Ensure drainage tubing is visible, not kinked, and properly positioned. Do not position or
secure drainage tubing behind patient's back.
Do not reinforce chest tube dressing. If dressing becomes saturated or soiled:
i. Remove dressing
i. Assess connections
iii. Apply a new dressing
iv. Notify physician

Chest Tube Removal

a.
b.

Ensure a Chest Tube Removal Kit is readily available and assist physician as needed.
Monitor the patient for the following:
i. Obtain chest x-ray as ordered
ii. Ensure adequate respiratory status. Assess the following:

1) Breath sounds

2) Heart rate

4a)  Monitor cardiac rhythm on Cardiac Monitoring Units

2)3) Respiratory rate and quality

3)4) Oxygen saturation

4)5)  Notify physician for abnormal findings

135



Patient Care Services Procedure Manual
Chest Tube Management
Page 3 of 4

B-C.

il Monitor insertion site for bleeding. If bleeding is found, apply pressure and place
a tight occlusive dressing over site. Notify the physician for persistent bleeding.
(Persistent bleeding from the insertion site could mean the chest tube was
against a vein of the chest wall before removal.)

iv. Monitor suture site and surrounding skin. Notify physician for abnormalities such
as excessive redness, dark or inflamed skin with necrotic areas.

V. Monitor the site for signs of infection.

vi. Monitor insertion area for development of subcutaneous emphysema (Crepitus),
which is an indication of an air leak into the surrounding tissues.

vii. Monitor for signs and symptoms of pericardial effusion or cardiac tamponade. i.e.

distant heart tones, decreased blood pressure, tachycardia, pulsus paradoxus,
narrowed pulse pressure
viii. Assess pain and medicate per physician orders

6-5. Heimlich Chest Drain Valve

a.

The Heimlich Chest Drain Valve is used for uncomplicated pneumothorax with little or no

drainage. The valve allows air and fluid to pass in one direction.

There is a flutter valve which replaces an under water drainage bottle system.

Observe the flutter every shift and per-PRN to ensure air is escaping from the pleural

space.

Never clamp, close the ends of the valve, or use an airtight dressing or rubber glove

over the valve.

i. If there is drainage from the valve, place gauze on the valve and secure with tape
ensuring not to occlude or cover valve.

Assess the patient’s vital signs including oxygen saturation and assess for signs of

respiratory distress. Notify physician of abnormal findings.

Ensure the proximal end of the valve is attached to the patient’s chest tube catheter

Ensure the distal end of the valve, if ordered, is attached to a drainage bag or regulated
suction.

Assess patient insertion site and surrounding skin. Notify the physician of abnormal
findings.

% 1 Proximal connects
to the patient’s

Distal, can be
connected to
regulated,

intermittent suction
that can be used to
remove secretions

Heimlich Chest Drain Valve

EXTERNAL LINKS:
1. Online Clinical Skills: Chest Tube Insertion
2. Online Clinical Skills: Closed Drainage System Management

REFERENCES:



Patient Care Services Procedure Manual
Chest Tube Management

Page 4 of 4

Becton, Dickinson & .Compaﬁy. ('2015). ’Hein-llich valve. Retrie\/ed from
http://www.bd.com/medical-surgical/products/heimlich.asp

Elsevier:Mesby'sOnline Clinical Skills Nursing Skills. (2006-20145). Chest tube
insertion.closed-drainage-system-—Retrieved-May-182012frfrom Tri-City Medical Center

interanat.
Elsevier: Mosby'sOnline Clinical Skills Nursing Skills. (2006-20145). Chest tube: Closed
dralnage device.-device: Retrieved from Tri- Clty Medlcal Center Intranet Pleur—ev‘ae—RetHeved

eleflex Medlcal (2009)' Understandmg chest dralnage Retrleved from
http: llwww teleflex comlenlusalucdllndex php

Urden LD Stacy, K M &Lough .E. (2 014) Critical care nursing. Diagnosis and Management.
(7" ed.). St. Louis, MO: Elsevier

137



Tracked Changes Copy

@‘3) Tri-City Medical Cente

Distribution: Patient Care Services

| PROCEDURE: MISCARRIAGE AND STILLBIRTH IDENTIFICATION AND DISPOSITION PROCESS
DIEFERENTHATINGINTRAUTERINE-FETAL DEMISE FROM-MISCARRIAGE
Purpose: To outline the proper steps in differentiating between stillbirths (fetal death in utero at

equal to or greater than 20 weeks gestational age-demises) and miscarriages.

A sStillborn delivery requires the family to make disposition arrangements with a
mortuary/ funeral home and s requires an “autopsy permit” before it is evaluated by
the pathology departmentthey—a#e—e#atuatee\ If no autopsy is requested, the
stillbirth remain is taken to the hospital morgue.

A miscarriage dees-notrequire-a-permit-and-shall be handled as a routine surglcal
specimen and be; sent to the histology department with a tissue specimen
requisition-

Supportive Data:

A fetus which satisfies any two of the following three criteria will be classified as a
stillbirth:

1. Foot length (heel to toe) greater than 3.1 centimeters millimeters
Crown-rump (CR) length: greater than 16.5 centimeters
Gestational age by dates: equal to or greater than 20 weeks

Equipment:

Personal protective equipment
Infant scale

Disposable measuring tape
Chux

Disposable drape

Specimen bag

Tissue lab slip

NoOarwh= WM

A. DEFINITIONS:

1. MISCARRIAGE Pregnancy loss before 20 weeks gestatuon W|thout sngns of Ilfe Refer to
depaptment—as—FefeFeneed—m the Ssupportlve Ddata sectlon above,
a. Hospital is responsible for the disposition of the remains which is usually by
incineration.
b. The Family may request to have remains taken to mortuary, but incur the
associated costs
2. STILLBIRTH: Fetal death occurs before the baby is born and after 20 reported weeks of
gestatlon Refer to the Supportlve Data sectlon above (—'Fhe—fetus—shews—ne—&gn&ef—l#e—at
a. The family is responsible for coordinating the disposition of the fetal remains with
a funeral home.
b. A “fetal death certificate” is prepared by the birth clerk.
3. NEONATAL DEATH: The death of a newborn within the first 28 days of life. (Fetus is born
alive regardless of gestational age, but then dies within the first 28 days.)
a. The family is responsible for coordinating the disposition of the remains with a
funeral home.
b. A birth certificate is issued AND a “death certificate” is completed by the provider
verifying the death.
A-B. PROCEDURE:
1. Perform hand hygiene and don gloves.
Revision Cl.inical Nursir.\g Department of | Department of Medical Professional Board of
D | otvemes | e | Fanoloy | Omow | Foece | Mk | frects

12/08, 06/11,
04/15

04/11, 05/15

04/11, 05/15

03/16

04/16

05/11, 04116

06/11, 10/16

06/11

138



Patient Care Services Procedure Manual

| Miscarriage and Stillbirth Identification and Disposition ProcessDifferentiating-tntrauterine-Fetal- Demisesfrom-Miscarriages

Page 2 of 5

2,

5.

Complete measurements to determine if fetus is stillbirth or miscarriage. Criteria for
stillbirth require 2 or more of the following:

a. Foot Length (heel to big toe) : > greater than 3.1 centimeters (cm)

b. Crown- rump Length (head to buttocks): > greater than 16.5 cm

c. Gestational Age by dates: Equal to or > greater than 20 weeks

If the fetal parameters/measurements are determmed to be borderllne and—theekmeran—rs

mustsheuld be sent to the Hlstology Iab for flnal determmatlon of whether ornotitisa

miscarriage or stillbirth.

a. The tissue requisition accompanying the fetus/specimen needs to include the
clinician’s anatomic measurements, gestational age by dates and “Borderline
Measurements? indicated.

b. The staff member transporting the specimen to the laboratory will stay until the

pathologist confirms the measurements and then returns to the department and

reports the result flndlngs SO dlsposmon optlon can then—be dlscussed W|th the
family. - : alee-the-date 3 alats dme :

i. If after hours the charge nurse wnll arrange to have a second staff member
complete the measurements as a second validation.

Stillbirth
a. A stillbirth’s remains are transferred to the Morgue.

i. If pathological examination is desired, an autopsy permit must be obtained
and the Histology department notified of this request.

ii. Staff in the ED and L&D unit the-Family-shall ensurecomplete the Rrelease
of the Ddeceased fForm; if possible-is updated and has the required patient
signature before discharge And-tThe form will be given to the charge
nurse for final rewew then form forwarded to the Admlmstratlve
Superwsor atien : 2 S 2

iii. The fetal remains will only be released to a designated mortuary.

Miscarriage:
a. If the fetus fails to meet at least two of the stillbirth measurement criteria, it is

considered a miscarriage and shall be taken to the lab for processmg
i The tissue requisition form that accompanies the specimen to the
Histology department shall have the anatomic measurements, gestational
age and suspected diagnosis indicated by the attending provider.
1) The fetus will be processed by the Hhistology department as a
surgical pathology specimen
ii. If the family desires to make arrangements for the miscarriage remains
disposition with a mortuary or funeral home this MUST be indicated on the
tissue requisition form: “DO NOT PROCESS,HOLD-SPECIMEN. FAMILY
DESIRES DISPOSITIONZ
1) Staff in Emergency Department/Labor & Deleivery/Post Anesthesia
Care Unit Family shall complete the “Authority for Miscarriage
Remains Release” Ddisposition-of-miscarriage-form; if-possible;
before discharge and the charge nurse will forward form to the

Administrative Supervisor (AS)patientrelations patient-advocate
office—{Nursing-supervisor-if after-normal work-hours).
2) The ASpatientrelations-patient-advocate-office will communicate

with the family no less than weekly to updatedetermine funeral
home/mortuary arrangements.

139



Patient Care Services Procedure Manual

| Miscarriage and Stillbirth Identification and Disposition Processbifferentiating-tntrauterine-Eetal Demises-from-Miscarriages

Page 3 of 5

3)

4)

5)

Documentation:

Once arrangements are made by the family, the ASpatient-relations

representative will notify the Histology Department,.

so-The Laboratory staff will transfer the remalns sap-betransierrad

from-the-lab to the morgue

a) The remains fetus will only be released to a deS|gnated
mortuary.

If arrangements for disposition are not made by the family within 30

days, the AS will notify the Histology department towill dispose of

the remains by incineration based on Health and Safety Code

7054.3.

a) Reasonable efforts will be made by the ASpatientrelations
office to contact the famlly before the deadlme is reached

140



Patient Care Services Procedure Manual

| Miscarriage and Stillbirth Identification and Disposition ProcessDifferentiatingtntravterine-Fetal-Demises-from-Miscarriages

Page 4 of 5
I
| B:C. TE
1.
2.
3.

a. Document the date and time of the miscarriage/ delivery date-time as a clinical note
entry in the patient’s electronic health record and indicate where the remains were

b. Ahe 'stillborn,infant—wm requires a fetal death certificate to be completed by the Biﬁh
Clerk-and-is-sentto-the-morgue.

C. A miscarriage wilk-requires a tissue requisition and is sent to the histology department
in the lab.

ECHNICAL NOTES:

Health and Safety Code 7054 states that, “(a) Except as authorized pursuant to the sections
referred to in subdivision (b), every person who deposits or disposes of any human remains in
any place, except in a cemetery, is guilty of a misdemeanor.

Health and Safety Code 7054.3 states that, “Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a
recognizable dead human fetus of less than 20 weeks uterogestation not disposed of by
interment shall be disposed of by incineration.”

Penal Code 643 states that “No person knowingly shall dispose of fetal remains in a public or
private dump, refuse, or disposal site or place open to public view. For the purposes of this
section, ‘fetal remains’ means the lifeless product of conception regardless of the duration of the
pregnancy. Any violation of this section is a misdemeanor.”

D. FORM(S)/RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1.

Authority for Miscarriage Remains Release Sample

G-E. REFERENCES:

1.
2.

3.
4,
5

TCMC Pathology Department — Histology Policy and Procedure Manual.

Mattson, S., & Smith, J.E. (2011). Core-curriculum to maternal-newborn nursing. (4" Ed. ).
Philadelphia: Saunders.

California Health and Safety Code Section 7050.58-7055

California Penal Code Section 643

Callifornia Perinatal Quality Care Collaborative (CPQCC) Network Database, version 1.10.
(11/09/2010). Manual of definitions for infants born in 2010. Retrieved on 12/28/2010:

141



Patient Care Services Procedure Manual

Miscarriage and Stillbirth Identification and Disposition ProcessDifferentiating-tntrauterine-Fetal Demises-from-Miscarriages

Page5of5

Authority for Miscarriage Remains Release Sample

A miscarnage is vabdated when the Estimated Gestational Age (EGA) is less than 20 waeks andiar wher the head lo
buttocks length is less than 16.5 cm snd the heel to toe fength is lass than 3.1 cm per Palient Care Sendces Miscariage

and Stillbirth Identfication and Disposition Process Procedure
Da tha pragnancy remains meet miscariege oriteria?

YES Please transfer the miscamizge remains to the Laboratory and review disposition options below.

Nurse Name . Dala Provider Name Datz

Please be advised that you have choices conceming the final disposition of miscarriage remains, if desired.

HOSPITAL DISPOSITION
Arzcording to regulatians, the hospital will dispose of the miscarniage under the terms and condifions customarity used.
The hospital cannst return the remsins to yoo.

| wigh for TR-City Medica’ Center to armange for the disposiifon of remains under the terms and conditions custarnanly
usad. :
Paticrt Signature Date

ARRANGED DISPOSITION
'f you wou'd Bike to make alterrale arrangemants, the remains miusst be released to an approved agency faz propar busial
or cremalion by g licensed funeral direclar or moruary. PLEASE READ and INITIAL the items SBELOW,

1. | wish to make arrangements with a licensed funeral director or mortuaey and understand that | am responsible for all
erpenses, YES

2. { understand that if mrangements are nol made with a funeral horme/meontuary within 30 days, the Laboratory
Department will dispese of the remains under the terms and conditions customarnily used by the hospital.  YES

3 Due to regulatory guidelines, thera may be reasons the remains may aot be able to be released.  YES

7 hereby authorize Tri-City Medlcal Center to release the remains to:
Patient
b] = { k
HoruaryPrecurmement Aggncy Arsa CordePhnan Numbar
Oata Sgnatum Ares Coded Plyye Emzli addrsss
Mombee
hlortuary Notified: Date Time N initials

MORTICIAN'S RECEIPT OF REMAINS
Receives from TRECITY MEDICAL CENTER. tha pragnancy remaing from, (Name)

{Bal) {Time) (Signaturs of Moduary Transporkir)

Relessed By: Dets Time:

Public Administrator Notified. i Oata: . Time: Initisls

= Adflx Patipet
Tri-City Medical Center
4002 Visla Way « Qeeansige « CA « 82056

AUTHORITY FOR MISCARRIAGE REMAINS
AR T .
L
( Wine Madeal Recond Rl (3) copias (1) Fadam, |3 admisratva Superdasor (3! Luboratory (1) Woruery

142



Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES
SRAMDARLZEE-PROCEDUR =S PIARUAL

STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: DISCHARGE FROM OUTPATIENT POST-ANESTHESIA SERVICE

I POLICY:
Function: To provide a timely and appropriate discharge of the stable patient from Post
Anesthesia Care Unit (PACU).

A

B. Circumstances:

1. Setting: PACU

2. Supervision: None required

3. Physicians Orders: The physician orders must clearly reflect an Rregistered Naurse
(RN) may discharge a patient when discharge criteria have been met.

4. Patient Contraindications: The anesthesiologist is to be notified of any patient who does
not meet discharge criteria within four hours of admission post procedure, or any patient
who has hemodynamic instability, surgical complications or fails to respond to
treatment/interventions.

I PROCEDURE:
A. A patient will be ready for discharge -as determined by the following criteria:
1. Airway:
a. Intact airway protective reflexes
b. Patent airway (no sign of airway obstruction and no need for airway support)

2. Ventilation/Oxygenation:

a. Respiratory rate greater than or equal to 210 per minute/adult-age-appropriate

3. Cardiovascular:

a. Blood pressure, heart rate, cardiac rhythm within patient's acceptable baseline
parameters, and temperature greater than 36°C (96.8°F)
b. Stable, no significant changes for at least 30 minutes
4. General Condition:
a. Awake and follows commands per baseline
b. Adequate intake and output, able to take oral fluids
C. Comfort level meets target pain level

5. Vomiting controlled and/or patient able to tolerate present state of nausea

6. Ambulation
a. Motor function/mobility progressing toward optimal level
b. Demonstrates understanding of assistive devices as appropriate

7. Post-procedural/operative bleeding controlled

8. Psychosocial issues identified and addressed

9. Provision made for safe transport home

10. Discharge from PACU with a Modified Aldrete score of 9 — 10 or per physician written
orders.

11. Last set of vital signs documented immediately before discharge.

. PROCESS:
Clinical Nursing o Medical Professional
TRevow | folciees | Erecuve | ™and | anceineioogy | | Commise ” | Sieeulte | Aare | Sy
erapeutics
2/99, 4/00; . . . .
0027/;)%?‘2‘;1 i 02 ATt 03{ o’ 09/15 01/16 O a8, | 6r1TAT3, 10116 6/11;10/13

1K)




| Patient Care ServicesStandardized-Procedure-Manual
Standardized Procedure: Discharge from Outpatient Post-Anesthesia Nursing Service
Page 2 of 2

VI.

A.

Discharge
1. When the patient meets the above criteria, initiate standardized procedure as
appropriate.
2. Prepare patient or responsible party by reviewing patient education.
a. Patient care provider verbalizes understanding of all discharge instructions.
b. Written discharge instructions will be signed by the accompanying responsible
adult and a copy provided upon discharge.
C. Questions by patient/responsible adult invited and answered.
3. Follow-up
a. Post-Op phone call made the following day by RN
4, Document in the patient’'s medical record
a. Goals/outcomes met
i. Deviations from expected outcomes to be documented on nursing record
b. Patient education
C. Follow-up phone call including any unexpected effects along with RNs
instructions to patient or support person.
d. RN signature completed on all physicianMB orders and nursing documentahon.
e. Completlon of Patlent Charge document
g-f. Dlscharge in Cerner
5

REQUIREMENTS FOR CLINICIANS INITIATING STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A

B.
C.
D.
D

A
B.
c

A current California RN license.

A current Advanced Cardiac Life Support (ACLS) certification

[nitial Evaluation: During orientation period to include a nursing competency check-off list on
discharge criteria.

Ongoing Evaluation: Annually through skills lab.

DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

Method: This standardized procedure was developed through collaboration with nursing,
medicine, and administration.
Review: Every two (2) years.

LINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM THIS STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A

All RN’s who have successfully completed requirements as outlined above are authorized to
direct and perform Discharge from Outpatient Post-Anesthesia Nursing Service Standardized
Procedure.

144



@‘f? Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

STANDARDIZED PROCEDURES MANUAL

' STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: HALOPERIDOL (HALDOL), INTRAVENOUS (IV) ADMINISTRATION

I POLICY:

A

Function: To provide direction for the use of intravenously administered Haloperidol at Tri-City
Medical Center (TCMC).

B. Circumstances:
1. Setting: Emergency Department (ED), Intensive Care Unit (ICU), or Telemetry at TCMC
2. Supervision: None
C. Definitions:
1. The safe IV administration of haloperidol requires that the QTc interval on the 12 Lead
electrocardiogram (ECG) be less than 450 milliseconds.
2. The safe |V administration of haloperidol requires that the patient be monitored
continuously for cardiac dysrhythmias for two (2) hours after the drug is given.
3. The maximum drug amount for each 1V dose of haloperidol is 5mg.
4, The maximum cumulative drug amount for IV haloperidol dosing is 30mg per 24 hours.
5 QT interval represents the duration of ventricular depolarization and subsequent
repolarization measured from the beginning of the QRS complex to the end of the T
wave using manual or electronic calipers
6. QTc interval is a heart rate adjustment measurement for the QT interval. It is measured
using a calculation and is not the same measurement as the QT interval.
i. Nursing shall use the QTc interval listed on a 12 Lead ECG.
D. Exceptions:
1. Haloperidol IV may be given in emergent situations to patients without a 12-lead ECG if
the ordering physician determines the benefit to outweigh the risk of treatment.
. PROCEDURE:
A. The attending physician initiates the process by ordering IV haloperidol for the patient.
B. The Registered Nurse (RN) shall check the chart for the most recent 12 Lead ECG.
1. RN shall order a base line 12 Lead ECG if:
i. There is not an ECG that was done within the past 24 hours available on the
chart.
i. Patient at risk for prolonged QT intervals:
a) Atrioventricular (AV) blocks
b) History of Torsades de Pointes (TdP)
c) Long QT Syndrome
d) History of Myocardial Infarction (MI)
iii. When recommended by pharmacy based on drug interaction that prolongs the
QT interval.
iv. When the QT interval on an ECG strip measured with calipers, prolongs
exceeding the patient’s baseline and/or exceeds 450 milliseconds
2. Patients receiving 30 mg or more of haloperidol IV per day, order a 12 lead every other
day, if not ordered by the physician to monitor the QTc.
C. The RN or physician shall check the QTc interval that is electronically measured and printed on
the 12 Lead ECG.
1. Do not administer haloperidol if the QTc interval is greater than 450 milliseconds.
_. Clinical Nurse Divisi Pharmacy ; Medical Professional —
Rovow | polces | pxecue | Zuidos) | 1 i, | Mo | Ewcuve || Atare || G
712, 9115 8/12,10115 | 10/12, 10/15 01116 11/12, 01116 | 02/13,07116 | 2/13,09/16 10/16 2/13

145



Standardized Procedure Manual
Standardized Procedure: Haloperidol, Intravenous (V) Administration

Page 2 of 2

Discontinue the haloperidol and notify the physician for an alternative route or

medication.

2. If the physician specifically orders haloperidol despite QTc greater than 450
milliseconds, document QTc and physician awareness of QTc.

D. The RN shall document the QTc interval on the medication administration record (MAR).
E. The patient shall be monitored for the following for 2 hours after haloperidol has been
administered:

1. Cardiac effects (new onset tachycardia, orthostatic hypotension, hypertension,
abnormal T waves, prolongation of the QT from baseline and ventricular
dysrhythmias)

2. Signs of neuroleptic malignant syndrome (new fever greater than 37.7 celsius,
tachycardia, diaphoresis, labile blood pressure, cardiac dysrhythmias)

3. Extrapyramidal reactions, including:

i. Dystonic reactions (neck rigidity, swollen tongue, and oculogyric crisis)

ii. Tardive dyskinesia (repetitive, involuntary, purposeless movements, grimacing,
tongue protrusion, lip smacking, puckering and pursing, rapid eye blinking, rapid
movements of the arms, legs, and trunk may also occur. Involuntary movements
of the fingers may appear as though the patient is playing an invisible guitar or
piano.)

F. Physician Notification and Documentation

1. Notify the physician and document n the medical record the presence of the

following:

i Cardiac effects
ii. Signs of neuroleptic malignant syndrome
iii. Extrapyramidal reactions

2. When administering medications or implementing orders from a standardized
procedure, the RN shall enter the medication/order into the electronic health
record as a standardized procedure.
i. Not required if a screening process triggers the order.

. REQUIREMENTS FOR CLINICIANS INITIATING STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
A. Current California RN license.

B Current Advanced Cardiac Life Support card.

C. Primary RN staff on with continuous cardiac monitoring at TCMC.A-Gity-Medical-Genter-
D. Initial Evaluation: During Department Orientation.
E
D
B

Ongoing Evaluation: Annually during Skills Lab.

V. EVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

. Method: This Standardized Procedure was developed through collaboration with Nursing,
Medicine, and Administration.
. Review: Every two (2) years.

V. CLINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM THIS STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A

A
are authorized to direct and perform Haloperidol, Intravenous (1V) Administration Standardized
Procedure.

. All RNsegistered-Nurses who have successfully completing the-requirements as outlined above

146



@‘9 Tri-City Medical Center

Distribution: Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE:

HAZARDOUS DRUGS

Purpose:

To ensure the safety of our employees/patients during the administration and patient
care of those receiving hazardous drugs within Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC)

Supportive Data:

National Institute of Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH) and Center for Disease
Control (CDC)

Equipment:

Cytotoxic bin, yellow chemo waste bags, N-95 mask, double gloves, gown, splash
goggles or face shield, protective shoe covers

A.

1.

2.

3.

4.

B.
1.

DEFINITION:

Hazardous drugs are drugs known to cause:

a. Genotoxicity — the ability to cause a change or mutation in genetic material

b. Carcinogenicity — the ability to cause cancer in animal models, humans or both

C. Teratogenicity — the ability to cause defects on fetal development or fetal malformation
Hazardous drugs are known to have the potential to cause fertility impairment, which is a major
concern for most clinicians.

These hazardous drugs can be classified as antineoplastic, cytotoxic agents, biologic agents,
antiviral agents and immunosuppressive agents.

Safe handling of hazardous drugs is crucial for both the patient and the provider.

POLICY:

TCMC staff working with hazardous drugs and the body fluids of patients receiving these drugs
shall adhere to this procedure and reference Patient Care Services (PCS) Procedure: Disposal
of Chemotherapy Waste- such as Bbody fluids includinge sweat, saliva, emesis, urine, feces,
semen, vaginal fluid, or blood.

Only a TCMC trained registered nurse (RN) may administer a hazardous drug. Training consists
of:

C.
1.

PROCEDURE:

Administering a Hazardous Drug

a. Hazardous drugs will be identified by pharmacy and a warning will be placed in both the
medication Pyxis and the electronic medical record (eMAR) to alert the nurse. See
Hazardous Drug List.

b. Ensure a yellow puncture-proof cytotoxic waste container is available on the unit (i.e.,
medication room or designated area).

C. Hazardous drugs may not be handled with bare hands.
i. Always double glove prior to handling a hazardous drug and its packaging.

d. Never score or crush hazardous drugs (prevents inhalation of the drug.)

e Notify pharmacy if a hazardous drug must be administered via gastric tube (i.e.

nasogastric or oral gastric small bore feeding tube).
f. Document all hazardous drug patient education in the Education All Topics Ad-hoc form
under “Medication Topics.”
Hazardous Drug Disposal and Waste
a. Dispose the following in a yellow puncture proof cytotoxic waste container:
i. Needles and syringes used when administering hazardous drugs
i Non-sharp materials exposed to a hazardous drug (i.e. pill packaging, IV
tubing/empty IV bags, and gloves)

Department
Review

Clinical

Policies &
Procedures
Committee

Nursing
Executive
Council

Medical Staff
Department /
Division

Pharmacy &
Therapeutics
Committee

Medical
Executive
Committee

Professional
Affairs
Committee

Board of
Directors

08/10,
02/11;3/12,
6/16

3/12, 7116

3/12, 07116

n/a

09/16

4/12, 09/16

5/12, 10116

5/12

147



| Patient Care Services Procedure-Manual
Hazardous Drugs

Page 2 of 4
iii. Hazardous drugs in a pill form that have been contaminated or just need to be
wasted

b. Notify environmental services (EVS) when any yellow puncture proof cytotoxic waste

| container is 342/3 full.
3. Preventing Exposure to Body Fluid and Contaminated Linen
| a. Precautions must be taken during administration and until 48 hours after last dose.

b. Wear appropriate personal protective equipment (PPE) which may include the following:
i. N-95 mask
ii. Double gloves
ii. Gown
iv. Splash goggles or face shield
V. Protective shoe covers

C. Disposing of body fluid
i. Dispose of body fluids in the toilet
ii. DO NOT USE THE TOILET SPRAYER. Rinse containers with a cup of water to

prevent splashing.

ii. Before flushing toilet, cover open toilet with new chux. (New-chux-to-be-used-with

iv. Flush toilet twice, and discard chux. (New chux to be used with each flush).

v. Place PPE and chux in chemotherapy waste bag.

vi. Non-Oncology units contact EVS to dispose of chemo waste bag when they
| become2/3-%-of the way full.

vii. Oncology unit will place sealed chemo waste bag in the designated chemotherapy
| waste area on the unit.

d. All linen exposed to a hazardous drug or body fluid of a patient that is currently receiving
or has received agents in the past 48 hours, must be placed (using gown and double
gloved) in a yellow chemotherapy waste bag and tagged by the EVS with a “Special
Handling Ticket” before adding it to the general hospital linen.

e. Skin care of incontinent adult receiving hazardous drugs.

i. Clean patients skin after voiding or having a bowel movement.
ii. Apply protective barrier ointment or cream before diapering.

f. All disposable equipment (i.e. foley catheter, bedpan, graduated cylinder, and diapers)
used in caring for these patients must be disposed of in a chemotherapy waste container
and placed in the designated chemotherapy waste area on the unit.

4. Exposures and Prevention Related to Hazardous Drugs and Contaminated Body Fluids

a. In the event of skin exposure to a hazardous drug, remove any contaminated garment and
immediately wash contaminated skin with soap and water.

b. In case of eye exposure, immediately flush the eye with saline solution or water for at
least 5 minutes.

C. All'linen exposed to a hazardous drug or body fluid of a patient currently receiving (or

received) agents in the past 48 hours, must be placed (using gown and double gloved) in

a yellow chemotherapy waste bag and tagged by the EVS with a “Special Handling Ticket”

before adding it to the general hospital linen.

i. Contact EVS when chemo waste linen bag is 342/3 full. EVS will place the chemo
waste linen bag in a regular hospital blue linen bag and will place a special
handling ticket on the outside of the blue linen bag before it can be placed in the
general hospital linen.

d. Place any disposable contaminated materials into a sealed, leak proof chemo waste
plastic bag. Use the yellow puncture proof cytotoxic containers for sharps or breakable
items.

e. Ali containers will be clearly labeled citing the hazardous nature of the contents.

f. Report any exposures or spills to your Assistant Nurse Manager/Relief Charge
Nurse/supervisor.

148



| Patient Care Services Procedure-Manual

Hazardous Drugs

Page 30of 4

g. Report any employee exposure to employee health services and/or emergency
department.

h. Complete an lliness/Injury Investigation Report.

i. Report patient exposures to the patient’s healthcare provider and per institution policy.

5. Handling of Hazardous Drugs — Pharmacy Department

a. All storage bins will be labeled with a “Hazardous Drug” sticker.

b. Use chemo gloves when handling hazardous drugs for:
i. Unit dosing
ii. Admixing
ii. Preparing for feeding tube
iv. If the packaging is not intact

C. Any hazardous drug sent from the pharmacy (not dispensed from Pyxis) will have a
“Hazardous Drug” label attached.

d. Admixing and crushing of hazardous drugs will be done in the chemo hood. The chemo
closed system is not necessary.

e. All hazardous drugs will have warnings on the eMAR and the Pyxis system.

f. All vials, bottles, packaging, syringes, etc. will be disposed of in the trace

chemotherapeutic waste container.

D. RELATED DOCUMENTS:

1. PCS Procedure: Disposal of Chemotherapy Waste
2. Hazardous Drug List

E. REFERENCES:
1. Health Waste Management (HCWM). (2006). The 10 categories of hcrw-#9 genotoxic/cytotoxic

waste.
2. National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health. (2004). Preventing occupational exposure

to antineoplastic and other hazardous drugs in health care settings. Retrieved November17;
' 2010-from-the-NIOSH-website-at-http.//www.cdc.gov/niosh/docs/2004-165/4c

149



"SUONJBIIP |BSOSIP JO) SUBWILIOD 19PI0 838G JAUIRIUOD B)SEM 2ix0j0}40 mojeA e ul sanolb pue Buibexyoed jo asodsip ‘pajoaap ) ‘9
"aqn} ouyseb e el passisiuiupe aq jsnw Bnip snoplezey e Aoeuwieyd AyoN ‘g

"sbnup snopiezey ysnio 1o 8109S JOASN i

‘Buibexoed s )1 pue 6rup snopiezey e Buypuey usym ano|b ajgnop shemly ‘¢

"Spuey sieq yym pajpuey aq jou pinoys sbnip snopsezey 'z

"8SInuU pasuadl pauies) QDL e Aq paselsiulwpe aq ([eys sbnip snopiezey ‘|

150

:uojensiuiwpy Bnig snopiezeH

auIpUNY ] ondouip 1In0NaY BUIPNAOPIZ
Jinojoua | peasip ajAojep Jinopouebiep
auidesinaN aUNWEIIA] uixannaN ajeuolnon|b ajexaseil ]
Jinofoouebiep 9JADJeA ondonp aulpunisd
aplwopliey L piwojey ] plwojey | aplwopliey)
2au0I2)S0)Sa)AUIBIN paisa] wiapoipuy ‘jaboipuy BU0JD)S0)SD |
Zualiiaelg BAISNS pealip FITGIGIETY
au|pnaopiZ FITGHEN] jeiboid snwijosoe |
T apeoiway aunwedey SNWIoJIS
ulineqgry ajozelip ‘|ojegay 8jozeli ‘jolegay uliAeqry
snwijons aunwedey ejsing auayxoley
8)e190y 8uoJs9)saboidAxolpapy BIOAOIH wnuawold auaisysabold
apla)seul 189s0.d GZ-uoa0pod wisas wnjiAydopod
auolaysaboid wnujawold wadngapN ‘wejusad 2)euoi)os! aulplweluad
snwijoloe | Jeiboid uoold uo0jAXQO
Jjuouoyo ‘uidoljopeuos) |Aubaig aunwelp auidesinaN
uisal wnjAuydopod GZ-uooopod OILOJAN ‘1dao|8) najow ajejousydodApy
UoMXQO uIolld pansa| BU0I9)SO)SAYAUYIB N
9)euUOI}as! auIpiLR|USY wadngaN ‘tuejuad aulbiaylapy aulnouobisiAyiapy
jdasejeqy BIoUaI0O elonoid ajejeoy suoss)saboidAxoipaly
ajedidoss3 usbp BARLY apiwoun|)a7
81euoinon|b ayexanauwil | uixannan apeoiway qewxiju)
unodso[oAn aunuwiwipues ‘|eiosN jAubalg dluoyoys ‘uidoyopeuos)
autnouobiajAyio autbiayay BUaA0JAD JIAO[210UeS)
suudoiyezy ue.anuwj Jeosold apusjiseulq
ausjixojey B]SIAg uabp ajedidosysy
suofjeulquwoo unseboid-usboss] SH 1sejens3 SH 1sajed)s3 suoljeulquiod uysaboid-uabossg
loipelis3 |oipeis3-odag ‘elewy) ‘eoei)sy [oipens3-odag ‘eiewn) ‘eoelsy Joipens]
1IAODIOUBRD) ETEYGITG) BAlSNS zualinejq
auIYoI0YH auidIyo|0) HepoAy apua)seing
|ooiusydwesoy) uldAWoIoYD unsoid ‘Ipinian auo)soidouig
auo)soisdouiq unsold ‘|IpnieD aunwiWIpuUes ‘jeIosN uuodsopAn
hajow oyejouaydooApy JIlMOJAW 1doojen auIdIYyo|0) auIdIY2(0D)
apuajseing HEPOAY ujesAwoIoyD jooluaydweloy)
aplwounya eAely ueinuw| auudoiyezy
2U0IB)S0)Sa | wuspoipuy ‘leboipuy CIRITEY ) ydaoeleqy

WeN Juauan SweN apes] aweN apel] SWEN SuUauan

1SI1 3avdL 1817 2I83INID

SNOILYJIdIn SNOQ¥VZVH
A31IN3D TVIIQIN ALID-IYL

¥ jo ¥ abed
sbrug snopiezep
{eRde-8INpestly sa~ " 1Bg ale) jusned _



Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: LOCAL ANESTHETIC PRIOR TO INTRAVENOUS INSERTIONS

I POLICY:
A. Function:
1. Administration of a local anesthetic for pain management during insertion of intravenous
(IV) lines.
B. Circumstances:

1.

Setting: Patient Care areas

2. Population: Adult, Pediatrics and infant patients
3. Contraindications: Allergy to Lidesainelidocaine or prilocaine
4, Supervision: None required
il. PROCEDURE:
A. Pre procedure
1. Criteria for use:
a. Deeper insertion
b. Patient anxiety due to IV insertion
c. Difficult insertion
d. Patient request
4:2. Assess for appropriate IV insertion site
2:3.  Explain rationale for use of topical anesthetic prior to IV insertion to
patient/parent/caregiver/significant other
B. Procedure
1. Topical Anesthetic Cream (lidocaine and/or prilocaineEMLA/ELA-MAX) Administration
a. Equipment: Tegaderm patch or tape
i. Alcohol or chlorhexidine wipe
ii. Topical Anesthetic Cream (EMLA/ELA-MAX)
b. Administration:
i. Swab insertion site with alcohol or chlorhexidine wipe
il. Apply generous 1 inch square of topical anesthetic cream over insertion
site.
ii. Cover with Tegaderm or tape per manufacturer’s instructions.
iv. Wait for minimum amount of time per manufacturer’s instructions.
C. Insert IV per policy
2. Intradermal Lidocaine Administration
a. Equipment:
i. TB syringe with appropriate 27 g needle attachment
ii. Alcohol or chlorhexidine wipe
iii. Lidocaine 1% without epinephrine
b. Administration:
i. Draw up 0.1 mL of Lidocaine in a syringe
ii. Swab insertion site with alcohol or chlorhexidine wipe
iii. Inject Lidocaine intradermally to form a wheal at insertion site
iv. Wait at least 1 minute
V. Insert IV per Mesby’s-ProcedureOnline Clinical Skills: Intravenous
Therapy: Initiation pslicy
3. Post procedure
a. Assess and monitor the following:
oopimnt | (S | ottt | St | o | "B | oo | " | somo
Procedures | Committee Division Committee Committee Committee | Committee
07/15 09/15 09/15 n/a 12415 07/16 09/16 10116




Patient Care Services
Standardized Procedure: Local Anesthetic Prior to Intravenous Insertion

Page 2 of 2
i. Erythema
ii. Swelling
iii. Potential allergic reaction
b. Educate patient/parent/caregiver/significant other on complications listed above
Il DOCUMENTATION:
A. Complete documentation in the Eiectronic Health Record (EHR)
B. Enter order for initiation of standardized procedure per policy.
C. Medications are documented in the Medication Administration Record (MAR).
D. Insertion procedure and patient response is documented in the [VIEW band.
V. RELATED DOCUMENTSEXTERNAL LINKS:
B-A. Mosby's-ProcedureOnline Clinical Skills: Intravenous Therapy: Initiation
A2V, REQUIREMENTS FOR CLINICIANS PROVIDING INTERVENTIONS:
A Current California RN license
B. Initial Evaluation: Orientation
C Ongoing Evaluation: Ongoing
| V=VI. DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A. Method: This Standardized Procedure was developed through collaboration with Nursing,
Medicine and Administration.
B. Review: Every 2 years or review procedure per Hospital policy.

| MLVIL. V. _CLINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM THIS STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A. All Registered Nurses who have successfully completed requirements as outlined above are
authorized to direct and perform Local Anesthetic Prior to Intravenous Insertions

152



@"‘? Tri-City Medical Center | Tracked Changes Copy

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES POLIGCY-MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 6/02 SUBJECT: PatientOwned/Supplied-Medical
Equipment Brought into the Facility

REVISION DATE: 7/05, 7107, 3/10, 6/12 POLICY NUMBER: XI.E
Department Approval Date(s): 02/16
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 06/1208/16
Nurse Executive Committee Approval: 09/16
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: 09/16
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 09/16
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 08/4210/16
Board of Directors Approval: 08/12
A POLICY:
1. To provide guidelines for patient owned/supplied equipment that is brought into the center.

B. DEFINITION:

1. Patient-Supplied Equipment (PSE) relates to medical equipment supplied by the patient or
family that is brought into the hospital for use during the patient’s stay- (examples may include:
patient owned medical equipment, medical equipment that is being rented loaned/leased, loaner
equipment from other hospitals, doctor owned, or vendor supplied equipment for use by the
patient, etc.)

te—the—paﬂem—that—Trl City Healthcare Dlstrlct’s (TCHD):FGM-G—S standard of care is to use
hospltal -owned equment whenever possiblesed-theloxsanionsararads-onboshen MO

a. Patients with continuous home parenteral therapy should not have therapy interrupted
until pharmacy services can assess, provide, and continue the medication safely.

b. Prohibited PSE (Prohibited List): The following types of PSE are NOT allowed to be
used in the hospital under any circumstances (the examples are illustrative only and are
not all inclusive):

i. Equipment that is not approved by the Food and Drug Administration for
sale/distribution or use under the Investigation Device Exemption (IDE)
regulation within the United States;

X Defibrill

153



Patient Care Services Policy Manual
| Medical Equipment Brought into the Facility Equipment—XLC-

Page2of 5

4:3.

L

2)—7ulomaled Exiernal Defibrilalor tAED)

B peaorole araigesia (POApumpe
. .. ' .

4c. Any equipment that does not meet the electrical safety standards required for medical
equipment or use in the hospitals.
e-d. Even if the device is mechanically and electrically sound, there may still be reasons to
prohibit its use. These reasons may include, but are not limited to the following:
i. If the equipment requires audible alarms that cannot be provided;
. If the equipment has alarms that can be defeated without clinical staff
intervention;
ii. If the patient should become incapacitated or is otherwise unable to maintain
their, equipment the hospital may provide substitute equipment-:
iv. Any reason that TCMC deems reasonable that may place the patient’s safety at
risk-
Upon the patient’s request to use PSE, the nurse caring for the patient should explain to the
patient that TCHD’s standard of care is to use hospital owned equipment whenever

possible.

a. If patient is agreeable to the use of hospital equipment, change the PSE to
hospital equipment and send PSE home with family member (if family member
available)

2-b. If the patient refuses hospital equipment and requests use of PSE the patient’s
physician and clinical staff will determine whether the equipment is medically appropriate
for the patient's condition. The patient or family members must have the capacity,
adequate training, and experience, to operate the equipment safely.

3. If the equment is deemed medlcally appropnate- and-theclinical-staff deems

Pnor to aIIowmg patlents to utilize thelr own equipment, a nurse/de3|gnee in the cllnlcal

department where the patlent is being treated, will verifyfcomplete-the following-for-patient

a. Verify Aa physman s order has been obtained and entered in Cerner approving the
use of the patient’s equipment.
b. EnsurePriorto-use-of- the-PSE-while-inthe-facility; the patient or legal representative
must-signs a liability waiver (See Patient-Supplied Equipment Waiver) for use of PSE.
i. The signed waiver shall be placed in the patient’s chart.
aidi.  If the waiver is declined, or if the device does not meet clinical or electrical safety
standards, the equipment will not be allowed to be used in the hospital.

b-c.  GClinical-nursingstati-has-completed-a-vVisually inspectien the PSE (assessing for

damage to the device, infestation with insects, excessively soiled.)

ed. The-exteriorshall-be-theroughlywWiped down the PSE with germicidal disinfectant
(example: Sani-Wipe), being careful around any electrical portions. If there are any
concerns related to infection control, the Infection Preventionist shall be contacted at
Eextension- 7410 or 5696-3007.

d-e. Notify Bio-Med shall-be-netified-as soon as possible that a PSE device has been
brought into the facility and the required inspection and safety checks must be
completed. The safety check must be completed within 24 hours of the device being
brought into the facility (Monday-Friday).

154



Patient Care Services Policy Manual
| Medical Equipment Brought into the Facility Equipment—XLC-

Page 3 of 5

i. If the device is brought in during the weekend, then-the nurse should complete a
thorough visual inspection for any frayed wires and plug, and Bio-Med shali be
notified first thing Monday morning that a safety inspection is needed.

ii. The exception to this rule is any use of life-support devices such as a ventilator,
which must be inspected by Bio-Med prior to any use within the medical center,
(Off hours and weekends contact the Administration Supervisor to notify Bio-

Med).
ef. Bio-Med shall label the device as Non-Hospital Owned Equipment with the date of their
inspection.
£g. If the medical device does not have alarms and failure of the device could lead to

potential harm to the patient, then the clinical staff members must use adequate
oversight or alternate means to monitor the patient’s well being ( example: pulse
oximeter).

g-h.

Neote:For Aany concerns or questions, please contact

h.a. The Director of Risk Management for risk issues

kb. The Chief Nurse Executive for patient care issues

FC. The Management of Clinical Engineering for medical equipment issues.

E-:D. SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS:

1.

Insulin Pumps:

a. See Patient Care Services (PCS) Policy: Self-Administered Continuous
Subcutaneous Infusion of Insulin (Insulin Pump Therapy) for the Acute Care
Patient

Wearable Defibrillator:

a. See PCS Policy: Wearable Defibrillator (LifeVest)

Implanted Pain Pumps:

a. The admitting physician will be notified immediately -the patient has an
implantable pain pump.

2b. The admitting physician will attempt to contact the original prescribing physician
of the pain pump for information on continuing, stopping or dlsconnectmg

c. The admitting physician will enter orders regarding the status of the pain pump.

i. If the medication will continue during hospitalization, the medication that is
being infused by the pain pump must be entered into the electronic health
record.

1) This will include the drug, dose, total volume, rate and volume
infused.

2) The order must specify that the drug is infusing through pain pump.

4H3) The nurses will document on the electronic medication record

(eMAR) daily.
Ambulatory Infusion Pump (AIP):
a. The admitting physician will be notified immediately that the patient is wearing an
AlIP.
b. Admitting physician will attempt to contact the original prescribing physician of

the AIP for information on continuing, stopping or disconnecting.

i. Admitting physician may also call the number located on the AIP for other
information.

ii. If the medication is a chemotherapeutic agent, the medication must be
administered/discontinued by TCHD Chemotherapy Competent Registered
Nurse (see PCS Procedure: Chemotherapy Administration).

c. The admitting physician will enter orders regarding the status of the AIP

i. If the medication will continue during hospitalization, the medication that is

being infused by the AIP must be entered into the electronic heaith record.

155



Patient Care Services Policy Manual
| Medical Equipment Brought into the Facility Equipment—xXkG:

Page 4 of 5
2)1)  This will include the drug, dose, total volume, rate and volume
infused.
2) The order must specify that the drug is infusing through AIP.
b:3) [If the AIP is continued, nurses will document on the eMAR daily.
=EE.  FPORMSILOCATED CRIMFRAMNET:

1. Patient—Su_;;pIied Equipment Waiver Sample

RELATED DOCUMENTS

1. Outpatient Infusion Center Procedure: Ambulatory Infusion Pumps

2, PCS Policy: Self-Administered Continuous Subcutaneous Infusion of Insulin (Insulin
Pump Therapy) for the Acute Care Patient

4:3. PCS Policy: Wearable Defibrillator (LifeVest)

4, PCS Procedure: Chemotherapy Administration

156



Patient Care Services Policy Manual

| Medical Equipment Brought into the Facility Equipment—XkC-
Page5of 5

| PATIENT SUPPLIED EQUIPMENT WAIVER SAMPLE

This Patient Supplied Equipment Waiver between Tri-City Healthcare District (Tri-City) and
(Patient) is entered into on , 20__. Patient or legal representative must initial each statement in order
to use Patient Supplied Equipment in Tri-City Healthcare District facility.

Type of Device used: (Do not use for Insulin Pump, refer to Insulin
Pump Policy)

| understand that | have voluntarily brought my equipment into a Tri-City facility for my use during my stay at a Tri-
City facility.

| certify that | have been trained on how to use and repair this equipment, and that | am fully capable of using and
repairing the equipment.

| understand that Tri-City performed an inspection of my equipment. This inspection is not a warranty that the
device is safe or free from defects. | am not relying on Tri-City's inspection of the equipment to ensure its safety or my
proper use.

[ understand that Tri-City may unilaterally determine without warning to me that | may no longer use my equipment.
Tri-City may replace my equipment with its own equipment.

| understand that by signing this document, | hereby waive any claim or right of action against Tri-City related to my
use of my equipment. | release Tri-City and its employees, agents, and assigns from any and all liability resulting from the
use, operation, damage to, and repair of my equipment by myself, Tri-City, and any of its employees.

By agreeing to the above terms and conditions, | expressly assume the risks that may result from bringing personal
medical equipment into a Tri-City facility. | release Tri-City from any damages, and agree to indemnify, hold harmless, and
defend Tri-City, its employees, affiliates, directors, officers, subsidiaries, and agents against any and all liability arising out
of the negligent operation of use of the medical equipment by me or my family or visitors. | acknowledge and agree that in
no event shall Tri-City be liable for any indirect, special, consequential, incidental, or punitive damages, loss, or expense
associated with the use of personal medical equipment by me or my family and/or visitors. This agreement shall be legally
binding on me and my designated family member(s) and/or visitors operating my personal medical equipment. My
signature below indicates | have read this agreement, understand it, and agree to be bound by its terms.

Patient or Legal Surrogate Date
Family Member if Operating Equipment Date
| WitnessTri-City District Hospital Representative Date

157



@‘9 Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

STANDARDIZED PROCEDURES MANUAL

STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: ORDERING-12 LEAD ECG-FOR-DROPERIDOL ADMINISTRATION,

MONITORING,-OF DRORERIDOL-AND/OR DISCONTINUING DRUG

l. POLICY:
A. Function: To provide direction for the use and monitoring of droperidol at Tri-City Medical Center
(TCMC).
B. Circumstances:
| 1. Setting: Cardiac Cath Lab, cardiac monitoring nursing units (Intensive Care Unit (ICU)-or
Telemetry) Tri-City Medical Center
2. Supervision: None
| 3. Patient Contraindications: 12 Lead electrocardiogram (ECG) QTc greater than 440
milliseconds
C. Definitions:
1. The safe administration of droperidol requires the QTc interval on the 12 Lead ECG be
less than 440 milliseconds.
2. The safe administration of droperidol requires that the patient be monitored continuously
for cardiac dysrhythmia for three (3) hours after the drug is given.
3. Current is defined as during the present hospitalization.
4. QTc is the corrected QT interval that is independent of a heart rate.
Il. PROCEDURE:
A. The attending physician initiates the process by ordering droperidol for the patient.
' B. The Registered Nurse (RN) checks the chart for the most recent 12 Lead ECG.
1. RN shall order a 12 Lead ECG, if there is not a recentn ECG thatis-dere completed
during this hospitalization available on the chart.
l C. RN or physician shall check the QTc interval thatis-electronically measured and printed on the
12 Lead ECG
| 1. Do not administer droperidol if QTc interval is greater than 440 milliseconds.
2. Discontinue droperidol and notify the physician for alternative medication.
3. If physician specifically orders droperidol despite QTc greater than 440, document QTc
and physicians awareness of QTc.
D. The RN shall document the QTc interval on the medication record as soon as possible after the
order is transcribed.
1. Right click ‘Comments’ and document the QTc interval.
E. The patient shall be monitored for the following for 3 hours after the droperidol has been
administered:
1. Cardiac effects (new onset tachycardia, orthostatic hypotension, hypertension, abnormal

T waves, prolongation of the QT from baseline and ventricular tachycardia.)

i. If prolongation of the QT from baseline is noted, obtain a 12 lead ECG and check
the QTc.

2. Extrapyramidal reactions, seizures or any of the following:

i. Dystonic reactions (neck rigidity, swollen tongue, and oculogyric crisis)

ii. Tardive dyskinesia (repetitive, involuntary, purposeless movements, grimacing,
tongue protrusion, lip smacking, puckering and pursing, rapid eye blinking, rapid
movements of the arms, legs, and trunk may also occur. Involuntary movements

) Clinical Nurse Division of Pharmacy . Medical Professional B
Roview | Folikes | Becule | Cudoiows | rurmpas | commie | DocUve || AT | Diecion
6/1016/'1:(}?55‘/%?8 120102113, | 12110, 213 s LT3, |10, | 2, 0, 1016 1‘;’,%‘;:&?%%?&

158



Standardized Procedure Manual
Standardized Procedure: Ordering 12 Lead ECG for Administration of Droperidol and/or Discontinuing the Drug
Page 2 of 2

of the fingers may appear as though the patient is playing an invisible guitar or
piano.)
iii. Pseudoparkinsonian signs and symptoms
3. Increased drowsiness and sedation

F. The RN shall recheck the QTc interval if giving repeated doses of droperidol using the most
recent ECG.
1. Repeat process outlined in steps A - E when administering subsequent doses of
droperidol.
G. Documentation
1. Notify the physician and document in the medical record the presence of the
following:
i. Cardiac effects
ii. Extrapyramidal reactions;-seizures-and-any-of-the-following:
iii. Pseudoparkinsonian signs and symptoms
2. When administering medications or implementing orders from a standardized
procedure, the RN shall enter the medication/order into the electronic health
record as a standardized procedure.
i. Not required if a screening process triggers the order.

rY

EQUIREMENTS FOR CLINICIANS INITIATING STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

Current California RN license.

Current Advanced Cardiac Life Support card.

Cere-Primary RN staff ef-a-aniton with continuous cardiac monitoring at TCMCr-Gity-Medical
Centar,

Initial Evaluation: During Department Orientation.

Ongoing Evaluation: Annually during Skills Lab.

PO pw>

m

<
o]

EVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

Method: This Standardized Procedure was developed through collaboration with Nursing,
Medicine, and Administration.

Review: Every two (2) years.

o @ >

LINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM THIS STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
All RNs egistered-Nurses who have successfully completed requirements as outlined above are

Z|

-----

159



Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: PNEUMOCOCCAL AND INFLUENZA VACCINE SCREENING AND
ADMINISTRATION

l. POLICY:
A Function:

1. To provide guidelines to the Registered Nurse (RN) when administering
Pneumococcal and/or Influenza Vaccine(s) to the appropriate patient(s) as indicated
per criteria set forth by the Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee and the Medical
Executive Committee.

2. To provide guidelines when a physician does not want the patient to receive the
vaccine(s).

B. Circumstances for Pneumococcal Vaccine:

1. Setting: Tri-City Medical Center

2. Supervision: None required

3. Exclusions: Immunization in Laberand-Deliverythe laboring patient and women
currently pregnant will be according to physician orders and not this standardized
procedure

4, Patient indications:

a. Pneumococcal Vaccine Risk Assessment for all patients 6-65 years and older.

b. The-Prevnar 13Pneumocoscal-\aessine-should be given ifany-of-the following
indications-are-met:to patients age 65 and older who have never received
Prevnar 13, Pneumovax 23 or have unknown vaccmat|on hlstory

C. If the patlent does not meet any—ef—the—abeve—md&eahaes—paﬁeni—m—N@Lat
high-rfisk—Decriteria above, do not immunize.

5. The Pneumococcal Vaccine should NOT be routinely given without a physician’s
order if the patient:
a. Has a contraindication:
Clinical Nurse Infection Pharmacy & Medical Professional
Deg:ﬁ?; nt 1 policies & Executive Control Therapeutics Int%r:’l:gm:;ary Executive Affairs gi?:;?o‘:;
Procedures Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee
12/11, 2/15, 12/1, 07/15, 1/12, 07/15, 1/12, 09/15, 2/12, 09/15, .
3/086, 1/15 06/15, 01/16 01/16 07/15, 03/16 01/16 07/16 09/16 10/15, 10/16 2/12; 1015

160



Patient Care Services Standardized Procedure: Pneumonia and Influenza Vaccine Screening and Administration

Page 2 of 3

. Had a prewous reactlon to the Pneumococcal vaccme
therapyHas recewed chemotherapy or radlatlon W|th|n the last 2
weeks

viv. Has received the shingles vaccine (Zostavax) within the last 4
weeks

b. Ordered not to have vaccine by physician
C. Refuses or advocate refuses
6. If no exclusion criteria identified, then immunize
C. Circumstances for Influenza Vaccine:
1. Setting: Tri-City Medical Center
2. Supervision: None required
3. Exclusions: Immunization in Laberand-Beliverythe laboring patient will be
according to physician orders and not this standardized procedure
4, Patient indications
a. Influenza Vaccine Risk Assessment for all patients 6 months of age and older:
b. The Influenza Vaccine should be given to patients admitted and/or discharged
during the normal flu season until the vaccine is no longer available, if any of
the following indications are met:

i. Age 6 months and older

ii. Women who will be pregnant during the influenza season (October
through March) NOTE: Influenza vaccine is not contraindicated at any
stage of pregnancy

iii. Women who are knowingly pregnant shall receive single-dose
preservative free* vaccine (*Not to exceed 1mcg of Thimerosal per
0.5mL dose.)

1) Pharmacy to provide single-dose syringe/vial for knowingly
pregnant women if available

iv. Influenza immunization history is unknown by patient or advocate

5. The Influenza Vaccine should NOT be given if the patient:
a. Has contraindication

i. Has allergy to eggs or reaction to prior influenza vaccine (i.e.,
anaphylactic allergic reaction)

ii. Had diagnosis of Guillian-Barre Syndrome within six (6) weeks of
vaccination (will be left up to the individual healthcare provider to
decide if recommended)

iii. Received bone marrow transplant within past six (6) months

iv. Had a previous influenza immunization this flu season)

b. Ordered not to have vaccine by physician
c. Refuses or advocate refuses
6. If no exclusion criteria identified, then immunize
I PROCEDURE:
A. During the initial assessment, the RN will complete the Pneumococcal /Influenza Vaccination

Adult Immunization Assessment Screen in Cerner to determine whether or not the

vaccinations are indicated according to the following criteria:

1. If the patient meets any inclusion criteria and no exclusion criteria, the RN will inform
the patient/advocate that they are eligible for the vaccination(s), give the
patient/advocate the vaccination information sheet(s), and plan to administer the
vaccination(s).

2. If the RN is unsure of whether the patient is a candidate for the vaccine(s), the
physician should be contacted for specific orders.

161



Patient Care Services Standardized Procedure: Pneumonia and Influenza Vaccine Screening and Administration
Page 3 of 3

B. Unless the physician has signed an order to withhold the Pneumococcal and/or Influenza
vaccine, remove the age appropriate dose assigned by pharmacy from the Pyxis Medication
station and administer the vaccine(s).

C. For patients in the Emergency Department, the Pneumococcal and/or Influenza vaccine
should be administered at the time the physician order is received.

Ml DOCUMENTATION:

A. Document the vaccine administration in the medical record.
B. Document vaccine lot number and site of administration.
C
D
E

Document that the Vaccination Information Sheet was given to the patient.

Document refusal of immunizations.

When administering medications or implementing orders from a standardized procedure, the
Registered Nurse shall enter the medication/order into the electronic health record

1. Not required if a screening process triggers the order

V. PATIENT EDUCATION:

A. If the patient meets inclusion criteria, the RN will review the Pneumococcal and Influenza
Vaccine Information sheet(s) with the patient and give the patient a copy.
B. For transfers to skilled nursing facilities and other hospitals, print and send a copy of the

Immunization Tab indicating vaccine(s) administered, with a copy of the Medical Record.

V. REQUIREMENTS FOR R.N. INITIATING STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
. Current California RN license
. Initial evaluation: Orientation
. Ongoing evaluation: Annually with Skills Lab/Skills ValidationOngoing

VI. EVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A
c

A

B

C

D
Method: This Standardized Procedure was developed through collaboration with Nursing,
Medicine, and Administration.

B Review: Every 2 years or review procedure per Hospital policy.

Vil.  CLINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
A. All RNs who have successfully completed requirements as outlined above are authorized to

direct and perform Administration of Pneumococcal and/or Influenza Vaccine.

162



Tracked Changes Copy

2
@‘é) Tri-City Medical Center

Distribution: Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE: SPONGE,SHARPS & INSTRUMENT COUNTS, PREVENTION OF RETAINED SURGICAL
OBJEGTS ITEMS
Purpose: To outline nursing responsibilities and accountability regarding speRges;sponges sharps,

and instrument counts in the surgical/procedural areas.

Supportive Data:

Sponges, sharps, and instrument counts are doneperformed induring surgerylinvasive
procedures to provide for safe patient care and prevent retained surgical items. as-an
avenue-of-acceuntability-and-legalrespensibility. Counts for sponges/soft goods,
sharps, and instruments are performed to account for all items used on the surgical
field and to lessen the potential for injury to the patient as a result of a retained
surgical item. All items are to be counted except those used for storage or disposal of
items.

Equipment: White Board, White Board Marker, Count Sheet(s), Sponge holders
A POLICY:

1. S Sponges, sharps and miscellaneous items counts are required shal-be-counted-on all
procedures except eyes and cystoscopies.-in-which-the possibility-exists-that these-items-can
beralained:

2. AII counts shaII be conducted both audlbly and V|sually
a. Counted items shall be visualized by both the scrub person and circulator/designee, one

of whom must be a Registered Nurse (RN). the-sireulating-Registered- Nurse(RN)-or

b. At time of permanent relief of either the scrub or circulating RN, direct visualization may
not be possible; the team shall account for all items.

3. A count may be initiated by any member of the perioperative team.-invelved-inthe-counting
Srosese;

4, Unnecessary activity and distractions should be omitted during the counting process.

4:5.  To the extent possible, the initial count shall be completed before the patient is brought
into the OR.

6. Counts may be omitted in an extrerre-emergency.

a. The emergent nature of a procedure or an unexpected change in the condition of
the patient may necessitate omission of counts to preserve patient life or limb. In
such cases, counts may be waived on order of the surgeon. The surgeon will
document the omission of the count and rationale for the practice variation in the
medical record.

b. If counts were omitted due to extremean emergency, x-ray shall be performed and

read prior to the beginning-ef-wound-clesurecompletion of skin closure.
E X . | priorto-t loti ¢ el .

. Clinical Policies & Nursing Operating Medical Executive Profescional Board of
Revigion Dates Procedures Executive Council Rog Committee Sifirs Directors
Committee Committee
3/03, 4/06, 08/09; . . . . . . . .
05/12:01/13:06/14; 06/12; 7{13. 5/14, 06/12; 2/13; 5/14; 614, 01116 07/12;7/14; 09/16 08/12;10/14, 08/12:11/14
4115; 09115 11/15; 02/16 02/16 10/16

163



Patient Care Services Manua}
Sponge, Sharps & Instrument Counts, Prevention of Retained Surgical Objects

Page 2 of 7
i Document events regarding the nature of the emergency.
ii. Document the name of physician reading the x-ray and the x-ray results.
Ziii. Complete an incident report.
377. aute Hed Az E=1EHRE :‘:.' GO
8. If a patient is transferred to another department for completion of the procedure (i.e.,

transferred from OR to Interventional Radiology or transferred from Labor and Delivery to
OR), an x-ray must be performed and read for retained surgical items prior to the
completion of weundskin closure.

5:9. Sponge, sharps and miscellaneous item Ccounts shall be written on the white board.
Instrument counts shall be recorded on the instrument count sheet(s).

B. PROCEDURE:

6-1. wsSurgical counts
a. Baseline count: Count Bbefore the procedure begins to establish the baseline and
identify manufacturer packaging errors.
b. New item count: WherCount new items are-added to the field after the baseline count is
complete.
c. Relief count: Count Aat the time of permanent relief of the scrub or RN circulator.
&l The relief count is performed by the incoming scrub and/or circulator who
are assuming responsibility for the count as it stands at the time of relief.
&d.  Cavity count: Count Bbefore closure of a cavity withina-eavity-(eg. Uterus, bladder,
stomach, peritoneum, placement of mesh to close a space)
d-e. Closing count: When—Count before wound closure begins
f. Final count: Count Aafter skin closure or end of procedure, when surgical items are no
longer in use and all sponges (used erand unused) are passed off the field, separated into
sponge holders and confirmed by the surgical team.
2. Count in the following order:
a. Sponges
b. Needles
c. Other sharps and miscellaneous items
d. Instruments
3. Count items in the following sequence:
a. Operative field

b. Mayo stand
C. Back table

164



Patient Care Services Marual
Sponge, Sharps & Instrument Counts, Prevention of Retained Surgical Objects
Page 3 of 7

e-d. Items off field

4, Items passed off or dropped from the sterile field shall be retrieved by the circulating nurse,
isolated from the field and included in the final count. Countable items must never be
subtracted from the count or removed from the operating room.

5. Members of the surgical team shall account for broken or separated instruments/items within the
surgical field.

#6.  Multi-part items shali be counted as one unit (eg, hypo and cap is counted as one unit),
unless otherwise specified on the count sheet/whiteboard. Account for all individual
pieces of multi-part items.

8:7. Iltems added to the field need to be recorded at the time they are added.

a. Once the count has begun, recalled memory and/or counting packages cannot be used to
reconcile a count.
b. The number on the whiteboard/count sheets must match the number of items on the field
at the time of the count, or the count is considered incorrect.
8. The count is to be recorded on the count board using a horizontal superscript running total

format (i.e., 10'°20"°30'°40). No additional slashes, initials, equal signs or extraneous
marks are to be made.

9. The person adding countable items to the field is responsible for recording the items on
the count board.
a. If items are added by anyone other than the primary RN circulator, the person
adding the items shall verbally report the additions to the primary RN circulator.
10. Inform primary surgeon of the count outcomes.
11. Incorrect Counts:
a. Inform primary surgeon of count discrepancies
b. The surgeon should perform a methodical wound examination and a thorough
search of all areas should be completed by the surgical scrub and circulating nurse.
c. Search the total room including floor, trash and linen:

i If item is not found, an X-ray of the patient must be taken prior to patient
leaving the operating room.
1) X-ray is not required if the missing item is not X-ray detectable.
il If item missing is micro or CV needile (C-1 or smaller), X-ray is not needed.
iif. Complete an incident report.
d. Ensure sterile field remains sterile until item is found or x-ray is read
e. Inform Assistant Nurse Manager (ANM)/charge nurse/designee of count
discrepancies
12. X-ray interpretation for incorrect counts, emergencies, and X-ray in lieu instrument counts:
a. When possible, it is highly recommended that a radiologist read the X-ray before the
woundskin is closed and the results of the reading, along with the name of the
person who read the X-ray, are documented.
b. At a minimum, the surgeon must interpret the film intraoperatively.
13. If an item is used to occlude the colpotomy during a da Vinci hysterectomy (i.e., asepto or
glove), it becomes a countable item and must be accounted for at the end of the case.

C. SPONGES/SOFT GOODS COUNT:
1. Sponges (laps, baby laps, raytex) are issued in groups of ten.
2. The following counts are required for sponges/soft goods:

Baseline count

New item count

Relief count

Cavity count

Closing count

®Poooo

165



Patient Care Services Manual
Sponge, Sharps & Instrument Counts, Prevention of Retained Surgical Objects
Page 4 of 7

f. Final count

8:3. Baseline sponge counts shall be performed in the quantity as packaged by the
manufacturer in order to identify manufacturer packaging errors (i.e., laps are counted in
multiples of five and raytex are counted in multiples of ten), total count in multiples of ten.

4. If a package of sponges/soft goods is found to be defective when opened (e.g. wrong
number, damaged, contaminated) the package and its contents will be removed
immediately from the field, placed in a plastic bag, labeled and removed from the operating
room.

5. Sponges shall be counted in order from largest sponge to smallest sponge (eg, laps then
baby laps, then raytex).

6. All sponges shall be X-ray detectable.

a. Never use X-ray detectable sponges for wound dressings
7. Count each sponge and separate from other sponges during the count
8. Remove all packing and wrapping materials and promptly discard in the trash
a9.  All sponges must be opened and visualized during closing counts and separated into sponge

holders.

ka. At the end of skin closure ALL sponges are passed off the field, separated, opened to full
length and placed in sponge holders.

#b.  Use a separate sponge holder for each sponge type (i.e. one for laps, one for raytex).

fic.  Only one sponge should be placed in each pocket of the sponge holder.

id. Load the sponge holder horizontally from the bottom row to the top row, filling first the
bottom two pockets and continuing upwards. This process will make visual determination
of the filled holder easier to see from the OR table so empty pockets will be clearly visible
to all in the room.

we. Place the sponge inside the pocket with the blue tag or blue stripe visible.

vif.  Place one sponge per pocket, two sponges per peush-{orrow), and 10 sponges per
sponge holder.

vikg. When a holder has 10 sponges, there will be no empty pockets.

viith.  The final sponge count earret-CANNOT be considered completed until ALL sponges
opened during the case are bagged and visualized by the surgical team.

bi.  The sponge holders are not disposed of until the patient leaves the OR.

10. Towels used in an open wound shall be x-ray detectable and shall be included in the count
as miscellaneous items.

a. Scrub person teshall notify the circulating RN when the-a towel is placed in a
wound/cavity and when it has been removed-from-the-abdomen

B
D. SHARPS AND MISCELLANEOQOUS ITEMS COUNTS:
1. The following counts are required for sharps and miscellaneous items:
a. Baseline count
b New item count
c. Relief count
d. Cavity count
e. Closing count
f. Final count
2. Packaged needles containing an incorrect number shall be removed from the room.
3. All used needles are to be placed in a puncture-proof needle counter box.
a. Place one needle in each numbered slot; do not double-up needles in a numbered
slot.
b. Obtain an additional needle counter box if the initial needle counter box is full.
4. Counting number of needle packages may not be used to reconcile an incorrect needle
count.

B:E. INSTRUMENT COUNTS:

166



Patient Care Services Manual
Sponge, Sharps & Instrument Counts, Prevention of Retained Surgical Objects

Page 5of 7
1. The following counts are required for instruments:
a. Baseline count
b. Relief count
c. Closing count
2. The instrument count is driven by the instrument count sheet, used as a checklist. The

circulating nurse/designee directs the instrument count by reading off the instrument
count sheet and visualizing the counted instruments with the scrub.
a. All instruments shall remain within the OR during the procedure until all counts are
completed and resolved
i. Individual pieces of assembled instruments shall be accounted for within the
instrument count; (e.g., suction t|ps w1ngnuts blades sheaths)

2:3.

ean-beretained: counts are required for cases entermg the abdominal, thoracic,

mediastinal, and retroperitoneal cavities.

a. Instrument counts -isare required for any procedure where the ehest-or-periteneum-is
entered-and-the-incision is large enough for an instrument (including instrumentation,
such as screws) to pass through.

a-b. Instruments shall be counted at the start of all hernia repairs, laparoscopy, thoracoscopy
and robotic procedures since the possibility of converting to an open procedure or
extending the incision exists.

i. If the procedure does not convert to an open procedure or the incision is not
extended to be larger than the smallest instrument used on the case, the
closing instrument count does-net-reedte-be-verified-at-the-end-of the-casemay
be waived.

c. Closing linstrument counts are required for Vvaginal Hhysterectomies and
Llaparoscopic Aassisted Vvaginal Hhysterectomies. For all other vaginal
procedures the surgeon is to perform a sweepmethodical wound examination of the
vaginal cavity at the conclusion of the procedure to ensure items are not retained in
the vagina.

d. Instrumentcounts-may-be-omifted-ininstrument counts may be omitted in certain
cases with numerous and/or complex instruments or instrumentation. An X-ray is
taken before the start-ef-woeundcompletion of skin closure to confirm instruments
are not left in the wound. The following cases shall use an X-ray in lieu of
instrument count:

i. All anterior, posterior, and lateral spine cases

iii. Cervical spine cases

iil. Total joint replacements (hips, knees and shoulders)

iv. Any orthopedic case using trays of screws, wires, or other complex
instrumentation
V. Any case using loaner trays or large numbers of instruments which is

prohibitive of completing an accurate instrument count.

vi. —Atthe-end-of the-procedurean-X-ray-is-completed-If fluoroscopy is being used
on the case, a fluoroscopic image may substitute for an X-ray if a permanent
copy of the image can be recorded and retained.

vii. Fhesurgeon-or-When possible, it is highly recommended that a radiologist may
read the X-ray before the patient leaves the OR and the results of the reading,
along with the name of the person who read the X-ray, are documented. Ata
minimum, the surgeon must interpret the film intraoperatively.

ke, Reverse total shoulder replacements: the surgeon shall announce when the
humeral protector is placed into the wound and when it is removed and the RN
circulator shall record it on the whiteboard.

167



Patient Care Services Manrual
Sponge, Sharps & Instrument Counts, Prevention of Retained Surgical Objects
Page 6 of 7

168



Patient Care Services Manual
Sponge, Sharps & Instrument Counts, Prevention of Retained Surgical Objects
Page 7 of 7

ocument verification of all counts in the OR record.

Types of counts (sponges, sharps, and instruments)
Cavity count must be written as a count

The number of counts

Names and titles of persons performing counts
Results of counts

| ©.F. DOCUMENTATION:
1.

Paooog

i. Actions taken if count discrepancies occur
ii. Rationale if counts are not performed or completed

if. Complete an incident report for all incorrect counts or waiver of counts in the event of
an emergency.

B-G. REFERENCES:

Nurses;-ire-AORN Guidelines for Periop;erative Practice, 2015 Edition.
4:2. Verna Gibbs, MD. NoThing Left Behind®: Prevention of Retained Surgical Iltems Multi-
Stakeholder Policy (2015).

169



Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES-POLICY MANUAL

ISSUE DATE:

3/02

SUBJECT: Utilization of Staff, Staffing Patterns

REVISION DATE: 6/03; 8/05; 5/06; 8/08; 6/09; 3/12 POLICY NUMBER: VIILLA

Department Approval: 09/16
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 04/1209/16
Nursing Executive Committee Approval: 04/1209/16
Medical Staff Department or Division Approval: n/a
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 071210/16
Board of Directors Approval: 07/12
A. POLICY:
1. Staffing patterns shall follow mandatory state regulations. In addition, patient acuity shall be
assessed to ensure appropriate staffing levels.
2. The Director/ Manager have accountability for staffing and work schedules.
3. Nursing staff to assist the Registered Nurse (RN) in the provision of patient care may be utilized

as follows:
Admmnstra’uve Supervisor (AS):

a.

iv.

Assumes responsibility for supervision of staff as a representative of
Administration.

Assumes administrative authority for the level of patient care and standards of
care.

Acts as liaison between all hospital staff, patients, families, physicians, directors
and administration for routine administrative decisions for their shift.

Manages internal and external supplemental staff in the absence of the

Operations-Manager-of-Staffing-Reseurce-Director, Education, Clinical

Informatics and Staffing.

Assnstant Nurse Manager (ANM)/designee:

Works under the direction of the Clinical/Operations Manager and/or Director.
Oversees direct and indirect patient care assignments.
Ensures patient care assignments are in writing and based on the following:

1) Patient — Level of care (intensity of care needs, treatments, and
medications, as determined by the Patient Classification System)

2) Environment: unit geography; location of assigned patients in relation to
each other; and safety

3) Technology: hemodynamic equipment, respiratory support equipment,
and frequency of required monitoring activities

4) Supervision: staff competence, skills/abilities; staff mix and workload
ability

5) Competency of delegating RN to carry out clinical and managerial
responsibilities

6) Availability of delegating RN for appropriate supervision of assigned staff
in relation to activity of unit and patient assignment of charge personnel

7) Regular staff members are responsible for overseeing students, per diem,

registry staff, and orientees
Document patient assignments each shift and include the following:

170



Patient Care Services Policy Manual
Utilization of Staff, Staffing Patterns — VIILA.

Page 2 of 3

1) Name of Assistant Nurse Manager/designee
2) Name of RN responsible to supervise and/or orient any RN or non-RN
personnel performing patient care, students, registry or traveler staff, or
private duty nurses.
3) Name of each caregiver by licensure category and specific assignments
listed by individual patient
4) Assigned break coverage for each licensed staff member to ensure
minimum staffing ratios are maintained at all times.
a) Documentation of break coverage shall include specific time of
break relief.
b) The same licensure or higher is required for break relief coverage.
V. Cerner staff assignment information will be electronically maintained in the
“Staffing Acuity” shared drive folder.

c. Registered Nurse (RN):
i. Works under the direct supervision of the Assistant Nurse Manager/designee.
if. Plans, supervise, and evaluate the care of all patients by using the nursing
process.
d. Proceduralinterventional-Radielogy Nurse:
i. RN whose primary responsibility is to assist with inpatiert-tnterventional
Radiolegy- invasive procedures.
1) Additional duties may be assigned by the Clinical Manager/designee
Hii.  If census and activity is low throughout the day, staffthe-lnterventional-Radiology
nAurse may be flexed.
pabien-ilavs
fe.  Unit Secretary (US):
i. A clerical worker who enters information into the computer system and assists
with reception duties.
ii. The ANM/Desigree US works under the direction of the RN and is supervised by
a charge nurse or clinical manager on duty.
g-f. Monitor Technician:
i. A trained person who has demonstrated competency in recognition of cardiac
arrhythmias.
ii. Works under the direction of the RN and is supervised by an ANM or designee
on duty.
h-g. CNA/ACT/Nursing Assistant/Mental Health Worker (MHW):
i. A trained person who has been taught to perform tasks involving direct care
services for patients.
ii. Works under the direction of the RN and is supervised by a ANM or designee on
duty.
izh. Technicians:

i. A trained person who demonstrates competency in caring for patients in
designated area of specialty.

ii. Works under the direction of the RN and is supervised by the ANM or designee
on duty.

Psychiatric Liaison:

i. A trained person (for example licensed MFT/LCSW) who is primarily
responsible to complete LPS patient assessments and provides complete

171



Patient Care Services Policy Manual
Utilization of Staff, Staffing Patterns — VIILLA.
Page 3of 3

B.

crisis intervention, including admission/transfer to a Crisis House and or
inpatient Behavioral Health Unit if necessary.

fii. Works under the direction of the Psychiatric Liaison Supervisor who
reports directly to the Behavior Health Unit Manager.

4, Volunteers, student nurses, patient-acquired private duty staff, externs, and patient safety
technicians may be utilized per policies.
5. Shift-To-Shift Staffing (if applicable)
a. Acuity Measurement - A Patient Classification assessment is conducted once per shift
for patients in all nursing units.
i. Labor & Delivery & Emergency Department are excluded and utilize census only
numbers.
b. The Assistant Nurse Manager/designee ensures all Patient Classification are completed
for their units by 1400 and 0200.
C. The Assistant Nurse Manager/designee then completes the staffing needed for the
next shift based on the acmty of the patlents, mlmmum stafflng ratlos and the
d. This information is communicated to the Staffing Office.
e. Staffing Office Reepresentatives shall place calls as requested by the Administrative
Supervisor or designee.
f. After all TCMC available resources have been effectively utilized, the Assistant Nurse
Manager/designee shall evaluate staffing the units using the TCMC tool.
i. Staffing needs or staffing reductions due to periods of decreased census and
patient requirements shall be coordinated by the Staffing Office, Managers,
Directors, and/or Administrative Supervisors. This includes ensuring rotations are
fair and equitable and specialized unit needs are covered.
RELATED DOCUMENTS:
1. Patient Care Services (PCS) Policy: Allied Health Students in the Patient Care Areas
2. PCS Policy: Nursing Students in Patient Care Areas
1.3. PCS Policy: Volunteers, Patient Care Services Departments

172



@‘3) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

INFECTION CONTROL MANUAL

SUBJECT: Influx of Infectious Patients: Epidemic Influenza or Other Respiratory Transmitted
Disease

ISSUE DATE: POLICY NUMBER: IC15.0

REVIEW DATE(S): 10/12
REVISION DATE(S): 10/09

Department Approval Date(s): 10/1204/16
Infection Control Committee Approval Date(s): 10/1204/16
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): n/a

| Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 14/1209/16
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 1112
FRI-CITY-MEDICAL- CENTER DISTRICT Section——nfection Conirel

Influenza-or-otherrespiratory

Infoction.C Lo . 10142 : tod i
Reviewed-10/12
MEGC-and Boeard:-14/2042

A. PURPOSE:
1. Provide a plan to manage patients requiring Droplet or Airborne Precautions when the
availability of rooms, staff, supplies or other recourses are limited. This plan is intended to
provide a decision pathway for initiating Code Triage and Code Orange status.

B. SUPPORTIVE DATA:
1. Influenza epidemic or pandemic are different from many threats for which public health and
the health-care system are currently planning**;

a. A pandemic will last much longer than most other emergency events and may include
“waves” of influenza activity separated by months (in 20th century pandemics, a
second wave of influenza activity occurred 3 to 12 months after the first wave).

b. The numbers of health-care workers and first responders available to work can be
expected to be reduced; they will be at high risk of iliness through exposure in the
community and in health-care settings, and some may have to miss work to care for ill
family members.

C. Because of how widespread an influenza pandemic may turn out, resources in many
locations could be limited.

[ ! Preparing for an Influx of Infectious Patients, Joint Commission:The Source, June 2009, Volume 7, Issue 6August2664
2 Influenza Pandemic Response Plan. California Department of Health Services, September 2001
3 California Department of Public Health Standards and Guidelines for Healthcare Surge During Emergencies, 2008

173



Infection Control

Influx Of Infectious Patients: Epidemic Influenza or Other Respiratory Transmitted Disease

Page 2 of 6

C. POLICY:
1. Most likely scenarios that would result in an influx of infectious patients include, but are not
limited to:
a. Epidemic influenza
b Epidemic gastroenteritis
cC. Epidemic exposure to suspected biological agent
d Epidemic biological agent (such as smallpox)
D. PROCEDURE:
1. Influx is localized to the Emergency Department (ED) due to:
a. Worried well seeking information or prophylaxis

b. Necessity for treatment of influenza symptoms which will result in discharge from ED:

i. Initiate Code Triage- during code triage implement limited command center
during business hours.

ii. Notify Shift Supervisor, Administrator On Call, ED Clinical Manager, Safety
Officer, Director of Engineering, and Infection Preventionist as directed-
Administrative CeerdinaterSupervisor

iii. Refer to Disaster Lockdown policy in the event of uncontrolled access.

ficc. The Emergency Operations Plan will be initiated as needed.
2. Level 1: 1-5 patients waiting for bed placement requiring isolation precautions
a. Notify Administrative Supervisor - ED lead Charge Nurse
b. Notify Shift Supervisor, Administrator On Call, ED Clinical Manager, Safety Officer,
Director of Engineering, and Infection Preventionist as directed- Administrative
SupervisorGCeerdinator
C. Notify Pulmonary lead (760) 802-1974 perform ventilator inventory
d. Assess all current inpatients for discharge or transfer potential- Bed
GCoordinaterSupervisor
e. Contact local skilled nursing facilities for bed availability- Case manager
f. Contact Public Health Department for coordination of patient placement- Infection
Control
g. Exceed the state mandated nurse-patient ratio, if needed- Chief Nurse Executive
h. Post security at ED entrances
i. Refer to Disaster Lockdown policy in the event of uncontrolled access.
3. Level 2: 6-10 patients waiting for bed placement requiring isolation precautions
a. Implement Patient Care Procedure, Code Triage Alert, Emergency Department
b. Assess all current inpatients for discharge or transfer potential- Bed Coordinator
C. Consider contacting local skilled nursing facilities for bed availability- Case manager
d Consider contacting the Public Health Department for coordination of patient
placement- Infection Preventionist/Safety Officer
e. Refer to Disaster Lockdown policy in the even of uncontrolled access.
4. Level 3: More than 11 patients waiting for bed placement requiring isolation precautions
a. Activate Code Orange- Chief Executive Officer (See Emergency Opérations Plan)

i. An internal disaster is declared when surge progresses beyond the ability of
an initial localized response to contain or suppress the event.

ii. In the event of an incident occurring outside of the Hospital, the need for mass
casualty support will be identified by the Ceounty Office of Emergency
Services and a “Annex D” notification will be transmitted by County
Communications System to the Emergency Department (ED). An “Annex D"
indicates an event has occurred somewhere and that patients with epidemic
influenza or respiratory transmissible disease may be sent to the hospital. The
ED will notify the Administrator-on-Call or Operations Supervisor of the Annex

174



Infection Control
Influx Of Infectious Patients: Epidemic Influenza or Other Respiratory Transmitted Disease
Page 30of 6

D notification, who will in turn advise the other members of the Emergency

Command Staff. See Appendix A for Pandemic Alert Phases.

1) Contact the County of San Diego Public Health: Geunty-Contast
point-—Station-M-at 858-565-5255. Ask for Station M. - This is
available 24/7 and to be utilized for emergencies only.(24/7

areadaliing
2) Activate Code Orange (if not already activated)
iii. Consider isolating a section of ED (Contact Engineering to facilitate)

b. For Novel viruses - Patients with oral temperatures >101°F on two successive
readings will require Standard and Droplet Precautions. If the suspect pathogen is
found to be transmitted via airborne route, than Standard and Airborne Precautions
will be initiated, if available. If the suspect pathogen is found to be transmitted via
direct/indirect (fomite) routes, then Contact Precautions will be added.

C. Use Airborne lliness Isolation Rooms for admissions: 143, 243, 443, 287, 387, 487
and MCH rooms 200, 201

d. When AlIR’s are fully utilized, use a private room with portable HEPA filter (call
Engineering)

e. Expedite discharge of inpatients who are able — Case Management
f. Consider available options for designating an inpatient isolation precautions unit or
clinical area.
g. Consult with Staffing Department for staff resource management.
h. In the event of Epidemic gastroenteritis
i. Assess need for:
1) Contact Precautions
2) Inventory private rooms available
3) When necessary cohort with like condition
4) Create a cohort patient care area using available facilities and

considering all options (e.g. in the Assembly Rooms 1-3 move Child
Care off site)
5) Create patient care areas in the parking lot
i. Supplies
i. MDC to perform daily inventory of medical supplies, and isolation supplies and
report
i. Supplies maintained on a three tier level
iii. Local inventor of stock (floor stock) will be maintained at higher levels

iv. When depleted utilize central storage (in-house) of critical supplies including
PPE, and strategic medical supplies will be maintained
V. When central storage is depleted distributer will maintain supply of inventory
readily available for distribution when needed.
j- Quarantine - Tri City Medical Center would most likely be a Type C Quarantine

facility. Type C facilities care for actual and suspect cases. This would include

individuals with:

i. Compatible symptoms and laboratory confirmation of the specific pandemic
strain of influenza (confirmed case)

ii. Compatible symptoms following suspected/known exposure with pending
laboratory confirmation (probable case)

iii. Atypical clinical symptoms following suspected or known exposure (suspect

case)

iv. Contacts under surveillance that become febrile with oral temperatures > 101°
F (38°C) on two successive readings.

V. Individuals with other associated symptoms such as coughing and fever

175



Infection Control

Influx Of Infectious Patients: Epidemic Influenza or Other Respiratory Transmitted Disease

Page 4 of 6

vi.

vii.

viii.

lIl persons requiring specialized health care may be isolated in a hospital, but,
depending on their medical needs, persons may also be isolated at home or in
a designated health care facility or community-based facility.

For non-hospital isolation, home/personal residence isolation is preferred and
will be utilized first unless a contraindication exists such as homelessness,
non-compliance with isolation or at-risk persons in the home with inability to
maintain separation.

Transportation to an isolation facility will be coordinated with the EMS DOC.

Bed availability

If there areis no hospital beds available, contact the County of San Diego
Public Health Station M for guidance -858-565-5255.

ProphyIaX|s Immunization requirements:

iv.

V.

Implement mass prophylaxis protocols.

Required for entry to facility if vaccine is available. NOTE: Prophylaxis may
not be available.

If no prophylaxis is available, individuals working with confirmed and suspect
cases must use Standard, and Airborne Precautions.

Strict respiratory hygiene to include frequent hand hygiene and masks must
also be enforced.

The Safety and Security Officer or designee will ensure that all personnel
who enter the facility have been recently prophylaxed with vaccine or antivirals
if available and are on the list of individuals who may enter the facility

Stafﬁng

V.
vi.

vii.

viii.

Maintain pre-epidemic staffing levels, if possible

If the number and types of staff are insufficient to meet the needs of the
number of people being contained, additional staff may be requested through
the County Emergency Operations Center (EOC)

Planning Chief will compile a list of individuals who can enter the facility. This
should be established in collaboration with the Public Health Officer and/or the
authorized designee.

The list will include the smallest possible number of people required for patient
care, disease investigation, and facility maintenance (physicians, nurses or
aides, laboratory personnel, housekeeping, dietary, and maintenance
personnel, etc.)

This list will be kept by the Personnel Pool Unit Leader or designee.
Consider cross training of staff to facilitate work flow

If isolation unit is established consider ancillary staffing including on-unit
Radiology, Lab and Respiratory Care staffing.

If child care is provided, screening for signs of illness including temperature
reading and recording may be indicated.

The Employee Health Director or designee will:

Ensure that employees monitor and report their temperature and any
symptoms every 12 hours until-

1) 14 days after they are vaccinated or
2) 14 days after they completed their antiviral prophylaxis or
3) 5 days after the date of last patient contact

Those personnel on the list to enter the facility that are not vaccinated or on
prophylaxis drugs will also monitor and report their temperature and any
symptoms every 12 hours and use personal protective equipment (PPE) while
in the facility until 14 days after they have been vaccinated, placed on antiviral
therapy when it becomes available or 5 days from date of last contact.

176



Infection Control

Influx Of Infectious Patients: Epidemic Influenza or Other Respiratory Transmitted Disease

Page 5 of 6

E.

iii. This access monitoring system will include a confidential log of all persons
who enter and leave, including staff, and will include each person’s
vaccination, antiviral treatment status, temperature and any symptoms
reported.

iv. Until 14 days after immunization, once vaccine is available, or completion of
antiviral therapy, all personnel will check their temperature every 12 hours. At
the beginning of each shift, they are to report their temperatures or any iliness
to the person assigned to monitor employees’ health. On off days, they are
required to be in telephone contact each morning to report their temperatures.
Once the waiting period is over, personnel are not required to routinely check
their temperatures. They are still required to report any illness.

V. Staff with febrile oral temperatures >101°F on two successive readings will not
be able to work.

0. Medical Staff Office
i. Refer to Medical Staff Disaster Plan (See Medical Staff Policy #8710-553)

ESiafReliey i 4048
p. Extended Epidemic- PRIORITIES
i. Sustained staffing
ii. Vaccine acquisition and distribution
ii. Antiviral medication acquisition and distribution

iv. Mask supply and reuse
V. Bed availability
Vi. Security
2 weeks 4 weeks 2 months 6 months
Staffing and Consider Request staff Train additional
possible housing staff at from outside staff to perform
quarantine hospital effected areas non-critical
functions
Medication Request Reprioritize
supply additional vaccination and
vaccine and antiviral
antiviral distribution
medications strategies
Supplies Request Consider Consider making
additional masks changes fo gauze masks, if
tissues, disposal | infection control supply of %
bags and hand practice related disposables is ‘
sanitizer to reuse of nearly exhausted
supplies

| Bed availability

\Use available

private rooms;

cohort with like
iliness

Consider transfer
to another facility

!
|
| Security
;
|
|

RELATED DOCUMENTS:

1.

24 hour
restricted access
to essential staff

only

Emergency Operations Plan

177



Infection Control
Influx Of Infectious Patients: Epidemic Influenza or Other Respiratory Transmitted Disease
Page 6 of 6

Appendix A -

World Health Organization (WHO) Stages of Alert Phases of a Pandemic
Pandemic Stage Definition

Novel (new) Virus Alert
*  Novel virus detected in one or more humans
* Little or no immunity in the general population
« Potential, but not inevitable precursor to a pandemic

Pandemic Alert
* Novel virus demonstrates sustained person-to-person transmission and causes multiple cases in the same
geographic area

Pandemic Imminent
* Novel virus causing unusually high rates of morbidity and mortality in widespread geographic areas

Pandemic
e Further spread with involvement of multiple continents

Second Wave
»  After the number of cases falls and the pandemic appears to be ending, typically a second wave of cases
occurs within several months

Pandemic Over

« Cessation of successive pandemic “waves”, accompanied by the return (in the U.S.) of the more typical
wintertime “epidemic” cycle

178



2
g‘i) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

MEDICAL STAFF POLICY MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 4/09 SUBJECT: Disaster Privileges
REVISION DATE: 9/09 POLICY NUMBER: 8710-553
Medical Staff Department Approval: 08/16

Credentials Committee Approval: 08/16

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 08/16

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 10/16

Board of Directors Approval:

A

B.

PURPOSE:

1. To provide a process to credential and grant Disaster Clinical Privileges or Practice
Prerogatives to Volunteer Practitioners and/or Allied Health Professionals (AHP’s), as
appropriate, in the event of a disaster when the HICS plan has been activated and the
hospital is unable to meet immediate patient care needs.

42, SCOPE and RESPONSIBIITY includes the Medical Staff Services Department of Tri-City
Medical Center or Designee and the designated Disaster Coordinator.

1. The following definitions shall apply fc::r purposes of this policy and procedure only.

b.

af.

Practitioner: A physician (M.D., D.O.), podiatrist (D.P.M.), dentist or oral
maxillofacial surgeon (D.D.S., D.M.D.)

Allied Health Professional (A HP) All health care professionals other than
Practitioners, as defined above, who are-classified-as-Dependent-practitionersto

work as-a-physician-extender under the direction of a supervising physician and
required by law and regulation to have a license, certificate or registration to

practice their profession and.

Surgical Tech, Orthopedic Tech shall be credentialed as follows:

i If a “tech” is employed by another hospital, they will be sent to Human
Resources for appropriate credentialing.

ii. Any “tech” who is not employed by another hospital will be credentialed
per this policy.

Volunteer Practitioner or AHP: A Practitioner who is not currently a member of

the medical staff of Tri-City Medical Center, or an AHP who has not been

credentialed as an AHP by the facility.

Disaster Clinical Privileges: Clinical Privileges granted to a Practitioner, as

defined above, pursuant to this policy and procedure.

Disaster Practice Prerogatives: Practice prerogatives granted to an AHP, as

179



Medical Staff Policy Manual
Disaster Privileges — 8710-553

Page 2 of 8

defined above, pursuant to this policy and procedure.

B-C. PROCEDURE:
Upon presentation to the hospital, Volunteer Practitioners and/or AHPs shall be directed
to the Hospital Representative responsible for disaster credentialing under the HICS

1.

plan.

a. Volunteer Practitioners and/or AHPs must sign in and present required
identification as follows:

i A valid government-issued photo identification issued by a state or federal

agency (e.g., driver’s license or passport), and at least one of the following:

1)
2)

3)

4)

5)

A current hospital photo ID badge that clearly identifies professional
designation;

A current license, certificate or registration to practice, as
appropriate;

Identification indicating the individual is a member of a Disaster
Medical Assistance Team (DMAT), or Medical Reserve Corps (MRC),
Emergency System for Advanced Registration of Volunteer Health
Professionals (ESAR-VHP), or other recognized state or federal
organizations or groups;

Identification indicating that the individual has been granted
authority to render patient care, treatment and services in disaster
circumstances (such authority having been granted by a deferral
state, or municipal entity); or

Identification of Volunteer Practitioners by current hospital or
medical staff members(s) who possess personal knowledge
regarding the Practitioner’s ability to act as a licensed independent
Practitioner during a disaster and of Volunteer AHPs by current
hospital member(s) who possess personal knowledge regarding the

180



Medical Staff Policy Manual

Disaster Privileges — 8710-553

Page 3 of 8

AHP’s qualifications.

Reqmred Documentation on the Disaster Privileges/Prerogative Approval Form:
i Name of Volunteer Practitioner or AHP (printed and signed)

ii. Specialty or AHP Category

iii. Office Address and Phone Number

iv. Professional License/Certificate/Registration Number and Expiration Date
V. Driver's License or Passport Number and Expiration Date

Vi. Date of Birth

Vii. Name of Professional Liability Insurance Carrier and Limits of Liability
viii. Name of Professional School and Year of Graduation

iX. Hospital Affiliation(s) and Staff Status

Verification Process:

i. The Hospital Representative shall verify professional licenses/certificates/
registrations as follows:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

Primary Source Verification:

a) Query the appropriate licensing/certification/registration
board on-line, e.g.= Medical Board of California website =
www.medbd.ca.gov - use for M.D.s, D.P.Ms and PAs;
California Osteopathic Medical Board = www.ombc.ca.gov —
use for D.O.s, California Board of Registered Nursing =
www.rn.ca.gov — use for R.N.F.A.s, N.P.s, C.N.M.s and other
R.N.s; Board of Behavioral Sciences = www.bbs.ca.qgov ---
use for M.F.C.C.s and L.C.S.W.s; California Psychology Board
= www.psychboard.ca.gov —-use for clinical psychologists,
and print verification if possible.

If computer access is not available, a copy (if possible) of the

Volunteer Practitioner’s or AHP’s professional

license/certificate/registration and driver’s license or other

identification shall be made and attached to the Disaster

Privilege/Prerogative Approval Form. If a copier is not available, the

Hospital Representative shall perform a visual verification of the

above documents, and document such verification.

If primary source verification of professional licensure/certification/

registration cannot be accomplished at the time of initial

credentialing, it must be performed as soon as the immediate
situation is under control and completed no later than seventy-two

(72) hours from the time the Volunteer Practitioner or AHP presented

to the campus. In extraordinary circumstances when primary

source verification cannot be completed within seventy-two (72)

hours (e.g., no means of communication or lack of resources) it

shall be accomplished as soon as possible. In this extraordinary
circumstance, the following must be documented:

a) Why primary source verification could not be performed in
the required timeframe;
b) Evidence of the Volunteer Practitioner's or AHP’s

demonstrated ability to continue to provide adequate care,
treatment, and services;
c) Attempt(s) to rectify the situation as soon as possible.
The Medical Staff Services Representative or designee shall query
the National Practitioner Data Bank (NPDB) and other sources as
needed as soon as the emergency situation has been contained.
Primary source verification shall not be required if the Volunteer
Practitioner or AHP has not provided care, treatment and services
under the Disaster Clinical Privileges or Practice Prerogatives, as

181



Medical Staff Policy Manual
Disaster Privileges — 8710-553
Page 4 of 8

appropriate.
d. Who May Grant Disaster Clinical Privileges/Practice Prerogatives:
i. As described in the Medical Staff PoliciesBylaws, the Chief Executive
Officer (CEQ) or Chief of Staff or their designees may grant Disaster
Clinical Privileges or Practice Prerogatives. The option to grant Disaster
Clinical Privileges or Practice Prerogatives to Volunteer Practitioners
and/or AHPs shall be made on a case-by-case basis in accordance with the
immediate needs of the hospital’s patients, based on the qualifications of
the Volunteer Practitioners and/or AHPs.
e. Temporary Badges:
i So that they may be readily identified, Volunteer Practitioners and/or AHPs
shall be issued badges containing the following information:

1) Name
2) Specialty or AHP category
3) Practicing with Disaster Clinical Privileges or Practice Prerogatives,

as appropriate.
f. Over5|ght

i. The Medical Staff shall oversee the care, treatment, and services provided
by a Volunteer Practitioner or AHP who has been granted Disaster Clinical
Privileges or Practice Prerogatives. Oversight shall be accomplished
whenever possible by partnering the Volunteer Practitioner or AHP with a
current credentialed medical staff member or AHP, as appropriate, to
observe or mentor the Volunteer Practitioner or AHP. If partnering is not
possible, oversight shall be by clinical record review. A Volunteer
Practitioner or AHP may be assigned additional responsibilities by the
Medical Staff Officer designated under the HICS plan.

g. Termination of Disaster Clinical Privileges/Practice Prerogatives:

i A Volunteer Practitioner’s or AHP’s Disaster Clinical Privileges or Practice
Prerogatives shall be terminated immediately in the event that any
information received through the verification process or otherwise
indicates adverse information or suggests the Volunteer Practitioner or
AHP is not capable of exercising Disaster Clinical Privileges or Practice
Prerogatives. Disaster Clinical Privileges and Practice Prerogatives are
time-limited and shall expire automatically at the time the CEO or designee
declares the disaster to be over, or that the services of Volunteer
Practitioners or AHPs are no longer required.

182



Medical Staff Policy Manual
Disaster Privileges — 8710-553
Page50f 8

E.D. REFERENCES:
1 The Joint Commission Standards

183



Medical Staff Policy Manual
Disaster Privileges — 8710-553
Page 6 of 8

APPLICATION FOR DISASTER PRIVILEGES
To be completed by the Volunteer Licensed Independent Practitioner/Volunteer Practitioner

Full Name:

Cell Phone Number:
Social Security Number:
Date of Birth:
Office Address, City, State, Zip Code:

Office Telephone:
Photo Identification Type (i.e., driver's license, government 1.D.)

Identifying Number:
Issuing State/Agency:
(If copy not obtained, list other information):

License (certification or registration) Number:
Issuing State:
Expiration Date:
(If copy not obtained, list issuing agency name/address/phone/other information)

Malpractice Insurance Carrier Name:
ielephone Number (if available):

Current Hospital Affiliation(s) — Facility(s) Name(s)
Address(s), City(s), State(s), Zip Code(s)
Telephone Number(s)

LIP/Volunteer Practitioner's Signature:

184



Medical Staff Policy Manual
Disaster Privileges —~ 8710-553
Page 7 of 8

VERIFICATIONS/APPROVAL

Review all documents and attach copies if possible. Conduct verification of information as possible

License/Certification/Registration:

Affiliation(s):
Insurance: NPDB: OIG: Other:

On Site Medical Staff Member’'s Name:
Responsibilities (following interview with volunteer Health Care Practitioner):

Assigned Partner:

Approved by: (print name, signature, title):

185



Medical Staff Policy Manual
Disaster Privileges — 8710-553
Page 8 of 8

CONSENT, ACKNOWLEDGEMENT & RELEASE OF INFORMATION
FOR DISASTER PRIVILEGES

I, the undersigned, hereby apply for disaster privileges as requested on this application. | acknowledge and agree to abide by the
Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations and applicable hospital policies. By applying for disaster privileges, | accept the following
conditions during the processing and consideration of my application and for the duration of my privileges, regardless of whether or not
I am granted the privilege requested:

1.

| agree the information provided in conjunction with this application is accurate and represents the current level of my training,
experience, capability, health status and competence to practice the disaster privileges requested.

I fully understand and agree that any significant misrepresentation, misstatement or omission from this application, whether
intentional or not, shall constitute cause for denial of requested disaster privileges. In the event that disaster privileges have
been granted prior to the discovery of such misrepresentation, misstatement or omission, such discovery may result in
summary termination of disaster privileges.

| hereby authorize my professional liability insurance carrier to notify the Chief of Staff or his agent, in the event that my
insurance coverage is terminated, canceled, modified or otherwise acted upon.

| understand and agree that as an applicant for disaster privileges that | have the burden of producing adequate information for
the proper evaluation of my professional competence, character, ethics, health status, and other qualifications and for
resolving any doubts about such qualifications. | agree to make myself available for interviews with regard to my application
and any peer review related matters during the time that | hold disaster privileges.

| agree to provide continuous care for my patients either personally or through an identified qualified member of the medical
staff.

Immunity is extended to the fullest extent permitted by law and | release from liability all persons, organizations, committees
and their agents from participating in good faith in requesting or supplying information relative, but not limited to: (a)
applications for appointment and/or clinical privileges; (b) periodic reappraisals undertaken as part of the peer review process;
(c) investigations, reprimands, corrective action, suspension or reduction of clinical privileges, or other disciplinary action; (d)
hearings and appellate reviews: (e) reviews before the governing board; (f) case evaluations; (g) utilization reviews: (h) other
hospital, medical staff or departmental, service or committees activities relating to the quality of patient care or my professional
conduct; (i) inquiries concerning my professional qualifications, character, ethics, physical or mental health status, or behavior;
and (j) any other matter that may affect patient care, or the orderly operation of this or any other hospital, and | hereby
authorize and consent to the release of such information.

| understand and agree that after | submit this application it is my sole obligation to promptly report to the Chief of Staff or his
designee of any: (1) change in the contents of this application; (2) change in my physical or mental health that could impair
my ability to practice; (3) change in my staff membership or privileges at any other heaith care facility; (4) investigation or
accusation with regard to my license or DEA; or (5) conviction of, or plea of guilty or no contest, or its equivalent, to a felony in
any jurisdiction; (6) sanction and/or exclusion from participation in any Federal health care program; or (7) change in the status
of my professional liability insurance coverage.

| present this application and arrange for the submission of other information with the understanding: (1) that such information
is requested by the peer review committee(s) of this hospital as part of the credentialing process; (2) that the confidentiality
and privacy of this information will be preserved; and (3) that this information and materials will only be released or disclosed
as part of current or future credentialing, peer review or quality improvement processes as described above and in the medical
staff bylaws, rules and regulations.

I understand that the completion of this application is my sole responsibility. | declare that the information on this application is
true and without omission to the best of my knowledge. ! hereby apply for disaster privileges.

SIGNATURE: DATE:

186



(& Tri-City Medical Center DELETE — incorporated
Oceanside, California into Standards of Care

WOMEN’S AND CHILDREN’'S SERVICES MANUAL - NICU

SUBJECT: GUIDELINE FOR CARE OF THE EXTREMELY LOW BIRTHWEIGHT INFANT (ELBW) AND
VERY LOW BIRTHWEIGHT INFANT (VLBW) SPECIAL CARE/MINIMAL STIMULATION

ISSUE DATE: 12/07 REVISION DATE: 04/09, 06/11, 8/12

Department Approval Date(s): 06/16
Perinatal Collaborative Practice Approval Date(s): 08/16
Division of Neonatology Approval Date(s): 08/16
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 09/16
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 10/16

Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

187



Women's and Children’s Services Manual - NICU
Guideline for Care of ELBW and VLBW Infant
Page 2 of 6




Women's and Children's Services Manual - NICU
Guideline for Care of ELBW and VLBW Infant
Page 3 of 6




Women's and Children's Services Manual - NICU
Guideline for Care of ELBW and VLBW Infant
Page 4 of 6

190



Women's and Children's Services Manual - NICU
Guideline for Care of ELBW and VLBW Infant
Page 5 of 6

191



Women's and Children’s Services Manual - NICU
Guideline for Care of ELBW and VLBW Infant
Page 6 of 6

192



@‘é) Tri-City Medical Center

Women’s an
- NICU

DELETE -~ Procedure is obsolete and
is no longer needed.

PROCEDURE:

NON-EMERGENT NEONATAL ENDOTRACHEAL INTUBATION

Equipment:

Perinatal

Medical

Professional

Department = Division of Pharmacy and A H Board of
. Collaborative Executive Affairs 2
Review Practice Neonatology Therapeutics Committee Committee Directors
05/16 08/16 08/16 n/a 09/16 10/16

193




194



195



Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

Tracked Changes Copy

WOMEN AND NEWBORN SERVICES
NEONATAL INTENSIVE CARE UNIT (NICU)

SUBJECT: PALLIATIVE CARE OF THE NEONATE AT THE END OF LIFE
ISSUE DATE: 07/07

REVISION DATE: 05/08, 4/09, 6/11, 8/12

Department Approval Date(s): 05/16
Perinatal Collaborative Practice Approval Date(s): 08/16
Division of Neonatology Approval Date(s): 08/16
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 09/16
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 10/16

Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A.

PURPOSE:
1. To provide a supportive atmosphere for grieving families who have experienced a newborn death.

4:2. To provide interventions in caring for the dying patient that is directed toward maximizing
comfort and providing support for the patient/family/significant others.

2:3. To provide emotional, spiritual, and cultural support with respect for
patient/family/significant others values and preferences.

POLICY:

1. Palliative care focuses on relieving the newborn’s pain and symptoms while extending emotional
and spiritual support for the newborn and family. Palliative care provides non-curative
interventions that address the physical, emotional, social, cultural, and spiritual needs of
neonates and their families at the end of life.

a. Palliative care seeks to ensure that bereaved families are able to remain functional and
intact.
b. Palliative care includes the control of pain and other symptoms and addresses the

psychological, social or spiritual problems of the neonate and family.

The needs and feeling of the parent (s) will be respected.

The institution of palliative care should be prompt.

Decisions should be collaborative and clearly communicated.

The following guidelines apply to the care of neonates in either of three situations:

i. Following the decision not to resuscitate (i.e. non-viability, conditions incompatible
with life)

ii. From the point at which resuscitative efforts/treatments are withdrawn

g. The palliative care neonate is a 1:1 or no greater than a 1:2 assignments due to the
needs of the family during the dying process.

=0 oo

EQUIPMENT:

Personal protective equipment
Infant scale

Disposable tape measure

Memory box

Baby clothes: hats, booties, blanket
Camera/film

Bathing supplies

Nooak~swh -~

196



Women's-&-Children's- and Newborn Services-Rolisy-Manual NICU
Palliative Care of the Neonates at the End of Life
Page 2 of 4

D

d-a.

PROCEDURE:

Process: Care-of the-infantinthe- NICU-—in-ne-specific-order

When a transition to palliative end-of-life care is made, a quiet and comforting

environment is created:

i Alarms are turned off. Pagers/phones are turned to silent to avoid disturbing
those in attendance.

ii. Routine vital sign measurement and lab analyses are ceased.

iii. Pain assessments should be continued and may need to be done more
frequently to identify infant distress.

iv. No painful assessments (heel sticks, blood gases) are done.

kv, Provide privacy for patient and family. If unable to provide a quiet area in NICU, a
room on OB may be requested.

vi. Assist parent/family to hold newborn; when not held, place in isolette or crib.

ivii. Visiting hours and sibling restrictions are waived.

Care of family is a central focus.

vizi.  Physical, emotional, and spiritual comfort is provided.

vikii. Mothers may need normal postpartum nursing assessments and
interventions and will need assistance with lactation cessation or milk
donation.

Makmg memories is an important part of palliative and end-of-life care.

i. Family photographs have been found helpful in many cultures. Many
communities have photographers who specialize in this work. Photographs
of the child can be kept on file for families who may not wish to have them at
the time of death.

i Handprints, footprints, and locks of hair have been appreciated.

ili. Special spiritual or religious ceremonies can provide comfort.

iv. Introducing the child to the extended family can be important.
V. Kangaroo care has provided family comfort.
Vi. There are occasions of multiple births in which some infants die and some

infants live. These families will need special attention, such as photos of all

197



Women's-&-Children's- and Newborn Services-Policy-Manual; NICU
Palliative Care of the Neonates at the End of Life

Page 3 of 4
the infants together; there are special community support groups for this
type of loss.
2. Withdrawal-of Life-ProlongingFherapies Palliative care may include removal of life-sustaining
technology:
a. Ensure physician has confirmed decision to withdraw life-prolonging therapies.
b. Offer family support as needed, allow for support personnel requested by family to be
present with them.
C. Stop all infusions except for pain and/or sedation; |V converted to saline lock.
d. Administer analgesia as needed based on clinical signs.
e Place hat on newborn’s head and wrap newborn in blanket.
f Allow parent/family to hold infant;
i. When not held place i in lsolette or cnb
h-g. An RN will weigh, measure, and bathe infant if needed.
izh. Patient and family will be allowed adequate time with infant prior to morgue or pathology.
3. Removal of ventilatory support
a. Infants should be weaned off any neuromuscular-blocking agents.
b. Vasopressors and antibiotics may be ceased.
C. Parents can decide who should be present and how the process will go.
d. Nurses should explain the process to parents, including as many details as the
parent wishes to hear.
e. Infants should be held in a parent’s or staff member’s arms. Some parents may not
wish to hold a dying infant.
f. Gentle suction of the endotracheal tube may be done and the endotracheal tube is
removed.
g. Tape and additional lines can be removed.
h. Frequent pain and symptom assessment continues.
i. If respiratory discomfort exists, medication such as morphine should be given.
Oxygen usually is not given.
4, Support services also should be offered to all members of the healthcare team. Facilitated
debriefing after difficult deaths is essential.
3:5. Complete the following after the family viewing (preparation for the morgue):
=i, Attach identification bracelet to arm of newborn. This allows correct identification
for mortuary or correct disposition of fetal remains.
| fizii. Place newborn on disposable drape, wrap in receiving blanket, and a second
disposable drape and secure with tape.
iwiii. Arrange for body to be taken to the Morgue.
wiv. If the patient requests to see infant again notify the Unit or Administrative
Supervisor who will call transport to retrieve the infant from the morgue or
pathology.
| ¥v. The infant will be re-dressed and taken to the mother’'s room or to a pre-arranged
private area.
E. DOCUMENTATION:
1. Caregiver's psychosocial response to perinatal loss and interaction with infant in patient’'s medical
record.
2. Complete unit log book with time of birth/delivery, time of expiration.
3. Comfort measures provided.
| B EXTERNALLINKS:
| 6-F. REFERENCES:
1. Engler, A., Cusson, R., Brockett, R., Cannon-Heinrich, C., Goldberg, M., West, M., et al. (2004).

Neonatal staff and advanced practice nurse’s perceptions of bereavement/end of life care of
families of critically ill and/or dying infants. American Journal of Critical Care; 13 (6): 489 — 498.

198



Women's-&Children's- and Newborn Services-Polisy-Manuak NICU
Palliative Care of the Neonates at the End of Life
Page 4 of 4

2. Nelson, R., Botkin, J., Kodish, E.M. Levetown, J., Truman, J., Wilfond, B., et al. (2000). Palliative
care for children. Pediatrics; 106 (2): 351 — 357.

3. National Association of Neonatal Nurses (2011). Policy: Palliative Care. Policies,
Procedures, and Competencies for Neonatal Nursing Care.

34, Stringer, M., Shaw, V., & Savani, R. (2004). Comfort care of neonates at the end of life. Neonatal

Network; 23 (5): 41 - 45.

199



@3)2 Tri-City Medical Center Women'’s & Children’s Services Manual - NICU
PROCEDURE: PERIPHERAL ARTERIAL LINE (PAL): INSERTION, MAINTENANCE, AND
REMOVAL OF
Purpose: To facilitate the efficient aseptic and complication free insertion of a peripheral arterial
| line for monitoring blood pressure and obtaining arterial blood samples.
Equipment: 1. Non-sterile Gloves
| 2. Gholrhexidine2% chlorhexidine gluconate swabs
3. Infusion solution
4. IV tubing
5. transducer
6. 3 ml syringe
7. Leur-lock (preferred}-or-Slip-tip-t-connector
8. 22 or 24 gauge angiocatheter
9. Tape
10. Transparent dressing
11. 1V infusion pump
12. Light source transilluminator
13. IV board
14. Cotton balls
A. POLICY:
1. Placement of a peripheral arterial line is done by a physician or allied health professional
(AHP).
2. Transparent dressing will be placed over the site for stabilization and to allow continuous
visualization of skin around catheter insertion site.
3. Excessive extension of extremity is to be avoided to prevent occlusion of artery.
4. Fingertips or toes are to be exposed so that circulatory status can be monitored.
5. Usual infusion is Y2 NS or NS with 1 te-2-units heparin/mi at a rate of 0.5 to 1 ml/hour. Infusions
into PALs should not exceed 1 ml/hour.
6. Infusion is to run continuously on an infusion pump with a transducer to monitor blood pressure.
7. No medications, glucose, blood products or any rapid bolus will be administered through a PAL.
| 8. The physician or AHP will be notified if there is blanching, cyanosis, circulatory compromise,
bleeding, dampened waveform or difficuity drawing blood from the PAL.
| B. PROCEDURE (ASSISTING WITH PAL INSERTION):

1. Perform hand hygiene.
2. Confirm patient identity using two-identifier system—Refer-to-Patient Care Services
3. Immobilize patient with developmentally supportive methods, such as swaddling.
4, Attach syringe containing heparinized flush solution to leur-lock T-connector- and flush the
connector. {preferred)-or-slip-tipT-connestor. '
&~ Flush-—T-connector
6-5. Dim lights if transilluminator is being used to visualize artery.
£6. Provide pain management as indicated.
&7. Don non-sterile gloves.
8. Assist with immobilizing the extremity during catheter insertion.
9. Assist the physician or AHP as necessary with cleansing the area of insertion using 2%
chlorahexidine gluconate for 30 seconds and allow to dry for 1 minute. .
10. Assist physician or AHP as necessary with securing the line.
Perinatal Medical Professional
NICU Department Division of Pharmacy and 3 . Board of
Review Cogf:;irggve Neonatology Therapeutics g:ren‘::itt'tveee c :::"{: = Directors
05/14, 4/16 06/14 06/14 n/a 07/14, 08/16 08/14, 10/16 08/14

200



Women's and Children’s Services - NICU
Peripheral Arterial Line, Insertion/Maintenance/Removal
Page 2 of 3

1. Connect the flushed tubing with the Luer-L.ok adapter to the arterial catheter.

4112, Assist with taping or placement of an occlusive dressing.

42:13. Apply an arm or foot board. Dressing is applied in a manner as to display all digits as much as
possible.

HloodHess
14. Attach T-connector- to transducer and IV tubing. Unclamp the T-connector -and begin fluid
administration.
15. Discard used supplies in appropriate receptacles, remove gloves, and perform hand hygiene.
16. Documentation of insertion in patient’s medical record:
a. Cannula size and type
b. Location of arterial site
C. Date and time of procedure
d——Heow procedure-was-{olerated
e Estpncied blosdess
£d. Characteristics of waveform on monitor
g-e.  Perfusion of extremity

C. MAINTENANCE:

1. Assess the neurovascular and peripheral vascular status of the cannulated extremity
immediately after catheter insertion and hourly or more often if warranted.

2. The transducer is calibrated once a shift and PRN:
a. Open the transducer stopcock to air by turning it off to the patientand loosening the non-

vented cap while maintaining sterility..

b. Maintain transducer at the level of the infant’s right atrium.
C. Press “zero” on the monitor.
d. Replace cap and close stopcock to air by opening stopcock to infant.
e. If waveform dampens:
i. Check connections.
. Flush transducer if bubbles are present.
iii. Check selected pressure scale on monitor.
iv. Recalibrate transducer.
V. Compare cuff blood pressure (BP) to arterial reading.
vi. Change stopcock and transducer.
vii. Notify physician if interventions do not correct waveform.
3. Daily Documentation:

a. Hourly invasive Bblood pRressure and-vitals-per Standards of Care.
b. Gorrelating-eCuff BP once per shift and prn

s——Lasation
d-c.  Hourly site checks including: location, site status, extremity color, waveform
assessment

D. BLOOD SAMPLING:

1. Equipment:

Perform hand hygiene.
Confirm patient identity using two-identifier system.
Don non-sterile gloves.

a. Non-sterile Gloves
b. Chelrhexidine2% chlorhexidine gluconate swabs
C. ABG syringe sampling kit/lab tubes
d. 22-25 gauge needle
e. 2x2 gauze
2. Procedure:
a.
b.
C.

201



Women's and Children's Services - NICU
Peripheral Arterial Line, Insertion/Maintenance/Removal

Page 3 of 3

d. Place 2x2 gauze under t-connector port.

e. Clean diaphragm with Ghelrhexidinre2% chlorhexidine gluconate swab for 30 seconds.
Allow to dry for 30 seconds.

Clamp -t-connector close to the hub with attached clamp. Keep infusion pump running.
Insert needle into t-connector port.

Allow three drops of blood to flow onto 2x2 gauze.

Fill lab tubes directly from the needle hub by allowing the blood to drip directly into the
lab tube.

For ABG sample, adjust plunger on the ABG syringe to the 0.2ml mark then insert the
syringe into the needle hub and allow the syringe to fill.

Withdraw the needle carefully and activate the safety mechanism.

Release clamp on the t-connector, allowing backpressure from pump to flush fine.
Dispose of needle in the sharps container.

Remove gloves and perform hand hygiene.

Label labs with the appropriate patient information.

— T Ta ™

e 3TF

E. CATHETER REMOVAL:

1.
2.

o0k w

N

8.
9.
10.

Perform hand hygiene.

Confirm patient identity using two-identifier system. Referto-Patient-Care-Services

“idontification, Pationt (VoA pol

Don non-sterile gloves.

Turn infusion pump off and clamp the T-connector.

Remove dressing and tape.

Pull catheter out, applying pressure with a sterile gauze pad over the site while removing
the catheter and assess intactness of catheter.

Apply pressure over insertion site with sterile 2x2 gauze fera-minimum-offive-minutes-and-re-

Discard used supplies in appropriate receptacles.
Remove gloves and perform hand hygiene.
Document the procedure in the patient’s medical record.

F. REFERENCES

1.

12,

3.

24,

5i

Bailey, T. (2015). Common invasive procedures. In M.T. Verklan, M. Walden (Eds.), Core
curriculum for neonatal intensive care nursing (5th ed., pp. 282-315). St. Louis: Saunders.
lkuta, L.M. & Beauman, S.S. (Eds.). (2011). Policies, Procedures, and Competencies for
Neonatal Nursing Care. National Association of Neonatal Nurses.

Infusion Nurses Society (INS). (2011). Standards of practice. Vascular access site
preparation and device placement. Journal of Infusion Nursing, 35(Suppl. 1), S44-S45.
MacDonald, M. G., Ramasethu, J. & Rais-Bahrami, K. (Eds.). (2012). Atlas of procedures in
Neonatology, 5th ed. Lippincott Williams & Wilkins.

O'Grady, N.P. and others. (2011). Guidelines for the prevention of intravascular catheter-
related infections, 2011. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Retrieved April 27,
2015, from http://www.cdc.gov/hicpac/pdf/guidelines/bsi-quidelines-2011.pdf
al A comnaricean-o Nnre me aa i A A

202



Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

WOMEN’S AND CHILDREN’S SERVICES MANUAL - NICU

SUBJECT: STAFFING RATIOS FOR SOCIAL SERVICES IN THE NICU

ISSUE DATE: 8/06
REVISION DATE: 05/08, 4/09, 06/11, 8/12

Department Approval Date(s): 09/16
Division of Neonatology Approval Date(s): n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): n/a
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 10/16

Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A. PURPOSE:
1. To ensure appropriate staffing of social workers in the neonatal intensive care unit (NICU), as
well as maintaining compliance with California Children’s Services (CCS) regulations.

B. POLICY:

1. Social work services shall be provided in the NICU by a CCS-paneled medical social
worker (MSW) holding a master’s degree in social work that has expertise in psychosocial
issues affecting the families of seriously ill neonates/infants.

2. For every 15 patlents in the N|CU there shall be one fuII-tlme equwalent MSW IJHs—the

+3. There shaII be 24—hour coverage by a MSW for the NICU, wh|ch mcludes on-call coverage

C. PROCEDURE:

1. When the NICU census is over fifteen (15), CCS standards will be maintained. Assistance will be
provided by a CCS paneled social worker to ensure that staffing ratios are maintained.

2. If additional assistance is required, the NICU social worker will request assistance from other staff
social workers through the Social Services Supervisor.

3. All social workers providing assistance in the NICU will be CCS paneled.

4, The NICU social worker will determine which cases the additional social worker will assist with
during the high census.
a. This decision is based on the complexity of the case, family’s history, expected length of

stay and current needs.
5. The social worker may be asked to assist with cases including: completing assessments on short-

term admits with limited needs; a weekly follow-up with a family whose infant has an expected
short-term stay; or a weekly follow-up with a family whose infant is experiencing a long-term stay,
but infant is stable.

6. If there are no patients that meet the above criteria, the NICU social worker will need to assess
which families have the least need at that time. The social worker may also be asked to assist
with patients that are discharging.

7. When the NICU census returns to fifteen, the full-time NICU social worker will resume care of the
patient/family.

). REFERENCES:

1. American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) and American College of OB and GYN (ACOG).
(2012). Guidelines for Perinatal Care, 7th ed.

203



Women and Newborn Services NICU
Staffing Ratios for Social Services in the NICU
Page 2 of 2

4:2. California Department of Health Care Services (1999). California Children’s Services Manual
of Procedures; Chapter 3.254999.

204



%‘3} Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

WOMEN’S AND NEWBORN’S SERVICES (WNS)
NEONATAL INTENSIVE CARE UNIT (NICU)

SUBJECT: STANDARDS OF NURSING CARE - NICU

ISSUE DATE: NEW

REVISION DATE(S):

Department Approval Date(s): 08/16
Perinatal Collaborative Practice Approval Date(s): 08/16
Division of Neonatology Approval Date(s): 08/16
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 09/16
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 10/16

Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A PREAMBLE:

1.

Neonatal nursing care is delivered in an environment that respects the goals, preferences, and
patient rights of the neonate and their family from admission, through the continuum of care, to
discharge. The specially trained nursing staff functions within established policies and procedures
and adheres to the standards and guidelines set forth by the California Nurse Practice Act and
the National Association of Neonatal Nurses. Care is based on a philosophy that embraces the
family’s spiritual and cultural values, is ethically relevant, and is grounded on evidence based
practice.

B. POLICY:

1.
2.

3.

4.

To provide guidelines that describe the basic level of care all patients can expect to receive.

All nursing care is provided in collaboration with the multidisciplinary healthcare team and the
family to implement an individualized plan of care. Neonatal nurses will assess, plan, implement,
evaluate, and document the patient’s plan of care to promote optimal outcomes.

Nursing staff in the neonatal care areas will be knowledgeable about and adhere to all applicable
unit and hospital policies.

Nursing staff will be competent in the care of infants to whom they are assigned.

C. DEFINITIONS:

1.

Standards of Care: “Authoritative statements by which the nursing profession describes the
responsibilities for which its practitioners are accountable” (ANA, p.77). “Standards of care
describe a competent level of nursing care as demonstrated by the nursing process” (ANA, p. 78)
and are examples of the nursing professional expected roles and responsibilities for providing
patient care.

Nursing Process: Encompasses all significant actions taken by nurses in providing care to all
clients, and forms the foundation of clinical decision making. The nursing process also defines
additional nursing responsibilities for providing cultural and ethnic relevant care, education to
patients and their caregivers, maintaining a patient safe environment, and patient health care
promotion and the planning for continuity of care. “Registered nurses use the nursing process to
plan and provide individualized care to their patients. Nurses use the theoretical and evidence-
based knowledge of human experiences and responses to collaborate with patient and her fetus
or newborn to assess, diagnose, identify outcomes, plan, implement, and evaluate care. Nursing
interventions are intended to produce beneficial effects, contribute to quality outcomes, and

205



Women and Newborn Services
Standards of Care - NICU

Page 2 of 10
above all, do no harm. Nurses evaluate the effectiveness of their care in relation to identified
outcomes and use evidence-based practice to improve care” (ANA, 2010).
a. The nursing process includes the following:
i. Assessment: The neonatal nurse collects comprehensive data on the healthcare
needs of the infant and family.
ii. Diagnosis: The neonatal nurse analyzes the assessment data in determining
nursing diagnosis.
ii. Outcomes ldentification: The neonatal nurse identifies expected individualized
outcomes of care based on needs of the infant and infant’s family.
iv. Planning: The neonatal nurse develops a plan of care that prescribes
interventions to attain expected outcomes.
V. Implementation: The neonatal nurse implements the interventions identified in the
plan of care.
vi. Coordination of Care: The neonatal nurse coordinates care across the continuum
by providing information to families.
vii. Health Teaching and Health Promotion: The neonatal nurse employs strategies
to promote a healthy, safe and nurturing environment.
viii. Evaluation: The neonatal nurse evaluates the progress of the infant and family
toward the attainment of established, expected outcomes.
3. Patient: Recipient of nursing care.
4. Health Care Providers: Individuals with special expertise who provide healthcare services or
assistance to clients.
5. Significant Others: Family members and/or those significant to the patient.
6. Reasonable and a Timely Manner: Defined as within 4 hours after completion of assessments
or care provided.
7. Extremely Low Gestational Age Newborn (ELGAN): defined as any neonate born at less than

28 completed weeks gestation.

D. PATIENT ADMISSION:
1. Outcome criteria:

a. Neonatal nurses will provide ongoing nursing care in collaboration with the
multidisciplinary team and family to implement an individualized plan of care. The plan of
care is continuously evaluated and updated.

2. Process criteria: The admitting neonatal nurse will

a. Perform an initial comprehensive, age-appropriate, physical assessment of all systems,
including vital signs and pain, within 10-30 minutes and document within 2 hours of
admission to the NICU

b. Assess and record vital signs (HR, RR, T, BP) on admission and every 1hour until
stabilized.

c. Temperature on the Extremely Low Gestational Age Newborn (ELGAN) should be done
more frequently (i.e. q15 mins for 1% hour) to ensure temperature stability.

d. Measure and record length, weight, head circumference, and gestational age on the
appropriate growth chart and in the medical record.

e. Complete a blood glucose test upon admission (Critical Level = < 45 mg/d|, > 180 mg/dl).

f. Complete a Ballard exam within 12 hours of delivery, if applicable.

Ensure that an emergency medication reference is completed based on current weight
within 2 hours and posted in designated area. The emergency medication reference is
updated weekly with the current weight.

h. Check that two identification bands are present on the infant.

Initiate a computerized multidisciplinary plan of care upon admission.

Ensure that the admission history is completed within 24 hours of admission.

Orient parents/families to the unit and inform parents/families regarding hand-washing and

visitation policies. Document parent orientation to unit.

E.  ONGOING PATIENT CARE:

206



Women and Newborn Services

Standards of Care - NICU

Page 3 of 10
1.

Outcome criteria:

a.

Neonatal nurses will provide ongoing care in collaboration with the multidisciplinary team
and family to implement an individualized plan of care. The care plan update is
documented a minimum of every 24 hours to reflect the patient’s current needs.
Maintain vital signs within parameters:
i. RR 30-60
i. HR

1) Term: 80-160

2) Pre-term: 100-160
iii. Axillary temperature should be maintained at

1) 36.5 °C-37.5 °C (97.7 °F-99.5 °F) in full-term infants

2) 36.5 °C-36.9 °C (97.3 °F-98.6 °F) in preterm infants.

Process criteria: The neonatal nurse will

a.

Perform an initial shift assessment on patients who are NPO within one hour from the
beginning of the shift, to include complete systems assessment and update of the patient
plan of care.

Complete systems assessment at the time of first feeding during the shift on patients who
are not NPO. If more than three hours will [apse before the next feeding, then monitor vital
signs will be recorded within one hour of the start of the shift.

Weigh patients nightly unless an order indicates otherwise, document weight in the
patient’s medical record and appropriate growth chart.

Measure head circumference and length weekly (Sunday night) and document on the
appropriate growth chart and in the patient’s medical record.

Document a complete physical assessment every 3-6 hours based on acuity

Complete a visual assessment every 1 - 4 hours, based on acuity. Visual assessment will
include state, color, work of breathing, and position.

Skin and air temperatures should be recorded with visual assessments.

Assess and record vital signs (HR = heart rate; RR = respiratory rate) as follows:

i. Apical Pulse with first hands-on assessment

. BP g shift minimum (see cardiovascular section)

iii. HR/RR g 1-2 hour for 1:1 acuity

iv. HR /RR q 2 hour for 1:2 acuity

V. HR /RR g 3-4 hours for 1: 3 acuity

vi. Axillary temperatures with full assessments and prn

Assess pain using the NPASS tool with every routine vital sign and prn. Reassess and
document patient’s pain level 30 minutes after a score of > 3.

Cluster care by coordinating touch times with necessary care team members (i.e.
physician/allied health provider (AHP), RCP,OT/PT) to minimize procedure-related stimuli
for any infant less than 34 weeks or that is medically unstable:

i. Utilize facilitated tucking techniques to support infant throughout.

ii. Provide rest periods for infant indications of stress.

Complete blood glucose test as follows: (Critical Levels: < 45 mg/dl, > 180 mg/dl)

i. Q 12 hours and prn while on [V fluids containing dextrose.

ii. Q 12 hours and prn while on steroids.

iii. 30 minutes after dextrose solution bolus or per physician/AHP order.

iv. Within 2 hours of change in dextrose concentration or any new bag containing
dextrose.

2 Within 2 hours of changing the IV rate, if clinically indicated.

vi. Discontinuation of 1V fluids containing dextrose:
1) For infants without a diagnosis of hypoglycemia, blood glucose testing will

be done before feedings, times one. No further testing will be needed if
glucose is > 45,

2) For infants with a diagnosis of hypoglycemia, a blood glucose will be done
before feedings, times two. If glucose is > 50, no further testing is needed.

207



Women and Newborn Services
Standards of Care - NICU
Page 4 of 10

If glucose is < 50, a third glucose test will be done before the next (third)
feeding. If glucose remains <50, notify physician/AHP.
[ Reposition infant with every hands on assessment. If this is not possible due to a patient’s
condition, pressure-reducing measures should be implemented.

m. Replace monitor leads and the oxygen saturation probe during baths or when items
become loose or soiled.
n. Reposition the pulse oximeter probe at minimum every 8 hours.

i. Infants less 32 weeks or 1500gms, pulse oximeter may be repositioned with each
hands-on assessment or PRN, as tolerates.

0. Provide oral care with colostrum/breastmilk or sterile water at least every 4 hours and as
needed, per physician/AHP order.

p. Notify the physician/AHP and the charge nurse regarding significant changes in a patient’s
condition.

g. Document any physician/AHP notification in the patient's medical record, including any
further assessment or treatment ordered.

r. Facilitate a patient care conference between the family and caregivers any time there is a

change in the patient’s health status and/or other needs arise or at the family’s request.

F. NEUROLOGICAL ASSESSMENT:
a. Outcome criteria
i. Neonatal nurses continually assess all data pertinent to the patient's neurological
function and update the nursing care plan to promote optimal neurological status.
b. Process criteria: Neonatal nurses assess
i. The anterior fontanel every shift and as needed
ii. Level of consciousness/behavior with vital signs and as needed unless ordered

otherwise

iii. Muscle tone, cry, and symmetrical movement each shift

iv. Suck, swallow reflex present upon admission and with feedings via nipple or
breast.

V. Midline positioning for the first 72 hours for all infants less than 32 weeks or less

than 1500gms.

G. CARDIOVASCULAR ASSESSMENT:

1. Outcome criteria
a. Neonatal nurses continually assess all data pertinent to the patient’s cardiovascular
system and update the nursing care plan to promote optimal cardiac function.
2. Process criteria: The neonatal nurse will
a. Ensure that all patients are on cardio/respiratory monitor for the duration of their stay in
the NICU.
b. Document heart rate, respiratory rate, color, capillary refill time, perfusion, oxygen
saturation, and any changes in heart sounds in the patient’s medical record.
C. Assess blood pressure at least every 12 hours:

i. Infants with arterial lines in place will have a transducer in-line. Blood pressure
should be documented at least every 2 hours for these patients.

ii. Document blood pressure every 4 hours or per order for infants on steroids or anti-
hypertensives.

ii. Document blood pressure every hour if the infant is on vasopressors/
antihypertensive drips.

d. Calibrate the blood pressure transducer with change of caregiver, change of IV tubing,
and as indicated.
e. Print monitor strips if an arrhythmia occurs.

H. RESPIRATORY ASSESSMENT:
1. Outcome criteria

208



Women and Newborn Services

Standards of Care - NICU

Page 5 of 10

a. Neonatal nurses continually assess all data pertinent to the patient’s respiratory system

and update the nursing care plan to promote optimal respiratory function.
2. Process criteria: Neonatal nurses assess

a. Breath sounds at least every 4 hours and as needed

b. Status of respiratory effort with each infant interaction (at least every 4 hours)

C. Oxygenation saturation and document the values every 2 hours for infants on oxygen and
at least every 4 hours for infants on room air. A pulse oximeter should be in use for every
infant.

d. Episodes of desaturation, whether on oxygen or room air, should be assessed; any action
taken for recovery must be documented.

e. Any necessary respiratory support at least every 2 hours. This may be done by the nurse
or respiratory care practitioner (RCP).

f. Ventilator Parameters:

i. The RCP will be responsible to set up equipment.

ii. Transcutaneous monitoring as needed per physician/AHP’s order.

iii. All ventilator settings are determined per physician/AHP’s order with the exception
of needed or necessary FiO2 changes by RN/RCP.

iv. An RN and an RCP must transport mechanically ventilated patients.

g. ETT
i. Stabilization:

1) Two licensed health care personnel are required for securing and/or
changing the ETT holder.

2) Two licensed health care personnel, inclusive of one RCP, are required for
ETT adjustment. ETT adjustments require a physician/AHP’s order.

ii. Suctioning:

1) All intubated patients will have an in-line suctioning device set up upon
intubation.

2) Suction depth should be posted at bedside.

3) FIO2 requirements will be adjusted to maximize patient's tolerance of
suctioning procedure.

4) Frequency and duration of suctioning should be limited and only when
needed based on clinical symptoms.

5) Suction pressure to be no greater than 80 mmHg.

6) For ELGAN infants, suction pressure to be no greater than 60 mm Hg.

h. Oxygen saturation parameters:

i. 23-30 weeks gestation:
1) Target saturation goals: 88%-90%
2) Alarm settings: 82%-92%
ii. 30+1-35 weeks gestation:
1) Target saturation goals: 90%-94%
2) Alarm settings: 88%-96%
ii. >35+1 weeks gestation
1) Target saturation goals: 84%-98%
2) Alarm settings: 92%-98%
I Gl/IGU ASSESSMENT:
1. Outcome criteria

a. Neonatal nurses continually assess all data pertinent to the patient’'s GI/GU system and

update the nursing care plan to promote optimal GI/GU function.
2. Process criteria: Neonatal nurses will

a. Measure abdominal girth, at the umbilicus, upon admission and as needed for feeding
intolerance.

b. Inspect and document abdominal abnormalities.

209



Women and Newborn Services
Standards of Care - NICU
Page 6 of 10

C. Auscultate all abdominal quadrants for presence and character of bowel sounds every
shift and as needed if feeding intolerance, increased abdominal girth, or change in
frequency or characteristics of stool occurs.

d. Notify Physician/AHP if no stools within 48 hours.

J.  SKIN AND TISSUE INTEGRITY:

1. Outcome criteria:

a. Neonatal nurses continually assess all data pertinent to the patient’s skin and tissue
integrity and update the nursing care plan to promote and maintain optimal skin and tissue
integrity.

2. Process criteria: Neonatal nurses will

a. Complete a “Neonatal skin condition scale” every shift.

b. Complete a “Neonatal skin risk assessment” ad hoc form weekly (Sunday day shift).

C. Perform baths using the following criteria:

i. Initial bath will be given no sooner than 24 hours of life and only if the infant is
stable including stable temperature and respiratory status. Infants visibly soiled
with meconium or blood can be bathed once stable after 2-4 hrs of life.

ii. Gloves should be worn when touching all infant’s that have not been bathed.

iii. Use mild non-alkaline cleanser for greater than or equal to 32 weeks.

iv. Use warm sterile water for less than 32 weeks: avoid rubbing.
V. Removal of vernix is not necessary.
Vi. Routine bathing two times weekly individualized to infant schedule and stability.
vii. Immersion/swaddle bathing is the preferred method for stable infants without
central lines.
d. Perform eye care daily and prn with sterile water.

i. Infants on a paralytic medication shall have lubricant eye oinment administered a
minimum of once per shift, per physician/AHP orders.

e. Disinfect skin surfaces with Chlorhexadine Gluconate (CHG) 2% or povidone-iodine 10%
aqueous solution prior to invasive procedures such as insertion of central venous
catheters, placement of PIV, umbilical line catheterization, chest tube insertion, injections,
venipuncture, or heel sticks for laboratory samples. Wipe away all disinfectants (CHG,
alcohol, betadine) with sterile water or saline wipes once procedure is complete.

f. Use only commercial heel warmers for warming extremities, per manufacturer’s
guidelines.
g. Avoid use of alcohol as primary disinfectant or for removing povidone-iodine or CHG.

Isopropyl alcohol has been shown to be less effective in reducing infection and carries a
risk of damage to the stratum corneum.

h. Use semi-permeable dressings to anchor umbilical lines, PIVs, PICCs, nasal cannulas,
nasal or oral gastric tubes.

i. Use hydrocolloid barriers for skin protection when securing NG/OG tubes and cannulas.

j- Minimize use of tape and minimize contact with skin by “backing” tape or applying cotton
to adhesive
k. Avoid use of solvents for adhesive removal. Remove adhesives slowly and carefully with

water soaked cotton balls or gauze, saline wipes or petrolatum.

I. Avoid use of enhanced bonding agents (Benzoin, Mastisol) as much as possible.

m. Assist in reducing Transepidermal Water Loss in the infant less than or equal to 32 weeks
or less than 1500gms by using the following :

i. Infants <32 weeks shall be admitted to giraffes and placed in humidity of 70% for
first seven days. Humidity may be increased up to 85% for infants <1000gms if
needed, per physician/AHP orders. Emollients are not used during this time unless
ordered by physician/AHP.

ii. Use only sterile water in humidifier reservoir and check level each shift.

ii. Humidity may be decreased to 50% after first seven days of life and continued until
infant reaches 28 days of life per physician/AHP orders if needed. Petrolatum may
be used at this level of humidity if there is evidence of skin breakdown.

210



Women and Newborn Services
Standards of Care - NICU

Page 7 of 10
iv. If rainout occurs, decrease humidity by 5% until no further rainout is present.
n. Use emollients for dry skin, cracking or fissures on skin surfaces:
i. For infants less than 32 weeks, use a preservative-free topical ointment sparingly
per physician/AHP order.

ii. For infants greater than 32 weeks or after 30 days of age, petrolatum may be used
at the discretion of the physician/AHP.
0. Use natural drying for umbilical cord care.
i. Expose umbilical stump to air by keeping diaper folded off of umbilical stump.
ii. If the umbilical cord stump becomes soiled with urine or stool, clean the area with
water,
i, After cleansing with water, dry thoroughly with clean absorbent gauze to remove
excess moisture, and then discard the gauze.
p. Notify Physician/AHP of IV infiltrates requiring medical evaluation and/or intervention.
g. Notify physician/AHP of any nasal or septum breakdown. Infants on NCPAP will need
more frequent assessment of skin integrity around the nasal septum and behind the ears.
K. NUTRITION:

1. Outcome criteria:
a. Neonatal nurses continually assess all data pertinent to the patient’s nutrition and update
the nursing care plan to promote optimal nutrition.
2. Process criteria: Neonatal nurses will
a. Reconfirm tube placement prior to the first feeding of the shift by measuring the distance
from the tip of the nose to base of the ear, then halfway between the xiphoid process and
the umbilicus.
b. Measure and record abdominal girth at umbilicus prior to feedings for infants at risk for or
demonstrating signs of feeding intolerance.
C. Adhere to the following residual protocol:

i. Check residuals with all NG feedings on preterm infants. Residuals on continuous
feeds are not checked.
ii. Acceptable Findings:

1) Residual volume of < 5ml regardless of infant’s feeding volume.

2) Residual volume of < 30% of feeding volumes (if there are no additional
signs of feeding intolerance and the clinical evaluation is normal.)

3) Residuals = 30% shall be refed and continue with feeding order without
deducting residual from feeding volume.

4) Residuals >30% shall be refed and subtracted from the feeding volume.

5) Do not refeed residuals that are bloody, brown and/or dark green bilious.

6) Residuals that appear light green or yellow are considered a normal gastric
residual.

d. Notify the physician/AHP for any of the following signs/symptoms:
i. Residuals that are bloody, brown and/or dark green bilious.
ii. Residuals greater than 50%.
ii. Residuals that persist at 30-50% x 2 consecutive feedlngs of the current feeding

volume.

iv. Abnormal abdominal exam as evidenced by but not limited to:
1) Increased distension: greater than 2 cm increase in abdominal girth
2) Discoloration (ie. Red and/or grayish black/blue)
3) New onset visible bowel loops
4) Tenderness

V. Repeated emesis

Vi. Change in characteristic of stool

vii. The nurse may notify the physician/AHP at any time there is concern of feeding
intolerance.

e. Assist with establishing and maintaining milk supply by:

i. Encourage pumping within 3-6 hours of delivery

21



Women and Newborn Services

Standards of Care - NICU

Page 8 of 10

ii. Pumping 8-12 time in 24 hours, including after breastfeeding with the goal of
complete breast emptying at each pumping session.
iii. Promote breast massage and hand expression techniques used in conjunction

with pumping.

iv. Encourage use of hospital grade pump.

V. Provide containers and labels to collect milk.

vi. Encourage skin to skin as often as possible.

vii. Monitor milk supply totals, initiate early intervention for decrease in milk supply
(milk supply should increase by 3-5 days postpartum).

viii. Facilitate lactation consultations as needed.

iX. Utilize colostrum/breastmilk in the order pumped for the first two weeks of feeding.
X. Introduce breastfeeding before bottle feeding, bottle feeding is to be avoided for
infant’s less than 34 weeks unless otherwise ordered by physician/AHP.

Xi. Initiate non-nutritive or “dry” breasfeeding when infant is 32 weeks PCA and
physiologically stable when held.
Xii. Initiate nutritive breastfeeding when infant is able to handle own secretions and

shows sucking behavior on a finger, pacifier, or the emptied breast.

L. FLUID AND ELECTROLYTE:
Outcome criteria:

1.

a.

Neonatal nurses continually assess all data pertinent to establish and maintain
homeostasis as evidenced by:

i. Weight gain 15-45 gms/day (average).

ii. Soft, flat fontanel; sutures approximate

iii. Urine output 1-5 ml/kg/hr

iv. Good skin turgor

Process criteria: Neonatal nurses will

a.

Maintain strict 1&0O on all:

i. Infants receiving steroids

ii. Infants receiving diuretics

iii. Infants receiving continuous IV therapy

iv. Infants who are NPO

V. Infants less than 1500 grams unless otherwise ordered by Physician/AHP.
Notify the physician/AHP if urine output is <1 mL/kg/hr.

Assess and document peripheral IV and PICC site status every hour. Assess and flush
saline lock insertion sites with each hands-on assessment.

Use birth weight until the infant surpasses this weight, then daily weight, to calculate 1&0
for previous 24 hours. A “NICU Calorie Count” ad hoc form is to be completed every
morning in patient’s medical record.

Always physically trace each IV line from the solution, through the pump and into the
patient and reconcile the accuracy of the solution and pump settings against a source
document, e.g. order, medication record.

M. PSYCHOSOCIAL SUPPORT:

1.

Outcome criteria

a.

Neonatal nurses continually assess all data pertinent to the patient and family’s
psychosocial needs in a supportive manner.

Process criteria: Neonatal nurses should

a.

"0 Q0T

Assess and document the patient and family’s psychosocial status upon admission and
daily in the patient’s medical record.

Listen to family concerns in a supportive manner.

Encourage parents and families to participate in care as appropriate.

Give emotional reassurance to families as needed.

Identify family support systems upon admission and as needed.

Enter appropriate consults/referrals into the patient’'s medical record as needed.

212



Women and Newborn Services
Standards of Care - NICU
Page 9 of 10

g. Refer to social work as needed.

\. PATIENT EDUCATION:

1. Outcome criteria
a. The family/caregivers will have their educational needs regarding the patient's
hospitalization addressed in a timely manner.
2. Process criteria: Neonatal nurses will
a. Encourage families to be involved in the development of the plan of care from admission
through discharge and whenever changes in the plan are needed at the level they choose.
b. include the family and/or caregiver in teaching to increase their understanding of the
infant’s needs during hospitalization and upon discharge.
C. Orient parents and families to the unit guidelines/routines upon admission and throughout
hospitalization.
d. Explain all procedures and interventions and the plan of care and encourage questions
and discussion.
e. Assess learning needs upon admission and regularly thereafter. Document needs in the
patient’s medical record.
f. Provide the family/caregiver with educational materials as needed regarding the ongoing
care of the infant and discharge information.
g. Begin discharge education as soon as the parents are able to participate in care and may

include but is not limited to the follow topics:
i, Hearing Screening (Ages and Stages)
ii. Newborn Metabolic Screen

ii. CPR
iv. Car Seat Challenge (< 37 weeks gestation or < 2500gms)
V. Safe Sleep Guidelines
vi. Car Seat Safety
vii. Shaken Baby Syndrome prevention
viii. Breast feeding support/education/resources
h. Document all teaching and response to learning in the patient’s medical record.
0. PATIENT SAFETY:
1. Outcome criteria
a. Neonatal nurses continually provide care in a safe manner.
2. Process criteria: Neonatal nurses will
a. Complete environmental checks whenever a change of caregiver occurs. Environmental

checks include ensuring that two infant identification bands are on the infant and that the
cardiopulmonary/oxygen saturation monitor is attached to patient.
b. Ensure that critical alarms include HR and apnea are set as follows unless otherwise

ordered:

i. - HR:80-220 if non-ventilated and 32 corrected weeks or greater or if 38 weeks or
greater (on positive pressure or not)

i 100-220 all other infants

ii. Apnea: 20 second delay

iv. Audibility of HR and apnea alarms on monitors will be validated by ensuring each
is set as a crisis alarm (in alarm parameter levels) and 70% volume adjusted up or
occasionally down as warranted for audibility in the pod.

V. Critical alarms will be checked at the beginning of each 12 hour shift and more
frequently as the patient condition warrants for alarm limits, function and audibility.
This check will be validated and documented in the medical record when limits are

recorded.
C. Ensure that all continuous infusions are clearly labeled with the name of the medication
that is infusing as close as possible to the medication infusion site.
d. Ensure that the patient's emergency drug sheet is updated and the bedside.
e. Not leave infants unattended on any scale or flat, unprotected surface.

213



Women and Newborn Services
Standards of Care - NICU
Page 10 of 10

f. Ensure that bed wheels are locked at all times except during transfer.

g. Ensure that side rails on radiant warmers and open cribs are up at all times unless a
caregiver is next to the bedside.

h Use locks on isolette doors, portholes, and warmer side rails all times.

i Utilize appropriate shielding and protection with use of x-ray equipment.

J

Use volume control infusion pumps with all IVs. No more than 1 hour of fluid infusion
should be set.

k. Use safety belts when infants are placed in swings, car seats, vibrating chairs, or strollers.
I Scan all medications and breast milk per hospital policy prior to administration.

P.  EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT:

1. Outcome criteria
a. Neonatal nurses have appropriate emergency equipment available for patient use.
2. Process criterial:
a. A neonatal crash cart will be available on the unit at all times and checked according to
hospital policy.
b. Admission bed supplies are checked at the beginning of each shift.
C. Emergency equipment present at the bedside should include
i. Mechanical suction with suction catheters
ii. Oxygen

iii. Resuscitation bag and appropriately sized mask
iv. Bulb syringe
Q. TRANSFER OF CARE:
1. Outcome criteria
a. Neonatal nurses assess all information pertinent to the transfer of care. They will
communicate accurate and correct patient information to facilitate and support safe care,
situational awareness, collaborative decision making, and continuity of care.
2. Process criteria: Neonatal nurses will
a. Provide a report to the oncoming neonatal nurse, per hospital policy, including review of
the patient’s plan of care and outcome goals following the situation, background,
assessment and recommendation format.

b. Review all physician/AHP orders placed throughout the shift and verify status.
C. Review the medication administration record.
d. Assess the integrity of all vascular access sites, tubes, and drains.

R. REFERENCES:

1. American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) & The American College of Obstetricians and
Gynecologists (ACOG). (2013). Guidelines for Perinatal care. 7th ed. Elk Grove Village, IL.

2. Fanaroff, A.A. & Martin, R.J. (2001). Neonatal-Perinatal Medicine Diseases of the Fetus and
Infant, 7" ed., Mosby. '

3. Furdon, S.A. & Benjamin, K. (2010). Physical assessment. In Verklan MT, Walden M. Core
curriculum for neonatal intensive care nursing. Saunders: Philadelphia. p. 120-55.

4, Merenstein, G. & Gardner, S.L. (2016). Handbook of Neonatal Intensive Care, 8" ed., Mosby.

214



(7

Tri-City Medical Center
STANDARDS OF CARE

CARE OF THE PATIENT IN THE NICU

DELETE - see new
Standards of Care
NICU 2016

02-24-11 R1 Page 1 of 8
Perinatal S Medical Professional
P Reviow | Collborative | (USRS | FLATRAYEN | Executive Affairs Directin
Practice y P Committee Committee
05/16 08/16 08/16 n/a 09/16 10/16

215



@

Tri-City Medical Center
STANDARDS OF CARE

CARE OF THE PATIENT IN THE NICU

| 02-24-11 R1 Page 2 of 8
Department Gepnata Division of Pharmacy and Medlc:al Profess'Ional Board of
Review ColBborstive Neonatology Therapeutics EXBCLEVS Ao Directors
Practice Committee Committee
| 05/16 08/16 08/16 n/a 09/16 1016

216



@

Tri-City Medical Center
STANDARDS OF CARE

CARE OF THE PATIENT IN THE NICU

| 02-24-11 R1 Page 3 of 8
Department Perinata_l Division of Pharmacy and Medlc_al Pletsssional Board of
Review ColigborStive Neonatology Therapeutics Sxscutie i) Directors
| Practice Committee Committee
| 05/16 08/16 08/16 n/a 09/16 10116

217



(7

Tri-City Medical Center
STANDARDS OF CARE

CARE OF THE PATIENT IN THE NICU

02-24-11 R1 Page 4 of 8
Department Perinata'l Division of Pharmacy and L ol Board of
Review e RoLatvs Neonatology Therapeutics LT ahaits Directors
Practice Committee Committee
05/16 08/16 08/16 n/a 09/16 10/16

218



@

Tri-City Medical Center
STANDARDS OF CARE

CARE OF THE PATIENT IN THE NICU

Replacing with new format
and new content

02-24-11 R1 PaggS of 8
Perinatal SEEE Medical Professional
P | coldbonme | Dwsenst | Fhemeorand | cuve | At | Bewdol
Practice ay P Committes Committee
05/16 08/16 08/16 n/a 09/16 10/16

219



(7

Tri-City Medical Center
STANDARDS OF CARE

CARE OF THE PATIENT IN THE NICU

| 02-24-11 R1 Page 6 of 8
Department Perlnata! Division of Pharmacy and Medlc_al Professpnal Board of
Review Collaborative Neonatology Therapeutics SXScutvS i Directors
| Practice Committee Committee
| 05/16 08/16 08/16 n/a 09/16 10/16

220



(7

Tri-City Medical Center
STANDARDS OF CARE

CARE OF THE PATIENT IN THE NICU

| 02-24-11 R1 Page 7 of 8
Department Ratingtal Division of Pharmacy and Lol Profess:ional Board of
Review Collaborative Neonatology Therapeutics Exscutive Gifalzs. Directors
Practice Committee Committee
| 05/16 08/16 08/16 n/a 09/16 10/16

221



(7

Tri-City Medical Center
STANDARDS OF CARE

CARE OF THE PATIENT IN THE NICU

02-24-11 R1 Page 8 of 8
Department Perinata.l Division of Pharmacy and Medlc.al Profes§|onal Board of
Review soaLoatiS Neonatolo Therapeutics FTET Affairs Directors
Practice y p Committee Committee -
05/16 08/16 08/16 nl/a 09/16 10/16

222



(@) Tri-City Medical Center | Tracked Changes Copy

Oceanside, California

WOMEN’S & CHILDREN’S SERVICES MANUAL - NICU

SUBJECT:

VISITATION IN THE NICU

ISSUE DATE: 7/07
REVISION DATE(S): 01/09, 04/09, 06/11, 8/12

Department Approval Date(s): 03/16
Division of Neonatology Approval Date(s): 03/16
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 09/16
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 10/16

Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A. POLICY STATEMENT:

1.

2,

1:3.

The following guidelines are intended to support Fo-fasilitate-family visiting in the neonatal

intensive care unit (NICU) embracing the Family Centered Care concept while maintaining a safe,

quiet environment.

a. “Family” is defined as any person(s) who play a significant role in an individual’'s
life inclusive of person(s) not legally related to the individual.

+b. Members of family include spouses, domestic partners, step-parents, both
different-sex and same-sex significant others, and any other persons operating in a
caretaker role.

Only those visitors, including siblings, that are appropriate to visit in the NICU as defined in this

policy, will be admitted past the first set of doors and be allowed to sit in the unit lounge.

These guidelines are flexible to support the diverse needs of our families.

B. PROCEDURE:

1.

Staff shall greet family and visitors in the NICU entryway to identify who they are and whom they
are visiting. Parents ID bands must be checked upon entrance. Take this opportunity to instruct
families/visitors about the NICU visitation guidelines.

a. Parents/banded individuals have 24-hour access to the NICU, inclusive of change of
shift.
b. Visitors may visit with a parent/banded individual at any time except during change

of shlft (0645 to 0745 and 1845 to 1945)
&-C. F _ 2t

Banded mdlwduals who arein
the unit at the beginning of change of shift may remain. Banded individuals
requesting entrance into the unit during change of shift will be asked to wait in the
waiting room until the conclusion of change of shift unless they have been
requested to enter by the nurse for feeding purposes.

b-d.  Visitors who are not parents or siblings may not visit uniess they are 18 years or older.
e-e. Visitors are limited to two (2) visitors per patient at the bedside at any one time.
i. One of the bedside visitors must be a banded parent/individual. (Please note this
will include employees )

1) Foster parents as deS|gnated by Department of Health Services and with
valid identification.

223



Women and Newborn Services NICU
Visitation in the NICU
Page 2 of 3

2) Each multiple may have up to two visitors; only one banded individual is
required per family.
df.  Siblings must be 12 years and older to visit uniess they are the previously discharged
sibling of a multiple. They are encouraged to visit with the following conditions:and
i. An adult must supervise siblings at all times.
iii. All siblings 12 years and older must show proof of up-to-date immunizations
before entering the NICUvisiting.
iii. All siblings will be health screened each time they enter.
iiv.  All siblings under the age of 18 will be prohibited during RSV/Flu season,
inclusive of the previously discharged sibling of a multiple.
e-g. All Visitors will be interviewed including but not limited to the following for admittance to
the NICU:
i. Exposures: visitors who have had exposure to chickenpox, measles, tuberculosis
will not allowed to visit
ii. Fever: No admittance will be granted to the NICU if the visitor presents with a
temperature greater that 100.4 degrees Fahrenheit. Re-admittance to the NICU
will be allowed when the visitor is afebrile for 24-hours.

1) Exception: Mother’s that are febrile as a result of infections of non

transmissible concern may visit if:
a) The mother is afebrile times one
b) Fever is cleared by OB as being of a non-transmissible origin.
ii. Signs of infection: visitors with signs of infection including but not limited to
nausea, vomiting, cough sneezing, sore throat ,conjunctivitis and draining wounds
(does not include scrapes or small cuts that are scabbed over) will not be allowed
to visit for the duration of the iliness. e.g. the signs and symptoms are resolved.
iv. Skin Lesions/Herpes Simplex (Oral Herpes Lesion)

1) No admittance will be granted to the NICU if the visitor presents with: skin
lesions, including open abscesses and oral herpes lesions (cold sore) that
are open or draining,

2) Re-admittance to the NICU can occur when the neonatologist has
examined the visitor and the herpes lesion is completely crusted over. The
visitor will be instructed to wear a mask and not to allow the sore to touch

the infant.
V. Shingles
1) No admittance will be granted to the NICU of the visitor presents with
shingles that are blistered or weeping.
2) Re-admittance to the NICU can occur when the shingles are dry and

crusted. Visitor is instructed to not touch the affected area and not allow the
lesion to touch the infant.
vi. Rashes

1) No admittance will be granted to the NICU if the visitor presents with an
undiagnosed rash. Visitors with undiagnosed rash will be instructed to see
their personal physician for diagnosis of origin. No admittance will be
allowed until confirmation of origin is obtained and a non-contagious
diagnosis is made.

2) No admittance will be granted to the NICU for visitors who have not had
chicken pox or been vaccinated and has been exposed to anyone with
chicken pox in the past three weeks. No admittance will be allowed from

day 8to day 21 after exposure -Authenzed—wsﬁe#s—wlw—a;e—nen—mm&me-te

3) V|S|tors who are dlagnosed W|th measles or rubella W|II not be aIIowed to
visit until 7 days after the onset of rash.

224



Women and Newborn Services NICU
Visitation in the NICU

Page 3 of 3

£h.

g-i.
k.

k.

n

Instruct all family members/visitors to follow the hand washing procedure prior to handling
the baby. Refer to Hand Hygiene in the NICU Policy.

Encourage patient/family confidentiality.

The RN staff reserves the right to monitor and/or restrict visitation based upon unit activity
and critical status of any infant.

At any time, the unit may close for medical purposes.

During seasons where there are more colds and flu, the visiting policy may be restricted
further. Changes will be posted outside the NICU.

225



@‘f) Tri-City Medical Center

Women and Newborn Services

PROCEDURE:

NEWBORN SEPSIS CARE GUIDELINES

Purpose:

T'o outline the nursing management of newborns demonstrating signs and symptoms of
sepsis that may require further evaluation and management.

, Supportive Data:

Any newborn with signs of sepsis should receive a-an initial fuli diagnostic evaluation,
a review of maternal and newborn risk factors, and receive antibiotic therapy
pending the results of the evaluation. The evaluation should include a blood culture, a
Complete Blood Count (CBC) including manual count differential and platelet count, a
chest radiograph (X-ray) if any abnormal respiratory signs are present. Therapy should
include antimicrobial agents active against Group B Streptococcus (GBS) as well as
other organisms that might cause newborn sepsis such as E. coli.

A. PURPOSE:

l 1,

To identify newborns w1th risk factors and who develop signs and symptoms that may mdlcate
neonatal sepsis. w ;

admission

Newborns at risk for sepsis can include but are not limited to these indications:

a. Positive maternal GBS status without receipt of Intrapartum Antibiotic Prophylaxis (IAP)
within 4 hours of delivery

Prolonged maternal rupture of membranes (ROM) greater than 18 hours

Premature delivery, less than 37 weeks estimated gestational age (EGA)

Unknown GBS status with ROM history greater than 18 hours and/orprematurity
Maternal Chonoamnlonltls

T?Qov

hespatal—stay
gf. Maternal history of genital herpes
h-g. Newborn with traumatic delivery history

éigns and Symptoms of Newborn sepsis can include but are not limited to:
a. Respiratory Distress

i, Tachypnea

. Grunting

iii. Retractions

iv. Nasal flaring

V. Decreased breath sounds or adventitious breath sounds i.e.(wheezing, rhonchi,

rales)

vi. Apnea

vii. Cyanosis
b. Temperature instability
c. Lethargy erpeertone
e-d. Hypertonia (poor tone)
de. lrritability

ef. CensistertpPoor feeding
£g. Hypoglycemia
g-h. Poor perfusion (mMottled skin pattern)

h-B. SPECIFIC SCENARIOS:
1 Positive or Unknown Maternal GBS Status and/or Prematurity:
Department Department of Division of Department of Pharmacy & ET::&‘:?J - Pro;:fsasi::nal Board of
Review OB/GYN Neonatology Pediatrics Therapeutics Committee Committee Directors
| NEW n/a n/a 2/16 09/16 09/16 10/16

226



Women and Newborn Services Manual
Newborn Sepsis Care Guidelines
Page 2 of 3

a. Please refer to Unit Specific Procedure: GBS Prevention and Treatment in Labor

and Newborn follow-up
4.2, Maternal Chorioamnionitis:

a. A maternal diagnosis of Chorioamnionitis requires immediate newborn evaluation and
admission to the Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU).

b. The Diagnosis of ing maternal chorioamnionitis is the responsibility of the Obstetrical
(OB) provider and is defined by:

i. Maternal temperature greater than or equal to (100.4 F or 38 C) AND ( 2) other
signs/ symptoms listed below:
1) Fetal tachycardia
2) Maternal tachycardia
3) Maternal White Blood Cell(WBC) Count greater than or equal to 15,000
4) Uterine tenderness
5) Foul smelling amniotic fluid

c. A-maternal diagnosis of Maternal Chorioamnionitis requires immediate newborn
evaluation and admission to the Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU).

3. Maternal Fever:

a. If a maternal fever of 100.5 or higher is obtained, the newborn’s provider should be
called to determine if any further evaluation, monitoring or treatment is needed
based on the condition of the newborn and any maternal or intrapartum risk
factors.

b. A newborn that is asymptomatic may remain in couplet care to facilitate the
opportunity for exclusive breastfeeding until symptoms and/or laboratory resuits
indicate a reason for NICU admission.

4. Newborn with signs and symptoms of sepsis:
5)a. The nurse shall contact the newborn’s provider immediately to determine further
evaluation, monitoring and treatment plans.
B:C. PROCEDURE:
1. If a newborn presents with signs and symptoms of sepsis; or -has known maternal risk factors,
the nurse should obtain an initial set of vital signs and consider a point of care glucose screening.

a. Newborns with temperature instability shall be placed on a radiant warmer and warmer
placed on servo mode for temperature regulation.

b. Newborns with hypoglycemia shall be managed per the Blood Glucose Newborn
Monitoring Standardized Procedure.

2. A pulse oximeter shall be placed on the newborn to obtain a baseline oxygen saturation value
with an oxygen source nearby for use as indicated.

a. For newborns with respiratory distress and/or cyanosis, apply supplemental oxygen for
pulse ox readings of less than 95% and per provider order

3. Placement of cardlac Ieads for ongomg momtonng can be con5|dered
4, vborrsnroviderchall be-celled immeciatelsncclinealsoncernsreparts d- If lab work is
requested the provnder orders may mclude —mlteining:

a. Neonatal Complete Blood Count (CBC with manual differential)

b. CRP

C. Blood Culture

d. Chest X-ray

5. The newborn, who has unresolved clinical symptoms and/or abnormal laboratory results, shall
be prepared for transport to the NICU. -
6. Document clinical findings, nursing interventions and provider notification.
>D. REFERENCES:
1. American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP}-and American College of Obstetricians and

Gynecologists (AGOG) (2012).—Guidelines to Perinatal Nursing (7" ed.). Washington DC, 2042.

227



Women and Newborn Services Manual
Newborn Sepsis Care Guidelines
Page 3 of 3

l 2. Simpson, K.;&- Creehan, P.(2014) Perinatal Nursing (4" ed). Philadelphia, PA:
Wolters/Kluwer/Lippincott Williams & Wilkins;:2044-

| B-E. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1. Women and Newborn Services Procedure: Group B Strep Prevention and Treatment in Labor
and Newborn follow-up.

2. Patient Care Services Standardized Procedure: Blood Glucose Newborn
MonitoringHypoglycemia-Managementinthe-Newborn

228



Epidural Administration of Corticosteroids by Interventional
Radiology at TCMC

Situation: The epidural administration of corticosteroids including, but not limited to
methylprednisolone, triamcinolone, and betamethasone is not approved by the FDA. Concerns
were raised by pharmacists regarding verification of orders for steroids intended for epidural
injection.

Background: Injection of corticosteroids into the epidural space has been commonplace for
several decades, however the safety and effectiveness have not been established and thus has
never been approved by the FDA. Concerns were raised in the medical community regarding
the risk of serious neurologic adverse events secondary to epidural administration of
corticosteroids. As a result, the FDA commissioned an expert panel to investigate this issue.

The conclusion of this investigation in November 2014 resulted in changes to the package
inserts for all injectable corticosteroids indicating that epidural administration is not
recommended. This recommendation was independent of the presence or absence of
preservatives in the drug solution.

An FDA expert panel also produced clinical considerations in February of 2015 to provide
guidance on appropriate epidural administration if corticosteroids if they are used in this off-label
setting.

Assessment: In June of 2016, the Pharmacy Service issued concerns regarding the safety
epidural administration of corticosteroids by IR physicians at TCMC. Clarification was requested
from Risk Management to determine if pharmacists may approve these medication orders for
this indication and/or if patient’s needed an updated consent form addressing the risks
associated with this specific procedure given the changes in the Package Insert for these
agents.

A meeting between IR, Risk Management, and Pharmacy was held on August11th, 2016 to
address these issues. IR has addressed the issue internally and currently follows all of of the
FDA Expert Panel recommendations on best injection practices to minimize the risk of
neurologic injury. Given that IR is following currently accepted best practice and has an
extensive history of performing this procedure without incident, Risk Management felt that it was
reasonable to continue this practice without changes. Furthermore, Risk Management has
asked that the details of this meeting be discussed with the P&T Committee and Medical
Executive Committee for informational purposes.

Recommendation(s):

o Epidural administration of corticosteroids may be performed by IR physicians following
FDA recommended best-practice

¢ Details of meeting held between IR, Pharmacy, and Risk Management to be reviewed by
P&T and MEC

References:
Rathmell JP, Benzon HT, Dreyfuss P, et al. Safeguards to prevent neurologic complications

after epidural steroid injections: Consensus opinions from a multidisciplinary working group and
national organizations. Anesthesiology. 2015;122:974-984

4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056 > (760) 724-8411 229



TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
PHARMACY AND THERAPEUTICS COMMITTEE

Request for Formulary Status Evaluation:

Gadobutrol (Gadavist) Admission {x } Deletion { }
Date: 09/13/2016 Requestor: Dr. Donald Ponec
Trade Name: Gadavist Generic Name: Gadobutrol

Dosage form(s): 1 mmol/mL (2 mL, 7.5 mL, 10 mL, 15 mL, 30mL, 65mL vials), Tmmol/mL
(7.5mL, 10mL, 15mL pre-filled syringes)

Indications:

1. Diagnostic imaging (Breast malignancy, CNS, supra-aortic, or renal artery angiography)

Efficacy:

Study Study Design Intervention Outcomes
Superiority seen in
contrast

Single dose of enhancement, border
gadobutrol 0.1 delineation, internal
mmol/kg then a morphology
N=336 Double-blind, cross- | Singie dose of
over Phase Il study gadoteridol 0.1
MRI of the CNS mmol/kg in
randomized Non-inferiority
sequence 24 hours | demonstrated for
apart gadobutrol vs
gadoteridol for exact
match diagnosis

Safety:
Propensity for medication error: Low

Abuse potential: None

Sentinel event potential:
Anaphylactic and other hypersensitivity reactions with cardiovascular, respiratory or

cutaneous manifestations, ranging from mild to severe, including death, have occurred.

Monitor patients closely during and after administration of Gadavist.

Cost comparison with similar Formulary products:

Gadoversetamide (Optimark) Gadobutrol (Gadavist)
15 mL syringe ($26) 7.5 mL ($63)
20 mL syringe ($33) 10 mL ($84)

230



Recommendation:

Gadobutrol (Gadavist) as compared to the currently utilized contrast gadoversetamide
(Optimark) may have reduced risk of NSF due to its macrocyclic structure. Gadoversitamide is
among a small group of agents associated with the highest number of NSF cases historically
speaking. As compared to the macrocyclic product gadobenate (MultiHance), gadobutrol is
nonionic which in theory may pose less risk of tissue injury in the rare but serious event of
extravasation. Another macrocylic product gadoteridol (ProHance) has lower relaxivity as
compared to gadobutrol and in studies some evidence of this difference was apparent as
gadobutrol produced improved image enhancement and border delineation. Of all the
macrocyclic gadolinium agents, gadobutrol has the most FDA labeled indications demonstrating
efficacy in breast, CNS, aortic, and renal artery imaging.

Whereas the current formulary product gadoversitamide is contraindicated in those patients with
severe kidney disease (GFR <30 ml/min/1.73 m?), the macrocyclic agents including gadobutrol
are not, although this does not obviate the risk of NSF. Among the macrocyclic agents, costs
are comparable however gadobutrol is the only product among this class which comes
packaged as a pre-filled syringe.

The TCMC Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee recommends the addition of
gadobutrol (Gadavist) to the TCMC Formulary to replace gadoversetamide (Optimark).
This recommendation is secondary to an improved safety profile with newer macrocyclic
gadolinium-based contrast agents, comparable pricing against other macrocyclic agents,
and compatibility with existing equipment and protocols.

References:

1. ACR Manual on Contrast media Version 10.2, 2016. ACR Committee on Drugs
and Contrast Media

2. Gadavist™. Full Prescribing Information (Package insert). Bayer Health Care
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. April 2016

3. Kanal, E, Maravilla K, Rowley, HA. Gadolinium Contrast Agents for CNS
Imaging: Current Concepts and Clinical Evidence. American Journal of
Neuroradiology, 2014;35(12):2215-26

231



Formulary Line Item Additions/Deletions

Additions:
e Capsaicin 0.025% topical cream
e Ticagrelor 60mg tablets

Deletions:
¢ Capsaicin 0.075% topical cream
Albuterol oral solution
Potassium chloride 40 meq/30mL unit dose cups
Vitamin K 5mg oral tablets

Capsaicin 0.025% topical cream: Capsaicin 0.075% cream on formulary no longer
available from local distributor. P&T Committee recommends addition of capsaicin
0.025% cream to formulary. Capsaicin 0.075% cream will be removed as a line item
from the formulary.

Ticagrelor 60mg tablet: Ticagrelor 90mg tablets are currently on formulary. In 2015, a
60mg tablet strength was developed following approval for new dosing regimen of 60mg
twice daily after 1 year of therapy on ticagrelor 90 mg twice daily. The P&T Committee
recommends adding the 60mg tablet strength as a formulary line item to facilitate
continuity of outpatient care.

Albuterol oral solution: Oral formulation is not the preferred route of therapy for this
agent. The recommended route of administration is via metered-dose inhaler (MDI) or
nebulizer for all indications. This recommendation is supported by the National Asthma
Education and Prevention Program Expert Panel Report 3 Guidelines (2007). Due to the
lack of orders for this agent, the bulk bottle routinely expires on the shelf. The P&T
Committee recommends deletion from the TCMC formulary given lack of use and
availability of the recommended dosage forms (MDI, nebs).

Potassium chloride 40 meq/30 ml unit dose cups: Ambiguous labeling by the
manufacturer lead the Pharmacy Service to pull this dosage strength from all Pyxis
machines in August 2016. The label read “20meq per 15mL” which could easily be
misconstrued as 20meq total in the unit dose when in reality the nurse would be giving
40 meq. ISMP has been notified of this issue and the manufacturer is planning to correct
their product label in the future. The P&T Committee recommends removing this as a
formulary line item. The 20 meq/15mL unit dose cups will remain available.

Vitamin K 5 mg tablets: Tablets significantly increased in price, tripling over the last
several years (currently $55 per tablet). Given this dramatic cost increase, several
institutions have begun compounding an oral solution using the intravenous dosage
form. The stability of a vitamin K oral preparation (1mg/mL) using intravenous vitamin K
(10mg/mL) and sterile water for injection has been well documented. A compounded
5mg dose of vitamin K using this preparation will cost TCMC approximately $16 per
dose (~$40 cost savings per dose). Oral ingestion of the intravenous solution is
considered equivalent to oral tablets. The P&T Committee has approved the deletion
of vitamin K 5mg tablets from the formulary and approved the change in practice
to provide oral doses using an oral solution compounded using the intravenous
solution.

4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056 > (760) 724-8411 232



Governance & Legislative Committee
(No meeting held in
October, 2016)

233



9102 ‘0¢ 42qo0

88PIWIWOY SOIYT @ oueldwioD PPNy

uejjauuoqg ‘s

JO pJeog 8y} 0) Juas
8( 0} UOHEPUBWILIODDY

99))ILWOoo pabeinoous syg -,suolalep, Se palsl sie
epuabe s .Aepo} uo saioljod |B18AaS pale)s ejiuuly Jojoaliqg

:83a1npal0ld @ saldljod
JO uoISSNIsI pue mainey (v

ssauisng MeN G

uejjouuoq ‘s

"PaNEl S9NUI papuswy

*Alsnowiueun passed uolow ay |
"‘papusuwe se saynujw ay} anosdde o3 |[oyd3 J03oaaqg
Aq papuo2as pue )20jjeyss 1032311 AQq paAow Sem }|

' s10)einbBay, peas 0} pasinal
aq p|noys ,s1aioge, pJom ay} D G abed uo psjou sem

910¢Z ‘Gl Jequwseldses
— Sajnujw Jo uoneoyney v

"SjusWIWO2 21ignd ou a1am aisy |

Wwia)l 8y} JO UOIJEeIapISUOD
s,99))IWW0Y alojaq algnd
3y} 0} }saiajul Jo wayl Aue uo
siaquiaL 8a)iWwod pue 2lgnd
8y} Jo slaqwiswi AQ S)USWIWO)) ‘E

uelisuuoq ‘s

‘pancidde epuaby .

*Aisnowjueun passed uonow ayj

‘pajuasald se epuabe ayj anosdde o3 welimzii4 uliyyey

'SIN Aq papuo2as pue [[aYd}i\ J03oalig AQ paAowWw SeMm }|

epuaby jo jeaouddy -z

"Bjluul4 uosiadiiey) Aq Jajus) [eoIpajy AND-1] 1B | ooy
Alquiassy ul ‘w'e 0g:g e JopJo 0} pajjed sem Bunssw ay |

J9pI0 0} leD 'L

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

suoisnpPuo)
/SuUOlEpUBWILIOIBY
uondy

uoissnosi(

sonew.oju] [ealull) '@ uoneonp3 Jojoall@ ‘ddot Ayiey Juelsissy SANIeXT ‘Ue||auUOQ W8] {{8Sunoy) |eiouss) ‘Jod1oeY auel(]

uelisAud ‘sieiy Aed 1q equisy ANunwiwo) ‘Zuemyos a1jse Laquisiy Aunwwo) ‘weyumz)i4 ukyies
Ajunwwod ‘Buiuwing yoep ‘|9Yd)IN BINET J0joalIq YOOjBYdS "M AueT Jojoanq (ieyd) ejuuly euowey Jojaliq

000 ‘meys-pieusag sjliayd ‘00D “Asjuo) endey ‘040 Bunoy ‘seary Aey {(0JD) upelq ans)s

Juasalid sioUulQ

:s1aquiay Bunjop-uopN

Jaquiapy
JaquIB|y

Juasald s1oquispy

"W e ggioL-we O£ g
I wooy Ajquiassy
9102 ‘0Z 1940320
sanIwWwo) soIyyg g asueldwo) ‘upny
ey edyr A9-uy




9102 ‘02 4290100

4

sapIWwWog salyig B souedwod Jprig
o~

uejjsuuoq ‘s

Aa1j0d anouddy o3 si0y0aaQg
Jo pieog ay) o} Juas
2q 0} UolepuU3WWO0IY

9yl "uoljow a8y} papuodas ||aYyNI Joda1Iq "paqLosap
Sk sjuswipuswe yum L96-05.8 Ad1j0d jo |eaoisdde

puawwodal 0} weljimzii4 uliyjey "siy Aq parow semy|

"Jonpuoasiw pajoadsns

jo uoinebisaaul pue ssasouid ay} 0} syeads Aoljod jey)

Se 196-0G/8 Ad1j0d ui passaippe aq anssi siy} paysabbns
jooloey ‘S ‘palebiisenul Buiag aie |9sUNOY) |elausD)

pue Ja210 eoueldwo) Jaiyd ‘030 aus Buipnjour preog

ay) AQ paJly s{enpiAipul 8SOU} UsUm pauliojus sI pleog sy}
Buunsu Jo souepodwl 84} UO PBJUBWILIOD }20||BYOS 10)o8lIg

OV uohonpay 1dysQg pue 0y swien esje ayy jo
uoljeue|dxs pajiejap e papinoid osje J0oIoeY "SI\ “uonelelal
s)qiyold Yyoiym me| ajels pue [Biaps} U)IM JUus)sisuoo

2q 0) sI Aojjod ay) jo asodind sy} paje)s ays ‘uonel|e}s.
-uou sessalppe Ajpesfo Aepoy} sspiuwod ay) a1ojeq Aoljod
ay) Jenamoy ‘uonjeziuebio ay) Jo) aAonpoldisjunod si )i se
Kaijod Jomo|g SISIUA Su10ads e aaey Jou op suoneziuebio
Auew paje)s meys-pleussg sy "Aojjod Jemolg

afISIUAA B sey Joulsiq ay) Jayiaym buipiebas pasiel sem
uoflsenb y ‘Aoljod 8y} O 31} 8Y) O} UOEOLIPOW B SE [jom
se "y uonoes ul sabueyd Bumewuoy pspnjour suonsabbng
‘uoljeljelay-UopN :3oNpuoosi paloadsng Jo suoday
-uoponpoJu| :sanssj souejjdwo) 0} Buipuodsay — 095-0G/8
Ao1j0d O} paje|al uoISSNISIP SAISUB)IXS pey 9s)IWWod sy |

uoljelejoy-uon

:Jonpuoasiy pejoadsng jo spoday
:uononpoJju| ‘senss| asueydwon
0} Buipuodsay — 096-06/8 (2

‘suoniuyaq ‘yuawiojdwz
pue BuuiH - 2£5-06.8
Kaijod aj9)ap 03 si10320a1Qg

"JN290 Jou pIp jey)

@ouejsul siy] Ul yansmoy Aoljod pajsiep 8y} Se swli) swes
9y} Je 9ayIwwod 8y} 0} ybnouq s| Aoljod mau ay) AjeoidAy
pajels ddo| Auiey sy -"uonoejsiies s 880D Sy}

0} painides useq sey abenbue| ay) sunsus o} pajelodiooul
abenbue| pajejap ay) aney jey) ssioljod ay) yoeye o)
aAnonpoud aq pjnom }1 paemuoy Buiob paje)s weljimzig sy

"2Jaymasi|d passalppe
usaq sey Aoljod psjajep B Ul pauIejuod UoBWIOLUl JBYIaUM
0} se suoflsenb Aue aaey Aay) i dn yeads o) siequisw

(313713Q)
suofulyaq ‘JuswAojdwy

pue BuuiH — /£5-0528 (L

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiag

suoIsn|auo0)
/suoljepuawWIWoday
uopoy

uoissnasi(




9102 ‘02 4290100

€

sa)IWwWo) salulg ¥ soueldwo) ‘UpngR
o™

uejsuuoq ‘s

'896-05.8

Ao1j04 9)ajap 0} si03001i(g
JO pieog ayj 0} Juas

8 0} UOIJEPUBILIOIY

‘we 60:6 je bunesaw ay} yaj ddoj sy

"pajs|ap Uaa(q SeY Saloljod PUE JONpU0Y JO 98P0 POSIASY
JO M3U JO uoleuIwassIg — SaIoljod pue Jonpuocy) 0 8po) JO
uoisiney pue juswdojaaaq — 895-05/8 A21j0d pajou sem )|

(313730) sanijod
pUE 1oNpUOY) JO SPOY POSIASY JO
M8 JO uoleulWasSSI(] — S811j0d
PUE JONpU0Y) JO 9POD) JO UOISIASY

pue juswdojeraq — 895-05.8 (L

uejjauuoq ‘s

'699G6-0G.8

£o1104 3)9]9p 03} si030aaig
Jo pieog ayj 0} Juas

9 0} UOI}EPUBWIWIOIY

"pajsjep usaq sey saioljod aoueldwo))
pUE JONPUOY JO UOISIASY — G9G-0G/8 AD1|0d Pajou Sem }f

(313713Q)
sa101|04 @oueldwo) pue

1onpuoy Jo uoisiney — 696-06/8 (9

ue|jsuuoq ‘s

‘PaquIOsap se $796-09.8
Koijod anoadde o) si030011Q
Jo pieog ayj o} Juas

a( 0} UoiEPUSWWO3Y

‘AiIsnowueun passed uopjow ayj -uolow ayj papuodas
ZPemyos a11s9 "IN ‘PoquoIsap se sjuawpuswe

Y}m saldljod pue J1onpuo) Jo spa JO UOISIAY

pue juawdojanaq — 95-05.8 Ao1j0d jJo jeroudde
puswiwodas 0} [ISYdHA 1039311 Aq paAow SeMm 3

‘Aivanus s) ul g uoldss AMINS  «
-+ sk ‘saijod soueldwod
pajejal, SpIom 8y} Uasul dulj }seT] 'L "D uolods  «
" D9IWWIoY, pJom 8y} yum aoejdal pue
oueldwon, piom sy} a)S Ul ISeT Tl "D Uonoas  «
‘suolsiAel BuImo||0) 8y} pepuawwodal
pue $96-0G/8 A21|0d pamalnal S9ILUIWIOD Y |

sapljod
PUE JONPU0Y JO 8POJ) JO UOISINDY
pue juswdo|anaq — 95-06/8 (S

ue|jpuuoq s\

'€96-05.8

Ao1j04 9)a]ap 03 s1039941Q]
JO pieog ay) 0} Juas

8 0} UOIIEPUBWILLIOIDY

'¥9G-0G.8 Adljod
ojui pajelodiooul usaq sey JUsUOD S} pue pajajep usaq sey
UoljoNpoJiuU| — SaI01104 pUE JoNpuUo) JO 8p0D JO UOISIASY pue

wawdolanaq — £96-0G/8 Adljod paulejdxs ddo| Ayiey “sy

(3.13713Q) uononpodju| — sadijod
pUE JoNpuo JO 3p0J JO UOISIASY

pue juswdojansq — £€95-05/8 (¥

02D

‘uoljeIaPISuod
10} 93)IIIWI0D

ay) o3 yoeq Jybnoiq pue
pasiAal aq 0} uonebiysanuj
Jonpuoasiy pajoadsng

Jo spoday — sanss)

asueldwo) o3 Buipuodsay |

- 196-06.8 Aoljod

‘paquISap sanss| 8y} Ssaippe 0) pajgel g pjnoys pue
uspuUM |[am Jou si Aoljod ay) uoluido tay ui psje)s 10919y
‘S ‘pa)sabbns os|e alem suoisiral |esnewwelb Joulpy

"pleog ay) Jo uonuspe ay} o} Jybnoiq aq pinoys jeyy
suonebisaaul pue sansst asueldwod Jayjo o} se sjuswbpnl
sayew os|e Jao1j0 soueldwod ay) paulejdxs meysg
-pJeusag sy "(jasuno) |eidsuag pue 0D ‘03D) pJeoq
ay) Aq pauiy s|enpiAlpul 8soy} 0} pajejal sanssi aoueljdwos
JO psuwiioju; s| pieog ay} usym pue moy o} pajejal L9g
-05.8 A21|04 UO UOISSNISIP SAISUSIXS peY 98)ILLLLIOD 3y |

uonebisanuy|

‘Jonpuoosiy pejoadsng

1o suoday — sanss| aosueldwon
0} Bujpuodsay — L 95-06/8 (€

"PaqUIOSap Se 195-06.8

‘AiIsnowueun passed uonow




9102 ‘02 4290100

9ajIWWoD soIyig g soueldwo) ‘upn§s
N

‘w'e G1:6 Je Bunesw ayy psuinolpe ejiuui4 uosiadieyn

juswuinolpy ‘¢l

‘pajjesued aq [|Im
Buneaw , G| 1aquadad ayl

‘9102

‘71 19qUIBAON p3INpayoss
aAlyejua) st bunssw

JX8U S,93)}IWIOD Y|

‘a|inpayos Aepijoy bunssw pieogq
9y} 0} anp Buyssw G| Jequissaq 8y} Buljjgoues Japisuoo
pINOYS SapILWWIOd 3y} }ey) pajuswuwod ¥00jieyos Jojoali(

"'910Z ‘Z1 JoquisAoN Joy panpayas AjpAnejus)
sI Buieaw Jxau s,98IWIWIOY 8Y) Pajels ejiuul4 uosiadieyn

Bunesy 1xeN jo ajeq 'zL

uosiadiieyd

SUON

"wis) feuolippe ue 8AJas 0} ssaubuljim Jay 1o} wel|Imzii4
'S\ 0} uoneloaidde t1ay passaldxa |j[pusupy 10308110

slaquiapy
99JJILUWIOY WU} SJUSWIWOD “| |

"uoIsses
Paso|0 Ul UaYe} Sem Uoijoe ou pauodal ejiuul4 uosiadieyn

(1°256%G uonoes
‘ap0oD) JUBSWUIBA0L) Ajlloyiny)
UOISSaG Paso|D) Ui uaye)} uonoe

Aue uo uosiadiieyd wolj poday 0l

‘pajou Ajsnoinaid se souepusye
YIM ‘W'e G|:6 }e uoissas uado o) pauin}al 88)IuWod ay |

uoissag uadQ 6

‘Aisnowjueun passed uojow ayj
‘W'B )6 Je UOISSas pasojd ojul ob 0} }oojjeyss 10323lig
Aq papuodss pue Bujuund 3oer "I Aq paAow Sem }|

uoIssas paso|o oju| ob 0] uonow ‘g

"S9JNUIW UO|SSaS Paso|d Jo [eAoidde papnioul Yoiym uoISsas
pasojo Buunp passnosip aq 0) epusbe ay) uo pajsi| SWwa)l
9y} JO JUBWISdUNOUUE [BIO UB 8pew ejluul{ uosiadieyn

(£'/G61G uonoss
9p0) JUSWILIBAOLD)) UOISSOS
pasoi) Buunp passnosig aq

0] Sswaj)j Jo Juswsdunouuy jel °/

BUON - ssauisng pP|O ‘9

uejjlauuoq ‘s

‘38 Iwo) ayy

uo wud) Jeak-om) jeuonippe
ue 0} weljimzyi4 uliyjey
‘SN Julodde o) si10)00.41Q

Jo pieog ay) o} Juss

9( 0} UOIIEPUBWILIODDY

"u9) |euonippe ue buiAlas
ul }saJs)ul ue passaldxa jou sey ay Janamoy ‘Burndxe
os|e sI wis) s, dieys uopeq iy papodal ejuul4 uosiadiieyd

"aAlas 0} ssaubuljjim Jay Joy welmzyi4
‘SN 0} uogjeloaidde Jay passaidxs ejuul4 uosiadieyd

*Aishowueun passed uonow

BYL "uoljow 9y} papuodas ||YdJIN 10)9841q "POPIWIWO)

sonyyg B asueldwo) ‘Ypny ayj uo wia} Jeak
-OM} [euoljippe ue o} pajulodde aq wel|Imzy4 uiyjey
"SIN pUBWIWOd31 0} }oo[eyds 10)934iq Aq paAow sem )

aaiwwo)
SoIY13 ' doueldwo) ‘Upny
8y} uo wua) Jeak-om] |[euolippe
UE 0} Wel|iimz)4 uhiyiey

‘'sy\ Julodde o) uonesanisuo) (g




AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

October 20", 2016

Administrative Policies & Procedures | Policy # Reason Recommendations
Compliance

1. Hiring and Employment; 537 DELETE Pulled - submit with 539 & 541
Definitions -

2. Non-Retaliation for Reporting . .
Compliance Issues or Suspected 560 3 year review, practice | Forward t.o BOQ f_or approval

; . change with revisions

Misconduct Policy

3. Responding to Compliance Issues . .
- Reports of Suspected 561 SNEEDLEUE T el Pulled for further review

. e change

Misconduct Investigation

4. Development and Revision of v
Code of Conduct and Policies - 563 DELETE AL ILEBALIL L
Introduction

5. Development and Revision of 564 3 year review, practice | Forward to BOD for approval
Code of Conduct and Policies change with revisions

6. Rewspn of Codg .of Conduct and 565 DELETE Forward to BOD for approval
Compliance Policies

7. Development and Revision of
Code of Conduct and Policies - 568 DELETE Forward to BOD for approval

Dissemination of New or Revised
Code of Conduct and Policies 568

238



y ¢ Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

Administrative Policy Manual

Compliance

ISSUE DATE: 12/12 SUBJECT: Non-Retaliation for Reporting
Compliance Issues or Suspected
Misconduct Pelicy

REVISION DATE(S): POLICY NUMBER: 8750-560

Department Approval Date(s): 01/16

Administrative Policies and Procedures Approval Date(s): 08/16

Organizational Compliance Committee Approval Dates (s): 08/16

Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 02/1609/16

Audit, and-Compliance and Ethics Committee Approval Date(s): 10/16

Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 12/12

A. PURPOSE:
1. This-pelicy-To provides a statement of Tri-City Healthcare District's (TCHD’s) non-retaliation
policy relating to reports of suspected misconduct and potential compliance irregularities. It is the
District’s intent that aryno person reporting a compliance concern net be subjected to-suffer
retaliation in any form. Thiswhich is consistent with applicable Federal and state laws and
regulations, the District’s Compllance Program Pohc;es and the—D+stne%sTCHD s Code of
Conduct.e-en 5 :

B. NON-RETALIATION; POLicySIFIVE CITATION:

1. ‘When a District TCHD employee or contractor has made a good faith report of an activity,
practice, or arrangement that the employee believes violates or may violate applicable laws and
regulations, the-DistristsTCHD’s Compliance Program Policies, or the TCHD’s Code of Conduct:
a. TCHD shall not in any manner harass or engage in retaliation or retribution against the

person, whether a board member, employee or {contractor for making a report,
provided the Board member, employee/contractor was not involved in the misconduct at
issue.

b. TCHD shall take appropriate corrective and/or disciplinary action against any
individualemployee/sontractor who either commits or condones any act of retaliation,
retribution, or harassment against a person who reports a compliance concern.
Disciplinary action for employees engaging in retaliation can be up to and including
termination of employment or affiliation with the District.

C. REPORTING EMPLOYEE'’S PARTICIPATION IN MISCONDUCT:

1. TCHD shall take appropriate corrective and/or disciplinary action against any employee who
violates any laws, regulations, policies and/or TCHD’s Code of Conduct, whether or not that
employee reported such violation.

As set forth in Policy 8750-562, the fact that the employee reported his or her own misconduct,

and the truthfulness and completeness of that self-disclosure, can be a factor in reducing the

severity of any corrective and/or disciplinary action.

3. No corrective and/or disciplinary action shall be taken against any individual
employeef/contractor who mistakenly but in good faith reported an act reasonably believed to be

a compliance violation or other misconduct. Individuals Empleyees/conirasters may be subject

to corrective and/or disciplinary action (if appropriate) if it is determined that a report of

wrongdoing or suspected violation of the Compliance Program was not made in good faith (e.g.,

A

239



Administrative Policy Manual - Compliance
Responding to Compliance Issues; Introduction; Suspected Misconduct; Non-Retaliation
Page 2 of 2

was knowingly fabricated, distorted, exaggerated or minimized in order to injure someone else,
protect himself/herself, or for any other reason).

4, Any individualemployee/contractor who misuses the Confidential Reporting Line (Values Line) or
attempts to interfere with efforts to investigate or address a possible compliance issue is subject
to corrective and/or disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment or affiliation
with TCHD.

D. DOCUMENTATION:
1. TCHD shall document compliance with this policy and maintain such documentation consistent
with the document retention policies.

E. RELATED DOCUMENTS:
1. Administrative Policy 8750-562 — Responding to Compliance Issues; Remedial Action.
2. TCHD Code of Conduct.
4+3. TCHD Employee Handbook.

F. REFERENCES:
1. “False Claims Act” — 31 U.S.C. Sections 3723-3733, a.k.a. “The Lincoln Law”

240



@ DELETE - This policy has
g c) Tri-City Medical Center been incorporated into Policy

Oceanside, California 8750-564- Development and
Revision of Code of Conduct
Administrative Policy Manual and Policies.
Compliance
ISSUE DATE: 05/12 SUBJECT: Development and Revision of Code
of Conduct and Policies; Introduction

REVISION DATE(S): POLICY NUMBER: 8750-563
Department Approval Date(s): 01/16
Administrative Policies and Procedures Approval Date(s): 08/16
Organizational Compliance Committee Approval Date(s): 08/16
Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 09/16
Audit, and-Compliance and Ethics Committee Approval Date(s): 10/16
Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 05/12

241



@‘é\}’ Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

Administrative Policy Manual

Compliance
ISSUE DATE: 05/12 SUBJECT: Development and Revision of
Code of Conduct and Policies

REVISION DATE(S): POLICY NUMBER: 8750-564

Department Approval Date: 08/16

Administrative Policies and Procedures Approval Date: 08/16

Organizational Compliance Committee Date (s): 08/16

Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 09/16

Audit, and-Compliance and Ethics Committee Approval Date(s): 10/16

Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 05/12

A. PURPOSE:

1. TFhispeolicy-explainsTo provide a statement of Tri-City Healthcare District’'s (TCHD’s)

policy regarding the development, review and revision of the Code of Conduct and
Policies implementing TCHD’s Compliance Program, and helps ensure TCHD’s practices
are consistent with its stated policies.

3.

“The Chlef Compllance Offcer in conjunctlonW|ththe Jmtter—nal—Orgamzatlonal

Compliance Committee (and legal counsel and others, as appropriate), shall develop
TCHD’s Code of Conduct and identify and develop the Policies necessary to ensure the
effectiveness of TCHD’s Compliance Program for recommendation to the Board of
Directors.

The Compliance Program Policies shall specifically address the seven factors
identified by the OIG, as fundamental to an effective compliance program. Specifically,
the Policies shall address:

Implementing written standards, policies;

Designating a Chief Compliance Officer and compliance committee;
Conducting effective training and education;

Developing effective lines of communication;

Conducting internal monitoring and auditing;

.Enforcing standards through well-publicized disciplinary guidelines; and

g. Responding promptly to detected problems and undertaking corrective action.
The Policies shall specifically address "risk" areas identified by OIG, in applicable
compliance program guidance or otherwise, as well as risk areas identified by other
agencies of the federal government, or which the Chief Compliance Officer determines
are relevant to TCHD.

All Policies shall be clear and concise and follow the same general format

New Policies, while in development, shall be discussed with the appropriate persons in
the affected department(s). If a department proposes a policy, it must provide any
supporting documents, for evaluation by the Chief Compliance Officer.

~0 oo oo

>.  REVIEW OF CODE OF CONDUCT AND POLICIES:

1.

The Chief Compliance Officer, in conjunction with the Organizational Compliance
Internal-ComplianceCommittee, shall review the Code of Conduct and all related

242



Administrative Policy Manual - Compliance
Development and Revision of Code of Conduct Policies
Page 2 of 2

compliance policies, as necessary, but at a minimum, once every twelve (12)

months.

The Chief Compliance Officer shall propose modifications and amendments to the

Code of Conduct and/or policies, as appropriate, to reflect:

a. Changes in applicable laws and regulations, including changes in
applicable coverage and reimbursement laws, regulations and decisions.

b. Changes in the nature or scope of the-District’s TCHD’s business
(including TCHD’s the-Bistriet’s contractual obligations), and

C. Indications that existing policies have been ineffective in preventing
compliance violations or new or additional policies would be more effective
in preventing or avoiding the recurrence of misconduct.

Where appropriate, the Chief Compliance Officer, in conjunction with the

Organizational internal Compliance Committee, shall propose revisions to TCHD'’s

the-District's Code of Conduct policies.

Proposed revisions shall be discussed with appropriate persons in the affected

department before implementing changes.

Any revision must be approved by the Board of Directors.

=D.

E-E.

G-F.

AUDIT AND DOCUMENTATION:

1.

TCHD Distriet shall document compliance with the Development and Revision of

Conduct Policies (8750-563-through-8750-568 8750-564 and 8750-567). Such audit
shall be conducted pursuant to Policy 8750-553. Relevant documentation shall be
maintained in the-Bistricts TCHD’s Compliance Program Files, consistent with its
documentation retention policies.

DOCUMENTATION:

1.

The Chief Compliance Officer shall maintain copies in the Compliance Program
Files of:

a. All final versions of the Code of Conduct.
b. All final versions of compliance policies.

REFERENCES:

1. Administrative Policy 8750-553 — Monitoring Compliance Auditing and Reporting -
Compliance Reviews and Audits.

2. Administrative Policy 8750-564 — Development and Revision of Code of Conduct
and Policies.

3. Administrative Policy 8750-567 — Development and Revision of Code of Conduct

and Policies; Retiring Code of Conduct and/or Policies.

243



@3)) L . DELETE - This policy has been
Tri-City Medical Center | incorporated into Policy 8750-
Oceanside, California 564- Development and Revision
of Code of Conduct and Policies.

Administrative Policy Manual

Compliance
ISSUE DATE: 05/12 SUBJECT: Revision of Code of Conduct and
Compliance Policies
REVISION DATE(S): POLICY NUMBER: 8750-565
Department Approval Date(s): 01/16
Administrative Policies and Procedures Approval Date(s): 08/16
Organizational Compliance Committee Approval Date(s): 08/16
Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 09/16
| Audit, and-Compliance and Ethics Committee Approval Date(s): 10/16
Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 05/12

244



® Tri-City Medical Center | DELETE - This policy has been

Oceanside, California

Administrative Policy Manual
Compliance

incorporated into Policy 8750-
564- Development and
Revision of Code of Conduct
and Policies.

ISSUE DATE: 05/12

REVISION DATE(S):

Department Approval Date(s):

SUBJECT:

Development and Revision of Code
of Conduct and Policies;
Dissemination of New or Revised
Code of Conduct and Policies

POLICY NUMBER: 8750-568

Administrative Policies and Procedures Approval Date(s):
Organizational Compliance Committee Approval Dates (s):
Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s):

| Audit, and-Compliance and Ethics Committee Approval Date(s):

Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

01/16
08/16
08/16
09/16
10/16
05/12

245



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
MINUTES FOR A REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

September 29, 2016 — 1:30 o’clock p.m.
Classroom 6 — Eugene L. Geil Pavilion
4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tri-City Healthcare District was held at the
location noted above at Tri-City Medical Center, 4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, California at
1:30 p.m. on September 29, 2016.

The following Directors constituting a quorum of the Board of Directors were present:

Director James Dagostino, DPT, PT
Director Ramona Finnila

Director Cyril F. Kellett, MD
Director Laura E. Mitchell

Director RoseMarie V. Reno
Director Larry Schallock

Absent was Director Julie Nygaard

Also present were:

Greg Moser, General Legal Counsel

Steve Dietlin, Chief Executive Officer

Kapua Conley, Chief Operating Officer

Sharon Schultz, Chief Nurse Executive

Norma Braun, Chief Human Resource Officer
Ray Rivas, Acting Chief Financial Officer

Cheryle Bernard-Shaw, Chief Compliance Officer
Gene Ma, M.D., Chief of Staff

Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant

Richard Crooks, Executive Protection Agent

1.

The Board Chairman, Director Dagostino called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. in
Classroom 6 of the Eugene L. Geil Pavilion at Tri-City Medical Center with attendance
as listed above.

Approval of Agenda

Chairman Dagostino noted New Business item 16 c) Recruitment Agreement with Dr.
Anton M. Kushnaryov and North County Ear, Nose, Throat and Head & Neck Surgery
has been pulled pending additional information.

Chairman Dagostino also requested that an item be added to Closed Session 6 f)
Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing Litigation to provide an update on the
Patricia Jenkins vs. Tri-City Health Care District litigation matter.

246



It was moved by Director Kellett to approve the agenda as amended. Director
Finnila seconded the motion. The motion passed (6-0-1) with Director Nygaard
absent.

3. Public Comments — Announcement

Chairman Dagostino read the Public Comments section listed on the September 26,
2016 Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda.

There were no public comments.
4, Oral Announcement of Items to be discussed during Closed Session

Chairman Dagostino deferred this item to the Board’s General Counsel. General
Counsel, Mr. Greg Moser made an oral announcement of the items listed on the
September 26, 2016 Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda to be discussed
during Closed Session which included Conference with Labor Negotiators; one
Report Involving Trade Secrets, Hearings on Reports of the Hospital Medical Audit or
Quality Assurance Committees; Conference with Legal Counsel regarding two (2)
matters of Existing Litigation; three (3) matters of Potential Litigation and Approval of
Closed Session Minutes.

5. Motion to go into Closed Session

It was moved by Director Kellett and seconded by Director Schallock to go into
closed session at 1:35 p.m. The motion passed (6-0-1) with Director Nygaard
absent.

6. The Board adjourned to Closed Session at 1:35 p.m.

7. At 3:30 p.m. in Assembly Rooms 1, 2 and 3, Chairman Dagostino announced that the
Board was back in Open Session.

The following Board members were present:

Director James Dagostino, DPT, PT
Director Ramona Finnila

Director Cyril F. Kellett, MD
Director Laura E. Mitchell

Director RoseMarie V. Reno
Director Larry W. Schallock

Absent was Director Julie Nygaard
Also present were:

Greg Moser, General Legal Counsel

Steve Dietlin, Chief Executive Officer

Kapua Conley, Chief Operations Officer

Ray Rivas, Acting Chief Financial Officer

Sharon Schultz, Chief Nurse Executive

Norma Braun, Chief Human Resource Officer
Cheryle Bernard-Shaw, Chief Compliance Officer

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 2- September 29, 2016

247



10.

12.

Gene Ma, M.D., Chief of Staff
Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant
Richard Crooks, Executive Protection Agent

Chairman Dagostino reported no action was taken in open session.
Director Dagostino led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Chairman Dagostino read the Public Comments section of the Agenda, noting
members of the public may speak immediately following Agenda ltem Number 24.

Chairman Dagostino reported a special guest has joined us today, our Sacramento
Representative, Assemblyman Rocky Chavez, who has requested the opportunity to
address our Board of Directors.

Assemblyman Chavez stated he has the honor of representing the cities of Carlsbad,
Oceanside and Vista which incidentally is the same district as Tri-City Medical Center.
He commented that in the past few years he has been extremely impressed with this
Board and is here today to express his appreciation for the Board’s hard work and
their ability to focus on what matters and the residents of this District.

Assemblyman Chavez stated that he recently learned that through the efforts of this
Board and CEO Tri-City will be applying for a funding mechanism from HUD which he
believes is an outstanding idea and has provided a letter of support on our behalf. He
stated that with a favorable result from HUD, the issue of finances will be put it in our
history and allow the District to move forward.

Assemblyman Chavez stated the two messages he would like to relay today is he is
hopeful that through the fall Tri-City will continue to have this strong leadership in
place focusing on what is best for the community and he strongly supports us in our
efforts with HUD.

In closing, Assemblyman Chavez stated his office stands by to do anything that is
needed to ensure we move forward for our community.

On behalf of the Board, Chairman Dagostino stated he is honored with Assemblyman
Chavez's presence and expressed his appreciation for recognizing our Board.

Special Presentations —
(1) Clinical Equipment Update — Dr. Donald Ponec

Dr. Ponec presented a comprehensive review of major medical equipment that
included a description of devices that have been purchased in the time period
FY2013 — FY2016. Dr. Ponec explained Tri-City Healthcare District has invested
approximately $57.8 million in medical equipment technology over the past seven (7)
years. He commented that the Radiology Department is State of the Art in many
areas and is at or above the Community Standard in all areas.

Dr. Ponec also included in his review the technical classification and regulatory
agencies that routinely inspect or certify the devices.

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 3- September 29, 2016



Dr. Ponec stated he wanted to reassure both the public and the Board that we are
very much aware of all the latest and greatest technology and due diligence is done
in selecting what makes the most sense for the hospital in terms of equipment.

Directors asked questions which Dr. Ponec responded to.

Mr. Steve Young, Senior Director of Ancillary Services also presented an update on
state of the art Cardiology equipment that has been purchased as well as FY2017
pending equipment projects.

Director Reno stated she very much appreciates today’s educational presentation on
our medical equipment and technology and she feels more comfortable that we have
this fine equipment. Director Reno suggested the Board receive an educational
session once a year on the hospital’'s Medical Equipment and Technology. Director
Reno also expressed her appreciation to the Foundation and Auxiliary for their
assistance in purchasing some of our equipment.

No action was taken.
(2) Information Related to Quality — Sharon Schultz, CNE

Ms. Sharon Schultz presented a report related to Quality. She reported on the
various agencies that report out data and noted no two agencies report out in the
same way. For example, Leap Frog measures by outcomes and CMS takes into
account HCAP scores and claims data. Ms. Schultz stated the fact that we have a
large number of “double rooms” is an issue as “quiet at night” is the score that
brought us down the most. Ms. Schultz emphasized that Tri-City Medical Center
provides the highest quality of care and it is our mission to provide patients with help
and healing for a safe passage. She stated we truly believe our patients come first!

Ms. Schultz described the Falls Program that has created safe units where rounding
is conducted every 15 minutes to make sure patients at risk for falls are safe and in
their beds.

Another program Ms. Schultz commented on was the Code Sepsis Team in which our
team responds 24/7 to codes. She noted Tri-City was the first hospital in San Diego
County to implement a Code Sepsis Team and it has made a big impact on the
wellbeing of our patients.

Lastly, Ms. Schultz described the benefits of the Wound Care Team who conducts
rounds to assess breakdown of skin.

Ms. Schultz stated a new service will be implemented next month, the Palliative Care
Program and she looks forward to discussing this program at a future meeting.

No action was taken.
(3) Marketing Report — David Bennett, CMO

Mr. David Bennett provided a Marketing Update on activities for the time period
January - September, reviewing the following:

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 4- September 29, 2016

249



> There have been a total of 18 Press Releases and the one he is most proud of is our
Sixth Consecutive “A” Rating in Patient Safety;

» There are four commercials that run on NBC and CBS that feature some of our fine
physicians;

> Wellness Center Memberships ending September 2016 totaled 3,608 which includes
1,023 new members. Cancellation of membership continues to be a problem with
1,086 cancellations during this time period, however Corporate Memberships are six
ahead of last year;

> There have been a total of six Bill Boards with the latest one announcing our
Affiliation with UCSD;

> Primary Care Physician Print Ad Campaigns in the Union Tribune, Coast News and
Inland Edition total 54 during this time period,;

» The Marketing Department also provides internal hospital support through brochures,
flyers, entryway posters, etc.;

> Tri-City sponsored or participated in 89 community events and Grand Openings;

> 12 Lectures were given by TCMC affiliated physicians;

> 11 TV and radio appearances were given by TCMC affiliated physicians; and

> 6 print articles were provided by TCMC affiliated physicians.
Mr. Bennett introduced Mr. Brian Greenwald, Website Content Specialist who
provided a review of our digital and social media. Mr. Greenwald reported there have
been over 3.5 million “impressions” across the internet with Oceanside being our
largest follower.
Campaigns include “I Am Tri-City”, “Tri-City Docs”, as well as posts related to our
recent affiliation with UCSD, announcement of IORT, CT scanner dedication and
NICU reunion, to name a few.
Lastly, Mr. Greenwald provided an updated on our new Website Redesign which
went live in May and will highlight Breast Cancer Awareness during the month of
October.

In closing, Mr. Bennett presented a three minute video highlighting our Marketing
Campaign.

No action was taken.
13. Report from TCHD Foundation — Glen Newhart, Chief Development Officer
Mr. Glen Newhart provided a presentation on the 30" NICU Reunion that was held on

September 10". He introduced Dr. Hamid Movahhedian, Ms. Nancy Myers,
Manager, NICU and Ms. Sharon Davies, Director of Women'’s & Children’s Services.

e ——
R —,———m—m

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 5- September 29, 2016



14.

Dr. Movahhedian stated he was extremely pleased with the attendance at the NICU
reunion in which over 1,000 family members attended and shared their stories.
Members of the Board and the Executive Team also attended the event.

Ms. Myers commented on her jubilation and pride to see these individuals thriving
and the immense emotion that staff felt in caring for the tiniest members of our
community.

Mr. Newhart shared some messages from families before and after the event that
reflected their immense gratitude.

Director Finnila also commented on the event and expressed her appreciation to the
Foundation volunteers for hosting such a beautiful meaningful occasion.

Mr. Newhart also provided an update on the Diamond Ball which is scheduled for
November 12" at the Omni La Costa Resort and is very close to a sellout.

Lastly, Mr. Newhart reported on the recent Golf Tournament that was oversold and
generated double the net revenue of years past. He noted both the Diamond Ball
and Golf Tournament proceeds benefit the renovation of Women’s Services.

Directors recognized the Foundation Staff and volunteers for their efforts in
organizing the NICU Reunion and noted the sincere outpouring of support from the
community.

No action was taken.
Report from Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Steve Dietlin, CEO reported he attended the 30" NICU union in which 1,000
people chose to come and celebrate this facility. He commented on the true
outpouring of support from the community. Mr. Dietlin expressed his appreciation to
the Foundation, Dr. Movahhedian, Ms. Sharon Davies, Director of Women'’s Service,
Nancy Myers, NICU Manager and the entire Foundation for their support.

Mr. Dietlin also expressed his appreciation to Dr. Donald Ponec for his Clinical
Medical Equipment update. He commented on how great it is to hear from a
clinician’s standpoint exactly what the equipment is used for. Mr. Dietlin stated Dr.
Ponec has been recognized as a Top Doctor for his clinical excellence, along with
many other of our physicians.

Mr. Dietlin also recognized Director Larry Schallock for being the recipient of the 2016
University of Arizona College Pharmacy’s Distinguished Alumni Award for providing
leadership in the profession and in the community as recommended from our local
mayors.

Mr. Dietlin stated he is pleased to report we have been invited to submit an
application with HUD, and if successful that would release $51 million of liquidity to
the District. Mr. Dietlin explained long term financers are looking for stability and
clean financial statement audits. He noted a Resolution is coming forward for
consideration related to submission of the HUD application.

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 6- September 29, 2016

251



No action was taken.
15. Report from Acting Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Rivas reported on the second month of FY 2017 as follows (Dollars in

Thousands):
> Operating Revenue — $55,899
» Operating Expense — $56,239
> EROE - $499
> EBITDA - $3,079

Other Key Indicators for the current year driving those results included the following:

» Average Daily Census — 185

> Adjusted Patient Days — 19,511
> Surgery Cases — 1,102

> Deliveries — 462

> ED Visits — 11,271

Mr. Rivas also reported on the current month financials as follows: (Dollars in
Thousands).

» Operating Revenue — $28,134
» Operating Expense — $28,345
> EROE - $211

> EBITDA - $1,496

Mr. Rivas also reported on current month Key Indicators as follows:

> Average Daily Census — 192

» Adjusted Patient Days — 10,196
» Surgery Cases — 557

> Deliveries — 239

» ED Visits — 5,544

Mr. Rivas reported on the following indicators for FY17 Average:

> Net Patient Accounts Receivable - $43.6
> Days in Net Accounts Receivable — 51.0

Mr. Rivas presented graphs which reflected trends in Net Days in Patient Accounts
Receivable, Average Daily Census excluding Newborns, Adjusted Patient Days, and
Emergency Department Visits.

Director Reno commented on the slight dip in Emergency Department visits. Dr. Ma
stated typically there will be a drop in Emergency Department visits in the summer and
a significant rise in November.

No action was taken.

16. New Business

TCHD Regular Board of Dtors Meeting -7- September 29, 01 6

252



Consideration to accept the FY2016 Financial Statement Audit

Mr. Blakey stated Moss Adams was engaged to conduct an audit of the consolidated
financial statements for year end June 30, 2016. He stated the audit was conducted
in accordance with generally accepted audit standards which consist of obtaining
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are stated fairly in all
material respects. Mr. Blakey explained that during the course of the audit they
perform their own testing of the transactional data and based on this evidence draw
their conclusions. In addition, the auditors look at the internal control structures that
the organizations have put in place to make sure the financial statements are
accurate. Mr. Blakey noted that during the course of our audit the auditors were not
limited in any way, all of their requests were complied with by management, all
questions were answered in a transparent way and their scope was not limited in any
way. Mr. Blakey reported that based on the results of their test work, it is their opinion
that the financial statements for year end June 30, 2016 are materially accurate and
are presented fairly and thus they have issued an unmaodified (clean) opinion of the
Financial Statements. In addition, the auditors did not note any internal deficiencies
or weaknesses or adjustments that they would consider to be significant.

Director Finnila stated that the Audit Committee had recommended a partner rotation
change this year to get a fresh set of eyes on the financials. Mr. Blakey stated this
this is his first year as the Engagement Partner serving Tri-City Medical Center and it
is best practice for those charged with governance to request a rotation of the audit
partner as it allows for an increased level of objectivity when the audit is conducted.

Director Reno stated she appreciated that the audit was performed in a timely
manner.

Director Schallock commented that there are some expenses that were recorded for

this year only related to the OIG settlement. He explained that this event occurred 4-
5 years ago however the final settlement occurred this year and was thus recorded in
this fiscal year. Director Schallock stated there are also legal expenses recorded this
fiscal year due to events that took place 4-5 years ago. Director Schallock stated it is
gratifying that we have three years of unequivocal clean audits.

Director Kellett thanked Mr. Blakey for his frank and honest discussion and stated
through Mr. Dietlin and Mr. Rivas's efforts, they have produced the best documents
this hospital has seen.

Director Reno clarified the OIG matter occurred prior to 2009 and with the assistance
of Mr. Rivas and Mr. Dietlin this matter has concluded.

Director Finnila expressed her appreciation to the Audit Committee community
members who have a long history of working in the financial arena and stated their
comments and suggestions have been greatly appreciated.

It was moved by Director Finnila to accept the FY2016 Financial Statement
Audit as presented and approved by the Audit, Compliance & Ethics
Committee. Director Kellett seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 8- September 29, 2016



AYES: Directors:  Dagostino, Finnila, Kellett, Mitchell,
Reno and Schallock

NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None

ABSENT: Directors:  Nygaard

Chairman Dagostino questioned if Mr. Blakey would consider this institution a
solvent institution. Mr. Blakey responded that yes, as part of the auditor
procedure the audit standards require that the independent auditor evaluate the
organization’s ability to satisfy their obligations as they become due for a
reasonable time and that is reflected in their opinion.

Chairman Dagostino called for the question.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors:  Dagostino, Finnila, Kellett, Mitchell,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors: Nygaard

b. Consideration of Resolution No. 779 Authorizing the District to submit HUD
application

It was moved by Director Schallock that the Tri-City Healthcare District
Board of Directors adopt Resolution 779 relating to the authorizing of
filing of an application to the Federal Housing Authority (FHA). Director
Kellett seconded the motion.

Director Kellett congratulated Mr. Dietlin and the team who met with HUD in
Washington, D.C. He stated the team obviously did an outstanding job and he is
thrilled the District has been invited to submit an application.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Dagostino, Finnila, Kellett, Mitchell,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors: Nygaard

Chairman Dagostino reported the Board authorized the hiring of Bond Counsel in
Closed Session pending approval of Resolution No. 779.

c.  Approval of a Physician Recruitment Agreement with Dr. Anton M. Kushnaryov,
and North County Ear, Nose, Throat, Head and Neck Surgery

Chairman Dagostino reported the Physician Recruitment Agreement with Dr. Anton
Kushnaryov was pulled at the beginning of today’s meeting pending additional
information.

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 9-

Septembr 29, 2016

254



17. Old Business
Report from Ad Hoc Committee on Electronic Board Portal
Director Mitchell reported she had nothing new to report at this time.

No action was taken.

18. Chief of Staff

a. Consideration of September 2016 Credentialing Actions involving the Medical
Staff as recommended by the Medical Executive Committee at their meeting on
September 26, 2016.

It was moved by Director Mitchell to approve the September 2016
Credentialing Actions involving the Medical Staff, and October 2016
Time Limited Reappointments as recommended by the Medical
Executive Committee at their meeting on September 26, 2016. Director
Schallock seconded the motion.

Dr. Ma noted there was an amendment as previously advised in closed
session to remove the Fluoroscopy restriction for Dr. Grant Seiden.

The maker and the second of the motion agreed to consider approving
the amended Credentialing Reports.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Dagostino, Finnila, Kellett, Mitchell,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors:  Nygaard

19. Consent Calendar

It was moved by Director Schallock to approve the Consent Calendar.
Director Mitchell seconded the motion.

It was moved by Director Finnila to pull item 19 (1) A. 1) h. Policy 8610-
485 - Hiring & Employment; Screening Current Employees. Director
Kellett seconded the motion.

It was moved by Director Finnila to pull 19(1) C. Community Healthcare &
Alliance Committee minutes. Director Kellett seconded the motion.

The vote on the main motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Dagostino, Finnila, Kellett, Mitchell,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors:  Nygaard

Septmber 29, 2016

CHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 10-

259



20.

The vote on the main motion minus the items pulled was as

follows:

AYES: Directors: Dagostino, Finnila, Kellett, Mitchell,
Reno and Schallock

NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors:  Nygaard

Director Reno requested that the minutes reflect that she is voting “no” on the August
25, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes.

Discussion of items pulled from Consent Agenda

Director Finnila who pulled item 19(1) A. 1) h Policy 8610-485 — Hiring & Employment
Screening Current Employees stated the Policy does not reflect who conducts the
actual screenings. Ms. Norma Braun, CHRO explained the screening is conducted by
a Human Resources staff member who is designated by the Chief Human Resources
Officer. Director Finnila requested that language be reflected in the policy.

It was moved by Director Finnila to approve Policy 8610-485 — Hiring &
Employment Screening Current Employees with the additional language
as described. Director Kellett seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Dagostino, Finnila, Kellett, Mitchell,
Schallock and Reno
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors:  Nygaard

Director Finnila who pulled item 19(1) C. Community Healthcare & Alliance Committee
minutes requested that Mr. Conley discuss the SANDAG award grant that was
discussed at this month’s Community Healthcare & Alliance Committee meeting.

Mr. Conley reported approximately six (6) months ago we entered into a partnership
with FACT (Facilitating Access to Coordinating Transportation), a not for profit group
out of Oceanside and SANDAG to apply for federal grant funds under FTAs “Rides to
Wellness” Medical Initiative. Mr. Conley stated we have been notified that we are a
recipient of this grant and will be awarded $200,000 over an 18 month period. Mr.
Conley explained this is significant in that we are the only hospital based institution
participating in this grant and funds will be utilized to implement a discharge lounge
and provide transportation to our patients back home at a level of their care. In
addition, we will perform safety wellness checks at the home and will be offering door
to door service. Mr. Conley stated he is confident this service will help with ER
throughput, readmission initiatives and the wellness and goodness of the community.

Mr. Conley clarified this information was presented to the Community Healthcare &
Alliance Committee rather than the Governance Committee and we became aware of
the grant opportunity through our relatlonshlp with FACT and SANDAG.

TCHD Regular Board of Dlrectors Meetmg - 11- September 29 2016

256



21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 12-

Reports (Discussion by exception only)

With regard to the Reimbursement Report, Director Finnila reminded Directors of the
need to have a current Ethics Training Certificate on file in order to be eligible to
receive reimbursement.

Legislative Update

Director Schallock commented on the importance of supporting Proposition 52 in the
November election. He explained Proposition 52 is supported by all parties and will
continue to maximize federal funds available for Medi-Cal patients.

Comments by members of the Public

Chairman Dagostino recognized Mr. Kevin Stotmeister, former Chair of the Tri-City
Hospital Foundation.

Mr. Stotmeister stated he and his wife Ellen are long-time volunteers and fundraisers of
the hospital dating back to the late 1990's. He commented that some of the issues in
the past negatively impacted the ability of the Foundation to secure donations and it
was difficult to recruit and engage Board members in the Foundation. However, he has
observed a positive change that he attributes to the collaborative effort of the Board,
staff and the Medical Staff. Mr. Stotmeister expressed his appreciation for a job well
done and stated due to these collaborative efforts, we now enjoy a strong Foundation
staff and have over 20 Board members actively involved in raising funds for our
hospital.

Mr. Stotmeister stated the Diamond Ball gala tickets are going fast with over 90% sold.
He noted this will be the largest Diamond Ball to date!

Additional Comments by Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Dietlin did not have any additional comments.
Board Communications

Director Schallock reported Saturday, October 27" is Prescription Take Back Day. He
encouraged everyone to drop off their unwanted and outdated medications in the
Hospital parking lot between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 2:00 p.m.

Secondly, Director Schallock reported last Saturday, he, along with Chairman
Dagostino and Mr. Dietlin attended a tour of the UCSD Jacobs Medical Center in which
there is an impressive Women’s Center, NICU and Cancer Center. Director Schallock
stated he took the opportunity to “tout” our IORT.

Lastly, Director Schallock expressed his satisfaction with Mr. Dietlin’s leadership and
commented on how fortunate we are to have him as our CEO. Director Schallock
stated he looks forward to seeing the hospital move forward under his leadership.

Director Mitchell expressed her appreciation to Mr. Dietlin and his entire team for
getting us through some difficult times and clearing a path to a bright future.

September 29, 016

257



26.

Director Reno also expressed her appreciation to Mr. Dietlin and his diligent and loyal
staff for leading the hospital toward a good future.

Director Reno commented on the delicate balance between the purchase of equipment
and the fiscal ability to purchase high tech equipment. She expressed her appreciation
to the Foundation and the Auxiliary who assist in the funding of high tech equipment.

Director Finnila provided a public service announcement related to the HPV virus which
can be dangerous to young men and women. She stated inoculation (HPV vaccine) is
recommended for boys and girls age 11 on up to ward off cervical and other types of
cancers.

Director Finnila commented on the positive financial solvency of the District which was
demonstrated today by the Audit. She also commented on our alliance with UCSD as
well as other groups in the community such as SANDAG which was described today.

Director Finnila commented on Ms. Schultz’s quality presentation and the importance of
recognizing that data is measured in multiple different ways.

Lastly, Director Finnila expressed her appreciation to the staff and committees and all
who have worked together to make a difference in the community.

Director Kellett expressed his condolences to the immediate family of Dr. Victor
Avedian who passed away recently. Director Kellett stated Dr. Avedian was very
devoted to Tri-City Hospital and delivered high quality care. In addition, he was one of
the first Board Certified Surgeons in North County.

Report from Chairperson

Chairman Dagostino stated he is amazed at what has transpired in this community over
the past several months. He commented that we have secured our clinical and
healthcare quality future by partnering with UCSD, a world class medical institution and
we are now close to partnering with the United States Government and HUD to secure
our financial future.

Chairman Dagostino expressed his appreciation to the community for entrusting their
care to us.

31. There being no further business Chairman Dagostino adjourned the meeting at 5:45
p.m.
James J Dagostino, DPT
Chairman
ATTEST:

Ramona Finnila, Secretary

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 13- September 29, 2016



& 2 e~

B 720

ke f\ o 1 '.I'I.’, WVl

_é_u-i_ld'i'n_g Operéfing Leases

Month Ending September 30, 2016

Base Total Rent
Rate per per current LeaseTerm

Lessor Sq. Ft.| Sq.Ft. month Beginning Ending Services & Location
Camelot Investments, LLC
5800 Armada Dr., #200 PCP Clinic - Radiance
Carlsbad, CA 92008 Approx 3998 Vista Way, Ste. C
Vi#15608 3,563 $1.85 {(a) 10,098.32 2/1/2015] 10/31/18|Oceanside, CA 92056
Creek View Medical Assoc
1926 Via Centre Dr. Suite A PCP Clinic - Vista
Vista, CA 92081 Approx 1926 Via Centre Drive, Ste A
V#81981 6,200 $2.56 ((a) 19,672.00 2/1/2015] 10/31/18|Vista, CA
Eflin Investments, LLC
Clancy Medical Group
20136 Elfin Creek Trail PCP Clinic
Escondido, CA 92029 2375 Melrose Dr. Vista
\#82575 3,140 $2.49 |(a) 9,265.25 12/01/15] 12/31/20|Vista, CA 92081
GCO
3621 Vista Way Performance Improvement
Oceanside, CA 92056 3927 Waring Road, Ste.D
#V81473 1,583 $1.92 |(a) 3,398.15 01/01/13]  09/30/16)Oceanside, Ca 92056
Investors Property Mgmt. Group
c/o Levitt Family Trust OP Physical Therapy
2181 El Camino Real, Ste. 206 OP OT & OP Speech Therapy
Oceanside, Ca 92054 2124 E. El Camino Real, Ste.100
V#81028 5,214 $1.86 |(a) 9,965.94 09/01/12] 08/31/17|Oceanside, Ca 92054
Melrose Plaza Complex, LP
cl/o Five K Management, Inc.
P O Box 2522 Outpatient Behavioral Health
La Jolla, CA 92038 510 West Vista Way
V#43849 7,247 $1.37 |(a) 10,101.01 07/01/16] 06/30/21|Vista, Ca 92083
OPS Enterprises, LLC Chemotherapy/infusion Oncology
3617 Vista Way, Bldg. 5 Center
Oceanside, Ca 92056 3617 Vista Way, Bldg.5
#V81250 4,760 $3.88 |{(a) 24,931.00 10/01/12f 10/01/22{Oceanside, Ca 92056
Ridgeway/Bradford CALP
DBA: Vista Town Center
PO Box 19068 Vacant Building
Irvine, CA 92663 510 Hacienda Drive Suite 108-A
V#81503 3,307 $2.11 |(a) 4,984.83 10/28/13] 03/03/18|Vista, CA 92081
Tri City Real Estate Holding &
Management Company, LLC Vacant Medical Office Building
4002 Vista Way 4120 Waring Rd
Oceanside, Ca 92056 6,123 $1.37 7,789.71 12/19/11|  12/18/16|Oceanside, Ca 92056
Tri City Real Estate Holding &
Management Company, LLC Vacant Bank Building Property
4002 Vista Way . 4000 Vista Way
Oceanside, Ca 92056 4,295 $3.13 12,361.10 01/01/12] 12/31/16]{Oceanside, Ca 92056
Tri City Wellness, LLC
6250 E! Camino Real Weliness Center
Carlsbad, CA 92009 Approx 6250 El Camino Real
V#80388 87,000 $4.08 |(a) | 246,428.00 07/01/13| 06/30/28|Carlsbad, CA 92009

Total $358,995.31

(a) Total Rent includes Base Rent plus property taxes, association fees, insurance, CAM expenses, etc.

259



Education & Travel Expense
Month Ending 9/30/16

Cost Centers Description Invoice # Amount _ Vendor # Attendees
6171 ACHSA CONFERENCE 91516 200.00 82419|LORI ROACH
6340 BH SYMPOSIUM - REGISTRATION 9202016 495.00 14365|JOY MELHADO
7010 MICN TRAINING 90816 800.00 62089 ) CONSTANTINO-S OLSON
7010 MICN TRAINING 62216 1,500.00 31263 | TINGLE-WESTRA-WESTERNBERGER
7680 ACLS-BLS COURSE 80316 220.00 82786 |HEATHER TARDY
7893 WOUND CARE - BILLING COMPIANCE 91216 300.00 33292|ARCHIE LLORCA
7893 WOUND CARE - BILLING COMPIANCE 91216 300.00 33292|KiM POSTEN
8010 FDA WEBINAR 91516 189.00 80273|INGRID STUIVER
8390 CHA QTR SAFETY 90116 207.96 81328|THERESA VIDALS
8390 NCCP CONFERENCE 51016 468.07 10894 |LAURA BALL
8610 PRIME PROJECT-SECURE TEXTING 82916 229.00 80739|SCOTT LIVINGSTONE
8610 HUD MEETING - EXPENSES 90216 320.36 78648}GENE MA
8610 DHLF BOARD MEETING 82916 601.56 81508|STEVEN DIETLIN
8610 HOSPITAL ASSOC 2016 ANNUAL MTG 91316 875.00 34627 |DIETLIN-CONLEY-SCHULTZ-BENNETT-KNIGHT
8610 HUD MEETING - FLIGHT 83116| 1,033.02 81163 |EUGENE MA
8610 HUD MEETING - FLIGHT 83116 985.03 81163|STEVEN DIETLIN
8610 HUD MEETING - FLIGHT 83116 842.20 81163|PHILLIP SOULE
8610 HUD MEETING - FLIGHT 83116 931.82 81163 |RAY RIVAS
8620 HUD MEETING - HOTEL/EXPENSES 90816 264.33 81515 ]JAMES DAGOSTINO
8620 HUD MEETING - HOTEL/EXPENSES 90816EXP 305.37 78591|LARRY W. SCHALLOCK
8620 HUD MEETING - FLIGHT 83116 1,033.02 81163|JAMES DAGOSTINO
8620 HUD MEETING - FLIGHT 83116 842.20 81163|LARRY W. SCHALLOCK
8650 SEXUAL HARASSMENT TRAINING 82616 250.00 82746|NORMA BRAUN
8700 ICD 10 EXPERT 2017 TEXTBOOK 80011891545f 1,055.52 82236|HOSPITAL STAFF
8720 2016 HQI CONFERENCE 90916SCHULTZ 685.00 82808 {SHARON SCHULTZ
8730 BH SYMPOSIUM - REGISTRATION 92016 495.00 14365|CAROLA HAUER, PHD
8730 BH SYMPOSIUM - HOTEL EXPENSE 28514212 586.36 82530|) MELHADO, C HAUER,PHD
8740 RNC RE-CERTIFICATION 90616 100.00 81979|SUSAN AZARIAN
8740 ACLS COURSE 82516 189.00 81295 |LORRAINE BULLA
8740 NUCLEAR MEDICINE COURSE 82516 200.00 77784|HAMID WALEH
8740 ACLS COURSE 81816 200.00 79318|NATALIE ALONZO
8740 ACLS RENEWAL COURSE 90116 200.00 82312|STEVEN ALDEN
8740 ADVANCED FETAL 91516 200.00 82314|JACQUELYN COBBS
8740 PERIOPERATED TEXT BOOK 825499 580.00 9999 |HOSPITAL STAFF
8740 RN TO BSN 90816 2,500.00 82011 |LAURA GIPSON
8750 CA SOCIETY FOR HEALTHCARE ATTY 81216 413.33 82462 |CHERYLE BERNARD-SHAW
8750 COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION 82916| 1,293.65 82462 |CHERYLE BERNARD-SHAW
8764 INTRO TO HYPERBERIC BST11137| 13,000.00 82795 |HOSPITAL STAFF

**This report shows payments and/or reimbursements to employees and Board Members in the Education
& Travel expense category in excess of $100.00.
**Detailed backup is available from the Finance department upon request.

260



	agenda.packet.november.2016.1
	agenda.packet.november.2016.2
	agenda.packet.november.2016.3

